
 
 

Housing and Community Engagement 
Scrutiny Commission 

 
Tuesday 23 November 2021 

7.00 pm 
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 

 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Gavin Edwards (Chair) 
Councillor Damian O'Brien (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Sunny Lambe 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Jane Salmon 
Bassey Bassey (Co-opted member) 
Cris Claridge (Co-opted member) 
Ina Negoita (Co-opted member) 
 

Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Nick Dolezal 
Councillor Karl Eastham 
Councillor Hamish McCallum 
Councillor Victoria Olisa 
Councillor Andy Simmons 
Councillor Bill Williams 
 

 

 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda 
as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, 
an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this 
meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at 
the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on 
building access, translation, provision of signers etc. for this meeting are on the 
council’s web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact 
Amit Alva on email: amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk     
 

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk


 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Eleanor Kelly 
Chief Executive 
Date: 15 November 2021 
 

 
 



 
 

Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny 
Commission 

 

Tuesday 23 November 2021 
7.00 pm 

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 

 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR DEEMS URGENT. 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an 
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS. 
 

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

1 - 5 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 
Tuesday 5 October 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

5. PRIVATE RENTED HOUSING, INCLUDING LICENCING AND 
THE RENTER'S UNION 

 

6 - 352 

  Interview with Councillor Darren Merrill, Cabinet Member for 
a Safer, Cleaner Borough. 
 

 To receive reports from officers - Emma Trott, Private Sector 
Housing Enforcement Manager and Matt Clubb, Director of 
Environment and Leisure on: 
 
 Private rented housing, including licencing and the 

renter’s union. 
Report & Appendices 1 to 11. 
 

 Report/results on private rented sector survey of 
residents. 
Appendices 12 (1 of 2), 12 (2 of 2), 13 and 14. 

 
 

 

6. POLICY AND PRACTICE ON MUTUAL EXCHANGE HOUSING 
OPTIONS 

 

353 - 361 

 To receive a report from officers – Ricky Belott, Head of Housing 
Supply, Cheryl Russell, Director of Resident Services and Equeye 
Robertson, Area Manager (South), Housing and Modernisation on 
policy and practice on mutual exchange housing options.   
 
Report and Appendices A, B & C. 
 

 

7. WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 
 

362 - 369 

 To discuss and agree the commission’s work programme for 
2021/22. 
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT 
THE START OF THE MEETING. 
 

 

 
Date: 15 November 2021 
 



1 
 
 

Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 5 October 2021 
 

 
 
 

Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny 
Commission 

 

MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Housing and Community Engagement 
Scrutiny Commission held on Tuesday 5 October 2021 at 7.00 pm at Ground 
Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH  
 

 

PRESENT: Councillor Gavin Edwards (Chair) 
Councillor Damian O'Brien 
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Sunny Lambe 
Councillor Jane Salmon 
Bassey Bassey (Co-opted member) 
 
 

OTHER 
MEMBERS 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillor Stephanie Cryan, Cabinet Member for Council 
Homes and Homelessness. 
Councillor Victoria Mills and Councillor Renata Hamvas. 
Councillor Helen Dennis, Cabinet Member for the Climate 
Emergency and Sustainable Developments 
 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

  
Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Richard Livingstone and Cris 
Claridge. 
 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS 
URGENT.  

 

 There were no items of business which the Chair deemed urgent. 
 
 

Open Agenda
1

Agenda Item 4



2 
 
 

Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 5 October 2021 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS.  
 

 There were no disclosures of interests or dispensations. The Chair, Councillor 
Gavin Edwards informed the commission that his spouse, Councillor Victoria Mills 
is in attendance at this meeting representing Peckham Rye ward. 
 

4. MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2021 be agreed as a 

correct record. 
 

5. NEW COUNCIL HOMES ON EXISTING ESTATES - CASE STUDY 1- 
BRENCHLEY GARDENS  

 

 The commission received a report from Owen Thompson, Development Manager, 
Housing and Modernisation on new council homes on existing estate of Brenchley 
Gardens. The commission learned that roof-top developments due to their nature 
of being built on roof tops do cause more concerns amongst residents but they 
make a significant contribution to the target of delivering new council homes. The 
consultation strategy was about working with residents closely over the period of 
the development, schemes such as Brenchley Gardens provide a fantastic 
opportunity to improve existing estates and meet local housing needs, when 
compared to the Council’s general development offer which has 50% of 
businesses on the estates, mini-regeneration schemes such as Brenchley Gardens 
provide an opportunity for building 100% of residential properties on the estates. 
The commission also learnt that the development and its consultation process had 
to be put on hold due to the pandemic and was unable to fulfil its full potential.  
 
The commission also heard from Councillor Stephanie Cryan, Leader of the 
Council and Cabinet member for Council Homes and Homelessness that concerns 
had been raised by residents over this development with regards to community 
engagement and consultation within the process; consultations mainly involve in 
person meetings with residents and door to door canvassing which have not been 
possible to carry out during the pandemic, hence the decision was taken to pause 
and reflect on the issues with this development.  
 
Owen then answered the commission’s questions on the root cause of the resident 
complains with regards to officer actions and the lessons learnt from this 
development project. The commission learned that there was disparity between the 
information on leaflets, written communication on the benefits of the development 
issued to the resident and the specific issues being discussed with Tenancy 
Management Organisation (TMO) which created issues with transparency. 
Residents were invited to respond through the common place website. 
 

2



3 
 
 

Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 5 October 2021 
 

The commission then heard from Councillor Victoria Mills representing Peckham 
Rye ward that there was no acknowledgment in this report of the Brenchley 
Gardens estate on the poor handling of the consultation process and 
unsatisfactory treatment of the residents and the TMO.  The commission also 
learned that the first formal consultation was never held for the residents of 
Brenchley gardens estate and that the rooftop development was actually first 
discussed at the Brenchley Gardens Management Association’s (BGMA) annual 
general meeting. In addition the leaflets only spoke about rooftop developments 
and it was only after the commonplace website consultation was launched that 
residents were aware of the proposal for an in-fill site.  Councillor Mills also 
explained to the commission there seems to be a lack of understanding within the 
consultation process on the role of a TMO and council’s role to communicate with 
the wider residents within the estate directly. 
 
The commission next heard from Councillor Renata Hamvas also representing 
Peckham Rye Ward that the good relationship and trust built with the TMO and the 
residents over the years has been massively damaged as result of the lack of 
communication on the in-fill site. 
 
The commission then learned from the representatives of the TMO that there was 
no indication from council officers that the in-fill site was a part of the development 
plans and the management committee of the TMO was assured in August that the 
residents would be extensively consulted on the proposals although letters were 
not issued till late in December, these letters revealed issues with the proposals. 
The commonplace website where the consultation was launched suffered from 
technical issues with its security certificate, which classed it as a fraudulent 
website causing accessibility issues. Furthermore, the commonplace website was 
the only mention of the in-fill site and contained only generic information on the 
leaflets, this caused residents to lose trust in the transparency of the process. The 
residents also complained about the nature of the questions in the consultation 
which mainly had drop down options as answers, this led to skewed responses in 
favour of the proposals. Furthermore, there was no communication with the 
residents that the in-fill project is no longer being considered and that and the roof-
top development project has been paused. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Gavin Edwards then summarised the issues raised by the 
Ward councillors and the TMO representatives. In response, the commission 
learned from Owen that the design development team acknowledged issues 
around the commonplace website and communication with residents, however the 
report submitted contains evidence that conversations did take place with 
councillors in the form of shared PowerPoint presentations and that TMO’s are a 
primary vehicle for the development team to gauge public views before it is 
communicated to wider residents. On the issue of the in-fill sites being unsuitable 
for development as mentioned by the Ward Councillors, Owen informed the 
commission that such landscape capacity studies are done by architects who 
concluded that developments are possible at the two sites on the opposite ends of 
the estate, however on further investigating both sites were no longer in 
consideration due to one being sink land and the other having protected trees.  

3



4 
 
 

Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 5 October 2021 
 

 
Owen then answered the commission’s questions on: 
 

 The issues with communicating to the 95 properties on the estate 

 Communication with Ward councillors on development projects 
 
The commission learned that in an attempt to have better responses to the 
consultation, personalised communication in the form of letters was issued to 
residents. The commission then agreed that checking and cleansing of residents 
databases should be an important step in the pre-consultation process. Owen 
explained to the commission that there is one councillor on every project team and 
the project teams engage with Ward councillors on a monthly basis.  
 
The commission also learned from Councillor Cryan that there is a robust and 
comprehensive engagement process in the pipeline which takes residents and 
members of the public through the entirety of a development project’s stages in 
great detail.  
 

6. COUNCIL PLAN ON BUILDING ZERO CARBON HOUSES  
 

 The commission then heard from Councillor Helen Dennis, Cabinet Member for the 
Climate Emergency and Sustainable Developments on Zero Carbon Housing. On 
the climate strategy and action plan the commission learned that the published 
study highlighted the Council’s operational emissions across the borough 
especially with regards to heating and hot water. Zero Carbon housing is critical to 
achieving the target of Council’s net zero commitments by 2030. The commission 
also noted that due to the withdrawal of the previously proposed Zero Carbon 
Housing regulations, houses built over the past few years would now have to be 
retrofitted. The commission also learned that carbon offset funds are critical to 
actually delivering on net-zero commitments as we push to reduce emissions. The 
commission also learned that there is an on-going low-rise pilot project at 
Rotherhithe with an aim to reduce emissions. 
 
The commission then received a report from Juliet Seymour, Head of Building 
Control Policy in the built environment on Zero Carbon Housing and how carbon 
assessment is carried out and constantly monitored. Section 106 reports would 
provide us the necessary data by identifying owners of new developments to 
provide us the information on whether carbon savings are being met when the 
building is operational. On monitoring Southwark’s performance with regards to 
compliance when compared to other boroughs, Juliet explained to the commission 
the different types of monitoring such as carbon offset fund reviewed by the 
Greater London Authority (GLA) and the Mayor’s Office, keeping track of the 
amount of tonnes of carbon we offset and through planning applications and 
comparing officer reports to see how different boroughs’ are implementing policies 
to set a bench mark for ourselves.  
 
 

4



5 
 
 

Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 5 October 2021 
 

In response to the commission’s questions on effective spending of the carbon 
offset fund Councillor Dennis explained to the commission that funding would have 
to be focused on specific projects where savings can be achieved at scale. 
Buildings are the highest carbon emitters making them the easiest way to offset 
carbon, there is an on-going review into exact price of offsetting in Southwark. 
Officers across the council departments are working together at different levels; 
strategic directors, heads of service and project delivery forums to deliver on the 
council’s carbon zero commitments. The commission also learnt that there are on-
going pilots to develop district heating networks in certain areas through insulated 
pipelines. The commission learnt that there exists a planning time lag of 24 to 36 
months from the design stage to building completion on zero carbon houses due to 
regulations and planning processes, at which stage the technology becomes 
obsolete. Contractors are still not on board because of costs of green technology 
and lack of skills within the work force.  
 
   
 

7. WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22  
 

 The report was noted by the commission and the Chair informed the commission 
the need for an additional meeting before the end of the calendar year to ensure 
the commission is able to cover all the agenda items in its work programme for the 
year 2021/22. 
 

 Meeting ended at 9.19 pm 
 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 

  

  
 

5



Page 1 of 33 
 

 

Item No. 
 
 

Classification: 
Open 
 

Date: 19 October 2021 
 

Meeting Name: 
Cabinet 
 

Report title: 
 

Driving up Standards for the Private Rented Sector 

Ward(s) or groups affected: 
 

All wards – Particularly landlords and tenants of 
privately rented homes 
 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Darren Merrill, Cabinet Member for Safer, 
Cleaner Borough 

 
FOREWORD – COUNCILLOR DARREN MERRILL, CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFER, 
CLEANER BROUGH 
 

As the pressures on housing numbers increase, the private rented sector will continue 
to grow and the council intend to do all they can to protect the welfare of its residents, 
ensuring that they live in good, healthy housing conditions. Whilst most homes in the 
private rented sector are well-managed, the council has to intervene where landlords 
are not managing their properties effectively, maintaining adequate standards, treating 
their tenants fairly or, challenging their tenant’s behaviour when they are causing 
problems for neighbouring residents with repeat anti-social behaviour. This can be the 
minority of landlords who wilfully neglect their businesses or, more often, those that 
with the best of intentions are not aware of their full responsibilities as landlords.  
 
Through previous licensing schemes the council has made significant progress  
improving the private rented sector. These proposals, for new discretionary licensing 
schemes, will help build on this success to make Southwark a safer more desirable 
place to live and deliver the large-scale improvements that are needed in the 
borough’s private rented sector. The council will continue to build on working in 
partnership with good landlords, support those landlords who want to manage their 
homes more effectively and enabling more targeted and effective action against rogue 
landlords.  
 
The Gold Standard Charter sets a higher standard than that required by licensing. Its 
purpose is to establish and reward good practice in the sector highlighting the 
importance of offering; responsive repairs, improved energy efficiency, fair and 
predictable rents, and a secure tenancy with protection from unnecessary eviction. 
Membership offers additional rewards for landlords that help the council provide 
homes for those that find themselves without, often the most vulnerable residents in 
the borough. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To approve the changes to the existing mandatory licensing Scheme set out in 

appendix 1 and the new initial fee structure for mandatory licensing as set out 

in appendix 7. 

2. To approve the implementation of a borough wide additional licensing 

designation for 5 years as detailed in appendix 2 and 3 from 1 March 2022 for 

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) not included in the mandatory licensing 

6
Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 33 
 

definition, under Part 2 of the Housing Act 2004. Including the initial fee 

structure as set out in appendix 7. 

3. To approve the implementation of the selective licensing designation 1 in 

Champion Hill and Newington wards, for 5 years, as detailed in appendix 4 and 

6, from 1 March 2022 under the Housing Act 2004. 

4. To approve the implementation of the selective licensing designation 2 in 

Faraday, Goose Green and St. Giles wards, for 5 years, as detailed in appendix 

5 and 6, from 1 March 2022 under the Housing Act 2004. 

5. To approve the initial fee levels for selective licensing designations 1 and 2 as 

set out in appendix 7. 

6. To delegate the authority to the Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure 

to make any minor amendments to the schemes as necessary during the 5 year 

duration, for the effective administration of the schemes. 

7. To approve the final proposals for the council’s Gold Standard Charter for 

Landlords as set out in appendix 9 and 10. 

8. To delegate the authority to the Strategic Director of Environment and Leisure 

to make minor amendments to the Gold Standard Charter as necessary for the 

effective success and administration of the scheme. 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

9. The private rented sector (PRS) in Southwark constitutes approximately a third 

of the housing stock in Southwark and plays a crucial role in meeting the 

housing requirements of residents. According to census data, growth in the 

PRS in Southwark has been significant; in 2001 it represented almost 9% of the 

stock, by 2011 it had grown to over 23% (28,493) and by 2019 had grown to 

just over 29% (42,964) (see appendix 11 for more information).  

10. The proposals set out in this report and its appendices reflect Southwark as a 

borough with a broad diversity and a wide range of issues in its private rented 

housing sector. 

11. The Council recognises that there are different types of landlord operating 

within this sector:  

 professional, responsible landlords;  

 inexperienced, reluctant or accidental landlords; and  

 rogue or criminal landlords. 

12. All these types of landlord require a different approach by the Council and the 

proposals set out in this report and its appendices therefore, aim to: 

 recognise and reward responsible landlords, 

7



Page 3 of 33 
 

 support and educate inexperienced, reluctant or accidental landlords; and  

 tackle rogue or criminal landlords so they are forced to either operate 

responsibly or stop them operating within the sector. 

13. The Council will continue to take tough action against rogue and criminal 

landlords as they knowingly flout their obligations by letting unsafe and 

substandard accommodation to tenants, placing their health, safety and welfare 

at serious risk. Many of these tenants are the most vulnerable people in our 

society. These landlords often target vulnerable tenants and usually house 

them in overcrowded and poorly managed and maintained accommodation. 

This also has a detrimental impact on neighbourhoods. Anti-social behaviour 

(ASB), nuisance neighbours, accumulations of rubbish and other problems can 

be linked to the failure of private landlords to manage their properties and 

tenancies effectively.  

Provisions for Licensing in the Private Rented Sector 

14. There are 3 types of licensing that can apply to properties in the private rented 

sector. All three types are included in these proposals and are referred to and 

outlined in more detail within this document and its appendices. These are:  

 Mandatory Licensing - Under part 2 of the Housing Act 2004, larger 

houses in multiple occupation (HMOs) (definition outlined below) that 

are occupied by 5 or more persons forming at least 2 separate 

households are required to be licensed.  

 Additional Licensing – Part 2 of the Housing Act 2004 also gives local 

authorities power to license HMOs that are not covered by mandatory 

licensing. This includes shared houses and smaller bedsit type 

accommodation where there are 3 or more people in two or more 

households. It can also include some properties converted into flats 

that do not comply with 1991 (or later) Building Regulations  

 Selective licensing - Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004 gives local 

authorities power to license properties that are not covered by 

mandatory or additional licensing.  

15. Additional and selective licensing are sometimes collectively referred to as 

discretionary licensing as the decision to use these licensing provisions in its 

borough is at the discretion of the local authority. Schemes can only be 

considered by a Local Authority if they have sufficient evidence that an area 

contains a high proportion of properties in the private rented sector and a 

significant number are suffering from particular issues as set out under the 

Housing Act 2004 and The Selective Licensing of Houses (Additional 

Conditions) (England) Order 2015. (See paragraph 131 below for a full list of 

eligible criteria).  

8

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/contents


Page 4 of 33 
 

16. Once the schemes are operational ‘landlords’ are legally obliged to apply for a 

licence if one of the schemes apply to their properties and, comply with any 

conditions set out in the licence. 

17. The above provisions are set out in more detail below under Legal Implications 

(starting from paragraph 123 below). 

Note: The legal definition of a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) is extensive, 
but a brief definition is: a dwelling that's occupied by three or more people in 
two or more households (families), who share at least one basic amenity 
(kitchen, bathroom or toilet). Sections 254-260 in Part 7 of the Housing Act 2004 
provides the definition of a house or flat in multiple occupation (see: Meaning 
of “house in multiple Occupation” (legislation.gov.uk))  

Some buildings converted into self-contained flats can also be HMOs if they 

were converted without complying with the 1991 Building Regulations. This is 

defined in section 257 of the Housing Act 2004 (see: HMOs: certain converted 

blocks of flats (legislation.gov.uk)) 

Current and Previous Licensing Schemes in Southwark 

18. The Council has operated a mandatory licensing scheme since April 2006.  The 

mandatory scheme will continue to run without an end date in accordance with 

Part 2 of the Housing Act 2004. 

19. Additional and selective licensing schemes started on 1 January 2016 for 5 

years and came to an end on 31 December 2020.  

20. The additional licensing scheme was applied borough wide and took steps to 

address management, fire safety, anti-social behaviour, overcrowding and 

provision of adequate facilities such as bathrooms, W.Cs and kitchens.  

21. Selective licensing applied to only a few key trunk roads and their immediate 

surrounding areas to address anti-social behaviour, the condition of the 

property and overcrowding.  

Note: Not all of the required improvements, repairs or management that relate 

to a house/dwelling under the Act can be dealt with under the licensing 

conditions for any type of licensing scheme. In such cases they are dealt with 

separately to the licence under Part 1 of the Housing Act 2004 via the Housing 

Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS) however, HMO licensing helps 

Local Authorities to uncover specific cases where these actions need to be 

taken in their area.  

22. Significant steps were made towards improving the PRS under the previous 

schemes and the results were presented at Cabinet on 19 January 2021.  

Steps Already Taken Towards Implementing New Proposals 

Housing Stock Condition and Stressors Survey 2019 

9

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/part/7/crossheading/meaning-of-house-in-multiple-occupation
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/part/7/crossheading/meaning-of-house-in-multiple-occupation
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/section/257
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/section/257


Page 5 of 33 
 

23. To Council worked with an external consultant, Metastreet Ltd, to carry out a 

Housing Stock Condition and Stressors Survey.  

24. The data for the survey was gathered using existing data from across the 

council and from external sources. relating to property conditions, anti-social 

behaviour and deprivation 

25. For property conditions the council used previous housing complaints and 

enforcement activity indicating poor property conditions. Non-council data 

sources were added, including publicly available such as Energy Performance 

Certificates (EPC) and energy data. These were then compared to the predicted 

PRS to produce a list of properties that were predicted to be PRS and to have 

a cat 1 hazard 

26. For ASB, records of ASB complaints, mainly noise and Southwark’s Anti-Social 

Behaviour Unit (SASBU) records, which were confirmed to be in the PRS were 

compared to the list of predicted PRS to produce a list of PRS where ASB had 

occurred, including repeat offences. 

27. For deprivation, council held statistics and publicly held data were used that 

align with the legislation and guidance. These include IMD and barriers to 

housing and services. Proxies were used for other factors, for example, early 

unavoidable death rates and levels of childhood obesity for ‘health of 

households’. 

28. The results of the survey were used to develop the proposals and included 

information gathered on the size, geographical spread and condition of the 

private rented sector in Southwark.  

29. More information regarding the survey and its findings can be found in appendix 

11.  

Consultation 

30. Before a local authority can introduce a licensing scheme it must, by law, take 

reasonable steps to consult all persons who are likely to be affected by any 

licensing scheme and to consider any representations made.  

31. On 19 January 2021 Cabinet gave approval for officers to carry out a public 

consultation on new proposals for the private rented sector. The report included 

information on:  

 the results of the previous schemes and other actions taken to improve 

the private rented sector,  

 the Housing Stock Condition and Stressors Survey,  

 proposals for changes to the fee structure and conditions attached to 

licences for the current mandatory licensing scheme, 

 proposals for new additional and selective licensing schemes, 

10



Page 6 of 33 
 

 details on how officers intended to conduct the consultation, and 

 the new proposals for an additional licensing scheme for smaller HMOs 

and a phased approach to introduce a new, ward based, selective 

licensing scheme in a small area followed by a larger scheme to be 

approved by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and local 

Government. 

 
32. The consultation began on 15 February 2021 and ran for 19 weeks before 

ending at midnight on the 28 June 2021. The consultation was paused for the 

6 week pre-election period before the London Mayoral elections in May.  

33. The consultation asked for views on the council’s proposals for: 

 Changes to the fee structure and conditions attached to mandatory 

licensing 

 Proposals for Borough-wide Additional Licensing for HMOs 

 Selective Licensing in 19 wards through four designations 

 Conditions, new fees and discounts attached to additional and selective 

licensing 

 Respondents perceptions and experiences of the issues in the borough  

 The introduction of a  Gold and Platinum Standard Charter for 

Landlords 

34. The consultation provided a total of 1,916 responses received on the online 

survey and 121 responses on a common place map. Appendix 12 gives greater 

detail of the consultation and responses. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  

35. This report, and attached appendices, sets out: 

 An overview of the provisions within the Housing Act 2004 that allows 

Local Authorities to introduce discretionary licensing schemes. 

 The content of the public consultation on the licensing schemes and the 

Gold and Platinum Standard Charter, how it was conducted and the 

results.  

 How the Council has considered the results and representations made 

during the consultation and, the changes the Council has made in 

response to those results and representations.  

 Final proposals for a new, borough wide additional licensing 

designation for smaller HMOs. 

 The next steps for the wider proposals for Selective Licensing.  

11



Page 7 of 33 
 

 Final proposals for 2 new selective licensing designations to improve 

conditions and tackle ASB in targeted areas.   

 The evidence supporting the proposals. 

 Final proposals for a Gold and Platinum Standard Charter for landlords. 

 Other initiatives, strategies and commitments developed, or identified 

to assist with improving the private rented sector. 

 

Consultation Response Summary for Each Proposed 

Scheme/Designation 

Mandatory Licensing 

36. Although the Council is not obliged to consult on mandatory licensing, the 

proposed changes were included in the consultation as Council wanted to take 

the opportunity to seek opinions on the proposed changes and give 

stakeholders and residents a fuller picture of licensing in the borough across 

the PRS. HMO licensing is also complex and the Council wanted to ensure 

consistency across the schemes to help simplify licensing across all HMOs 

covered by the mandatory and proposed additional licensing schemes. 

37. The current discretionary conditions attached to the mandatory licensing 

scheme were devised in 2015 and were pertinent to the issues in the HMO 

sector at that time. The conditions were revised to be consistent with the 

proposed additional licensing scheme and to take account of the current issues 

within the private rented sector (PRS).   

38. At consultation, the conditions proposed for the additional licensing scheme 

were the same as those proposed for the mandatory licensing schemes with 

the addition of a condition addressing anti-social behaviour. 

39. The Council also consulted on new fees that would include a flat fee to cover 

the first 5 bedrooms with an additional charge per bedroom above 5.  

Flat fee for up to 5 bedrooms £1,500 

per bedroom above 5 £100 

40. High level results of the consultation 

Mandatory Scheme Responses  Agree Disagree No Opinion 

Proposed licensing conditions  38% 17% 45% 

 A Little Too 
High/Too 
High 

Reasonable/A 
Little Too Low 

No opinion  

Proposed licensing fee 35% 32% 33% 

12



Page 8 of 33 
 

41. Whilst the results of the consultation show that most respondents agreed with 

the proposed conditions there were a number of written representations 

regarding specific conditions that were considered by the Council. The 

conditions attached to this scheme have therefore been amended in response 

to a number of these representations. 7 conditions were deleted and 14 

conditions were amended. This is set out in more detail in appendix 13 and the 

final proposed conditions for the scheme are in appendix 1. 

42. Although the results of the consultation show that more respondents thought 

the fees were too high, The Council does not intend to change the proposed 

fees as they reflect the true cost to the council in administering and enforcing 

the scheme. Any reduction in fees would have an impact on the Council’s 

objectives for the scheme. The proposed fees are higher than the current fees 

however the Council has found that the existing fees do not currently cover the 

cost of administering and enforcing the scheme. 

43. Final Fee Proposals  

Note: The fees for all licensing schemes will be levied in two parts. Part A of the 

fee must be received when the application is made to the Council and, if the 

licence application is granted, Part B of the fee must be received and cleared 

before a licence is issued (see appendix 7 for more information). 

 Part A Part B Total 

Mandatory Licence  £1050 (+ £70 
per bedroom 
above 5) 

£450 (+ £30 
per bedroom 
above 5) 

£1500 (+ £100 
per bedroom 
above 5) 

44. Discounts against fees are addressed further down in this report in paragraphs 

94 and 95. 

Additional Licensing  

45. The evidence base gathered by the Housing Stock Condition and Stressors 

Survey indicated that 86.3% of HMOs across the whole borough have serious 

hazards that could endanger the health, safety and welfare of their inhabitants. 

This evidence indicates that a significant number of HMO landlords are not 

effectively managing their properties. 

(More information is given in Appendix 11 -  Private Rented Property Licensing 

– Evidence Report) 

13



Page 9 of 33 
 

 

Source: Housing Stock and Stressors Report, Metastreet, 2019 

 

46. As a response to this evidence, at consultation, the Council proposed a borough 

wide additional licensing designation that would apply to most HMOs that did 

not fall within the scope of mandatory HMO licensing. This included some 

buildings converted into self-contained flats which can also be defined as HMOs 

(section 257 of the Housing Act 2004). These are often referred to as section 

257 HMOs. 

47. At consultation, the Council set out a new flat fee of £1,300, for additional HMO 

licences.  

48. High level results of Consultation 

Additional Scheme Responses Agree Disagree No Opinion 

Proposed introduction of scheme  45% 17% 38% 

Proposed licensing conditions  38% 17% 45% 

 Too High Too Low No opinion  

Proposed licensing fee 32% 35% 33% 

49. It is clear that a high percentage of respondents agree with the Council’s 

proposals and in response to this, the council does not intend to change the 

area covered by the proposed additional licensing designation. 

50. Although a high percentage of respondents agreed with the proposals the 

council received representations regarding the inclusion of some section 257 

HMOs.  In response to these representations the council intends to change the 

types of section 257 HMOs included in the additional licensing scheme. The 

scheme will only include section 257 HMOs where the building or part of a 

14

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9


Page 10 of 33 
 

building is of three or more storeys that have been converted into three or more 

self-contained flats and where both the building and self-contained flats it 

contains are under the same ownership or considered by the Council to be 

effectively under the same control.   

51. Whilst the results of the consultation show that most respondents agreed with 

the proposed conditions there were a number of written representations 

regarding specific conditions that were considered by the council. The 

conditions attached to this scheme have therefore been amended in response 

to a number of these representations. 7 conditions were deleted and 15 

conditions have been amended. This is set out in more detail in appendix 2 

alongside the final proposed conditions for the scheme and in appendix 11.  

52. The majority of the respondents thought that the fees were reasonable. The 

Council therefore does not intend to change the final proposed fees for the 

Additional Licensing Scheme.   

53. Final Fee Proposals  

 Part A Part B Total 

Additional Licence – 
up to 4 bedrooms 

£923 £377 £1300 

54. Discounts against fees are addressed further down in this report in paragraphs 

94 and 95.  

Selective Licensing 

55. As a response to the evidence outlined by the Housing Stock Condition and 

Stressors Survey, at consultation, the Council proposed 4, ward based, 

selective licensing designations each addressing specific issues within each of 

the designations. These schemes would apply to all private rented sector 

properties that are not included in the Mandatory or Additional Licensing 

schemes. These proposals were split into 2 phases. 

 Phase 1 consisted of Designations 1 & 2 which collectively equate to 

18% of the total PRS in Southwark.   

 Phase 2 consisted of Designations 3 & 4 which collectively equate to 67% 

of the total PRS in Southwark.  

Note: More information regarding the evidence for each of the designations can 
be found in appendix 11. 

56. Whilst the council has collated evidence and carried out a public consultation 

for Designations 3 and 4 this report does not seek approval to implement these 

designations at this time. The proposed timeline is set out in a table below in 

paragraph 60. 

15



Page 11 of 33 
 

57. At consultation, the Council set out its intentions to introduce ‘Phase 1’ 

(Designations 1 & 2) under the general approval as set out in paragraph 61 

below. The first 6 months of these 2 designations will act as a pilot for the new 

targeted and ward based approach. Following the 6 month period officers will 

assess the effectiveness of Designations 1 and 2 against the objectives for each 

designation (See appendix 8).  

58. If ‘Phase 1’ is deemed to be successful officers will seek approval from Cabinet 

to make an application to the Secretary of State for the Department for 

Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) for approval of designations 

3 and 4 as set out in the guidance referred to in paragraph 61 below.  (DLUHC 

formerly known as the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (MHCLG)) 

59. If officers find that the pilot is not successful this will be reported to Cabinet and 

corrective action taken to improve the performance and results of the 

designations. Following any changes made to the designations, if successful, 

the council will review its position regarding Designations 3 and 4 and the 

decision will be made public.  

60. Suggested timelines for the two phased approach following approval of these 

proposals: 

Cabinet approval for final proposals for 
‘Phase 1’ (i.e. additional & selective licensing 
designations 1 & 2) and Gold Standard 
Charter 

19 October 2021 

3 month minimum statutory notification and 
standstill period 

November 2021 to February 
2022 

 Gold Standard Charter Start Date 1 January 2022 

 Phase 1 Start date 1 March 2022 

Officers to monitor performance of Phase 1 
with live data 

Weekly  

Assess overall performance of Phase 1 - 6 
month pilot 

 September 2022 

Recommendation to Cabinet for either; 
approval of application to Secretary of State 
(SoS) for the Department for Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities or, approval of 
changes to proposals 

Estimated to be 
October/November/December 
2022 

Where an application is made: Response 
expected from SoS 

Estimated to be February – 
July 2023 

Where an application has been made and 
approval given by SoS - Phase 2 Start date 

Estimated to be 
August/September 2023  

16



Page 12 of 33 
 

61. This approach is in line with the Housing Act 2004: Licensing of Houses in 

Multiple Occupation and Selective Licensing of Other Residential 

Accommodation (England) General Approval 2015 (see 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/

attachment_data/file/418588/General_consent_final__2_.pdf) and the 

updated guidance issued by the Department for Communities and Local 

Government (now DLUHC) in March 2015 (Selective licensing in the private 

rented sector - A Guide for local authorities) (see 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/

attachment_data/file/418551/150327_Guidance_on_selective_licensing_appli

cations_FINAL_updated_isbn.pdf), which states: “Under the new 

arrangements if a local housing authority makes a designation that covers 20% 

or less of its geographical area or privately rented properties, the scheme will 

not need to be submitted to the Secretary of State, provided the authority has 

consulted for at least 10 weeks on the proposed designation. However, if the 

local housing authority makes one or more designations that are in force partly 

concurrent to an existing scheme, and cumulatively all the designations cover 

more than 20% of the area or the private rented stock, those new designations 

will need to be submitted to the Secretary of State for approval.”  

62. The pilot scheme/‘phase 1’ must run for an adequate period of time, deemed to 

be 6 months, and its performance reviewed by the Council before an application 

to the Secretary of State for ‘phase 2’ can be made. If the Council applied to 

the Secretary of State for permission to implement ‘phase 2’ before this time 

‘Phase 1’ it could not be considered a pilot scheme and an application would 

need to be made for approval for both ‘phase 1’ and ‘phase 2’ as both phases 

combined, cover more than 20% of the total private rented sector in Southwark. 

Selective Licensing Designations 1 and 2  

63. At consultation, designation 1 included two wards, Champion Hill and 

Newington, with not only the highest levels of ASB linked to the PRS in the 

borough, but also high levels of repeat incidents of ASB.  

64. In these two wards alone, over a five-year period, over 800 interventions 

conducted by the Council to deal with 755 complaints of ASB with. 137 

properties in these wards needed repeat interventions by the Council. The 

majority of the complaints were around noise and rowdy behaviour. The 

percentages of ASB in the private rented sector in each ward is as shown in the 

graph below. (More information is given in Appendix 11 -  Private Rented 

Property Licensing – Evidence Report) 

Note: Any ASB where there were not clear links to a privately rented property 
were excluded from the data.  

 

17

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418588/General_consent_final__2_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418588/General_consent_final__2_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418551/150327_Guidance_on_selective_licensing_applications_FINAL_updated_isbn.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418551/150327_Guidance_on_selective_licensing_applications_FINAL_updated_isbn.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418551/150327_Guidance_on_selective_licensing_applications_FINAL_updated_isbn.pdf


Page 13 of 33 
 

 

Source: Housing Stock and Stressors Report, Metastreet, 2019 

 

65. At consultation, Designation 2 comprised of the three wards with high levels of 

poor property conditions; Faraday, Goose Green and St Giles.  

66. Overall, in these three wards, there are 1,451 properties in the PRS that are 

predicted to have category 1 hazards in the borough, around double the 

national average of 13% (source ONS English Housing Survey) as shown in 

the graph below.  

 

 

18

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9


Page 14 of 33 
 

Source: Housing Stock and Stressors Report, Metastreet, 2019 

 

67. Champion Hill and Newington wards, whilst having high levels of poor property 

conditions have already been included in Designation 1 and are therefore not 

included in Designation 2.  

68. Whilst Dulwich Village has high levels of poor property conditions it does not 

have the levels of PRS required to meet the legal threshold and therefore 

cannot be included in a scheme. Other wards with high levels of poor property 

conditions above the national average for the PRS have been included in the 

future proposals for phase 2.  

69. In order to determine the wards with the highest levels of poor property 

conditions factors such as housing complaints, housing notices and EPC data 

were included.  (More information is given in Appendix 11 - Private Rented 

Property Licensing – Evidence Report). 

70. The objective of the proposed licence conditions is to improve property 

condition and management of these properties whilst recognising that the 

Housing Act 2004 in general requires the Council to deal with sub-standard 

conditions using HHSRS assessments and enforcement powers, e.g. an 

Improvement Notice under Part 1 of the Act. 

71. At consultation, the Council also set out a new flat fee of £900 for Selective 

licences. 

72. High level results of Consultation 

Selective Scheme Responses Agree Disagree No Opinion 

Proposed introduction of 
scheme  

42% 20% 38% 

Proposed Licensing conditions  36% 20% 44% 

 Reasonable Unreasonable  No opinion  

Proposed Licensing Fee 34% 32% 34% 

73. It is clear a high percentage of respondents agree with the Council’s proposals 

and in response to this the Council does not intend to change the area or type 

of property covered by the proposed selective licensing designations 1 and 2. 

74. Whilst the results of the consultation show that most respondents who had a 

firm opinion agreed with the proposed conditions there were a number of written 

representations regarding specific conditions that were considered by the 

Council. The conditions attached to this scheme have therefore been amended 

in response to a number of these representations. Some conditions were 

deleted or amended and this is set out in more detail in appendix 13 with the 

final proposed conditions for the scheme set out in appendix 4 and 5. 

19

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9


Page 15 of 33 
 

75. The majority of the respondents thought that the fees were reasonable. The 

Council therefore does not intend to change the final proposed fees for the 

Selective Licensing Scheme.   

76. Final Fee Proposals  

 Part A Part B Total 

Selective Licensing 
Designations 1 & 2 

£630 £270 900 

77. Discounts against fees are addressed further down in this report in paragraphs 

94 and 95. 

Alternatives to Discretionary Licensing 

78. When considering whether to make an additional or selective licensing 

designation a local authority must identify the objectives that a designation will 

help it to achieve. At consultation the  proposed scheme objectives that relate 

to ‘Phase 1’were: 

 Reduction in ASB and repeat ASB incidents in PRS properties 

 Improve property standards in the borough 

 Ensure compliance with licence conditions 

 Maximise the number of licensable properties that are licensed to ensure 

that the schemes are improving housing standards to the largest 

possible percentage of licensable properties 

 Improve the professionalism of landlords and managers and the 

management of PRS property 

79. At consultation the council detailed a number of other courses of action or 

alternatives to selective and additional licensing that had been considered, but 

did not believe that they, individually or collectively, provided an effective means 

of tackling poor housing conditions or anti-social behaviour in the borough, or 

of delivering the scale of improvement required. The alternatives considered 

were:  

 Use of Part 1 Housing Act enforcement powers (Housing Health and 

Safety Rating System) and Public Health powers 

 Voluntary Accreditation schemes facilitate improvement in management 

practices and standards   

 Rely on prosecutions and civil penalties for housing offences   

 Improvement grants to improve sub-standard properties  

 Utilising ASB enforcement powers  

20



Page 16 of 33 
 

80. The 17% of respondents that did not agree with the proposed additional 

licensing scheme were asked what they thought the alternatives should be.    

81. Approximately 10% just reiterated that they did not support the introduction of 

additional licensing. Of the remaining points made, some related to alternatives 

that had already been considered by the Council and referenced in the 

consultation evidence report (such as voluntary accreditation and use of other 

enforcement powers). Others expressed views regarding the proper 

enforcement of a licensing scheme, as opposed to suggesting an alternative to 

an additional licensing scheme. Key themes for alternative suggestions were 

that respondents “generally disagreed with the proposals”, that the “council 

should use their existing powers and enforce existing regulations” and that the 

council should issue fines for “poor properties/landlords”. More detailed 

information regarding the results of the consultation and representations are 

attached in appendices 12 and 13. 

82. The 20% of respondents that did not agree with the proposed selective licensing 

schemes were asked what they thought the alternatives should be. The main 

comments were similar in nature and volume to those about additional 

licensing. Appendix 13 gives more details of the representations received and 

a response to those representations.  

83. The Council is of the opinion that no viable alternatives were identified through 

the consultation process that would, individually or collectively, be capable of 

delivering the scheme objectives that the Council would deliver through the 

operation of the proposed selective or additional licensing schemes. The final 

objectives for the licensing schemes (alongside outcomes and outputs) can be 

found in Appendix 8.  

84. Consideration was given to review the Council’s decision to introduce selective 

licensing as a phased approach rather than making an application to the 

Secretary of State for the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 

Communities for all four selective licensing designations at this time. The 

Council believe that to introduce all 4 designations at the same time may 

overwhelm services and that if the new targeted ward based approach does not 

meet completely with the Council’s objectives in the first few months any minor 

changes necessary to improve outputs would be more difficult with a larger 

scheme. The phased approach tackles the worst issues in the borough first, 

ensures that its new approach to licensing is effective, that the Council has the 

capacity to run the schemes effectively and make changes to improve the 

performance of the schemes where necessary before introducing a larger and 

more complex, scheme.  

The Landlord’s Gold Standard Charter  

85. At consultation the Council set out its proposals for a Landlord’s Gold Standard 

Charter. The Charter was designed to recognise landlords who provide a better 

21



Page 17 of 33 
 

service than the one required by law, encourage other landlords to achieve a 

higher standard, and give tenants a better idea of the standard of 

accommodation that they should be offered. The Charter also offered incentives 

through discounts on licences to encourage landlords to sign up to the Council’s 

Social Lettings Agency and Finders’ Fee schemes. 

86. With regard to the Social Lettings Agency discount, properties managed by the 

Council will be exempt from licensing. This means that once a property has 

been signed up, and the lease agreement with the Council has been signed, 

the property will be under the management of the Council and will be exempt 

from licensing. References to the Social Lettings Agency and the associated 

discount have therefore been removed from the final proposals for the scheme. 

This change will have no financial impact on landlords as the proposals were to 

offer a free licence, however it will make the process of signing up to the social 

lettings agency easier as they will not need to fill in an application form for a 

licence. 

87. Landlords who sign up to the Charter and the Council’s Finder’s Fee Scheme 

will be described as Gold Standard Charter plus landlords rather than Platinum 

Standard Charter landlords. The Council has decided that the term “Platinum 

Standard Charter” was misleading as the standard criteria is the same for 

Platinum as it is for Gold. The term ‘Gold Standard Charter Plus’ describes a 

landlord who has signed up to comply with the Gold Standard criteria but has 

also signed up to the Council’s Finder’s Fee scheme to help the Council find 

homes in the private rented sector for residents that need to find a new home. 

The term ‘Platinum Standard Charter’ has been reserved for future proposals 

to improve the private rented sector further with a higher voluntary standard 

building on the successes of the Gold Standard Charter over the next few years.  

88. The changes outlined above have not affected to value of the discounts on offer. 

89. 19% of landlords said they would be interested in signing up to the Gold 

Charter, 33% said they weren’t sure and 48% said they wouldn’t be interested. 

However, 30% of the same landlords said that the discount on offer would be 

an incentive to sign up to the Gold Standard Charter.  

90. In contrast 67% of tenants said that they would be more likely to move into a 

property with a landlord or agent signed up to the Gold Standard Charter. 

91. Whilst the proposals do not appear to be particularly popular with landlords, 

private rented sector tenants overall agreed with the proposals and suggested 

that they would use the scheme to help find a good landlord and property for 

their next home. 

92. The final proposed Gold Standard Charter is outlined in appendix 8 which 

includes the changes to the “Platinum” Standard and the discounts attached to 

the scheme are outlined in appendix 7. 

22



Page 18 of 33 
 

93. The Council intends to launch the Gold Standard Charter in November 2021 in 

advance of the proposed start date for selective and additional licensing 

schemes. This will give landlords time to sign up and ensure that they are 

eligible for the appropriate discount before they apply for their licence. 

Discounts for the proposed licensing schemes 

94. At consultation, the Council proposed 4 possible discounts to the licence fees 

however, as mentioned above, the Council has removed the discount for 

landlords joining the Social lettings agency as those properties will now be 

exempt from licensing.  Gold Standard Charter members who sign up to the 

Council’s Finder’s Fee scheme will be referred to as Gold Standard Charter 

Plus members. These changes have not affected to value of the discounts on 

offer. 

95. The consultation responses considered by the council therefore are;  

Name of discount Discount When the discount 
will apply 

Applicable to 
Schemes 

Early Bird discount  30% on Part 
A & B fees 

First 3 months from 
start of the scheme 

Selective and 
Additional only 

Gold standard 
Charter members 

50% on the 
Part B fee 

For the full life of the 
scheme 

Mandatory, 
Selective and 
Additional 

Gold Standard 
Charter Plus 
members  

100% on the 
Part B fee 

For the full life of the 
scheme 

Mandatory, 
Selective and 
Additional 

 

96. High level results of Consultation 

 Reasonable Unreasonable  No opinion  

Proposed Discounts 39% 19% 42% 

97. Respondents were asked which of the discounts should be removed and for 

suggestions for discounts that should be added. Whilst a number responded 

with comments regarding general disagreement to the proposals there were 

very similar numbers of respondents suggesting that the early bird and Gold 

Standard Charter discounts should be removed while others suggested that 

there should be a discount for ‘good landlords’ and for those that were licensed 

under the previous schemes. 

98. 30% of landlords said that the proposed discount for Gold Standard Charter 

would be an incentive to sign up.  

99. The final proposed fees and discounts are outlined in appendix 7. 

23



Page 19 of 33 
 

100. At consultation the Council stated that licences issued under the previous 

additional and selective licensing schemes that have not expired during the 5 

year period of the proposed schemes will be valid under the new designations 

for the remainder of their licence period. Landlords who wish to take advantage 

of the early bird discount which will be available for the first three months 

following the start of the schemes can apply for a new licence within the early 

bird period if they wish to take advantage of the early bird discount. The Council 

has not made any changes top this proposal. The new licence, if applied for 

during the early bird discount period, and if the application meets all of the 

standard requirements attached to the licensing process, will be issued for the 

5 year period of the new licensing schemes and they will therefore not be at any 

disadvantage by renewing their licence earlier than the expiry of their current 

licence. 

Addressing the number of responses with ‘No opinion’ 

101. It was noted that there were a high number ‘don’t know’/’not sure’ responses, 

throughout the consultation.  

102. Number of ‘don’t know/’not sure’ responses by respondent type 

 Landlords PRS tenants Council 
tenants/owner 
occupiers & other 

To proposals to 
introduce licensing 
schemes  

21% 38% 41% 

Licensing 
conditions 

21% 37% 42% 

Fees  14% 42% 44% 

Discounts 19% 35% 46% 

103. Although the highest percentage of ‘don’t know/not sure’ responses were from 

owner occupiers, housing association tenants or council tenants, who may not 

have any previous experience of the private rented sector or licensing, a 

significant number were from landlords and tenants in the PRS. This is thought 

to be an indication of a lack of awareness of rights and responsibilities within 

the sector. This is something that the Council believed to be the case before 

the consultation and believe that the consultation results bear this out. The 

Council is committed to; empowering residents to take pride and influence over 

their homes and, support businesses and increase the professionalism of 

landlords operating in the borough. As part of this commitment, and in response 

to the consultation, the Council intends to increase and improve promotion of 

its existing services and initiatives, highlighted below. Other new initiatives, i.e. 

renters’ support organisation & Gold Standard Charter, will help to inform PRS 

24



Page 20 of 33 
 

tenants and landlords and will be implemented alongside the proposed 

licensing schemes. The Council will continue to work with landlords and tenants 

to ensure that services are meeting their needs.  

Proposals for a Renters’ Support Organisation 

104. The Council will establish a renters’ support organisation in early 2022, to 

ensure private renters have a collective platform and can work with the Council 

to improve conditions and empower tenants in the private rented sector.  

105. The Gold Charter will be subject to review every 18 months in partnership with 

the renters’ support organisation. This will ensure that the Charter continues to 

reflect any changes in legislation and requirements and the needs of the sector.  

Landlord Forum & Bulletins 

106. The Council currently hosts a number of Landlord Forums and sends 

Newsletters to landlords and agents who have signed up to provide information, 

support, and the opportunity to comment on the Council’s policies and plans for 

the private rented sector. The content of the forums and bulletins is wide 

ranging and includes; multiple services across the council and 

services/agencies outside of the Council that can help landlords keep informed 

and be engaged (e.g. DLUHC, Landlord’s Organisations, and HMRC etc.). The 

Council has moved these forums online in response to the pandemic and noted 

that the numbers of attendees has been greater since it has done so. Landlords 

and agents, when asked at the last forum, said they have found it more 

convenient to attend. In addition to this the Council did not have to limit the 

numbers of attendees to a maximum due to the size of the rooms available for 

the events. The Council will continue to send bulletins and host forum events 

but will promote them to a larger audience, via the proposed licensing schemes, 

and arrange a mixture of online and in-person events going forward. 

Rogue Landlord Multi-Disciplinary Task Force  
107. The Council will continue to operate its Rogue Landlord Multi-Disciplinary Task 

Force to continue to increase the number of rogue landlords and agents that 

the Council takes formal action against by; 

 Ensuring that there are formal referral channels and that they are working 

effectively 

 Facilitating intelligence sharing between the teams to uncover potential 

illegal activity for investigation (offences such as tax evasion, money 

laundering, trafficking, placing residents’ health, safety and welfare at 

serious risk, harassment and illegal eviction, and modern day slavery) 

 Highlighting specific cases of concern and ensuring enforcement action is 

taken promptly by all members of the task force. 

25



Page 21 of 33 
 

 Enabling a coordinated response and robust enforcement against any 

rogue landlord or agent. 

 Recording multi-disciplinary successes, publicise through press releases 

and the GLA Watch list. 

 Sharing best practice. 

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS 

Manifesto Commitments 

108. As part of the 2018 manifesto the Council committed to the introduction of a 

Gold Standard for the private rented sector. The proposal is to achieve this via 

the Landlord’s Gold Standard Charter. 

109. The 2018 manifesto also included a commitment to improving fire safety in the 

private sector.  The proposal is to request fire risk assessments for all HMOs 

via the licensing conditions and request that they be published online via the 

Landlord’s Gold Standard Charter.   

Southwark’s Fairer Future Commitments 

110. The Borough Plan sets out these commitments across eight themes. The 

designation of discretionary Licensing schemes, the Gold Standard Charter and 

other initiatives outlined in this report supports a number of the themes that form 

Southwark’s Fairer Future Commitments. They support 'homes for all' and 

'tackling health inequalities’ by improving living standards in the borough. 

Licensing specifically will help to address poor housing, as well as dealing with 

and deterring rogue landlords.  

111. A secure home environment gives Southwark residents the platform to make 

the most of the opportunities on their doorstep supporting a number of the 

themes including; 'thriving neighbourhoods' and 'a great start in life'.    

112. Licensing also supports Southwark's and the GLA’s commitment to tackling 

rogue landlords. Rogue landlords are likely to be responsible for other criminal 

activity such as money laundering, modern day slavery and trafficking. Through 

discretionary licensing we can establish more easily who the responsible 

landlords are (i.e. the ones that apply for a licence voluntarily and provide good 

quality accommodation), educate and support the less professional landlords 

(i.e. ones who apply but were unaware of the standards they should comply 

with prior to licensing) and identify the rogues (i.e. the ones who do not apply 

and deliberately flout the law). This benefits responsible landlords who most 

definitely make less profit from their business than the unscrupulous ones that 

ruin the reputation of the sector.  

Southwark’s Housing Strategy 2020 

26



Page 22 of 33 
 

113. The long-term housing strategy for the Borough was agreed by cabinet in 2015.  

However, a refreshed version of this strategy was agreed at cabinet on 8 

December 2020 following a public consultation in March 2020. This updated 

housing strategy continues the long term direction, but with simplified clearer 

commitments and updated actions. This strategy includes the commitments for 

mandatory, additional and selective licensing and the Landlord’s Gold Standard 

Charter.  

114. The four fundamental issues are affordability; quality; security and pride and 

responsibility. 

115. The four broad principles on these key values, as follows: 

 Increasing the supply of genuinely affordable high quality homes that 
meet our residents’ housing needs and aspirations 

 Demanding safer, higher quality, energy efficient homes 

 Promoting tenure security and social support in housing, and 
improving the health, wellbeing and economic resilience of residents. 

 Empowering residents and communities to have pride and influence 
over their homes 

116. The principles make specific reference to demanding safer, higher quality, 

energy efficient homes. The licensing proposals will help the Council to ensure 

properties in the private rented sector comply with these principles. The Gold 

Standard Charter will show that the Council expects more from the private 

rented sector by outlining a standard which equates to best practice. 

117. The principles make specific reference to empowering residents to take pride 

and influence over their homes. These proposals will empower private sector 

tenants by; informing them the standards their landlords must comply with via 

licensing and, the higher standards the Council believe tenants should expect 

via the Gold Standard. 

COMMUNITY, EQUALITIES AND HEALTH IMPACTS 

Community Impact Statement  

118. The proposals set out the Council’s expectations for the private rented sector 

including a proposal to drive up standards via the Gold Standard Charter. These 

proposals will have a positive impact on the wider community, as it is 

recognised that an increase in legally compliant and decent homes are linked 

to improved communities, reduced crime, improved educational attainment and 

health.  

Equality (including Socio-economic) Impact Statement  

119. Poor housing is more likely to affect the most vulnerable in society. The 

disabled, those with impaired immune systems, the very old and young, the 

27



Page 23 of 33 
 

most disenfranchised in our society; those escaping abuse, ex-offenders, 

addicts and reformed addicts, migrants and particularly illegal immigrants who 

are more susceptible to modern day slavery, are most likely to be living in the 

worst dwellings in PRS. The proposed additional and selective licensing 

schemes seek to improve the quality of accommodation for occupiers in the 

private rented sector, reduce the impact on the wider community and make our 

expectations for the sector clear and transparent.  

120. Licensable properties are required to meet conditions that are aimed at 

ensuring fit and proper management and tenancy, providing a fair environment 

for all tenants and landlords, better choice and standard of rented 

accommodation, and be adverse to rogue and non-compliant landlords. 

Introducing a Gold Standard Charter will mean that tenants and landlords alike 

understand the Council’s expectations and aspirations for the sector above and 

beyond that required by legislation. These proposals are designed to empower 

tenants so that they have a standard to point to when choosing a home and 

confidence in approaching their landlord for improvements to their existing 

home regardless of age, disability, gender, race, sexuality etc. This will lead to 

better quality accommodation and greater community stability for groups who 

are unable to access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist 

with community cohesion and tackle exclusion. The Equalities Impact 

Assessment for licensing and the Gold Standard Charter is provided in 

appendix 12.  

Health Impact Statement 

121. Poor housing has long been identified as a health inequality which adversely 

impacts on the health of occupiers especially those in vulnerable groups. It is 

widely accepted that the ability to live in decent housing is key to all aspects of 

wellbeing. These proposals will improve the living conditions for those tenants 

in the private rented sector and in doing so will have a positive impact on the 

health and wellbeing of those occupiers. 

 

Climate Change Implications 

122. The licensing proposals support the Council’s Climate Change Strategy by 

working to ensure that the energy efficiency in private rented sector properties 

is improved. The conditions attached to the licences require properties to have 

an Energy Performance Certificate of E or above in line with the Minimum 

Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES) and the energy efficiency regulations 

detailed below. Where there is a lack of compliance, and if there has been no 

registration of a valid exemption, enforcement will be under The Energy 

Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) Regulations 2015 

and The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2019 (discretionary condition). 

28



Page 24 of 33 
 

Note: More information on the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES) 
is available here: Domestic private rented property: minimum energy efficiency 
standard - landlord guidance 
 

123. The Gold Standard Charter asks landlords to achieve a higher standard of 

energy efficiency than the regulations by asking for an Energy Performance 

Certificate of D or above. The Charter also asks landlords to commit to a 

planned programme to improve the energy efficiency of the building to achieve 

and Energy Performance Certificate of B or C, as far as reasonably practicable. 

124. Landlord forums, bulletins, and the renters’ support organization will be used to 

give information to landlords and tenants at regular intervals regarding; the 

energy efficiency standards and regulations, information on how to achieve 

improved energy efficiency, and the various grants and schemes offered by 

energy companies or central government to improve energy efficiency. The 

PRS Housing Enforcement Service responsible for licensing will liaise with the 

Council’s Fuel Poverty / Energy Efficiency Officer on projects specifically for the 

private rented sector.  

125. The council is committed to ensuring that the minimum energy efficiency 

standards (MEES) is raised for private rented properties and improve its 

enforcement to capture non-compliance, providing support to tenants and 

landlords where needed.  

126. In order to deliver improvements in energy efficiency in homes, government 

needs to significantly increase the level of funding available for renewable heat 

technology and for raising the thermal efficacy of existing buildings.  The council 

will continue to make the case to government for investment in homes both in 

our bilateral discussions, but also working in partnership with other boroughs 

through London Councils.  

127. More information regarding the council’s Climate Change Strategy can found 

here: https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=7377 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

The legislative framework for Licensing  

128. The Housing Act 2004 allows Councils to license privately rented housing in 

three ways:  

a) Mandatory licensing under Part 2, section 55 of the Housing Act 2004 
places a duty on all local authorities to license houses in multiple 
occupation occupied by five or more persons, living in two or more single 
households.   

b) Additional licensing under Part 2, section 56 of the Housing Act (detailed 
further below in section 2 “Additional Licensing”). 

29

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/domestic-private-rented-property-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-landlord-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/domestic-private-rented-property-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-landlord-guidance
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=7377


Page 25 of 33 
 

c) Selective licensing under Part 3, section 80 of the Housing Act 2004 
(detailed further below in section 3 ”Selective Licensing”.).  

Additional Licensing 

129. Under section 56 of the Housing Act 2004, a local authority can designate the 

whole or any part(s) of its area as subject to additional licensing.   

130. Where an additional licensing designation is made it applies to all HMOs that 

are not subject to licensing under the mandatory scheme (i.e. they can license 

any HMO occupied by 3 or 4 people from more than one household).  

131. An additional licensing scheme should only be considered if the Council 

believes a significant proportion of HMOs in the area are being managed 

sufficiently ineffectively as to give rise to, or be likely to give rise to, problems 

for the occupants or for members of the public.  

132. There is no requirement to seek Secretary of State Consent before 

implementing additional HMO licensing. 

Selective Licensing 

133. Under section 80 of the Housing Act 2004, a local housing authority can 

designate the whole or any part(s) of its area as being subject to selective 

licensing.  

134. Where a selective licensing designation is made it applies to all Part 3 Houses 

that may be houses or flats as defined by sections 79 and 99 of The Housing 

Act 2004 that are privately rented in the area, subject to certain exemptions; for 

example Registered Social Landlords, or HMOs that are required to be licensed 

under Part 2 of the Act through the mandatory licensing scheme or any 

additional licensing scheme.  

135. The local authority will need to submit an application for approval to the 

Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities if it intends to 

make a selective licensing designation that covers.  

a. 21% or more of its total geographical area and   

b. includes more than 20% of its privately rented properties   

136. For the Council to introduce a selective licensing scheme applying to non HMOs 

it has to be satisfied it is an area in which one or more of the following general 

conditions apply. These general conditions are:  

That the area is, or is likely to become, an area of low housing demand;  

a. That the area is experiencing a significant and persistent problem 

caused by antisocial behaviour (the Council must show some or all 

landlords who have let premises in the area (whether under leases or 

licences) are failing to take action to combat and effectively deal with the 

problem);  

30



Page 26 of 33 
 

b. The area has poor property conditions;  

c. The area has high levels of migration;  

d. The area has high levels of deprivation;  

e. The area has high levels of crime.  

137. The authority must also be satisfied that making a designation will, when 

combined with other measures undertaken in the area by the local housing 

authority (or by other persons together with the local housing authority) lead to 

a reduction in, or the elimination of, the problem(s).  

138. Under the Secretary of State’s General Approval 2015, before a local authority 

can introduce a selective licensing scheme it must take reasonable steps to 

consult all persons who are likely to be affected by any such licensing scheme 

for a minimum of 10 weeks. The local authority must consider any 

representations made during the consultation.   

139. Before making any decision, Cabinet must have due regard to the responses 

received through the consultation undertaken and take due regard to the 

matters set out in the DLUHC Guidance: Selective licensing in the private 

rented sector - A guide for local authorities. 

140. In particular it must be considered whether there are any other courses of action 

available that would achieve the same objective or objectives as any proposed 

schemes without the need for the designations to be made.  

141. Once the Local Authority has decided to implement schemes the Local 

Authority must, within 7 days of the decision, publish a public notice of the 

designation to include: 

 that the designation has been made,  

 whether or not the designation was required to be confirmed and either 

that it has been confirmed (under section 58 or section 82 as 

appropriate) or that a general approval applied to it (giving details of the 

approval in question),  

 the date on which the designation is to come into force, and  

 any other information which may be prescribed. 

142. The start date for the designation must be no earlier than three months after 

the date on which the designation is confirmed. 

143. After publication of a notice, and for as long as the designation is in force, the 

local housing authority must make available to the public in accordance with 

any prescribed requirements 

 copies of the designation, and  

 such information relating to the designation as is prescribed. 

31



Page 27 of 33 
 

144. Draft notices of the designations are attached in appendix 3 and 6. These will 

be issued and publicised widely following approval by Cabinet 

Financial and Resource Implications 

145. Administration of the scheme is such that it is intended to be self-financing over 

a five year period. The fees that are being applied are set at a level where the 

revenue from the fee will cover the cost incurred and will be reviewed on an 

annual basis to ensure it is in line with inflation and reflects the costs of the 

scheme. 

146. The fees proposed are as follows: 

Licence 

Type  

Part A Part B  TOTAL 

Mandatory   1050 (+ £70 per 

bedroom above 5) 

450 (+ £30 per 

bedroom above 5) 

1500 (+ £100 

per bedroom 

above 5) 

Additional  £923 £377 1300 

Selective  £630 £270 900 

147. The discounts proposed are: 

 A 30% early bird discount for the first 3 months from the start date of the 

schemes. (The early bird discount does not include applications made for 

mandatory licences.) 

 A discount of 50% will be offered on the ‘Part B’ fee for all licensing schemes 

where the landlord and/or managing agent has signed up to the Council’s 

Gold Standard Charter (see appendix 9 for details on the Charter).  

148. More information regarding the fees and discounts can be found in appendix 7. 

149. The forecast costs and income over the five-year period are as follows:  

    5 year Income and Expenditure Analysis   

Description 

Mandatory + 
Additional 

HMO 
Licensing 

Selective 
Licensing 

Designations 
1 & 2 

Total HMOs 
& Selective 
Licensing  

Annual 
Average 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Staffing Costs 2,770 2,360 5,130 1,026 
Other running 
costs 2,396 1,989 4,385 877 

32



Page 28 of 33 
 

Total costs 5,166 4,349 9,515 1,903 

Estimated Income (5,160) (4,344) (9,505) (1,901) 

Net Expenditure 6 5 10 2 

 

150. The income will be closely monitored and a team proportionate to the demand 

for the service will be employed. The costs of the scheme will cover the cost of; 

processing the licence application, compliance monitoring and, enforcement 

against landlords who are non-compliant with the licensing process.  

151. The Gold Standard Charter will be administered using existing resources.  

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 

Head of Procurement 

152. N/a 

Director of Law and Governance 

153. The Housing Act 2004 requires private rented houses in multiple occupation 

(HMO's) of a specified size to be licensed (mandatory licensing) and allows a 

local housing authority to extend licensing to smaller HMO's by designating an 

area or areas of their district or the whole of their district as subject to additional 

licensing. The Act also enables local housing authorities to extend licensing 

requirements to other private rented properties by designating for selective 

licensing an area or areas of their district or the whole of their district. 

154. The HMO Licensing provisions do not apply to houses let by local housing 

authorities or registered social landlord.  

155. The circumstances in which the Council may designate areas as subject to 

additional and selective licensing are set out in the Act and are summarised in 

this report together with the evidence supporting the proposed designations. 

156. The Council may designate areas to be subject to additional licensing if it is 

satisfied that a significant proportion of HMO’s relating to a description of HMO’s 

to be specified in the designation are being managed sufficiently ineffectively 

as to give rise to one or more particular problems either for those occupying or 

for members of the public. When considering an additional licensing scheme, 

the Council must also be satisfied the designation will significantly assist with 

dealing with the problems. 

157. For selective licensing, the Council may designate areas as subject to licensing, 

if it is satisfied that the areas are impacted by one of a number of conditions set 

out in legislation; one of the conditions is that the areas are experiencing 

significant problems with anti-social behaviour (ASB). This is the condition 

relied on for the purpose of the scheme proposed in this report. 

33



Page 29 of 33 
 

158. When considering a selective licensing scheme on the basis of ASB, the 

Council must also be satisfied that there is a link between the ASB and private 

rented accommodation in the area. It must be satisfied: 

a) the area(s) is/are experiencing a significant and persistent problem caused 
by ASB 

b) some or all of the landlords letting in the area are failing to take reasonable 
action to combat the problem 

c) when combined with other measures taken in the area by the local housing 
authority or by other persons, making designations will lead, to a reduction 
in or elimination of the problems identified 

d) the scheme will significantly assist with achieving objectives. 

159. For both additional and selective licensing schemes the Council must also be 

satisfied before making designations that; 

(i)  the proposed designations are consistent with the overall housing 
strategy, 

(ii)  a coordinated approach is adopted in dealing with homelessness, 
empty properties and ASB, 

(iii)  alternative courses of action have been considered. 

160. The law specifies conditions that a licence must contain but otherwise a licence 

may include such conditions for regulating management use or occupation of 

the house as the Council feels appropriate.  

161. The Council may set an application fee. Such fee must be reasonable and 

proportionate and should not exceed the anticipated cost to the Council of 

running and enforcing the licensing scheme. 

162. The Council may invoke enforcement processes against those controlling or 

managing a property without a licence or failing to comply with licence 

conditions. 

163. The designation of areas subject to additional and selective licensing requires 

approval from the Secretary of State.  

164. The Act requires the local housing authority to carry out consultation before 

making a designation. Before making the designation the local housing 

authority must: 

(a)  take reasonable steps to consult person who are likely to be affected by 
the designation; and  

(b)  consider any representations made in accordance with the consultation 
and not withdrawn.  

165. DCLG guidance suggests that this consultation should include local residents, 

for example, tenants, landlords and managing agents, other members of the 

community who live or operate businesses or services in the proposed 

designated area and local residents and businesses in the surrounding area 

34



Page 30 of 33 
 

that will be affected. Case law indicates that those affected outside the Council's 

area should also be consulted. A minimum consultation period of 10 weeks is 

required under the general consent issued by the Secretary of State in April 

2015.  

166. When considering the recommendations of this report, due regard must be 

given to the public sector equality duty in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

This requires the Council to consider all individuals when carrying out its 

functions.  

167. Importantly, the Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate 

discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct; advance 

equality of opportunity and foster good relations between people with protected 

characteristics and those who do not. The relevant protected characteristics are 

age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or 

belief, sex, sexual orientation. The public sector equality duty also applies to 

marriage and civil partnership, but only in relation to the need to eliminate 

discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct. Cabinet 

members are referred to the community impact statement in the report. 

168. Designations can last for no more than 5 years from the date on which it comes 

into force. The Council must review the designation from time to time and if 

appropriate the designation may be revoked. 

169. Designations, once made must be publicised by the Council within 7 days and 

notice provided within 2 weeks to interested parties, in accordance with the 

specifications set out in regulations. Once the notice has been published the 

Council must make copies of the designation and any prescribed information 

available to the public. 

170. It is a criminal offence to let out a property in the designation area without 

applying for a licence. Failure to apply for or obtain a licence could lead to 

prosecution and an unlimited fine or the imposition of a civil penalty of up to 

£30,000. In addition, the Council or the tenants of the property could apply to 

the First Tier Tribunal for a Rent Repayment Order, requiring the landlord or 

agent to repay any rent paid for up to 12 months during which the property was 

unlicensed. 

171. Once a designation has been made, no notice under section 21 of the Housing 

Act 1988 (notice requiring possession) may be served in relation to a short-hold 

tenancy of the whole or part of an unlicensed property, whilst it remains 

unlicensed. 

172. Where the breach of a licence condition is identified, the licence holder may be 

prosecuted for each breach or issued with civil penalty of up to £30,000 for each 

breach.  

173. If the licence holder allows the property in question to become occupied by 

more than the number of persons permitted by the licence, he or she may also 

35



Page 31 of 33 
 

be prosecuted and sentenced to an unlimited fine or the imposition of a civil 

penalty of up to £30,000. 

Strategic Director of Finance & Governance (EL21/064) 

174. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the recommendations 

to Cabinet to approve the changes to Southwark's mandatory licensing scheme 

and implementation of a new additional licensing scheme and new selective 

licensing designations 1 and 2 to operate in Southwark for 5 years from March 

2022. 

175. The strategic director notes the recommendation to Cabinet to approve the 

initial fee levels for selective licensing designations 1 and 2 as set out in 

appendix 7. 

176. The strategic director of finance and governance also notes the 

recommendations to approve the Gold Standard Charter for Landlords. 

177. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource implication 

recommendation will be contained within existing budgeted revenue resources. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

178. Background documents: 

  Housing Stock and Stressors Report, Metastreet, 2019 

 Housing Act 2004 - Housing Act 2004 (legislation.gov.uk) 

 Housing and Planning Act 2016 - Housing and Planning Act 2016 

(legislation.gov.uk) 

 Selective licensing in the private rented sector: A Guide for local 

authorities (DCLG – March 2015) - Selective licensing in the private 

rented sector: a guide for local authorities - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 The Housing Act 2004: Licensing of Houses In Multiple Occupation and 

Selective Licensing of Other Residential Accommodation (England) 

General Approval 2015 - General_consent_final__2_.pdf 

(publishing.service.gov.uk) 

 Housing Strategy (London Borough of Southwark – 2020 to 2043) – 

Housing Strategy – Southwark Council  

 London Borough of Southwark - Council Plan 2018 – 2022 - 

Southwark's Borough Plan - Southwark Council 

 London Borough of Southwark Social Lettings Agency & Finder’s Fees 

scheme - Earn money from your property   

 Climate Change Strategy 

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=7377 

36

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/22/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/22/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/selective-licensing-in-the-private-rented-sector-a-guide-for-local-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/selective-licensing-in-the-private-rented-sector-a-guide-for-local-authorities
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418588/General_consent_final__2_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418588/General_consent_final__2_.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92380/Appendix%20A%20-%20Southwark%20Housing%20Strategy%202020.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/fairer-future/council-plan
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/earn-money-from-your-property
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=7377


Page 32 of 33 
 

 

 
APPENDICES 

No. Title 

Appendix 1 Mandatory Licensing - Final Proposal 

Appendix 2 Additional Licensing – Final Proposal 

Appendix 3 Additional Licensing Draft Designation Declaration 

Appendix 4 Selective Licensing Designation 1 - Final Proposal 

Appendix 5 Selective Licensing Designation 2 – Final Proposal 

Appendix 6 Selective Licensing Draft Designation Declaration 

Appendix 7 Statement of Fees, Charges and Discounts for Licensing – 
Final Proposal 

Appendix 8 Licensing Schemes - Objectives, Targets and Measures – Final 
Proposal 

Appendix 9 Gold Standard Charter Criteria – Final Proposal 

Appendix 10 Gold Standard Charter Process – Final Proposal 

Appendix 11 Private Rented Property Licensing – Evidence Report 

Appendix 12 Consultation on PRS Licensing in Southwark – Final Report & 
Consultation Evidence 

Appendix 13 Council’s Consideration of Consultees’ Responses to the 
Public Consultation 

Appendix 14 Equalities Impact Assessment 

 
  

37



Page 33 of 33 
 

 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Cabinet Member 
 

Councillor Darren Merrill, Cabinet Member for Safer, Cleaner 
Borough. 

Lead Officer Caroline Bruce Strategic Director - Environment and Leisure 

Report Author Emma Trott, Private Sector Housing Enforcement Manager, 
Regulatory Services 

Version Final 

Dated 7 October 2021 
Key Decision Yes 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Director of Legal Services 
 

YES YES 

Finance Director YES YES 

List other officers here NA NA 
Cabinet Member  YES YES 
Date final report sent to Constitutional/Community 
Council/Scrutiny Team 

 

 

 

38



Appendix 1 
 

  1 

 

 

 

 

 

Driving up Standards for 

the Private rented sector 

 
Mandatory Licensing – Final Proposal  

 

 

19 October 2021 

  

39



Appendix 1 
 

  2 

Properties covered by the scheme 

11. All houses let in multiple occupation in the borough, that are occupied by 5 or 
more people, in 2 or more households require a licence under the mandatory 
licensing scheme. 

12. The legal definition of a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) is extensive, but a 
brief definition is: a dwelling that's occupied by three or more people in two or 
more households (families), who share at least one basic amenity (kitchen, 
bathroom or toilet). You can read the legislation regarding the definition of a 
house or flat in multiple occupation here 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/part/7/crossheading/meaning-of-
house-in-multiple-occupation 

Exemptions  

12. Exemptions to the mandatory licensing scheme include: 

a) Properties that meet the converted block of flats test (section 257 HMOs), 
unless the individual flat/s meet the mandatory test, i.e. that the flat is multiply 
let to 5 or more persons in 2 or more households.  

b) Flats in Multiple Occupation in a purpose-built block of flats that houses 3 or 
more flats.  

c) properties let by a local authority or a Registered Provider (RP), traditionally 
known as a not-for-profit Housing Association. 

d) properties already subject to a management order or empty dwelling 
management order.  

e) properties subject to a temporary exemption notice. 

f) owners who reside in property they own as their main residence (owner-
occupiers). 

g) holiday lets; and tenancies under a long lease and business tenancies. 

h) an HMO which is managed by a charity registered under the Charities Act 
2011 and which—  

i) is a night shelter, or 

ii) consists of temporary accommodation for persons suffering or recovering 
from drug or alcohol abuse or a mental disorder. 

i) Any building which is occupied principally for the purposes of a religious 
community whose principal occupation is prayer, contemplation, education or 
the relief of suffering. 

j) Student accommodation directly managed by educational institutions, e.g. 
halls of residence. 

k) Single family dwellings where a dwelling is occupied by one household. 

l) Homes with up to 2 lodgers. 

40

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/part/7/crossheading/meaning-of-house-in-multiple-occupation
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/part/7/crossheading/meaning-of-house-in-multiple-occupation


Appendix 1 
 

  3 

Conditions 

13. Licence conditions for the Mandatory licence scheme were consulted on. A range 
of responses were received and subsequent changes to the conditions have 
taken place as stated below. 

 
Licence Condition Changes in Response to Consultation: 
Original Licence Condition Numbers:  

3.3, 5.5, 8.8, 9.2, 14, 15 and 16 have been deleted,  

1.2, 1.6, 1.8, 2.1, 3.1, 3.2, 4.1, 5.1, 5.4, 6.3, 11.5, 11.6, 11.7 and 12.1 have been 

amended 

14. The following are standard conditions that will be attached to each licence. The 
Licence Holder must comply with the following conditions throughout the duration 
of the licence. 

15. There are two types of conditions that can be applied, mandatory conditions must 
apply as required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004 and discretionary 
conditions which the council can set for the management, use, occupation, 
condition and contents of the HMO.  

16. These mandatory conditions are prescribed by Schedule 4 Housing Act 2004 and 
The Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation (Mandatory Conditions of 
Licences) (England) Regulations 2018. 

17. In some circumstances, where the council believes there are specific issues not 
covered in the standard conditions for a particular property additional or more 
specific conditions will be added. 

18. The following are standard conditions that will be attached to each licence. The 
Licence Holder must comply with the following conditions throughout the duration 
of the licence: 

 

1. General  

1.1 The property licence must be displayed within a communal area of the 
property and a copy of the conditions should be made available to all the 
occupying tenants. (discretionary condition). 

1.2 The address of the Licence Holder given on their application form shall be 
used as the address for the proper service of any letter, notice or other 
document between the London Borough of Southwark Property Licensing 
Team and the Licence Holder. It is the Licence Holder’s responsibility to 
ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to collect and act upon any 
letter, notice or other document sent to that address on a regular basis 
(discretionary condition). 

1.3 The Licence Holder must notify the Council of any managing agent that 
they employ in relation to the property within 14 days of having employed 
the agent (discretionary condition). 

41



Appendix 1 
 

  4 

1.4 No other persons other than the Licence Holder or the named agent (that 
the Licence Holder has notified to the Council) can collect and receive 
rental monies from the tenant(s) at this property. These monies can be 
passed onto any third parties if required (discretionary condition). 

1.5 The Licence Holder must ensure that any deposit taken under an assured 
shorthold tenancy is protected by placing it in an authorised tenancy 
deposit scheme. The tenant must be given the prescribed information 
about the scheme. The Licence Holder must ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the scheme and the operation of Part 6 in Chapter 4, 
Housing Act 2004 within the statutory time limit (currently 30 days). A 
copy of the prescribed information given must be provided to the Authority 
within 21 days on demand. 

1.6 If the Licence Holder is not the manager of the property it is their 
responsibility to ensure that the manager complies with all the conditions 
of the licence (discretionary condition). 

1.7 Every habitable room in the property must have acceptable natural 
daylight and ventilation. An area of glazing which is equivalent to at least 
10% of the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided.  
An area of openable glazing (for ventilation) which is equivalent to at least 
5% of the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided 
(discretionary condition). 

1.8 The Licence Holder is in control of property with an Energy Performance 
Certificate (EPC) Rating of less than ‘E’.   

The Licence Holder shall within twelve months of the licence being issued 

carry out the works detailed on the EPC for the property to improve the 

energy efficiency of the HMO to achieve an EPC rating of ‘E’ or above 

OR 

within three months of the licence being issued register a valid exemption 

on the national exemptions register -  

Guidance - https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-

sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions  

Register - https://prsregister.beis.gov.uk/NdsBeisUi/used-service-before 

Where there is a lack of compliance, enforcement will be under the The 

Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2015 and The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) 

(England and Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2019 (discretionary 

condition). 

2. Gas Safety 

2.1 If gas is supplied to the property, a valid Gas Safe gas safety certificate 

must be available, within 7 days, on request, at any time. The gas safety 

certificate must relate to the whole gas installation and include all gas 

appliances. It must demonstrate that all appliances have been serviced 

42

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions
https://prsregister.beis.gov.uk/NdsBeisUi/used-service-before


Appendix 1 
 

  5 

and safety checked within the previous twelve months. Any defects noted 

on the certificate must be promptly rectified (mandatory condition). 

2.2 The Licence Holder is required to ensure that a carbon monoxide detector 

is installed and kept in working order in any room within the premises 

where a solid fuel appliance is installed.  The Licence Holder must supply 

to the authority, on demand, a declaration by as the condition and 

positioning of such alarms (mandatory condition). 

3. Electrical Safety 

3.1 The Licence Holder shall ensure that every electrical installation in the 
house is in proper working order and safe for continued use. The Licence 
Holder shall supply the London Borough of Southwark, within seven days 
of demand, a written declaration or appropriate certification as to the 
safety of the electrical installation(s) in the house. Only approved 
Electrical contractors are to be permitted to carry out inspections of 
electrical installations or remedial works. Any necessary remedial works 
identified by such contractors shall be undertaken within a reasonable 
time period. The Licence Holder must, within seven days of inspection, 
provide the London Borough of Southwark with a copy of such inspection 
reports. The Licence Holder shall inform the London Borough of 
Southwark upon completion of such works (mandatory condition). 

3.2 A valid Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) record must be available, on 
request, at any time, for all electrical appliances provided in the property 
by the licence holder. PAT tests should be carried out by a competent 
person every twelve months as often as recommended for the type of 
appliance with records kept for at least five years. Any necessary 
maintenance or repair work must be undertaken by a competent electrical 
engineer in accordance with Part P of the Building Regulations. Copies of 
all maintenance records and PAT testing must be provided to the Council 
on request (discretionary condition). Any necessary maintenance or repair 
work required following a failed PAT test must be undertaken by a 
competent electrical engineer in accordance with Part P of the Building 
Regulations. 

4. Furniture 

The Licence Holder is required to keep furniture made available by them 

in the house in a safe condition and must supply the authority, on 

demand, with a declaration by them as to the safety of such furniture 

(mandatory condition). All upholstered furniture and mattresses supplied 

by the licence holder shall comply with the requirements of The Furniture 

and Furnishings (Fire) (Safety) Regulations 1988 and bear the permanent 

labelling required by the regulations.  For guidance see 
www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-

accommodation (discretionary conditions that ensure we are meeting 

mandatory requirements). 

5. Fire Precautions 

43

http://www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-accommodation
http://www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-accommodation


Appendix 1 
 

  6 

5.1 In compliance with the requirements of the Regulatory Reform (Fire 

Safety) Order 2005 

(http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made) the 

manager shall make a suitable and sufficient assessment of the risks to 

which tenants or visitors to the HMO are exposed for the purpose of 

identifying the general fire precautions required at the HMO. Reference 

should be made to a qualified fire safety engineer where necessary. The 

manager shall supply a copy of the risk assessment to London Borough of 

Southwark within 14 days of a written request. (discretionary condition). 

Reference must be made to the LACoRs Fire Guidance to ensure that the 

correct fire precautions are installed at the property appropriate to the size 

and occupation of the property. Reference should be made to a qualified 

fire safety engineer for advice where necessary. 

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guida

nce 

  5.2 Fire precautions and equipment must be maintained in proper working 

order.  Appropriate records of such maintenance, such as current 

certificates, are to be kept and produced to the London Borough of 

Southwark on demand as evidence of such maintenance. Any defects 

noted on certification must be promptly rectified (discretionary condition 

that ensures we are meeting mandatory requirements) 

5.3   The Licence Holder must supply to the authority, on demand, a declaration 

by them as to the condition and positioning of any smoke alarms 

(mandatory condition). 

5.4 At the start of each tenancy, occupants must be given appropriate fire 

safety advice regarding the means of escape in case of fire and other fire 

precautions. In particular, the importance of keeping fire doors closed and 

keeping the escape route clear (discretionary condition). 

 6. Tenancy Matters 

6.1  The Licence Holder must ensure that all occupants of the HMO and each 

of them are provided with a written statement of the terms and conditions 

on which they occupy it, e.g. a tenancy or licence agreement (mandatory 

condition).  

6.2 Details of the arrangements in place to deal with repair issues and 

emergency issues and a copy of this licence and its conditions. Copies of 

the written statement of terms must be provided to the Council within 14 

days upon demand (discretionary condition). 

6.3 The Licence Holder shall ensure that only they or the named agent (that 

the Licence Holder has notified to the Council) creates new tenancies or 

licences to occupy this property whilst this licence is in force (discretionary 

condition).  

44

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guidance
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guidance


Appendix 1 
 

  7 

6.4 The Licence Holder shall not knowingly cause or permit any person who 

has previously applied for a property licence in respect of the property and 

has either: 

(a) been found not to be a Fit and Proper person, or 

(b) been made subject to a Banning Order under the Housing and 

Planning Act 2016 

to have control or management of the property, or to carry out or arrange 

any repair, improvement or other building works at the property 

(discretionary condition). 

 7. Anti-Social Behaviour 

7.1 The Licence Holder shall take all reasonable and practical steps for 

preventing and dealing with anti-social behaviour and undertaking a 

thorough process of reasonable and effective steps to deal with any 

complaints that have been made directly to them or via Southwark Council 

or the Metropolitan Police, regarding their occupiers. For the purpose of 

these conditions, anti-social behaviour is taken to comprise behaviour by 

the occupants of the house and/or their visitors, which causes a nuisance 

or annoyance to other occupants of the house, to lawful visitors to the 

house or to persons residing in or lawfully visiting the neighbouring area of 

the house (discretionary condition). 

  

Waste Disposal 

8.1 The Licence Holder must give new occupiers of the property within 7 days 

of the start of their occupation, the following information on Waste and 

Recycling, in writing: 

 The collection days for the refuse and recycling bins for the 
property (LINK TO WEBSITE) 

 Details on what they can and can’t recycle (LINK TO WEBSITE ) 

 How they can dispose of bulky waste. (LINK TO WEBSITE ) 

 General waste guidance from the Council’s website: (LINK TO 
WEBSITE).  

A copy of the information provided to the occupiers must be kept for 5 

years and provided to the Council within 28 days on demand.  

8.2 The Licence Holder must ensure that tenants are provided with adequate 

facilities for the disposal of refuse and recycling. The Licence Holder must 

ensure that there are suitable and appropriate receptacles for the storage 

of household refuse and recycling between collections, so that bags or 

loose refuse and recycling are not stored outside the property.  

8.3 Where the standard local authority waste collection schemes do not 

suffice, the Licence Holder must arrange for private collections of waste 

from the property. 

45



Appendix 1 
 

  8 

8.4 The Licence Holder shall ensure that s checks are carried out, at least 

every 6 months, and ensure that the common parts, gardens and yards 

are free from waste, which could provide harbourage for pests and/or is a 

nuisance and/or is detrimental to the local amenities, other than waste 

stored in appropriate receptacles for the storage of household refuse and 

recycling; and that waste such as old furniture, bedding, rubbish or refuse 

from the property is not left outside the property or in its vicinity.  

8.5 The Licence Holder must ensure that there is not old furniture, bedding, 

rubbish or refuse from the property on the immediately outside the 

property or private land.  

8.6 The Licence Holder must ensure that any type of waste which the Council 

does not routinely collect such as hazardous waste is disposed of in a 

safe and lawful manner.  

8.7 If the Licence Holder becomes aware that the occupiers of the property or 

their visitors are not using the waste disposal facilities provided and/or 

leaving waste outside the property or in its vicinity (for example old 

furniture, mattresses), they must write a warning letter to the occupiers 

within 7 days advising them to remove the items immediately. A copy 

must be kept and must be provided to the Council within 28 days on 

demand (discretionary conditions that ensure we are meeting mandatory 

requirements). 

9. Fit and Proper Person 

9.1 If the Licence Holder becomes aware that they or any other person 

involved in the management of the property have received a conviction, 

caution, informal warning or reprimand in respect of any offence as 

detailed in the HMO Licence application form, they must notify the Council 

in writing within 14 days of the information coming to their attention 

(discretionary condition). 

10. Changes in the use and layout of the Property 

10.1 No changes must be made to the use, layout or maximum occupancy 

level of the property without the Council’s prior written consent 

(discretionary condition).  

11. Council Standards for Licensable Houses in Multiple Occupation 

11.1 The maximum occupancy for this house in multiple occupation is X 

people in X households (mandatory condition). 

11.2 Table to be inserted stating room, room size, maximum people and 

maximum households. 

11.3  The Licence Holder must ensure that no room is used by more than the 

number of persons specified in the licence (mandatory condition). The 

table above outlines the maximum number of people and households 

allowed per room (discretionary condition). 

46



Appendix 1 
 

  9 

11.5 Licensed properties must comply with Southwark’s Standards for HMOs 

(insert links) within 18 months of the licence being granted and for the 

remaining duration of the licence (discretionary condition).  

A reference to a number of persons using a room in an HMO as sleeping 
accommodation does not include a person doing so as a visitor of an 
occupier of the HMO (discretionary condition).  

For the purposes of paragraph 11.5 a room is used as sleeping 
accommodation if it is normally used as a bedroom, whether or not it is 
also used for other purposes (discretionary condition).  

Any part of the floor area of a room in relation to which the height of the 
ceiling is less than 1.5 metres is not to be considered in determining the 
floor area of that room for the purposes of this paragraph (discretionary 
condition). 

Please note that room size standards within Southwark’s HMO 
standards are greater than the national prescribed minimum room size 
standard stated in 11.6 and 11.7 below.   The Council has, in 
accordance with (insert legislation) decided to impose higher standards 
in accordance with its locally adopted HMO Standards referenced in 
11.5 above 

11.6 The Licence Holder is required:  

a) to ensure that the floor area of any room in the HMO used as 
sleeping accommodation by one person aged over 10 years is not 
less than 6.51 square metres (mandatory condition);  

b) to ensure that the floor area of any room in the HMO used as 
sleeping accommodation by two persons aged over 10 years is not 
less than 10.22 square metres (mandatory condition);  

c) to ensure that the floor area of any room in the HMO used as 
sleeping accommodation by one person aged under 10 years is not 
less than 4.64 square metres (mandatory condition);  

d) to ensure that any room in the HMO with a floor area of less than 
4.64 square metres is not used as sleeping accommodation 
(mandatory condition).  

11.7 The Licence Holder shall ensure that: 

a) where any room in the HMO is used as sleeping accommodation by 
persons aged over 10 years only, it is not used as such by more 
than the maximum number of persons aged over 10 years specified 
in the licence (mandatory condition);  

b) where any room in the HMO is used as sleeping accommodation by 
persons aged under 10 years only, it is not used as such by more 
than the maximum number of persons aged under 10 years 
specified in the licence (mandatory condition);  

c) where any room in the HMO is used as sleeping accommodation by 
persons aged over 10 years and persons aged under 10 years, it is 
not used as such by more than the maximum number of persons 
aged over 10 years specified in the licence and the maximum 

47



Appendix 1 
 

  10 

number of persons aged under 10 years so specified (mandatory 
condition).  

A reference to a number of persons using a room in an HMO as 
sleeping accommodation does not include a person doing so as a 
visitor of an occupier of the HMO (mandatory condition).  

For the purposes of paragraph’s 11.6 and 11.7 a room is used as 
sleeping accommodation if it is normally used as a bedroom, 
whether or not it is also used for other purposes (mandatory 
condition).  

Any part of the floor area of a room in relation to which the height of 
the ceiling is less than 1.5 metres is not to be considered in 
determining the floor area of that room for the purposes of this 
paragraph (mandatory condition). 

11.8 The terms of these conditions are unique to this property and cannot be 

applied to any other property (discretionary condition). 

11.9 For the purposes of this licence, any occupier is regarded as one person, 

regardless of age (discretionary condition). 

12. Access to Utility Meters 

12.1 The licence holder shall ensure that their tenants can access and obtain 

readings of the utility meters (gas, electricity and water, as applicable) for 

the house at reasonable times (no less than the delivery frequency of the 

utility bills) during the course of the tenancy and a final reading at the 

termination of the tenancy. (discretionary condition). 

13. Flats in Multiple Occupation in a block of flats 

13.1 The licence holder shall ensure the tenants of the Flat in Multiple 

Occupation (FMO) are informed in writing of the fire safety arrangements 

in place within the block, being, but not restricted to: 

 Evacuation arrangements, e.g. an all-out or stay-put policy. 

 The safest route to safety from the FMO. 

 The designated fire assembly area. 

 Fire Drill arrangements (if any).  

 Fire Warden and/or waking watch arrangements (where provided). 

 The nearest manual call point (where provided). 

(discretionary condition) 

 

 

48



Appendix 2 
 

  1 

 

 

 

 

 

Driving Up Standards for 

the Private Rented Sector 

 
Additional Licensing – Final Proposal 

 

 

19 October 2021 

  

49



Appendix 2 
 

  2 

Properties covered by the scheme 

1. All houses let in multiple occupation in the borough, that are not subject to 
mandatory licensing under the Housing Act 2004 will require a licence under the 
proposed additional licensing scheme. 

2. The legal definition of a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) is extensive, but a 
brief definition is: a dwelling that's occupied by three or more people in two or 
more households (families), who share at least one basic amenity (kitchen, 
bathroom or toilet). You can read the legislation regarding the definition of a 
house or flat in multiple occupation here 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/part/7/crossheading/meaning-of-
house-in-multiple-occupation 

3. Some buildings converted into self-contained flats can also be HMOs if they were 
converted without complying with the 1991 Building Regulations. This is defined 
in section 257 of the Housing Act 2004. You can read the legislation for the 
definition of HMOs which are converted blocks of self-contained flats here 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/section/257  

4. The additional scheme will therefore include converted buildings falling under 
section 257 of the Housing Act 2004, where the building or part of a building is of 
three or more storeys that have been converted into three or more self-contained 
flats and where both the building and self-contained flats it contains are under the 
same ownership or considered by the council to be effectively under the same 
control. 

Exemptions  

5. Exemptions to the proposed additional licensing scheme include: 

a) properties licensable as an HMO under mandatory licensing;  

b) properties let by a local authority or a Registered Provider (RP), traditionally 
known as a not-for-profit Housing Association;  

c) properties already subject to a management order or empty dwelling 
management order;  

d) properties subject to a temporary exemption notice. 

e) owners who reside in property they own as their main residence (owner-
occupiers). 

f) holiday lets; and tenancies under a long lease and business tenancies. 

g) an HMO which is managed by a charity registered under the Charities Act 
2011 and which—  

i) is a night shelter, or 

ii) consists of temporary accommodation for persons suffering or recovering 
from drug or alcohol abuse or a mental disorder. 

h) Any building which is occupied principally for the purposes of a religious 
community whose principal occupation is prayer, contemplation, education or 
the relief of suffering. 

50

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/part/7/crossheading/meaning-of-house-in-multiple-occupation
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/part/7/crossheading/meaning-of-house-in-multiple-occupation
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/34/section/257


Appendix 2 
 

  3 

i) Student accommodation directly managed by educational institutions, e.g. 
halls of residence. 

j) Homes let to up to two single people who are unrelated. 

k) Single family dwellings where a dwelling is occupied by one household. 

l) Homes with up to 2 lodgers. 

m) HMOs undersection 257 of the Housing Act 2004, where the building or part 
of a building is less than three storeys that have been converted into two self-
contained flats and where both the building and self-contained flats it contains 
are under the different ownership or considered by the council to be 
effectively under the control of different landlords/agents. 

Conditions 

6. Licence conditions for the proposed additional licence scheme were consulted 
on. A range of responses were received and subsequent changes to the 
conditions have taken place as stated below. 

 
Licence Condition Changes in Response to Consultation: 
Original Licence Condition Numbers:  

3.3, 5.5, 8.8, 9.2, 14, 15 and 16 have been deleted,  

1.2, 1.6, 1.8, 2.1, 3.1, 3.2, 4.1, 5.1, 5.4, 6.3, 8.4, 11.5, 11.6, 11.7 and 12.1 have 
been amended 

7. The following are standard conditions that will be attached to each licence. The 
Licence Holder must comply with the following conditions throughout the duration 
of the licence. 

8. There are two types of conditions that can be applied, mandatory conditions must 
apply as required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004 and discretionary 
conditions which the council can set for the management, use, occupation, 
condition and contents of the HMO.  

9. These mandatory conditions are prescribed by Schedule 4 Housing Act 2004 and 
The Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation (Mandatory Conditions of 
Licences) (England) Regulations 2018. 

10. In some circumstances, where the council believes there are specific issues not 
covered in the standard conditions for a particular property additional or more 
specific conditions will be added. 

11. The following are standard conditions that will be attached to each licence. The 
Licence Holder must comply with the following conditions throughout the duration 
of the licence: 

 

1. General  

1.1 The property licence must be displayed within a communal area of the 
property and a copy of the conditions should be made available to all the 
occupying tenants. (discretionary condition). 

51



Appendix 2 
 

  4 

1.2 The address of the Licence Holder given on their application form shall be 
used as the address for the proper service of any letter, notice or other 
document between the London Borough of Southwark Property Licensing 
Team and the Licence Holder. It is the Licence Holder’s responsibility to 
ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to collect and act upon any 
letter, notice or other document sent to that address on a regular basis 
(discretionary condition). 

1.3 The Licence Holder must notify the Council of any managing agent that 
they employ in relation to the property within 14 days of having employed 
the agent (discretionary condition). 

1.4 No other persons other than the Licence Holder or the named agent (that 
the Licence Holder has notified to the Council) can collect and receive 
rental monies from the tenant(s) at this property. These monies can be 
passed onto any third parties if required (discretionary condition). 

1.5 The Licence Holder must ensure that any deposit taken under an assured 
shorthold tenancy is protected by placing it in an authorised tenancy 
deposit scheme. The tenant must be given the prescribed information 
about the scheme. The Licence Holder must ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the scheme and the operation of Part 6 in Chapter 4, 
Housing Act 2004 within the statutory time limit (currently 30 days). A 
copy of the prescribed information given must be provided to the Authority 
within 21 days on demand. 

1.6 If the Licence Holder is not the manager of the property it is their 
responsibility to ensure that the manager complies with all the conditions 
of the licence (discretionary condition). 

1.7 Every habitable room in the property must have acceptable natural 
daylight and ventilation. An area of glazing which is equivalent to at least 
10% of the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided.  
An area of openable glazing (for ventilation) which is equivalent to at least 
5% of the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided 
(discretionary condition). 

1.8 The Licence Holder is in control of property with an Energy Performance 
Certificate (EPC) Rating of less than ‘E’.   

The Licence Holder shall within twelve months of the licence being issued 
carry out the works detailed on the EPC for the property to improve the 
energy efficiency of the HMO to achieve an EPC rating of ‘E’ or above 

OR 

within three months of the licence being issued register a valid exemption 
on the national exemptions register -  

Guidance - https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-
sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions  

Register - https://prsregister.beis.gov.uk/NdsBeisUi/used-service-before 

Where there is a lack of compliance, enforcement will be under the The 
Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2015 and The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) 

52

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions
https://prsregister.beis.gov.uk/NdsBeisUi/used-service-before


Appendix 2 
 

  5 

(England and Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2019 (discretionary 
condition). 

2. Gas Safety 

2.1 If gas is supplied to the property, a valid Gas Safe gas safety certificate 
must be available, within 7 days, on request, at any time. The gas safety 
certificate must relate to the whole gas installation and include all gas 
appliances. It must demonstrate that all appliances have been serviced 
and safety checked within the previous twelve months. Any defects noted 
on the certificate must be promptly rectified (mandatory condition). 

2.2 The Licence Holder is required to ensure that a carbon monoxide detector 
is installed and kept in working order in any room within the premises 
where a solid fuel appliance is installed.  The Licence Holder must supply 
to the authority, on demand, a declaration by as the condition and 
positioning of such alarms (mandatory condition). 

3. Electrical Safety 

3.1 The Licence Holder shall ensure that every electrical installation in the 
house is in proper working order and safe for continued use. The Licence 
Holder shall supply the London Borough of Southwark, within seven days 
of demand, a written declaration or appropriate certification as to the 
safety of the electrical installation(s) in the house. Only approved 
Electrical contractors are to be permitted to carry out inspections of 
electrical installations or remedial works. Any necessary remedial works 
identified by such contractors shall be undertaken within a reasonable 
time period. The Licence Holder must, within seven days of inspection, 
provide the London Borough of Southwark with a copy of such inspection 
reports. The Licence Holder shall inform the London Borough of 
Southwark upon completion of such works (mandatory condition). 

3.2 A valid Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) record must be available, on 
request, at any time, for all electrical appliances provided in the property 
by the licence holder. PAT tests should be carried out by a competent 
person every twelve months, or as often as recommended for the type of 
appliance with records kept for at least five years. Any necessary 
maintenance or repair work must be undertaken by a competent electrical 
engineer in accordance with Part P of the Building Regulations. 
(discretionary condition).  

4. Furniture 

The Licence Holder is required to keep furniture made available by them 
in the house in a safe condition and must supply the authority, on 
demand, with a declaration by them as to the safety of such furniture 
(mandatory condition). All upholstered furniture and mattresses supplied 
by the licence holder shall comply with the requirements of The Furniture 
and Furnishings (Fire) (Safety) Regulations 1988 and bear the permanent 
labelling required by the regulations.  For guidance see 
www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-

accommodation (discretionary conditions that ensure we are meeting 
mandatory requirements). 

53

http://www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-accommodation
http://www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-accommodation


Appendix 2 
 

  6 

5. Fire Precautions 

5.1 In compliance with the requirements of the Regulatory Reform (Fire 
Safety) Order 2005 
(http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made) the 
manager shall make a suitable and sufficient assessment of the risks to 
which tenants or visitors to the HMO are exposed for the purpose of 
identifying the general fire precautions required at the HMO. Reference 
should be made to a qualified fire safety engineer where necessary. The 
manager shall supply a copy of the risk assessment to London Borough of 
Southwark within 14 days of a written request. (discretionary condition). 

Reference must be made to the LACoRs Fire Guidance to ensure that the 
correct fire precautions are installed at the property appropriate to the size 
and occupation of the property. Reference should be made to a qualified 
fire safety engineer for advice where necessary. 
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guida
nce 

  5.2 Fire precautions and equipment must be maintained in proper working 
order.  Appropriate records of such maintenance, such as current 
certificates, are to be kept and produced to the London Borough of 
Southwark on demand as evidence of such maintenance. Any defects 
noted on certification must be promptly rectified (discretionary condition 
that ensures we are meeting mandatory requirements) 

5.3   The Licence Holder must supply to the authority, on demand, a declaration 
by them as to the condition and positioning of any smoke alarms 
(mandatory condition). 

5.4 At the start of each tenancy, occupants must be given appropriate fire 
safety advice regarding the means of escape in case of fire and other fire 
precautions. In particular, the importance of keeping fire doors closed and 
keeping the escape route clear (discretionary condition). 

 6. Tenancy Matters 

6.1  The Licence Holder must ensure that all occupants of the HMO and each 
of them are provided with a written statement of the terms and conditions 
on which they occupy it, e.g. a tenancy or licence agreement (mandatory 
condition).  

6.2 Details of the arrangements in place to deal with repair issues and 
emergency issues and a copy of this licence and its conditions. Copies of 
the written statement of terms must be provided to the Council within 14 
days upon demand (discretionary condition). 

6.3 The Licence Holder shall ensure that only they or the named agent (that 
the Licence Holder has notified to the Council) creates new tenancies or 
licences to occupy this property whilst this licence is in force (discretionary 
condition).  

6.4 The Licence Holder shall not knowingly cause or permit any person who 
has previously applied for a property licence in respect of the property and 
has either: 

54

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guidance
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guidance


Appendix 2 
 

  7 

(a) been found not to be a Fit and Proper person, or 

(b) been made subject to a Banning Order under the Housing and 
Planning Act 2016 

to have control or management of the property, or to carry out or arrange 
any repair, improvement or other building works at the property 
(discretionary condition). 

8. Waste Disposal 

8.1 The Licence Holder must give new occupiers of the property within 7 days 
of the start of their occupation, the following information on Waste and 
Recycling, in writing: 

 The collection days for the refuse and recycling bins for the 
property (LINK TO WEBSITE) 

 Details on what they can and can’t recycle (LINK TO WEBSITE ) 

 How they can dispose of bulky waste. (LINK TO WEBSITE ) 

 General waste guidance from the Council’s website: (LINK TO 
WEBSITE).  

A copy of the information provided to the occupiers must be kept for 5 
years and provided to the Council within 28 days on demand.  

8.2 The Licence Holder must ensure that tenants are provided with adequate 
facilities for the disposal of refuse and recycling. The Licence Holder must 
ensure that there are suitable and appropriate receptacles for the storage 
of household refuse and recycling between collections, so that bags or 
loose refuse and recycling are not stored outside the property.  

8.3 Where the standard local authority waste collection schemes do not 
suffice, the Licence Holder must arrange for private collections of waste 
from the property. 

8.4 The Licence Holder shall ensure that s checks are carried out, at least 
every 6 months, and ensure that the common parts, gardens and yards 
are free from waste, which could provide harbourage for pests and/or is a 
nuisance and/or is detrimental to the local amenities, other than waste 
stored in appropriate receptacles for the storage of household refuse and 
recycling; and that waste such as old furniture, bedding, rubbish or refuse 
from the property is not left outside the property or in its vicinity.  

8.5 The Licence Holder must ensure that there is not old furniture, bedding, 
rubbish or refuse from the property on the immediately outside the 
property or private land.  

8.6 The Licence Holder must ensure that any type of waste which the Council 
does not routinely collect such as hazardous waste is disposed of in a 
safe and lawful manner.  

8.7 If the Licence Holder becomes aware that the occupiers of the property or 
their visitors are not using the waste disposal facilities provided and/or 
leaving waste outside the property or in its vicinity (for example old 
furniture, mattresses), they must write a warning letter to the occupiers 

55



Appendix 2 
 

  8 

within 7 days advising them to remove the items immediately. A copy 
must be kept and must be provided to the Council within 28 days on 
demand (discretionary conditions that ensure we are meeting mandatory 
requirements). 

9. Fit and Proper Person 

9.1 If the Licence Holder becomes aware that they or any other person 
involved in the management of the property have received a conviction, 
caution, informal warning or reprimand in respect of any offence as 
detailed in the HMO Licence application form, they must notify the Council 
in writing within 14 days of the information coming to their attention 
(discretionary condition). 

10. Changes in the use and layout of the Property 

10.1 No changes must be made to the use, layout or maximum occupancy 
level of the property without the Council’s prior written consent 
(discretionary condition).  

11. Council Standards for Licensable Houses in Multiple Occupation 

11.1 The maximum occupancy for this house in multiple occupation is X 
people in X households (mandatory condition). 

11.2 Table to be inserted stating room, room size, maximum people and 

maximum households. 

11.3  The Licence Holder must ensure that no room is used by more than the 

number of persons specified in the licence (mandatory condition). The 

table above outlines the maximum number of people and households 

allowed per room (discretionary condition). 

11.5 Licensed properties must comply with Southwark’s Standards for HMOs 

(insert links) within 18 months of the licence being granted and for the 

remaining duration of the licence (discretionary condition).  

A reference to a number of persons using a room in an HMO as sleeping 
accommodation does not include a person doing so as a visitor of an 
occupier of the HMO (discretionary condition).  

For the purposes of paragraph 11.5 a room is used as sleeping 
accommodation if it is normally used as a bedroom, whether or not it is 
also used for other purposes (discretionary condition).  

Any part of the floor area of a room in relation to which the height of the 
ceiling is less than 1.5 metres is not to be considered in determining the 
floor area of that room for the purposes of this paragraph (discretionary 
condition). 

Please note that room size standards within Southwark’s HMO 
standards are greater than the national prescribed minimum room size 
standard stated in 11.6 and 11.7 below.   The Council has, in 
accordance with (insert legislation) decided to impose higher standards 

56



Appendix 2 
 

  9 

in accordance with its locally adopted HMO Standards referenced in 
11.5 above 

11.6 The Licence Holder is required:  

a) to ensure that the floor area of any room in the HMO used as 
sleeping accommodation by one person aged over 10 years is not 
less than 6.51 square metres (mandatory condition);  

b) to ensure that the floor area of any room in the HMO used as 
sleeping accommodation by two persons aged over 10 years is not 
less than 10.22 square metres (mandatory condition);  

c) to ensure that the floor area of any room in the HMO used as 
sleeping accommodation by one person aged under 10 years is not 
less than 4.64 square metres (mandatory condition);  

d) to ensure that any room in the HMO with a floor area of less than 
4.64 square metres is not used as sleeping accommodation 
(mandatory condition).  

11.7 The Licence Holder shall ensure that: 

a) where any room in the HMO is used as sleeping accommodation by 
persons aged over 10 years only, it is not used as such by more 
than the maximum number of persons aged over 10 years specified 
in the licence (mandatory condition);  

b) where any room in the HMO is used as sleeping accommodation by 
persons aged under 10 years only, it is not used as such by more 
than the maximum number of persons aged under 10 years 
specified in the licence (mandatory condition);  

c) where any room in the HMO is used as sleeping accommodation by 
persons aged over 10 years and persons aged under 10 years, it is 
not used as such by more than the maximum number of persons 
aged over 10 years specified in the licence and the maximum 
number of persons aged under 10 years so specified (mandatory 
condition).  

A reference to a number of persons using a room in an HMO as 
sleeping accommodation does not include a person doing so as a 
visitor of an occupier of the HMO (mandatory condition).  

For the purposes of paragraph’s 11.6 and 11.7 a room is used as 
sleeping accommodation if it is normally used as a bedroom, 
whether or not it is also used for other purposes (mandatory 
condition).  

Any part of the floor area of a room in relation to which the height of 
the ceiling is less than 1.5 metres is not to be considered in 
determining the floor area of that room for the purposes of this 
paragraph (mandatory condition). 

11.8 The terms of these conditions are unique to this property and cannot be 
applied to any other property (discretionary condition). 

11.9 For the purposes of this licence, any occupier is regarded as one person, 
regardless of age (discretionary condition). 

57



Appendix 2 
 

  10 

12. Access to Utility Meters 

12.1 The licence holder shall ensure that their tenants can access and obtain 
readings of the utility meters (gas, electricity and water, as applicable) for 
the house at reasonable times (no less than the delivery frequency of the 
utility bills) during the course of the tenancy and a final reading at the 
termination of the tenancy. (discretionary condition). 

13. Flats in Multiple Occupation in a block of flats 

13.1 The licence holder shall ensure the tenants of the Flat in Multiple 
Occupation (FMO) are informed in writing of the fire safety arrangements 
in place within the block, being, but not restricted to: 

 Evacuation arrangements, e.g. an all-out or stay-put policy. 

 The safest route to safety from the FMO. 

 The designated fire assembly area. 

 Fire Drill arrangements (if any).  

 Fire Warden and/or waking watch arrangements (where provided). 

 The nearest manual call point (where provided). 

(discretionary condition) 

 

 

58



 

 

London Borough of Southwark 

Draft Declaration of Additional HMO Licensing Scheme 

Designation 

Appendix 3 

59



 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE  

London Borough of Southwark 

NOTICE OF DESIGNATION OF AN AREA FOR ADDITIONAL LICENSING 

Section 56, Housing Act 2004 

1. The London Borough of Southwark (“The Council”) in exercise of its powers under section 56 of the Housing Act 2004 (“the Act”) hereby 
designates the entire area of its district, as subject to Additional Licensing as described at paragraph 4. The designation applies to all Houses 
in Multiple Occupation (“HMOs’’) as described at paragraph 5  

CITATION, COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION 

2. This designation will be known as The London Borough of Southwark Designation of an Area for Additional Licensing of Houses in Multiple 
Occupation 2022 The Designation is made on ** October 2021 and shall come into force on 1 March 2022.  

3. The designation shall cease to have effect on 28 February 2027 (not more than five years) or earlier if the Authority revokes the scheme under 
section 84 of the Act.  

AREA TO WHICH THE DESIGNATION APPLIES  

4. This designation shall apply to the entire area of the London Borough of Southwark as delineated in red on the map in annex A below.  

APPLICATION OF THE DESIGNATION  

5. The designation applies to all Houses in Multiple Occupation (“HMOs’’) as defined by section 254 of the Act that are occupied by 3 or more 
persons comprising 2 or more households as defined in Annex B, within the area described at paragraph 1 unless:  

a. the house is an HMO that falls within the nationally prescribed category of HMO that is required to be licensed as a ‘mandatory HMO’ 
under section 55(2)(a) Part 2 of the Act1 ;  

b. the house is subject to an Interim or Final Management Order under Part 4 of the Act;  

c. the house is subject to a temporary exemption under section 62 of the Act;  

d. The house is an HMO that is a building or part of a building that is not an HMO for the purposes of licensing under Part 2 of the Act2 

as defined in Annex C/ Schedule 14 of the Act; or.  

e. it is a building converted into self-contained flats but does not meet the standards of conversion required by the Building Regulations 
1991, and where less than two thirds of the flats are owner occupied to which Section 257 of the Housing Act 2004 applies where:  the 
building or part of a building is of three or more storeys that have been converted into three or more self-contained flats and where 
both the building and self-contained flats it contains are under the same ownership or considered by the council to be effectively under 
the same control.    

EFFECT OF THE DESIGNATION  

6. Subject to sub paragraphs 5(a) to (e) above, every HMO of the description specified in that paragraph in the area specified in paragraph 4 
shall be required to be licensed under section 61 of the Act.  

7. The designation falls within a description of designations in relation to which the Secretary of State has issued a General Approval under 
section 58 of the Act, namely, The Housing Act 2004: Licensing of Houses of Multiple Occupation and Selective Licensing of Other Residential 
Accommodation (England) General Approval 2015 which came into force on 1 April 2015.  

8. The London Borough of Southwark will comply with the notification requirements contained in Section 29 of the Act and shall maintain a 
register of all houses registered under this designation, as required under section 232 of the Act.3  

If you are a landlord, managing agent or a tenant, or if you require information regarding this designation, or to apply for a licence, further 
information and assistance is available from the Council’s Private Rented Property Licensing Team by telephone on 020 7525 4113 or by email 
to resi@southwark.gov.uk, or by writing to Private Sector Housing Enforcement Service, PO Box 70063, Queens Road, London, SE15 2HP.  

The Designation may be inspected at the above address during office hours. All landlords, managing agents or tenants within the designated area 
should obtain advice to ascertain whether their property is affected by the Designation by contacting the Council’s Private Rented Property 
Licensing Team.  

Any person who operates a licensable property without a licence or allows a licensed property to be occupied by more households or persons 
other than as authorised by a licence, is liable to prosecution and upon summary conviction is liable to an unlimited fine. A person who breaches 
a condition of a licence is liable upon summary conviction to a maximum fine of £5,000 per breach. 

 

Signed  
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 Section 55 of the Act defines which Houses in Multiple Occupation are required to be licensed under the Act. See also The Licensing of Houses.in Multiple Occupation 

(Prescribed Descriptions) (England) Order 2005 (SI 2006/371)  
2 Schedule 14 Housing Act 2004 describes the buildings that are not HMOs other than for the purpose of Part 1 [HHSRS]  
3 Section 232 of the Act and paragraph 11 of SI 373/2006   

 

  

60



 

 

Annex A: Map of the borough wide additional licensing designation showing the boundary delineated in red   

 

 

  

61



 

 

Annex B: HMOs to which this designation applies [subject to paragraph 5 above]  

A building or a part of a building meets the standard test if—  
(a) It consists of one or more units of living accommodation not consisting of a self-contained flat or flats;  

(b) The living accommodation is occupied by persons who do not form a single household4;  

(c) the living accommodation is occupied by those persons as their only or main residence or they are to be treated as so occupying it5;  

(d) Their occupation of the living accommodation constitutes the only use of that accommodation;  

(e) Rents are payable or other consideration is to be provided in respect of at least one of those persons' occupation of the living 
accommodation; and  

(f) Two or more of the households who occupy the living accommodation share one or more basic amenities or the living accommodation is 
lacking in one or more basic amenities.  

 
A part of a building meets the self-contained flat test if—  
(a) It consists of a self-contained flat; and  

(b) Paragraphs (b) to (f) of standard test definition above apply (reading references to the living accommodation concerned as references to the 
flat).  

 

A building or a part of a building meets the converted building test if—  

(a) It is a converted building;  

(b) It contains one or more units of living accommodation that do not consist of a self-contained flat or flats (whether or not it also contains any 
such flat or flats);  

(c) The living accommodation is occupied by persons who do not form a single household4;  

(d) The living accommodation is occupied by those persons as their only or main residence or they are to be treated as so occupying it5;  

(e) Their occupation of the living accommodation constitutes the only use of that accommodation; and  

(f) Rents are payable or other consideration is to be provided in respect of at least one of those persons' occupation of the living 
accommodation.  

 
“Basic amenities” means— 

(a) A toilet,  

(b) Personal washing facilities, or  
(c) Cooking facilities  
 
“Converted building” means a building or part of a building consisting of living accommodation in which one or more units of such 
accommodation have been created since the building or part was constructed;  
 
“Enactment” includes an enactment comprised in subordinate legislation (within the meaning of the Interpretation Act 1978 (c. 30);  
 
“Self-contained flat” means a separate set of premises (whether or not on the same floor)—  
(a) which forms part of a building;  

(b) either the whole or a material part of which lies above or below some other part of the building; and  

(c) in which all three basic amenities are available for the exclusive use of its occupants  
 
HMO declarations  
If a local housing authority are satisfied that a building or part of a building in their area meets either:  

 the standard test; or  

 the self-contained flat test; or  

 the converted building test  
 
they may serve a notice under section 255 (an “HMO declaration”) declaring the building or part to be a house in multiple occupation. 

Annex C: Buildings which are not HMOs for purposes of this designation  

In the following paragraphs “building” includes a part of a building.  
 
Buildings controlled or managed by public sector bodies etc  
A building where the person managing or having control of it is  
(a) a local housing authority,  

(b) a non-profit registered provider of social housing,  

(c) a body which is registered as a social landlord under Part 1 of the Housing Act 1996,  

(d) a police and crime commissioner,  

(e) the Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime,  

(f) a fire and rescue authority, or  

(g) a health service body [within the meaning of section 9 of the National Health Service Act 2006].  
 
“fire and rescue authority” means a fire and rescue authority under the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004  
A building—  
(a) Which is social housing within the meaning of Part 2 of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008, and  

(b) Where the person managing or having control of it is a profit-making registered provider of social housing.]  
 
4 For the definition of “persons not forming a single household” please see Section 258 of the Housing Act 2004 
5 For the definition of “persons treated as occupying premises as main or only residence” please see Section 259 of the Housing Act 2004 

62



 

 

Buildings controlled or managed by a co-operative society  
(1) A building where—  

(a) The person managing or having control of it is a co-operative society whose rules are such as to secure that each of the conditions set 
out in sub-paragraph (2) is met, and  

(b) No person who occupies premises in the building does so by virtue of an assured tenancy, a secure tenancy or a protected tenancy.  

 
(2) The conditions are —  

(a) That membership of the society is restricted to persons who are occupiers or prospective occupiers of buildings managed or controlled 
by the society,  

(b) That all management decisions of the society are made by the members (or a specified quorum of members) at a general meeting which 
all members are entitled to, and invited to, attend,  

(c) That each member has equal voting rights at such a meeting, and  

(d) That, if a person occupies premises in the building and is not a member, that person is an occupier of the premises only as a result of 
sharing occupation of them with a member at the member's invitation.  

 

(3) For the purposes of sub-paragraph (a) “co-operative society” means a body that—  

(a) Is registered as a co-operative society under the 2014 Act or is a pre-commencement society (within the meaning of that Act) that meets 
the condition in section 2(2)(a)(i) of that Act, and  

(b) Is neither—  

(i) A non-profit registered provider of social housing, nor  

(ii) Registered as a social landlord under Part 1 of the Housing Act 1996.  

(4) In this paragraph—  

 “the 2014 Act” means the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014;]  

 “assured tenancy” has the same meaning as in Part 1 of the Housing Act 1988;  

 “protected tenancy” has the same meaning as in the Rent Act 1977;  

 “secure tenancy” has the same meaning as in Part 4 of the Housing Act 1985.]  
 
Buildings regulated otherwise than under this Act  
Any building whose occupation is regulated otherwise than by or under this Act and which is of a description specified for the purposes of this 
paragraph in regulations made by the appropriate national authority.  
 
Buildings occupied by students  
(1) Any building—  

(a) which is occupied solely or principally by persons who occupy it for the purpose of undertaking a full-time course of further or higher 
education at a specified educational establishment or at an educational establishment of a specified description, and  

(b) where the person managing or having control of it is the educational establishment in question or a specified person or a person of a 
specified description.  

(2) In sub-paragraph (a) “specified” means specified for the purposes of this paragraph in regulations made by the appropriate national 
authority.  

(3) Sub-paragraph (4) applies in connection with any decision by the appropriate national authority as to whether to make, or revoke, any 
regulations specifying—  

(a) A particular educational establishment, or  

(b) A particular description of educational establishments.  

(4) The appropriate national authority may have regard to the extent to which, in its opinion— 

(a) the management by or on behalf of the establishment in question of any building or buildings occupied for connected educational 
purposes is in conformity with any code of practice for the time being approved under section 233 which appears to the authority to be 
relevant, or  

(b) the management of such buildings by or on behalf of establishments of the description in question is in general in conformity with any 
such code of practice, as the case may be.  

(5) In sub-paragraph (4) “occupied for connected educational purposes”, in relation to a building managed by or on behalf of an educational 
establishment, means occupied solely or principally by persons who occupy it for the purpose of undertaking a full-time course of further or 
higher education at the establishment.  

 
Buildings occupied by owners  
Any building which is occupied only by persons within the following paragraphs—  

(a) one or more persons who have, whether in the whole or any part of it, either the freehold estate or a leasehold interest granted for a term of 
more than 21 years;  

(b) any member of the household of such a person or persons;  

(c) No more than such number of other persons as is specified for the purposes of this paragraph in regulations made by the appropriate 
national authority.6  

(d) This paragraph does not apply in the case of a converted block of flats to which section 257 applies, except for the purpose of determining 
the status of any flat in the block.  

 
Buildings occupied by two persons  
Any building which is occupied only by two persons who form two households. 

 

6 The number of persons specified for the purposes of paragraph (C) under ‘buildings occupied by owners’ in The Licensing and Management of Houses in Multiple Occupation 
and Other Houses (Miscellaneous Provisions) (England) Regulations 2006 is two. 

 

63



Appendix 4 
 

  1 

 

 

 

 

 

Driving up Standards for 

the Private rented sector 

 
Selective Licensing Designation 1 – 

Final Proposal 

 

19 October 2021 

  

64



Appendix 4 
 

  2 

Properties covered by the scheme 

1. All properties, let in the private rented sector, that are not included in the 
mandatory scheme, or included in the proposed additional licensing scheme, will 
be included in the selective licensing scheme if they are located within the 
designated area. 

2. The wards included in Designation 1 are: 

 

Champion Hill 

Newington 
 

Exemptions  

3. Exemptions to the proposed selective licensing designation 1 includes: 

a) properties licensable as an HMOs under mandatory or the proposed 
additional licensing;  

b) properties let by a local authority or a Registered Provider (RP), 
traditionally known as a not-for-profit Housing Association;  

c) properties already subject to a management order or empty dwelling 
management order;  

d) properties subject to a temporary exemption notice. 

e) owners who reside in property they own as their main residence (owner-
occupiers). 

f) holiday lets; and tenancies under a long lease and business tenancies. 

g) Any building which is occupied principally for the purposes of a religious 
community whose principal occupation is prayer, contemplation, education 
or the relief of suffering. 

h) Student accommodation directly managed by educational institutions, e.g. 
halls of residence. 

i) properties managed by a charity registered under the Charities Act 2011 
and which—  

a. is a night shelter, or 

b. consists of temporary accommodation for persons suffering or 
recovering from drug or alcohol abuse or a mental disorder. 

Conditions  

4. Licence conditions for the proposed selective licensing scheme (Designation 1) 
were consulted on. A range of responses were received and subsequent 
changes to the conditions have taken place as stated below. 

 
Licence Condition Changes in Response to Consultation: 
Original Licence Condition Numbers:  

65



Appendix 4 
 

  3 

1.6, 3.3, 9.2, 11, 14.6, 12 and 13 have been deleted,  

1.1, 1.2, 1.7, 1.11, 3.1, 3.2, 4.1, 6.3, 14.2 and 14.3 have been amended 

 

5. The following are standard conditions that will be attached to each licence. The 
Licence Holder must comply with the following conditions throughout the duration 
of the licence. 

6. There are two types of conditions that can be applied, mandatory conditions must 
apply as required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004 and discretionary 
conditions which the council can set for the management, use, occupation, 
condition and contents of the HMO.  

7. These mandatory conditions are prescribed by Schedule 4 Housing Act 2004 and 
The Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation (Mandatory Conditions of 
Licences) (England) Regulations 2018. 

8. In some circumstances, where the council believes there are specific issues not 
covered in the standard conditions for a particular property additional or more 
specific conditions will be added. 

9. The following are standard conditions that will be attached to each licence. The 
Licence Holder must comply with the following conditions throughout the duration 
of the licence: 

 

1. General   

1.1 The Licence Holder must ensure that tenants are given a copy of the 
licence and that any subsequent tenants are given copies of the licence 
(discretionary condition).  

1.2 The address of the Licence Holder given on their application form shall be 
used as the address for the proper service of any letter, notice or other 
document between the London Borough of Southwark Property Licensing 
Team and the Licence Holder. It is the Licence Holder’s responsibility to 
ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to collect and act upon any 
letter, notice or other document sent to that address on a regular basis 
(discretionary condition). 

1.3 The Licence Holder must notify the Council of any managing agent that 
they employ in relation to the property within 14 days of having employed 
the agent (discretionary condition). 

1.4 No other persons other than the Licence Holder or the named agent (that 
the Licence Holder has notified to the Council) can collect and receive 
rental monies from the tenant(s) at this property. These monies can be 
passed onto any third parties if required (discretionary condition). 

1.5 If the Licence Holder is not the manager of the property it is their 
responsibility to ensure that the manager complies with all the conditions 
of the licence (discretionary condition). 

1.6 Every habitable room in the property must have acceptable natural 
daylight and ventilation. An area of glazing which is equivalent to at least 

66



Appendix 4 
 

  4 

10% of the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided.  
An area of openable glazing (for ventilation) which is equivalent to at least 
5% of the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided 
(discretionary condition). 

1.7 The Licence Holder is in control of property with an Energy Performance 
Certificate (EPC) Rating of less than ‘E’.   

The Licence Holder shall within twelve months of the licence being issued 

carry out the works detailed on the EPC for the property to improve the 

energy efficiency of the property to achieve an EPC rating of ‘E’ or above 

OR 

within three months of the licence being issued register a valid exemption 

on the national exemptions register -  

Guidance - https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-

sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions  

Register - https://prsregister.beis.gov.uk/NdsBeisUi/used-service-before 

Where there is a lack of compliance, enforcement will be under the The 

Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2015 and The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) 

(England and Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2019. 

(discretionary condition). 

1.8 Provide, in writing, to the tenants, the name, address and telephone 
number of the person managing the house.  

1.9 The Licence Holder shall give a written declaration that they shall provide 
to each current and future occupant with the name, address and 
telephone number of the landlord’s appointed local out of hours contact, 
who will respond to emergency situations outside normal business hours, 
and be able to attend or arrange for a contractor to attend the property to 
deal with any emergencies within 24 hours of notification. A copy of these 
details shall be forwarded to the Council on demand. 

1.10 The Licence Holder shall ensure that their tenants can access and obtain 
readings of the utility meters (gas, electricity and water, as applicable) for 
the house at reasonable times (no less than the delivery frequency of the 
utility bills) during the course of the tenancy and a final reading at the 
termination of the tenancy.  

1.11 The Licence Holder shall not unreasonably cause the supply of water, gas 
(where provided) and electricity to house to be interrupted, where these 
supplies is under their control. 

2. Gas Safety 

2.1 If gas is supplied to the property, a valid Gas Safe gas safety certificate 
must be available, on request, at any time. The gas safety certificate must 
relate to the whole gas installation and include all gas appliances. It must 
demonstrate that all appliances have been serviced and safety checked 

67

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions
https://prsregister.beis.gov.uk/NdsBeisUi/used-service-before


Appendix 4 
 

  5 

within the previous twelve months. Any defects noted on the certificate 
must be promptly rectified (mandatory condition). 

2.2  The Licence Holder is required to ensure that any carbon monoxide 
detector that is installed is kept in working order.  The Licence Holder 
must supply to the authority, on demand, a declaration by them as to the 
condition and positioning of such alarms (discretionary condition). 

3. Electrical Safety 

3.1 The Licence Holder shall ensure that every electrical installation in the 
house is in proper working order and safe for continued use. The Licence 
Holder shall supply the London Borough of Southwark, within seven days 
of demand, a written declaration or appropriate certification as to the 
safety of the electrical installation(s) in the house. Only approved 
Electrical contractors are to be permitted to carry out inspections of 
electrical installations or remedial works. Any necessary remedial works 
identified by such contractors shall be undertaken within a reasonable 
time period. The Licence Holder must, within seven days of inspection, 
provide the London Borough of Southwark with a copy of such inspection 
reports. The Licence Holder shall inform the London Borough of 
Southwark upon completion of such works (mandatory condition). 

3.2  A valid Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) record must be available, on 
request, at any time, for all electrical appliances provided in the property 
by the licence holder. PAT tests should be carried out by a competent 
person every twelve months as often as recommended for the type of 
appliance with records kept for at least five years. Any necessary 
maintenance or repair work must be undertaken by a competent electrical 
engineer in accordance with Part P of the Building Regulations. Copies of 
all maintenance records and PAT testing must be provided to the Council 
on request (discretionary condition). Any necessary maintenance or repair 
work required following a failed PAT test must be undertaken by a 
competent electrical engineer in accordance with Part P of the Building 
Regulations. 

4. Furniture 

4.1 The Licence Holder is required to keep furniture made available by them 

in the house in a safe condition and must supply the authority, on 

demand, with a declaration by them as to the safety of such furniture 

(mandatory condition). All upholstered furniture and mattresses supplied 

by the licence holder shall comply with the requirements of The Furniture 

and Furnishings (Fire) (Safety) Regulations 1988 and bear the permanent 

labelling required by the regulations.  For guidance see 
www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-

accommodation (discretionary conditions that ensure we are meeting mandatory 

requirements). 

 5. Fire Precautions 

5.1 The Licence Holder is required to ensure that smoke alarms are installed 
in the property and are kept in proper working order.  The Licence Holder 

68

http://www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-accommodation
http://www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-accommodation


Appendix 4 
 

  6 

must supply to the authority, on demand, a declaration by them as to the 
condition and positioning of such alarms (mandatory condition).  

6. Tenancy Matters 

6.1 The Licence Holder shall supply the occupiers of the property with a 
written statement of the terms on which they occupy the property 
(mandatory condition), details of the arrangements in place to deal with 
repair issues and emergency issues and a copy of this licence and its 
conditions. Copies of the written statement of terms must be provided to 
the Council within 7 days upon demand (discretionary condition). 

6.2 The Licence Holder shall ensure that only they or the named agent (that 
the Licence Holder has notified to the Council) create new tenancies or 
licences to occupy this property whilst this licence is in force. Copies of 
any new written terms of tenancies or licences must be provided to the 
Council within 28 days upon demand (discretionary condition). 

6.3 The Licence Holder shall not knowingly cause or permit any person who 
has previously applied for a property licence in respect of the property and 
has either: 

(a) been found not to be a Fit and Proper person, or 

(b) been made subject to a Banning Order under the Housing and 
Planning Act 2016 

to have control or management of the property, or to carry out or arrange 
any repair, improvement or other building works at the property 
(discretionary condition).  

6.4 The Licence Holder shall obtain references from persons who wish to 
occupy the property, or a part of the property, before entering into any 
tenancy or licence or other agreement with them to occupy the property 
(mandatory condition). No new occupiers shall be allowed to occupy the 
property if they are unable to provide suitable references (discretionary 
condition).  

(References should be as a minimum, checks to ensure the tenants 
identity, whether they have the right to rent a property [see 
https://www.gov.uk/check-tenant-right-to-rent-documents/who-to-check], 
their ability to pay rent and their past tenant history.) The Licence Holder 
must retain all references obtained for occupiers for the duration of this 
licence and provide copies to the Council within 28 days on demand. 

6.5 The Licence Holder shall carry out adequate checks and obtain 
satisfactory proof that occupiers belong to a single household. Evidence 
of this must be retained for the duration of licence. This evidence must be 
provided to the Council within 28 days on demand (discretionary 
condition). 

6.6 Where the standard local authority waste collection schemes do not 
suffice, the Licence Holder must arrange for private collections of waste 
from the property (discretionary condition). 

6.7 The Licence Holder must ensure that any deposit taken under an assured 
shorthold tenancy is protected by placing it in an authorised tenancy 

69

https://www.gov.uk/check-tenant-right-to-rent-documents/who-to-check


Appendix 4 
 

  7 

deposit scheme. The tenant must be given the prescribed information 
about the scheme. The Licence Holder must ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the scheme and the operation of Part 6 in Chapter 4, 
Housing Act 2004 within the statutory time limit (currently 30 days). A 
copy of the prescribed information given must be provided to the Authority 
within 28 days on demand (discretionary condition). 

7. Fit and Proper Person 

7.1 If the Licence Holder becomes aware that they or any other person 
involved in the management of the property have received a conviction, 
caution, informal warning or reprimand in respect of any offence as 
detailed in the Licence application form, they must notify the Council in 
writing within 14 days of the information coming to their attention 
(discretionary condition).  

8. Changes in the use and layout of the Property 

8.1 No changes must be made to the use, layout or maximum occupancy 
level of the property without the Council’s prior written consent 
(discretionary condition). 

9. Council Standards for Licensable Properties 

9.1 The maximum occupancy for this property is one household OR two 
people in two households (mandatory condition). 

9.2 The terms of these conditions are unique to this property and cannot be 
applied to any other property (discretionary condition). 

9.3 For the purposes of this licence, any occupier is regarded as one person, 
regardless of age (discretionary condition). 

10. Access to Utility Meters 

10.1 The licence holder shall ensure that their tenants can access and obtain 

readings of the utility meters (gas, electricity and water, as applicable) for 

the house at reasonable times (no less than the delivery frequency of the 

utility bills) during the course of the tenancy and a final reading at the 

termination of the tenancy. Furthermore, the licence holder shall supply to 

the tenant a written document describing the location of the utility meters 

(gas, electricity and water, as applicable) and the access arrangements 

for the meters (discretionary condition). 

14. Anti-Social Behaviour (discretionary conditions) 

14.1 The Licence Holder shall take reasonable and practicable steps to prevent 
or reduce anti-social behaviour by persons occupying or visiting the flat/ 
house and to this end shall:  

Report all incidences of anti-social behaviour to the appropriate authority, 
for example the police or the Council.  

14.2 Each new tenancy agreement shall include provisions relating to forfeiture 
of the property in the event of a breach of the tenancy agreement terms in 
the following circumstances:  

70



Appendix 4 
 

  8 

"That the tenant or someone living in, or visiting the premises has been 
guilty of conduct which is, or is likely to cause a nuisance or annoyance to 
neighbours; or, that a person residing or visiting the premises has been 
convicted of using the premises, or allowing it to be used for immoral or 
illegal purposes or has committed an arrestable offence in, or in the 
locality of the licensed premises."  

For the avoidance of doubt conduct causing a nuisance includes noise 
nuisance.  

A further condition shall be added to the tenancy agreement that requires 
the tenant to obtain written permission to sub-let the property.  

The Government have produced a model template for an Assured 

Shorthold Tenancy which can be found here - 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/model-agreement-for-a-

shorthold-assured-tenancy  

14.3 Following any complaints or incidents of anti-social behaviour (as defined 
in Housing Act 2004, Section 57(5)) arising from their property and being 
caused by their tenants or tenants’ visitors the Licence Holder shall 
investigate and take legal advice where necessary. Depending on the 
severity of the incident or where  there are 2 or more corroborated 
incidents of ASB the license holder shall either send a written warning to 
the perpetrator or take formal action to legally evict the tenants. 

14.4 If the Licence Holder is informed by the Authority, Police or other 
organisation that any occupiers have entered into a Community 
Resolution; or have been issued with an Acceptable Behaviour Contract; 
or a civil injunction has been obtained against the occupiers; or if the 
occupiers have been prosecuted in relation to ASB, the Licence Holder 
must either visit the house within 7 days of being notified or ensure that it 
is visited by the person managing the house.  During the visit, the Licence 
Holder must ensure that the occupiers are provided with a warning letter 
advising them (amongst other things) that their behaviour is not 
acceptable, that they are responsible for the conduct of their visitors, the 
impact on the victims and local community, and of the consequences of its 
continuation.  

Any letters, emails, legal notices or other documents relating to ASB, 
which are sent or received by the Licence Holder, or the agent on behalf 
of the Licence Holder, must be copied and kept for 5 years by the Licence 
Holder.  

14.5 Where the Licence Holder has reasonable grounds to suspect that the 
ASB involves criminal activity the Licence Holder must ensure that the 
appropriate authorities are informed.  

The Licence Holder shall co-operate with the Police and Authority in 
resolving ASB in any licensed property under their control. Such 
cooperation includes attending or being represented at any case 
conferences or multiagency meetings and providing information to the 
Police or the Authority when requested.  

71

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/model-agreement-for-a-shorthold-assured-tenancy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/model-agreement-for-a-shorthold-assured-tenancy


Appendix 4 
 

  9 

Any correspondence, letters and records kept in accordance with these 
conditions must be provided by the Licence Holder to the Authority within 
28 days on demand. 

15. Security (discretionary conditions) 

15.1 Ensure adequate security arrangements are in place to prevent 
unauthorised access to the premises.  This includes: 

 The front door of the dwelling shall be fitted with a ‘peekhole’ to 
allow the occupant to view who is at the front door.  

 A device shall be fitted to the front door to allow for the door to be 
opened in a restricted manner to prevent access by unauthorised 
persons, e.g. a door chain.  

 The front (and where provided back doors and French doors) door 
shall as a minimum be fitted with locks that meet BS3621.  

 All windows shall be fitted with suitable window locks and the keys 
provided to the tenants.  

15.2 Where previous occupants have not surrendered door keys, the Licence 
Holder will arrange for a lock change to be undertaken prior to new 
occupants moving in. 

15.3 Where there are outside spaces within the curtilage of the property, 
movement operated security lights shall be fixed and mounted providing 
sufficient light to illuminate the outside spaces.   

 

 

72



Appendix 5 
 

  1 

 

 

 

 

 

Driving Up Standards for 

the Private Rented Sector 

 
Selective Licensing Designation 2 – 

Final Proposal 

 

 

19 October 2021 

  

73



Appendix 5 
 

  2 

Properties covered by the scheme 

1. All properties, let in the private rented sector, that are not included in the 
mandatory scheme, or included in the proposed additional licensing scheme, will 
be included in the selective licensing scheme if they are located within the 
designated area. 

2. The wards included in Designation 2 are: 

 

Faraday 

Goose Green 

St Giles 
 

Exemptions  

3. Exemptions to the proposed selective licensing designation 1 includes: 

a) properties licensable as an HMOs under mandatory or the proposed 
additional licensing;  

b) properties let by a local authority or a Registered Provider (RP), 
traditionally known as a not-for-profit Housing Association;  

c) properties already subject to a management order or empty dwelling 
management order;  

d) properties subject to a temporary exemption notice. 

e) owners who reside in property they own as their main residence (owner-
occupiers). 

f) holiday lets; and tenancies under a long lease and business tenancies. 

g) Any building which is occupied principally for the purposes of a religious 
community whose principal occupation is prayer, contemplation, education 
or the relief of suffering. 

h) Student accommodation directly managed by educational institutions, e.g. 
halls of residence. 

i) properties managed by a charity registered under the Charities Act 2011 
and which—  

a. is a night shelter, or 

b. consists of temporary accommodation for persons suffering or 
recovering from drug or alcohol abuse or a mental disorder. 

Conditions  

3. Licence conditions for the proposed selective licensing scheme (Designation 1) 
were consulted on. A range of responses were received and subsequent 
changes to the conditions have taken place as stated below. 

 
Licence Condition Changes in Response to Consultation: 

74



Appendix 5 
 

  3 

Original Licence Condition Numbers:  

1.6, 3.3, 9.2, 11, 12 and 13, 18 have been deleted,  

1.1, 1.2, 1.7, 1.11, 3.1, 3.2, 4.1, 5.2, 6.3, and 16.4 have been amended 

4. The following are standard conditions that will be attached to each licence. The 
Licence Holder must comply with the following conditions throughout the duration 
of the licence. 

5. There are two types of conditions that can be applied, mandatory conditions must 
apply as required by Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004 and discretionary 
conditions which the council can set for the management, use, occupation, 
condition and contents of the HMO.  

6. These mandatory conditions are prescribed by Schedule 4 Housing Act 2004 and 
The Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation (Mandatory Conditions of 
Licences) (England) Regulations 2018. 

7. In some circumstances, where the council believes there are specific issues not 
covered in the standard conditions for a particular property additional or more 
specific conditions will be added. 

8. The following are standard conditions that will be attached to each licence. The 
Licence Holder must comply with the following conditions throughout the duration 
of the licence: 

 

1. General   

1.1 The Licence Holder must ensure that tenants are given a copy of the 
licence and that any subsequent tenants are given copies of the licence 
(discretionary condition).  

1.2 The address of the Licence Holder given on their application form shall be 
used as the address for the proper service of any letter, notice or other 
document between the London Borough of Southwark Property Licensing 
Team and the Licence Holder. It is the Licence Holder’s responsibility to 
ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to collect and act upon any 
letter, notice or other document sent to that address on a regular basis 
(discretionary condition). 

1.3 The Licence Holder must notify the Council of any managing agent that 
they employ in relation to the property within 14 days of having employed 
the agent (discretionary condition). 

1.4 No other persons other than the Licence Holder or the named agent (that 
the Licence Holder has notified to the Council) can collect and receive 
rental monies from the tenant(s) at this property. These monies can be 
passed onto any third parties if required (discretionary condition). 

1.5 If the Licence Holder is not the manager of the property it is their 
responsibility to ensure that the manager complies with all the conditions 
of the licence (discretionary condition). 

1.6 Every habitable room in the property must have acceptable natural 
daylight and ventilation. An area of glazing which is equivalent to at least 

75



Appendix 5 
 

  4 

10% of the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided.  
An area of openable glazing (for ventilation) which is equivalent to at least 
5% of the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided 
(discretionary condition). 

1.7 The Licence Holder is in control of property with an Energy Performance 
Certificate (EPC) Rating of less than ‘E’.   

The Licence Holder shall within twelve months of the licence being issued 

carry out the works detailed on the EPC for the property to improve the 

energy efficiency to achieve an EPC rating of ‘E’ or above 

OR 

within three months of the licence being issued register a valid exemption 

on the national exemptions register -  

Guidance - https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-

sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions  

Register - https://prsregister.beis.gov.uk/NdsBeisUi/used-service-before 

Where there is a lack of compliance, enforcement will be under the The 

Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2015 and The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) 

(England and Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2019. 

(discretionary condition). 

1.8 Provide, in writing, to the tenants, the name, address and telephone 
number of the person managing the house.  

1.9 The Licence Holder shall give a written declaration that they shall provide 
to each current and future occupant with the name, address and 
telephone number of the landlord’s appointed local out of hours contact, 
who will respond to emergency situations outside normal business hours, 
and be able to attend or arrange for a contractor to attend the property to 
deal with any emergencies within 24 hours of notification. A copy of these 
details shall be forwarded to the Council on demand. 

1.10 The Licence Holder shall ensure that their tenants can access and obtain 
readings of the utility meters (gas, electricity and water, as applicable) for 
the house at reasonable times (no less than the delivery frequency of the 
utility bills) during the course of the tenancy and a final reading at the 
termination of the tenancy.  

1.11 The Licence Holder shall not unreasonably cause the supply of water, gas 
(where provided) and electricity to house to be interrupted, where these 
supplies is under their control. 

2. Gas Safety 

2.1 If gas is supplied to the property, a valid Gas Safe gas safety certificate 
must be available, on request, at any time. The gas safety certificate must 
relate to the whole gas installation and include all gas appliances. It must 
demonstrate that all appliances have been serviced and safety checked 

76

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-rented-sector-minimum-energy-efficiency-standard-exemptions
https://prsregister.beis.gov.uk/NdsBeisUi/used-service-before


Appendix 5 
 

  5 

within the previous twelve months. Any defects noted on the certificate 
must be promptly rectified (mandatory condition). 

2.2  The Licence Holder is required to ensure that any carbon monoxide 
detector that is installed is kept in working order.  The Licence Holder 
must supply to the authority, on demand, a declaration by them as to the 
condition and positioning of such alarms (discretionary condition). 

3. Electrical Safety 

3.1 The Licence Holder shall ensure that every electrical installation in the 
house is in proper working order and safe for continued use. The Licence 
Holder shall supply the London Borough of Southwark, within seven days 
of demand, a written declaration or appropriate certification as to the 
safety of the electrical installation(s) in the house. Only approved 
Electrical contractors are to be permitted to carry out inspections of 
electrical installations or remedial works. Any necessary remedial works 
identified by such contractors shall be undertaken within a reasonable 
time period. The Licence Holder must, within seven days of inspection, 
provide the London Borough of Southwark with a copy of such inspection 
reports. The Licence Holder shall inform the London Borough of 
Southwark upon completion of such works (mandatory condition). 

3.2  A valid Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) record must be available, on 
request, at any time, for all electrical appliances provided in the property 
by the licence holder. PAT tests should be carried out by a competent 
person every twelve months, or as often as recommended for the type of 
appliance with records kept for at least five years. Any necessary 
maintenance or repair work must be undertaken by a competent electrical 
engineer in accordance with Part P of the Building Regulations. 
(discretionary condition).  

4. Furniture 

4.1 The Licence Holder is required to keep furniture made available by them 

in the house in a safe condition and must supply the authority, on 

demand, with a declaration by them as to the safety of such furniture 

(mandatory condition). All upholstered furniture and mattresses supplied 

by the licence holder shall comply with the requirements of The Furniture 

and Furnishings (Fire) (Safety) Regulations 1988 and bear the permanent 

labelling required by the regulations.  For guidance see 
www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-

accommodation (discretionary conditions that ensure we are meeting 

mandatory requirements). 

 5. Fire Precautions 

5.1 The Licence Holder is required to ensure that smoke alarms are installed 
in the property and are kept in proper working order.  The Licence Holder 
must supply to the authority, on demand, a declaration by them as to the 
condition and positioning of such alarms (mandatory condition).  

6. Tenancy Matters 

77

http://www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-accommodation
http://www.businesscompanion.info/en/quick-guides/product-safety/goods-in-rented-accommodation


Appendix 5 
 

  6 

6.1 The Licence Holder shall supply the occupiers of the property with a 
written statement of the terms on which they occupy the property 
(mandatory condition), details of the arrangements in place to deal with 
repair issues and emergency issues and a copy of this licence and its 
conditions. Copies of the written statement of terms must be provided to 
the Council within 7 days upon demand (discretionary condition). 

6.2 The Licence Holder shall ensure that only they or the named agent (that 
the Licence Holder has notified to the Council) create new tenancies or 
licences to occupy this property whilst this licence is in force. Copies of 
any new written terms of tenancies or licences must be provided to the 
Council within 28 days upon demand (discretionary condition). 

6.3 The Licence Holder shall not knowingly cause or permit any person who 
has previously applied for a property licence in respect of the property and 
has either: 

(a) been found not to be a Fit and Proper person, or 

(b) been made subject to a Banning Order under the Housing and 
Planning Act 2016 

to have control or management of the property, or to carry out or arrange 
any repair, improvement or other building works at the property 
(discretionary condition).  

6.4 The Licence Holder shall obtain references from persons who wish to 
occupy the property, or a part of the property, before entering into any 
tenancy or licence or other agreement with them to occupy the property 
(mandatory condition). No new occupiers shall be allowed to occupy the 
property if they are unable to provide suitable references (discretionary 
condition).  

(References should be as a minimum, checks to ensure the tenants 
identity, whether they have the right to rent a property [see 
https://www.gov.uk/check-tenant-right-to-rent-documents/who-to-check], 
their ability to pay rent and their past tenant history.) The Licence Holder 
must retain all references obtained for occupiers for the duration of this 
licence and provide copies to the Council within 28 days on demand. 

6.5 The Licence Holder shall carry out adequate checks and obtain 
satisfactory proof that occupiers belong to a single household. Evidence 
of this must be retained for the duration of licence. This evidence must be 
provided to the Council within 28 days on demand (discretionary 
condition). 

6.6 Where the standard local authority waste collection schemes do not 
suffice, the Licence Holder must arrange for private collections of waste 
from the property (discretionary condition). 

6.7 The Licence Holder must ensure that any deposit taken under an assured 
shorthold tenancy is protected by placing it in an authorised tenancy 
deposit scheme. The tenant must be given the prescribed information 
about the scheme. The Licence Holder must ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the scheme and the operation of Part 6 in Chapter 4, 
Housing Act 2004 within the statutory time limit (currently 30 days). A 

78

https://www.gov.uk/check-tenant-right-to-rent-documents/who-to-check


Appendix 5 
 

  7 

copy of the prescribed information given must be provided to the Authority 
within 28 days on demand (discretionary condition). 

 

7. Fit and Proper Person 

7.1 If the Licence Holder becomes aware that they or any other person 
involved in the management of the property have received a conviction, 
caution, informal warning or reprimand in respect of any offence as 
detailed in the Licence application form, they must notify the Council in 
writing within 14 days of the information coming to their attention 
(discretionary condition).  

8. Changes in the use and layout of the Property 

8.1 No changes must be made to the use, layout or maximum occupancy 
level of the property without the Council’s prior written consent 
(discretionary condition). 

9. Council Standards for Licensable Properties 

9.1 The maximum occupancy for this property is one household OR two 
people in two households (mandatory condition). 

9.2 The terms of these conditions are unique to this property and cannot be 
applied to any other property (discretionary condition). 

9.3 For the purposes of this licence, any occupier is regarded as one person, 
regardless of age (discretionary condition). 

10. Access to Utility Meters 

10.1 The licence holder shall ensure that their tenants can access and obtain 
readings of the utility meters (gas, electricity and water, as applicable) for 
the house at reasonable times (no less than the delivery frequency of the 
utility bills) during the course of the tenancy and a final reading at the 
termination of the tenancy. Furthermore, the licence holder shall supply to 
the tenant a written document describing the location of the utility meters 
(gas, electricity and water, as applicable) and the access arrangements 
for the meters (discretionary condition). 

Carbon Monoxide  

15.1 Ensure that a carbon monoxide alarm is installed in any room in the house 
that contains a gas appliance (includes boilers) (discretionary condition). 

15.2 The Licence Holder must ensure that the carbon monoxide alarms are kept 
in proper working order (this can be a check of the battery and operation of 
the alarm).  A declaration as to the proper working order of such alarms 
must be supplied to the London Borough of Southwark on demand 
(discretionary condition). 

16. Property Management and Safety 

16.1 The Licence Holder must ensure that prompt action is taken to investigate 
and effectively address complaints about disrepair or pest infestation at 
the house. The Licence Holder must ensure, in particular, that a written 

79



Appendix 5 
 

  8 

response is made to any such complaint within 21 days of receipt, stating 
the action that has been or will be taken.  

Copies of any such written complaint (including by email) and the 
response referred to in condition 17 must be provided to the Authority 
within 21 days on demand. 

(discretionary condition) 

16.2 The Licence Holder shall ensure that any repairs, improvement works or 
treatments at the house are carried out by competent person(s) who is 
employed directly by the Licence Holder or an agent/employee of the 
Licence Holder. Copies of receipts and/or invoices for any such works 
must be provided to the Authority within 21 days upon demand 
(discretionary condition). 

16.3 The Licence Holder must ensure that regular checks are carried out to 
ensure that the common parts, gardens and yards are free from waste, 
which could provide harbourage for pests and/or is a nuisance and/or is 
detrimental to the local amenities (discretionary condition). 

16.4 The Licence Holder must ensure that 6 monthly checks are carried out to 
ensure that the house is free from pest infestation. Where the Licence 
Holder becomes aware of a pest problem or infestation at the house they 
shall, within 7 days, take steps to ensure that a treatment program is 
carried out to eradicate the pest infestation. Records shall be kept of such 
treatment programs and copies of these must be provided to the Authority 
within 28 days on demand (discretionary condition).  

16.5 The Licence Holder must ensure that all outhouses, garages and sheds 
are kept secure, are used for their intended purpose only. The Licence 
Holder must ensure that these structures are not used for human 
habitation (discretionary condition). 

16.6 The Licence Holder must ensure that the exterior of the house is kept 
clean and tidy and that issues of routine maintenance affecting the 
exterior, such as broken windows, are addressed promptly (discretionary 
condition). 

16.7 The Licence Holder shall ensure that inspections of the house are carried 
out at least every 6 months to identify any problems relating to the 
condition and management of the house. The Authority may increase the 
frequency of such inspections if it has good reason to be concerned about 
the condition or management of the house. The records of such 
inspections shall be kept for the duration of this licence. As a minimum 
requirement the records must contain a log of who carried out the 
inspection, date and time of inspection and issues found, and action(s) 
taken. Copies of these must be provided to the Authority within 28 days 
on demand (discretionary condition). 

17. Homes (Fitness for Human Habitation) Act 2018  

17.1 The Homes (Fitness for Human Habitation) Act 2018 modified the 
Landlord and Tenant Act 1985.  The Licence Holder must ensure the 
property complies with the modification brought about by the Homes 
(Fitness for Human Habitation) Act 2018. The building must:  

80



Appendix 5 
 

  9 

 not be neglected or in a bad condition, 
 be stable, 
 be free from a serious problem with damp, 
 have a safe layout, 
 have enough natural light, 
 have enough ventilation, 
 have a satisfactory supply of hot and cold water, 
 have satisfactory drainage and lavatories, 
 have satisfactory facilities to prepare and cook food or wash up, 

and 
 free from category one hazards set out in the Housing Health and 

Safety (England) Regulations 2005 

(discretionary condition) 

  

 
 

 

81

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/3208/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/3208/contents/made


 

 

London Borough of Southwark 

Draft Declaration of Selective Licensing Scheme Designations 1 

& 2 

Appendix 6 

82



 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE  

London Borough of Southwark 

NOTICE OF DESIGNATION OF AN AREAS FOR SELECTIVE LICENSING 

Section 80, Housing Act 2004 

1. The London Borough of Southwark (“The Council”) in exercise of its powers under section 80 of the Housing Act 2004 ("the Act") hereby designates for selective 
licensing the areas described in paragraph 5 

CITATION, COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION 

2. These 2 Designations shall be known as the London Borough of Southwark Designations for Areas for Selective Licensing 2022. All privately rented residential 
accommodation situated within the designated areas must be licensed with the Council unless subject to statutory exemption as set out in paragraph 5. 

3. The Designations are made on ** October 2021 and will come into force on 1 March 2022. In line with the Housing Act 2004: Licensing of Houses in Multiple 
Occupation and Selective Licensing of Other Residential Accommodation (England) General Approval 2015 and the updated guidance issued by the Department 
for Communities and Local Government in March 2015 (Selective licensing in the private rented sector - A Guide for local authorities), the Designations fall within 
a description of designations for which, as long as the authority has consulted for at least ten weeks, do not need approval from the Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) as the designated areas cover 20% or less than the total geographical area of the London Borough of Southwark’s 
and includes 20% or less than its private rented properties.  

4. The Designations shall cease to have effect on 28 February 2027 (not more than 5 years) or earlier if the Council revokes the scheme under section 84 of the Act. 

AREA TO WHICH THE DESIGNATION APPLIES  

5. This designations shall apply to the following areas of the London Borough of Southwark. Designation 1 is delineated in red with the area itself coloured yellow on 
the map and Designation 2 is delineated in red with the area itself coloured orange on the map both in annex A below. The following wards are included in each 
designation. 

Wards included in Designation 1 Wards included in Designation 2 

Newington 
Faraday 

Champion Hill 
Goose Green 

 
St. Giles 

APPLICATION OF THE DESIGNATION  

6. This designation applies to any house1 which is let or occupied under a tenancy or licence within the area described in paragraph 5 unless:  

a. the house is a house in multiple occupation [HMO] that falls within the nationally prescribed category of HMO that is required to be licensed as a 
‘mandatory HMO’ under section 55(2)(a) Part 2 of the Act2;  

b. the house is a house in multiple occupation that falls within the prescribed category of HMO that is required to be licensed under the London Borough of 
Southwark Designation of an Area for Additional Licensing of Houses of Multiple Occupation made on 1 January 2022 under Section 56 of the Housing 
Act 20043;  

c. the tenancy or licence of the house has been granted by a registered social landlord4;  
d. the house is subject to an Interim or Final Management Order under Part 4 of the Act;  
e. the house is subject to a temporary exemption under section 86 of the Act; or  
f. the house is occupied under a tenancy or licence which is exempt under the Act or the occupation is of a building or part of a building so exempt as 

defined in Paragraph 5(f): Exempted tenancies or licences, Selective Licensing of Houses (Specified Exemptions) (England) Order 2006 SI 370/2006.   

EFFECT OF THE DESIGNATION  

6. Subject to sub paragraphs 6(a) to (f) every house in the area specified in paragraph 5 that is occupied under a tenancy or licence shall be required to be licensed 

under section 85 of the Act.6 

7. The London Borough of Southwark will comply with the notification requirements contained in section 83 of the Act and shall maintain a register of all houses 
registered under this designation, as required under section 232 of the Act.5  

If you are a landlord, managing agent or a tenant, or if you require information regarding this designation, or to apply for a licence, further information and assistance 
is available from the Council’s Private Rented Property Licensing Team by telephone on 020 7525 3114 or by email to resi@southwark.gov.uk, or by writing to Private 
Sector Housing Enforcement Service, PO Box 70063, Queens Road, London, SE15 2HP.  

The Designation may be inspected at the above address during office hours. All landlords, managing agents or tenants within the designated area should obtain advice 
to ascertain whether their property is affected by the Designation by contacting the Council’s Private Rented Property Licensing Team.  

Any person who operates a licensable property without a licence or allows a licensed property to be occupied by more households or persons other than as authorised 
by a licence, is liable to prosecution and upon summary conviction is liable to an unlimited fine. A person who breaches a condition of a licence is liable upon summary 
conviction to a maximum fine of £5,000 per breach. 

Signed  
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 For the definition of "house" see sections 79 and 99 of the Act  
2 Section 55 of the Act defines which Houses in Multiple Occupation are required to be licensed under the Act. See also The Licensing of Houses.in Multiple Occupation 

(Prescribed Descriptions) (England) Order 2005 (SI 2006/371)  
3 Additional Licensing covers HMOs that are not within the scope of Mandatory HMO Licensing where tenants share one or more ‘basic amenities’ i.e. a WC, personal washing 

facilities or cooking facilities. ‘Section 257’ HMO buildings would need a selective licence unless; an individual flat was itself multiply occupied which would need an 
additional or mandatory HMO licence depending on the number of persons accommodated or, where the building or part of a building is of three or more storeys that have 
been converted into three or more self-contained flats and where both the building and self-contained flats it contains are under the same ownership or considered by the 
council to be effectively under the same control.  

4 Section 79 (3) of the Act. For the definition of a Registered Social Landlord see Part 1 of the Housing Act 1996  
5 Section 232 of the Act and paragraph 11 of SI 373/2006  
6 See the Selective Licensing of Houses (Specified Exemptions) (England) Order 2006 SI 370/2006   

 

  

83



 

 

Annex A: 2 Maps below showing selective licensing designations 1 and 2 with the boundary delineated in red and 

the areas in yellow for designation 1 and orange for designation 2   

Designation 1       

 

 

84



 

 

Designation 2 

      

85



Appendix 7 
 

  1 

 

 

 

 

 

Driving Up Standards for 

the Private Rented Sector 

 
Statement of Fees, Charges and 

Discounts for Licensing – Final Proposal 

 

Appendix 7 

 

19 October 2021 

  

86



Appendix 7 
 

  2 

How the Licence Fees were set 

1. Article 13(2) of the EU Services Directive (2006/123/EC) requires that the licence 
fee paid by the applicant must be reasonable and proportionate to the cost of the 
authorisation (licensing) procedure and shall not exceed the cost of the 
authorisation (licensing) procedure. This means that the costs of the proposed 
licensing schemes must be cost neutral whereby the total licensing fee income does 
not exceed the expenditure over the five-year duration of the scheme. 

2. The licence fees for licence applications were set taking into account all of the 
Council’s costs in administering and carrying out its licensing functions and carrying 
out its functions under Chapter 1 of Part 4 Housing Act 2004 (where steps are 
necessary to make Interim and Final Management Orders) so far as they are not 
recoverable under or by virtue of any provision of Chapter 1 of Part 4. We have not 
included costs we can recover directly from landlords when undertaking those 
functions. 

3. The proposed fees are underpinned by assumptions about the level of income the 
fees will generate, based upon the number of properties that we expect to be 
licensed during the life of the schemes. For example, we have assumed that % of 
licence applications will be received in the first year, and that % of IT costs will be 
attributable to the receipt and processing of licence applications (Part A of the fees). 
A significant proportion of the licence fee income (%) is met from the staffing costs 
needed to deliver the licensing schemes. Staffing and the other resources 
necessary to administer, run and enforce the scheme have been split between the 
two licence types to calculate the proposed fees. 

 

Split fee 

4. The fee is levied in two parts. Part A of the fee is for the application for a licence 
and covers the costs of processing, administration and validation of the application. 
Part B of the fee comprises the running costs of the scheme and exercising our 
other licensing functions, such as the inspections and enforcement. 

5. Payment of Part A of the fee must be received when the application is made to the 
Council and, if the licence application is granted, Part B of the fee must be received 
and cleared before a licence is issued. In the event that we decide to refuse a 
licence application, only the Part B fee will have been paid. 

6. The fees will be reviewed throughout the scheme and the Council may adjust the 
fees to reflect changes in costs 

Proposed Licence Fees 

7. The licence fees are set out in the table below.  

  

87



Appendix 7 
 

  3 

 

Type of Licence  Part A- Processing 
and determining 
the application 

Part B 
administration, 
management and 
enforcement of the 
licensing schemes 

TOTAL 

Mandatory Licence  £1050 (+ £70 per 
bedroom above 5) 

£450 (+ £30 per 
bedroom above 5) 

£1500 (+ £100 per 
bedroom above 
5) 

Additional Licence 
up to 4 bedrooms 

£923 £377 £1300 

Selective Licensing 
Designations 1 & 2 

£630 £270 £900 

    

Discounts on licensing fees 

8. A 30% early bird discount will be applied to the proposed selective and additional 
schemes, which will operate for a period of 3 months from the point a scheme starts. 
The early bird discount does not include applications made for mandatory licences. 

9. A discount of 50% will be offered on the second part of the fee (enforcement 
element) for all licensing schemes where the landlord and/or managing agent has 
signed up to the Council’s Gold Standard Charter (see appendix 9 for details on the 
Charter).  

a. A requirement of the Gold Standard Charter is that a landlord must be 
accredited. The discount for being an accredited landlord under the existing 
scheme has therefore been removed under the proposals for the new 
schemes. 

b. The Gold Standard Charter discount can be applied for a managing agent of 
a licensable property however, if the Licence Holder and/or landlord has not 
signed up to the Gold Standard Charter, landlords who change their managing 
agents during the period of the licence must ensure that any new agent is also 
signed up to the Gold Standard Charter or repay the discount, pro-rata, for the 
period of time the property is being managed by an agent not signed up to the 
Gold Standard Charter. 

c. Discounts will not apply to properties where the council has found it necessary 
to issue a warning letter requiring the landlord/agent to apply for a licence. This 
applies to previously unlicensed properties or properties where a previous 
licence has expired more than 3 months before the renewal application has 
been received.  

d. A Gold Standard Charter landlord/agent who has not applied for a licence on 
a licensable property without a warning letter from the council can have their 
Gold Charter status removed. 

e. If a licensing application is not successful the fee for enforcement will not be 
charged. Any subsequent applications made for the same property will be 

88



Appendix 7 
 

  4 

charged the application fee (discount will apply where appropriate) and the 
further fee for enforcement if a licence is to be issued. 

10. A further discount of 50% on the second part (Part B) of the fee (enforcement 
element) for all licensing schemes, is available where the landlord and/or managing 
agent, as well as being signed up to the Council’s Gold Standard Charter has also 
signed up to the Council’s Finder’s Fee scheme (or subsequent iterations).  This 
means that when combined with the Gold Standard Charter Discount the second 
part (Part B) of the fee (enforcement element) will be free of charge.  

 

Table of discounts showing their effect on fees for each scheme 

 
  

Mandatory Licence 
Part A £1050 (+ £70 
per bedroom above 

5)  
Part B £450 (+£30 

per bedroom above 
5) 
 

Total fee - £1500 (+ 
£100 per bedroom 

above 5) 
 

Selective Licence 
Part A £630  
Part B £270 

 
Total fee - £900 

 

Additional HMO 
licence  

Part A £923  
Part B £377 

 
Total fee - £1,300 

 

Discount 

type 
Discount 

% 
Total 

Discount 

Total 

Licence 

fee after 

discount 

Discount 

Total 

Licence 

fee after 

discount 

Discount 

Total 

Licence 

fee after 

discount 

Early bird 

(first 3 

months)  
30% 

 

n/a 

 

n/a 
£270 £630 £390 £910 

Gold 

charter 

members 50% of 
Part B 

£225 
(+£15 

per 
bedroom 
above 5)  

£1275 
(+£85 

per 
bedroom 
above 5) 

£135 £765 £190 £1,110 

Early Bird 

& Gold 

Charter 

30% + 
50% of 
Part B 

 

n/a 

 

n/a 
£405 £495 £580 £720 

Gold 

Charter 

members 

who have 

signed up 

to the  

100% of 
Part B 

 

£450 
(+£30 

per 
bedroom 
above 5) 

 

£1050 (+ 
£70 per 
bedroom 
above 5) 

£270 £630 £377 £923 

89



Appendix 7 
 

  5 

Finder’s 

fee 

Early 

Bird, Gold 

Standard 

& 

Finder’s 

fee  

30% + 
100% of 
Part B 

 

n/a 

 

n/a 
£459 £441 £654 £646 

 

 

Other Fees and Charges: 

11. These fees are applicable as appropriate in relation to licensing applications, or 
where properties are already licensed. 

 

Licensed Premises - Proposed Licence Variation Fees 

Variation of licence Fee 

1 year licence and renewal: 

Landlords with previous management contraventions or who 
are of concern with regards to the ‘Fit and Proper’ test (eg: a 
person who has or is being investigated for fraud relating to 
tenancies or is  subject to enforcement action or prosecution 
relating 

to contraventions under the Housing Acts and associated 
regulations) will be charged 

the full fee for a 1 year licence or renewal. 

New Licence 
Application Fee 

 

Change of mortgagor, owner, freeholder, and leaseholder 
(unless they are also the licence holder or manager) 

 

No fee 

 

Reduction in the number of maximum occupiers and/or 
households for licensing purposes 

 

No fee 

 

Variation of licence instigated by the council 

 

No fee 

 

Change of licence holder 

 

New Licence  

 

Application Fee 

 

Change of manager (unless they are also the licence holder) 

 

No fee 

 

Increase in the number of maximum occupiers and/or 
households for licensing purposes, through increasing the 

No fee 

90



Appendix 7 
 

  6 

number of habitable rooms, change in room sizes, and/or 
amenity provision 

 

 

 

 

Other charges Fee 

Revocation of licence 

 

No Fee, no refund 

 

Application to licence following revocation of a licence New Licence 
Application Fee  

 

Application refused by the council 

 

 

 Part 1 Licence 
Application fee not 
refunded  

 

 Application withdrawn by the applicant 

 

 

Part 1 Licence 
Application fee not 
refunded 

 

 Application made in error and not granted (e.g. duplicate or 
exempt) 

 

 

Full refund  

 

 

 Properties that cease to be licensable during the licensing 
process 

 

 

No refund of Licence 
Application Fee 

 

 

Temporary Exemption Notice (TEN) 

 

No Fee 

 

 

Printing of lost licence 

 

£5 

 

 

Income and Expenditure 

12. Some assumptions have been made in estimating the income. For example, on 
application/inspection for additional HMOs it is likely that some properties will 
actually be found to be either mandatory HMOs or selective licensable properties 
and so will fall into those regimes, which reduces the total estimated number of 
additional HMOs. Also, it is assumed in estimating the income that a small number 

91



Appendix 7 
 

  7 

of licensable properties might not be found, or be exempt tenancies/properties (i.e. 
temporary accommodation operated by other Councils in Southwark), or bad debt. 

13. The forecast costs and income over the five year period are as follows: 

 

    5 year Income and Expenditure Analysis   

Description 

Mandatory + 

Additional 

HMO 

Licensing 

Selective 

Licensing 

Designations 

1 & 2 

Total HMOs 

& Selective 

Licensing  

Annual 

Average 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Staffing Costs 2,770 2,360 5,130 1,026 

Other running 

costs 2,396 1,989 4,385 877 

Total costs 5,166 4,349 9,515 1,903 

Estimated Income (5,160) (4,344) (9,505) (1,901) 

Net Expenditure 6 5 10 2 

 
 

 

 

92



Appendix 8 
 

  1 

 

 

 

 

 

Driving Up Standards for 

the Private Rented Sector 

 
Licensing Schemes – Objectives, 

Measures and Targets - Final 

Proposals 

 

Appendix 8 

 

19 October 2021 

  

93



Appendix 8 
 

  2 

Introduction 
 

The objectives, which formed part of the consultation process have been given 
measures and targets which will apply to the schemes as set out below. 

 
1. Reduction in ASB and repeat ASB incidents in PRS properties – applies to 

Selective Licensing Designation 1 

1.1. Measure  

 Reduction of repeat incidences  of ASB in the PRS and over all in 
borough 

1.2. Quantified Measure 

 Action taken against 80% of properties with more than 1 ASB incident 
over 5 years  

 30% of repeat ASB cases resolved over the 5 years 

  5 cases per year 

 Ensure compliance with licence conditions in at least 75% of properties 

1.3. Baseline 

 755 ASB complaints against 351 PRS properties (over a 3 year period) 

 114 properties with repeat ASB 

 1,790 Selectively Licensable properties in Designation 1 

1.4. Actual Target 

 Action taken against 91 properties with repeat ASB  in PRS over the 5 

year scheme 5 repeat ASB cases per year resolved 

 Checks and inspections of 1,343 over 5 years 

2. Improve property conditions in single family dwellings – applies to 

Selective Licensing   Designation 2 

2.1. Measure  

 Reduction in housing hazards (cat 1) 

 Resolution of Cat 2 hazards 

 Number of enforcement activities carried out 

 Number of properties inspected annually 

 Increase in landlords with inspection programme/insurance/ service 

repair contracts 

2.2. Quantified Measure 

94



Appendix 8 
 

  3 

 Designation 2 Reduction in number of Cat 1 hazards in licensable single-

family dwellings by 25% over 5 years ( in designated areas) 

 Ensure compliance with licence conditions and improve property 

standards in at least 75% of properties 

 Inspect 100% of properties over 5 years 

 Ensure that at least 80% of licensable properties are licensed over the 5 

years 

2.3. Baseline 

 Predicted 712 properties with Cat 1 hazards in designation 2 

 4,989 SL properties in designation 2 

2.4. Actual Target 

 178  properties with Catagory 1 hazards identified and dealt with over 5 

years  

 Checks and inspections of 3,742 SL properties over the 5 year scheme 

3. Improve property conditions in HMOs – applies to Mandatory and 
Additional licensing schemes 

3.1. Measure  

 Reduction of Category 1 hazards in HMOs 

3.2. Quantified Measure 

 Mandatory & Additional HMOs-  Reduction in number of Cat 1 hazards in 

HMOs by 25% over 5 years ( in designated areas) 

 Check compliance with licence conditions in 100% of properties  and 

improve property standards in at least 75% of properties where 

improvements are required 

 Inspect 100% of properties over 5 years 

 Ensure that at least 80% of licensable properties are licensed over the 5 

years 

3.3. Baseline 

 5,031 HMOs need to be inspected before licences are issued 

 4,342 HMO properties with Cat 1 Hazards 

3.4. Actual Target 

95



Appendix 8 
 

  4 

 1086  HMO properties with Cat 1 hazards identified and dealt with over 5 

years 

4. Ensure that the maximum number of licensable properties are licensed – 

applies to all phase 1 licensing schemes 

4.1. Measure  

 Increase in licence applications and licences issued 

 Monitor compliance against predicted number of licensable addresses 

4.2. Quantified Measure 

 80% of licensable properties licensed over 5 years 

 Monitor compliance by ward and target communications and 

enforcement action as required 

4.3. Baseline 

 Previous schemes: SL 1,305 

 Predicted selective licensable properties: add estimate for phase 1  

 Current Additional Licensing  2,784 

 Predicted additional HMOs 4,531**  

4.4. Actual Target 

 5423 selective licences over 5 years 

 3,624 additional licences over 5 years 

5. Improve the professionalism of landlords 

5.1. Measure  

 Number of landlords signed up to the Gold/|Platinum Standard 

 Landlord forum programme developed and promoted (50% increase) 

 All licenced Landlords invited to sign up for the newsletter during the 5 

years 

5.2. Quantified Measure 

 90  licensed landlords signed up to Gold /PL over the 5 years 

 4 landlord forums held per year 

 2  renters forums per year 

 6 landlord newsletters per year, sent to 75% of all landlords 

96



Appendix 8 
 

  5 

5.3. Baseline 

 2 landlords forums/yr. 

 124 landlords attended consultation event 

 666 landlords signed up for the newsletter 

 20% of landlords signed up actually came to the forum 

5.4. Actual Target 

  All known  landlords invited to sign up for the newsletter over the 5 years 

 4 landlord forums held per year 

 2  renters forums per year 

 

 

 

97



Appendix 9 

 

Gold Standard Charter 

Landlord/Managing Agent Commitment 
 

I am: 

 A member of (insert name of a recognised landlord’s/managing agents association)  

 A member of (insert name of accreditation scheme) 

 

I will: 

 Take responsibility for the safety of my tenants and my property/properties 

 Give clear written tenancy agreements and information packs to my tenants 

 Keep my tenants well informed of their rights and available services 

 Provide security of tenure for my tenants 

 Protect my tenants from illegal or unnecessary eviction 

 Charge fair rents and avoid additional charges 

 Provide a decent home for my tenants 

 Maintain and repair my property/properties to a high standard 

 Help tackle climate change by improving the energy efficiency of my 

property/properties  

Gold Standard Charter Plus  
(optional Criteria) 

 I have signed up to Southwark Council’s Finder’s Fee scheme to let my 

property(ies) to prospective tenants identified by the council                                      

YES/NO (circle as appropriate) 
 

Landlord(s)/Agent Signature:…………………….................     
Date:…………………    
Expiry date …………………….   (5 Years from date of signature) 

 

Please see the next pages for a full list of the Gold Standard Charter criteria 
  

  

98



Appendix 9 

 

Full List of Gold Standard Charter Criteria 
 
As a landlord/agent in the private rented sector operating in Southwark I am/will: 
1. Join a recognised landlord’s association/representative group or have a housing related 

professional qualification (landlords) and be a member of an accreditation scheme to help keep 
up to date with the law and best practice on housing. 

2. Have landlords insurance for the building and fixtures, making clear the tenants’ need to insure 

their contents. 

3. Advertise my property honestly and in accordance with the law. 

4. Place all tenants’ deposits in a government-backed tenancy deposit scheme (TDP). 

5. Publish any fire risk assessments for my properties online. 

6. Accept tenants who are in receipt of Housing Benefits or Universal Credit  

 
For my tenants and their tenancies I will: 
7. Provide tenants with a clear written tenancy agreement.  

8. Agree meter readings for them to use when the bills are transferred to them. 

9. Provide a clear written description of which party is responsible for paying; council tax, utility bills, 

phone, broadband, satellite TV or other media services and any other regular charges known to 

affect the letting.  

10. Provide information on where the meters are and the location of gas and water valves for 

emergency purposes as well as details of emergency contacts.  

11. Give tenants a pack that includes the following: a copy of the How to Rent: the checklist for renting 

in England (available from https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/how-to-rent), a schedule 

of conditions and/or inventory appropriate to the property concerned signed by both parties and 

including photos, information on local and council services available to the tenant, where to get 

mediation and tenancy advice, contacts and information regarding the council’s Private Renter’s 

Union and information on how to arrange for bulk waste removal. 

12. Ensure that tenancy agreements give clear and full information about the responsibilities of both 

the landlord and the tenant, and of any restrictions. 

13. Provide security of tenure by: giving the tenant the choice of a fixed term tenancy of up to five 

years for security, or a ‘periodic tenancy’ for flexibility after the initial six or twelve months of the 

tenancy has ended successfully. 

14. Protect tenants against harassment or illegal eviction and not evict tenants without an acceptable 

reason. For example: For portfolio landlords: Tenant’s poor conduct, tenant is not occupying the 

property, tenant has breached the tenancy agreement, rent is in arrears or often late, tenant has 

a relevant criminal conviction, tenant displays relevant anti-social behaviour, landlord needs to sell 

or completely refurbish the property, property is to be sold by the lender, where there has been a 

change in the tenant’s status e.g. tenant is no longer an employee of landlord or is no longer a 

student & property is purpose-built student accommodation, the tenancy cannot legally continue 

or the landlord has been issued with an over-crowding notice. For single property landlords (all of 

the above and the following): A landlord or family member needs the accommodation for their own 

use and there are no alternatives (i.e. for financial reasons). 

  

99

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/how-to-rent


Appendix 9 

 

15. Agree to enter into council supported mediation before taking action to terminate tenancies where 

there are issues with the tenant’s behaviour. 

16. Increase the notice given for a tenant to leave the property by one month for each year the tenant 

has lived in the property, up to a maximum of six months. 

17. Keep rents and additional costs to a reasonable level by: committing to charging rents which are 

as reasonable as their financial situation allows (being aware of the effect high rents have on 

tenants’ lives), not using Letting Agents who charge fees to tenants and will not charge any fees 

to tenants either, ensuring that rent will not be increased more than once every two years, giving 

three months’ notice of any increase in rent, not charging tenants for the renewal of tenancy 

agreements. 

18. Provide the tenant with the chance to carry out a joint inventory inspection at the start and end of 

the tenancy. 

 
My properties will: 

19. Provide a Decent Home (using the Decent Home Standard as a guide) that is: free from Health & 
Safety Hazards (i.e. Category 1 hazards or significant category 2 hazards under the Housing 
Health and Safety Rating System, in a good state of repair, has reasonably modern facilities and 
services, Provided with a reasonable degree of thermal comfort and have an Energy Performance 
Certificate of D or above  

20. Have a planned programme to improve the energy efficiency of the building to achieve and Energy 

Performance Certificate of B or C, as far as reasonably practicable. 

21. Have a planned programme for maintenance and improvements, carried out as far as possible at 

times which are convenient for the tenant. 

22. Have a gas service and repair contract (when there are gas appliances in the property) 

23. Have outdoor spaces (where appropriate) that are clean and safe with adequate fencing and 

paved areas. 

24. Have draft proofing to all external doors and windows where necessary. 

25. Will be thoroughly cleaned at the beginning of any tenancy, including carpets and flooring, 

bathrooms and kitchens, and any furnishings and appliances included in the letting. 

26. Have walls, floors, ceilings and fixtures which are in a good state of repair, clean and in reasonable 

decorative order. 

27. Have any repairs carried out promptly: emergency repairs - defined as affecting health or safety, 

e.g. major electrical fault, blocked WC. repair carried out within 24 hours, urgent repairs -defined 

as affecting material comfort, e.g. Hot water, heating, fridge failure, serious roof leak.  Repairs 

carried out within 5 working days, non-urgent repairs - anything that does not fall into the two 

former categories that do not affect health and safety or material comfort. Repairs carried out in 

20 working days. 

28. Landlord’s Gold Standard Charter Plus (optional criteria) - I have signed up to the council’s 

Finder’s Fee scheme to assist people in housing need in partnership with Southwark’s Housing 

Solutions Department (see website for more details on the schemes at 

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/earn-

money-from-your-property) 

 

 

100

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/earn-money-from-your-property
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/earn-money-from-your-property


Appendix 10 
 

  1 

 

 

 

 

 

Driving Up Standards for 

the Private Rented Sector 

 
Gold Standard Charter Scheme 

Process – Final Proposal 

 

 

19 October 2021 

  

101



Appendix 10 
 

  2 

Introduction 
 

1. The Gold Standard Charter is aimed at landlords and managing agents letting 
properties in the private sector. It is a voluntary scheme that rewards landlords 
and managing agents already providing a good service to tenants and 
encourages others who provide an acceptable service to improve.  We believe 
the Charter includes standards which provide for a professional level of good 
practice within the sector above those required by law. 

 

How the Charter will work 
 

2. Landlords and managing agents, who sign up to the Gold Standard Charter and 
are accepted on to the scheme, will be declaring themselves, publicly, to be 
responsible and a provider of high standard accommodation and tenancies.  

 

3. Applications to sign up to the Charter will be made online. Checks will then be 
made by the Council to ensure the applicant is fit and proper (see definition 
below) and that they are complying with the gold standard charter criteria. The 
applicant will then be invited to sign two copies of the charter document. The 
council will keep one copy for its records and the successful applicant will be 
given a copy and access to the charter logo to use on their documentation.  

 
Note: Fit and Proper test for the purposes of Gold Standard Charter 
membership - The council will determine the landlord or managing agents 
unsuitable to be accepted onto the scheme if :  
 
(a) a banning order under section 16 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 is 

in force against the person. 
(b) They have committed any offence involving: 

  Fraud or dishonesty (including benefit fraud) 

 Violence 

 Drugs 

 Matters listed in Schedule 3 to the Sexual Offences Act 2003 

 Or received a caution, informal reprimand or formal warning in respect 
of any of the above 

(c) Practiced unlawful discrimination on grounds of sex, colour, race, ethnic or 
national origins or disability in or in connection with the carrying on of any 
business 

(d) Contravened any provision of the law relating to housing or of landlord and 
tenant law  including any civil proceedings in which judgment was made 
against the proposed member 

(e) Acted in contravention of any relevant Approved Code of Practice (including 
the code of practice issued by the government under section 233 of the 
Housing Act 2004 relating to the management of HMOs) 

(f) Been refused a license under Parts 2 or 3 of the Housing Act 2004 
anywhere in England or Wales 

(g) Breached the conditions of a licence in England or Wales 

102



Appendix 10 
 

  3 

(h) Been subject to a HMO Control Order or Management Order in England or 
Wales. Failed to comply with a housing notice (requiring works etc.) served 
by a Local Authority in respect of any property currently or previously owned 
by the proposed member  

(i)  Been declared bankrupt 
 

4. Members who become ‘not fit and proper’ during their charter membership will 
have their membership cancelled and will be barred from applying to the 
scheme again until such time as they have proved that they have become fit 
and proper again (at the discretion of the council).  

 
5. Membership would last for 5 years following the date the charter was signed 

and, upon expiry, members would need to make a new application online to 
sign up to the charter and renew their membership for a further 5 years. 

 
6. A list of landlords signed up to the charter will be available online and updated 

regularly. There will also be a reporting tool so that tenants can report their 
landlord or agent if they are not upholding their charter obligations. Following 
investigation, if there have been significant breaches, charter status can be 
removed. The landlord or agent would also be barred from applying to the 
scheme again until such time as they had provided adequate evidence, to the 
satisfaction of the council that they were taking all steps to ensure that they 
could comply with Charter principles in the future. 

 
7. Annual checks will be carried out to ensure members of the scheme are still 

complying with the Gold Standard Charter Criteria. 
 
8. The council will actively promote the charter through its website, its private 

sector tenants union, and in partnership with other councils and third sector 
groups involved with the private rented sector (PRS). 

 
9. The council will provide an information pack for landlords/agents to help them 

comply with the charter criteria.   
 
10. One of the criteria for achieving the Gold Standard is that members are signed 

up to a recognised accreditation scheme. 
 
11. Accreditation schemes will only be accepted if; 

 

 The landlord or managing agent can prove that they are current valid 
members and 

 The scheme includes an initial training session and a minimum amount of 
continuous professional development to remain a member.   

 

12. Example of acceptable schemes include: 
 

 London Landlord Accreditation Scheme (LLAS) 

 Private Rented Sector Accreditation Scheme (PRSAS) 

 National Landlords Association (NLA) 

 Residential Landlords Association (RLA) 

103



Appendix 10 
 

  4 

 Association of Residential Letting Agents (ARLA) 

 National Approved Lettings Scheme (NALS) 

 Private Rented Sector Accreditation Scheme (PRSAS) 

 UK Association of Letting Agents (UKALA) 

 Safeagent 
 

13. One of the main benefits of becoming a Gold Standard Charter member is a 
discount on any property licensing fees incurred within the borough.  

 
14. Property licensing fees will be split into two payments, Part A and Part B. On 

application the Part A fee is charged to cover the cost, to the council, of 
processing the application. If the application is successful a further fee (Part B) 
will be charged before the full licence is issued. This second fee is to cover the 
cost, to the council, of enforcing the licence. A discount of 50% on this (Part B) 
licensing fee will be given to all landlords who have signed up to the Charter. A 
Gold Standard Charter landlord or managing agent will be providing a higher 
standard of property and tenancy than they are legally required to and as such 
are more likely to be compliant with the conditions of their licence. The council 
therefore considers that the cost of enforcement should be less than that of any 
other landlord or managing agent. The council may recharge any discount to 
fees if the landlord or managing agent has their charter status removed 
following breaches in compliance as mentioned in point 6 above. 

 
15. Gold Standard Charter Landlords who sign up to the Council’s Finder’s Fee 

scheme qualify for an additional discount and will not be required to pay Part B 
of the licensing fee (details given below). This additional discount is in 
recognition of the assistance the landlord will be providing to the Council in 
helping people in housing need in partnership with Southwark’s Housing 
Solutions Department. Landlords who sign up to one of the schemes must 
accept the current Local Housing Allowance rate as the rent for the property. 
No shortfall of the rent payment is allowed to be made by the tenant.  

The finder’s fee scheme 
 
16. The finder’s fee scheme is a free tenant finding service. The council finds a 

choice of tenants for the property and offers an incentive payment and rent. 
 

Scheme includes: 

 cash incentive 

 the possibility to choose the tenant that suits you 

 a fast service - if you are ready to let, we can send tenants to you the 
same day 

 a no fees or charges service 

17. If a landlord or managing agent’s membership to the Charter expires, at the end 
of the 5 year membership period, before the expiry of the licence and they do 
not apply to renew their membership successfully within three months of expiry 
of their membership, the council can recharge the discount on a pro rata basis 
for the time period of the licence that is not covered by the charter membership. 

 

104



Appendix 10 
 

  5 

18. The Gold Standard Charter discount can be applied if the licence holder is not 
a Gold Standard Charter member but the managing agent of the licensable 
property is. However, if the licence holder changes their managing agent for the 
property during the period of the licence they must ensure that; the new 
managing agent is signed up to the Gold Standard Charter or, repay the 
discount, pro-rata, for the period of time the property is being managed by an 
agent who is not a Gold Standard Charter member. 

 
19. Discounts will not apply to properties where the council has issued a warning 

letter regarding an unlicensed licensable property. This also applies where a 
licence has expired for more than 3 months before a new application has been 
received. The landlord or managing agent’s membership to the Gold Standard 
Charter will also be reviewed and may be cancelled.  

 
20. Discounts will not apply to landlords who have signed up to the Finder’s Fee 

scheme but not the Gold Standard Charter. 
 
21. The Gold Standard Charter scheme and criteria will be reviewed 18 months 

after the start date of the scheme and will be reviewed every 18 months 
thereafter. The review will look at the effectiveness and success of the scheme 
and make any changes necessary to the criteria, discounts and process. 
 

Other Benefits for the Landlord 

22. By complying with the Charter criteria landlords will offer longer tenancies 
guaranteeing regular rental income, saving on costs of cleaning and advertising 
the property for rent, and periods of no rental income. 

 
23. Members will also be invited to take their place on a regular forum for 

consultation on future PRS policy and receive invitations to our landlords’ 
events (which count towards their CPD hours for accreditation). 

 
24. There will be tenancy/legal advice available from the council if they are having 

issues with a tenant and fast track help for any property licensing issues. 
 
25. When bigger problems arise mediation supported by the council will be 

available to help resolve issues between landlords and tenants. This will help 
landlords to avoid costly court proceedings for eviction. 
 

Benefits to the Tenants 

26. Protects tenancies with a choice on the length of tenancy agreement to suit 
their needs. 

 
27. Protects tenancies with mediation supported by the council to help resolve 

issues between them and their landlord to help prevent eviction. 
 
28. Predictable rents for the duration of their tenancy and more advanced warning 

should the landlord need to increase the rent. 
 

105



Appendix 10 
 

  6 

29. A safe clean secure home which meets the Decent Homes Standard. 
 
30. Repairs and other issues dealt with appropriately and in a timely manner. 

 
31. A single direct point of contact for housing enforcement and tenancy relations 

services if they have any concerns about their property or landlord. 
 
32. An insulated home to help escape fuel poverty. 

 

 

 

106



 

Private Rented Property 
Licensing in Southwark 

Evidence for consultation 2021 

 

 

107



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 2  

Contents 

1. Glossary .................................................................................................................. 3 

2. Executive Summary ................................................................................................ 4 

3. The private rented sector in Southwark ................................................................. 6 

4. Property licensing schemes .................................................................................... 9 

5. Licensing schemes in Southwark ......................................................................... 10 

6. Proposed additional HMO licensing scheme ....................................................... 13 

7. Proposed selective licensing scheme .................................................................. 16 

8. Changes to the mandatory HMO licensing scheme ............................................ 35 

9. Alternatives to licensing that have been considered............................................ 37 

10. Proposed scheme objectives ................................................................................ 39 

11. Licensing and wider council strategies ................................................................. 40 

12. Further information and details of the consultation .............................................. 41 

 
 

  

108



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 3  

 

1. Glossary 

Term Meaning 

Socially rented  Homes rented from the council or a housing 
association 

Privately rented Homes rented from a private landlord  

Private rented sector (PRS) The portion of housing in the borough that is rented 
from private landlords 

Category 1 hazard (Cat 1 
hazard) 

A serious or immediate risk to a person's health 
and safety that is related to housing 

Category 2 hazard 
 

A less serious or less urgent risk that can still be 
regarded as placing the occupiers’ health, safety 
and welfare at risk 

Housing Health and Safety 
Rating System (HHSRS) 

A government prescribed system that rates 
housing hazards based on their risk to occupiers’ 
health, safety and welfare 

Designation A geographical area chosen for licensing based on 
evidence 

Deprivation Living on low income and not having the money to 
pay for some basic requirements. 

Indices of Multiple 
Deprivation  

A dataset produced by the government to give a 
relative value to how deprived an area is, 
compared to the rest of the country.  

Barriers to housing and 
services 

One of the government’s measures of deprivation. 
It combines measures relating to housing 
affordability, overcrowding and homelessness. 

Antisocial behaviour (ASB) Behaviour related to a rented property that causes 
annoyance and irritation to neighbours and the 
community. Most commonly noise, litter and waste. 

Selective Licensing  A local scheme which requires landlords to have a 
licence to legally let their property to a family or two 
sharers 

Additional HMO Licensing  A local scheme which requires landlords to have a 
licence to legally let their property to three or four 
sharers 

Mandatory HMO Licensing  A national scheme which requires landlords to 
have a licence to legally let their property to five or 
more unrelated sharers. 

  

109



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 4  

 

2. Executive Summary 

The growth of the private rented sector (PRS) in Southwark has been accompanied 
by an increase in related housing problems. Rising rents have had a huge impact on 
affordability and this in turn has led to overcrowding, tenants being made homeless 
and a deterioration in property conditions. This situation has been made much worse 
by the pandemic, with overcrowding responsible for increases in the rate of virus 
transmission and a huge increase in homeless referrals due to financial issues.  
 
The council is committed to improving the management and condition of privately 
rented properties in the borough. The recently revised Housing Strategy lays out 
some of the plans the council has to support residents with their housing needs, 
including those in the PRS. Around 43,000 homes in the borough are privately 
rented. Whilst the majority of these are well maintained and safe, there is a growing 
minority that are sub-standard and dangerous. Even well-meaning landlords may not 
always be up to date with the latest legal and safety requirements. These properties 
not only endanger the health, safety and wellbeing of tenants, but cause issues with 
neighbours and end up requiring many interventions from already stretched council 
teams. The council needs to use all the tools it has to improve the situation for 
tenants renting properties in this sector. Licensing is a vital part of this. 
 
The council wants to build on the successes of its previous licensing schemes to 
help as many tenants renting in the private sector as possible. The evidence for 
these schemes was gathered in late 2019 and the consultation was due to have 
been carried out in early 2020. Due to the pandemic, this had to be paused. Despite 
this small delay the evidence is still relevant as it reflects: 

• the relative proportions of rented properties; this will not have changed 
significantly over the period 

• the condition of rented properties; this has only been made worse by the 
pandemic, due in part to landlords not being able to access their properties 
and also to more people being confined to their homes during lockdowns 

• trends in deprivation; these have not got better over this period and have 
become even more relevant since the pandemic 

• incidences of ASB; reports have increased hugely across all wards since the 
pandemic. 

The pause during the first lockdown gave council had the opportunity to reflect on 
the changing needs of the sector and formulate an approach that will help to target 
improvements where they are needed across the borough. The best way to do this is 
by renewing the borough-wide additional HMO scheme and increasing the 
geographical area of the selective scheme.  
 
The council would first like to introduce selective licensing to two small areas to deal 
with ASB and poor property conditions. Depending on the feedback from this 
consultation, these two designations could be implemented later this year and will 
allow the council to deal with some of the most urgent housing issues in the borough. 
This first phase will act as a pilot, and, if successful, two further areas could be 
added. This larger area would need to be confirmed by the Secretary of State at 
MHCLG as the scheme would then cover over 20% of the privately rented homes in 
the borough. 
 

110

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/housing/housing-strategy


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 5  

 

As part of the holistic view of the PRS, the council is also planning to implement a 
Landlord’s Gold and Platinum Standard Charter. It is an opportunity to recognise 
landlords who already provide a better service than the one required by law, whilst 
encouraging other landlords to achieve a higher standard. It will also give tenants a 
better idea of the standard of accommodation that they should be offered. The council 
also intends to set up a Renters’ Union which will provide a collective platform for 
renters. It will campaign for renters’ rights and improved legal protections, ensuring 
this growing part of the borough’s population has a voice.  

 

  

111



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 6  

 

3. The private rented sector in Southwark 

Southwark is a diverse and vibrant borough which has historically provided social 
housing to many residents. This has changed significantly over the last 20 years and 
now privately rented properties form nearly a third of all housing in the borough.  
 

 
 

The private rented sector (PRS) in Southwark has grown steadily from 12.5% in 

20011 to 29.4% in 20192.  

 

 
 

1 https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/dwelling-stock-tenure-and-condition-borough 
2 Housing Stock and Stressors Report, Metastreet, 2019 

112

https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/dwelling-stock-tenure-and-condition-borough
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 7  

 

The PRS is spread across all 23 wards in Southwark. 
 

 
 
One of the major changes to the PRS across London over the last 20 years has been 
the increase in rent. This has resulted in problems with residents being able to afford 
and access decent, affordable housing. This problem is worse in Southwark due to its 
central location. According to one of the government’s measures of deprivation, 
‘Barriers to Housing’, Southwark is now one of the most deprived boroughs in London. 
This measure relates specifically to housing affordability, overcrowding and 
homelessness. Every ward in the borough, with the exception of Dulwich Village, is 
more deprived than the London average. 
 

 
 

113



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 8  

 

A recent independent survey has provided insights about the presence and distribution 
of a range of housing factors in the borough3.  The main finding was that poor housing 
conditions are widespread in the PRS. 8,497 privately rented properties in the borough 
are predicted to have at least one serious housing hazard. Housing hazards are rated 
by severity. A category 1 hazard is a serious or immediate risk to a person's health 
and safety. A significant category 2 hazard, although less serious or less urgent, can 
still be regarded as placing the occupiers’ health, safety and welfare at risk. These are 
defined in the Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS) in Part 1 of the 
Housing Act 2004. 
 
Data from inspections by the council’s Housing Enforcement team showed that 47% 
of the properties inspected had a serious hazard. This is much higher than the national 
average of 13% and is possibly related to the age of properties in particular wards in 
the borough. Wards with a majority of older properties tend to have more hazards such 
as excess cold, fire & electrical issues, damp and mould. 

  

 
3 Housing Stock Condition and Stressors Report, Metastreet, 2019 

114

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92949/Appendix%201%20Proposals%20for%20the%20PRS%20Evidence%20report.pdf


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 9  

 

4. Property licensing schemes 

Property licensing allows the council to improve the condition and management of 
privately rented properties. This helps to make renting in the private rented sector safer 
and fairer for tenants.   

There are three types of property licensing schemes operating in England: 
 

 
  
 
 

  

115



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 10  

 

5. Licensing schemes in Southwark 

London Borough of Southwark’s previous selective licensing and borough-wide 
additional licensing schemes ran for five years from January 2016 to December 2020. 
The current mandatory HMO licensing scheme has been in operation since April 2006 
and the council is required to run it by law.  
 
Licensing schemes required landlords letting privately rented properties in the 
designated areas to hold a licence and comply with the licence conditions. The council 
has worked collaboratively with landlords to make sure these requirements are met. 
The council has carried out enforcement actions when needed to raise standards. 
Whilst these schemes have enabled the council to begin to make real progress in 
raising standards in the private rented sector, there is still much more to do.  
 

1.1 Results of the previous licensing schemes 

The borough-wide mandatory HMO licensing scheme received 695 applications. 
These higher risk HMOs are inspected before a licence is issued. 
 
The additional HMO licensing scheme has made significant steps towards improving 
the condition and management of smaller HMOs in the borough and the council is 
keen to continue this good work. Applications for licences were received for 3,156 
properties. HMOs are inspected before a licence is issued, ensuring the quality and 
safety of the properties for renters. 
 
The selective licensing scheme covered only a few key trunk roads in the borough. It 
was a relatively small scheme with 1,940 licence applications received. The 
experience of running the scheme has highlighted that the issues in single family 
dwellings are not limited to the streets covered in this scheme but a much broader 
range of addresses across the borough. This is clearly demonstrated by the fact that 
of the 8,497 rented properties predicted to have a housing hazard in the borough4, 
only 918 (11%) of them are in the streets covered by the previous selective licensing 
scheme. 3,755 properties predicted to be single family dwellings with a housing hazard 
would not have been covered by the last selective licence scheme.  
 
All schemes have a set of licence conditions attached to the issuing of the licence. The 
licence conditions deal with issues such as fire safety, permitted occupancy and other 
issues that affect the health and welfare of tenants. These conditions were checked 
as part of the licensing process.  Following these initial checks, the council carried out 
targeted and random inspections during the lifetime of the schemes to ensure ongoing 
compliance and that landlords were making necessary improvements to property 
conditions. 
 

 
4 Housing Stock Condition and Stressors Report, Metastreet, 2019 

116

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92949/Appendix%201%20Proposals%20for%20the%20PRS%20Evidence%20report.pdf


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 11  

 

  

 
Compliance study 
Between January 2016 and May 2018, the council carried out a compliance study into 
the condition of licensable properties. Inspections were carried out once a licensing 
application was received. Any issues or hazards found at the property were recorded 
and measured using the housing health and safety rating system (HHSRS).  
 
The majority of properties assessed in this study were from landlords who came 
forward voluntarily to apply for a licence. These landlords are some of the most 
responsible in the borough and, as a result, their properties are of a higher standard 
than those that are discovered by the council’s Housing Enforcement team.  
 
For additional licensing - 1,475 properties were inspected during the study and 
officers found: 

• 19% had no hazards 

• 34% had at least one category 1 hazard 

• 53% had at least one category 2 hazard  
 
For selective licensing - 476 properties were inspected during the study and officers 
found: 

• 59% had no hazards 

• 13% had at least one category 1 hazard 

• 32% had at least one category 2 hazard 
 
The results of this study show that licensing allows the council to identify poor and 
dangerous housing conditions. Despite this group of landlords being some of the 
most responsible in the borough, they continue to have properties that are 
hazardous, need improvement or do not meet the current regulations. Over half of 
additional HMOs, and a third of selective licensing properties have a hazard that 
would put the occupier’s health, safety or welfare at risk. 
 
Inadequate fire safety arrangements accounted for the majority of the hazards found. 
This ranged from the lack of a smoke alarm in a single-family property to a missing 
or defective full fire alarm system in an HMO. 
 

117



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 12  

 

Properties owned by landlords who have deliberately evaded the licensing schemes 
are often doing so in order to operate under the radar. This allows them to cover up 
evasion in other areas such as unpaid tax on rental income, unpaid Council tax, 
fraudulent housing benefits claims, illegal immigration and even slavery5. Their 
properties are also much more likely to have hazards. Bringing landlords into the 
framework of licensing schemes shines a light on these other areas and can bring 
them into compliance in multiple areas. 
 
It was clear from running these schemes for the past five years that licensing allows 
the council to work proactively with landlords and tenants. Licensing provides clear 
conditions for landlords to comply with and promotes an improvement in property 
conditions through better, effective management. Licence conditions can be 
enforced against much more effectively and quickly than using other powers 
available to the council, such as Part 1 of the Housing Act (2004). Formal action 
under Part 1 is generally a slow process with appeals allowed most types of notices. 
This can significantly delay the time period for compliance.  
 
 

 

 
5 Dealing with Rogue Landlords, P6, DCLG, 2012 

Case study: suspected people trafficking and 
slavery, failure to license, safety issues 
(Peckham ward) 
 
An immigration officer alerted the Housing 
Enforcement team after visiting a property to 
investigate allegations of people trafficking and 
slavery. The immigration officer was concerned 
about the conditions in the property and made an 
immediate referral to the council team.  
The council obtained a warrant to enter the two-
storey bedsit, which was occupied by at least 14 
people. The severe overcrowding and lack of fire 
precautions (there was only one battery-operated 
smoke alarm in the entire property) made it 
extremely dangerous. 
The property was unlicensed, and the owner 
claimed it was not an HMO as the occupiers were 
all his workers, living at the property for free. 
However, the council received evidence of rent 
payment from one occupier and a witness 
statement from another. This stated that the owner 
pressured them to lie and say they were an 
employee and not paying rent. The landlord was 
pressuring them to pay more rent. 
Outcome: The landlord was prosecuted for failing 
to license and other HMO management offences, 
including serious fire and electrical safety issues. 

118

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7575/2206919.pdf


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 13  

 

6. Proposed additional HMO licensing scheme 

The council is proposing a further five-year additional HMO licensing scheme. It will 
apply to all HMOs in the borough that aren’t currently covered by the government’s 
mandatory HMO scheme. This includes smaller rental properties with three or four 
unrelated people, forming two or more households who share amenities such as a 
kitchen or bathroom. It also includes certain converted blocks of flats known as 
section 257 HMOs. 
 
The reason for this proposed scheme is that the council believes that a significant 
proportion of these properties are not being managed effectively and they are likely 
to give rise to problems for those living them. The council has evidence that a 
significant number (86.3%) of these properties have hazards that could endanger the 
health, safety and welfare of their inhabitants. HMOs are at a higher risk of the most 
serious hazards (category 1) and in Southwark these are usually fire, disrepair and 
overcrowding issues.  
 
The existence of a hazard indicates that landlords are not regularly inspecting their 
properties, responding to the complaints of tenants or keeping up to date with the 
regulations regarding renting out their properties; all indicators of ineffective 
management. 
 
From the experience of officers, tenants often complain to the council about 
problems where they are living as they don’t know who is responsible for dealing 
with the issue. This is particularly an issue in HMOs. 
 
During the last scheme there were 2,922 council interventions at properties with an 
additional licence. These were as a result of a range of issues; from tenants 
complaining about poor conditions to neighbours complaining about ASB issues. 
This does not only represent a significant proportion, but the majority of properties 
that fall under this scheme. 
 
 

 

119



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 14  

 

Map of the proposed additional licensing scheme 
 

 
 
 

1.2 Proposed conditions 

 
It is proposed that all of the conditions attached to the additional licensing scheme 
are the same as those attached to the mandatory licensing scheme. There is one 
exception; the antisocial behaviour condition, will not apply as this did not form part 
of the evidence for the scheme.  
 
In some circumstances, where the council believes there are specific issues for a 
particular property that are not covered in the licence conditions, extra conditions can 
be added. 
 
The proposed additional HMO licence conditions are on the council’s property 
licensing web page. 
 

1.3 Proposed licence fee 

The proposed fee is £1,300. This is a flat fee and is a change from the ‘per bedroom 
fee’ under the current scheme.  

120

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 15  

 

The council is required to split the fee into two payments. The initial part of the fee is 
charged to cover the cost of processing of the application. If the application for a 
licence is successful a further fee will be charged before the full licence is issued. 
This second fee is a contribution to the other costs incurred by the Council in running 
the licensing scheme, such as enforcement of licences. The actual split will be 
determined following the consultation.  
 

 
  

Case study: Fire safety issues and failure to 
license (South Bermondsey ward)  
 
The Housing Enforcement Team found out 
about this unlicensed property while 
investigating another house owned by the same 
landlord. The landlord had previous housing-
related convictions for negligence in another 
London borough. 
When officers inspected the property, they found 
it didn’t meet the required fire safety standards 
for an HMO. There were no smoke detectors, 
secure fire doors or protected escape routes to 
help tenants if there was a fire.  
 
Outcome: The landlord was prosecuted for 
failing to license and other HMO management 
offences, including serious fire issues. 

121



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 16  

 

7. Proposed selective licensing scheme 

Southwark is a diverse borough with various housing issues related to the PRS. 
There is evidence of poor housing in most wards, which often makes other issues 
worse, such as ASB and deprivation. 
 
The council has been truly selective in proposing the areas for this licensing scheme. 
Thorough evidence gathering and research has been carefully carried out to ensure 
that the most severe problems in each ward can be dealt with. All properties in the 
designated areas that are rented to single families (or two sharers) will need to have 
a licence to be legally let.   
 
The council is proposing a five-year scheme made up of four proposed designations 
to be implemented in, potentially, two phases. The first phase has two small 
designations (designations 1 and 2) covering a total of five wards. The size of these 
designations, which affect less than 20% of the geographical area of Southwark and 
less than 20% of its privately rented housing, means they can be agreed locally by 
the council’s cabinet and could be brought in by the end of 2021. This phase allows 
the council to deal with the worst ASB and poor property conditions as soon as 
possible. 
 
This first phase (designations 1 & 2) will act as a pilot to assess the effectiveness of 
the new ward-based approach to selective licensing. After six months, if it is 
successful, permission will be sought for phase 2 (designations 3 & 4).  
 
Due to their size, after being agreed by Southwark Council, these designations 
would need confirmation by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG). If approved, these could be introduced in 2022. 
 

 
 
All the designations are subject to change as a result of this consultation and the 
council welcomes input into the scheme. 
 

 

122



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 17  

 

Map of the selective licence scheme designations 
 

 
 

  

   Designation Criteria 

1 Very high, repeat ASB 

2 Poor property conditions 

3 Deprivation and poor property conditions 

4 Poor property conditions 

123



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 18  

 

Data summary for the borough 
 

  Designation Criteria 

D
e
s
ig

n
a
ti

o
n

 

Wards 

% PRS 
above the 
national 
average 

Significant 
and 

persistent 
ASB 

Poor 
property 

conditions 
Deprivation 

 Borough & Bankside 

4 Camberwell Green 

1 Champion Hill 

4 Chaucer 

4 Dulwich Hill 

 Dulwich Village 

4 Dulwich Wood 

2 Faraday 

2 Goose Green 

4 
London Bridge & West 
Bermondsey 

1 Newington 

 North Bermondsey 

3 North Walworth 

3 Nunhead & Queens Road 

3 Old Kent Road 

3 Peckham 

4 Peckham Rye 

4 Rotherhithe 

4 Rye Lane 

4 South Bermondsey 

 St. Georges 

2 St Giles 

4 Surrey Docks 

 

  

124



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 19  

 

1.4 Designation 1: Antisocial behaviour (ASB) (phase 1) 

Which areas are included in this designation? 
Newington and Champion Hill are the two wards included in this proposed 
designation. These wards have the highest levels of ASB connected to the PRS 
compared to all other wards in the borough. 
 

 
 

What is the evidence of ASB in the private rented sector in this area? 
In these two wards alone, there were 755 complaints of ASB over a five-year period. 
The majority of the complaints were around noise and rowdy behaviour. Once a 
complaint is received and verified as being in a property that is privately rented, the 
Housing Enforcement team is notified. The landlord is informed of the issue by letter. 
These properties have required over 800 interventions, representing a huge drain on 
council resources. 137 properties in these wards needed repeat interventions, 
showing that some landlords are failing to take the appropriate action to deal with 
ASB in their properties. 
 

125



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 20  

 

 
  

How will selective licensing deal with ASB in the designated area? 
The council has been using an informal approach to deal with ASB in privately 
rented properties. This has included writing to landlords to inform them of the 
behaviour of their tenants and working with landlords to resolve the issues. The 
previous selective licensing scheme was not in operation in these wards. 
 
A new selective licensing scheme in these wards would give the council greater 
information and powers to deal with the properties that cause such a problem for 
neighbours and the community. 
 
A designation of these two wards would allow the council to work proactively with the 
landlords and owners of the properties to prevent ASB and, where necessary, deal 
with ASB in their properties. The licence conditions will clearly state the 
responsibilities of landlords to prevent and also deal with any ASB that arises. There 
will also be guidance and support for landlords on how to manage tenants who are 
causing ASB. Information for tenants about their responsibilities about causing ASB 
will also be available.  
 
The selective licensing scheme in the borough would support a new ASB officer post 
to specifically deal with ASB in the PRS. This officer would be part of Southwark’s 
antisocial behaviour unit team (SASBU) but would have specific responsibility for 
repeat complaints in the PRS. The multi-agency team is made up of local Police, 
UKBA, the Fire Service, as well as representatives from other council departments 
including Trading Standards and Planning. They meet weekly, share intelligence and 
work together to try and resolve ASB. Having a specific person on the team to deal 
with the PRS should lead to a reduction in ASB in the area. 
 
Since 2014, the SASBU team has dealt with 267 complaints about ASB in privately 
rented properties. These complaints range from crack houses, brothels and cannabis 
factories to harassment of neighbours and issues with aggressive dogs. 
Noise complaints are dealt with by a different team and in the same period there 
were 261 noise abatement notices issued against properties that were privately 
rented. 

126



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 21  

 

 

The proposed selective licence conditions for designation 1 
As designation 1 is based on ASB there are specific, discretionary licence conditions 
relating to ASB. These licence conditions form part of the consultation and the 
council welcomes any views on them. 
 
The proposed licence conditions for designation 1 are on the council’s property 
licensing web page. 
 

  

127

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 22  

 

1.5 Designation 2: Poor property conditions (phase 1) 

Which areas are included in this designation? 
Faraday, Goose Green and St. Giles wards are included in this designation. These 
wards have some of the worst property conditions in the borough’s PRS.  
 

 
 

What is the evidence of poor property conditions in this area? 
A study was carried out to predict the number of PRS properties in the borough and 
whether these properties are likely to contain any category 1 hazards. The three 
wards in this designation have some of the highest levels of category 1 hazards in 
the borough, 23.4%, 24.9%, and 26.1% respectively, around double the national 
average of 13%. 
 

128



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 23  

 

 
 
Overall, in these three wards, there are 1,451 properties in the PRS that are 
predicted to have category 1 hazard.  A significant number of these would need to be 
inspected to ensure tenant safety.  
 
In addition, these wards have a high proportion of properties in the private rented 
sector (above the national average of rented properties) and are occupied under 
assured shorthold tenancies, as this is the most common/default tenancy found in 
Southwark.  
  

How will licensing deal with poor property conditions in the designated area? 
Under the previous selective licensing scheme, the number of hazards found in 
licensed properties was much lower than the predicted levels in unlicensed 
properties. In 476 properties with selective licences inspected by officers, only 13% 
had category 1 hazards. This compares to nearly double that (23-26%) in the 
unlicensed properties in these three wards. This is almost certainly due to the fact 
that many of the licensed properties had been previously inspected by the council 
and landlords had made the necessary improvements to their properties.  
 
The designation of these three wards will allow the council to start dealing with some 
of the worst property conditions in the borough. This designation is in phase 1, which 
could be brought in by the end of 2021.  
 
There will be clear licence conditions relating to the standard and management of 
rented properties in the area. Higher risk properties will be prioritised for inspection 
by officers to check for hazards and compliance with licence conditions. The council 
will take enforcement action (under Part 1 of the Housing Act), where necessary, to 
improve poor property conditions.  
 
It is much easier to rectify property issues under the legal framework of the licensing 
scheme and when the landlord and other property management companies are 
known to the council. Landlords who fail to licence their properties could receive a 
civil penalty for failure to licence. 
 

129



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 24  

 

Information and support on the professional management of properties will be 
available to landlords through the council’s web site and landlord forums (in person 
and online). The licence conditions relating to the management of the properties will 
help ensure that properties are properly managed to prevent further deterioration. 
 
The council will work with landlords to address poor property conditions and help 
them to comply with the licence conditions in these wards.  
 
The council will also continue to work with the London Fire Brigade, Home Office, 
Police, HMRC and the Gang Masters and Labour Abuse Authority, as well as 
additional council departments, to identify properties that need improvement.  
 
In the previous scheme, this co-working resulted in an increase in prosecutions of 
rogue landlords to 28 over the last two years of the scheme. This can largely be 
attributed to the increased and efficient intelligence sharing within the group. 
 

The proposed selective licence conditions for designation 2 
As designation 2 is based on poor property conditions there are specific, 
discretionary licence conditions relating to these. The licence conditions form part of 
the consultation and the council welcomes any views on them. 
 
The proposed licence conditions for designation 2 are on the council’s property 
licensing web page. 
 

  

130

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 25  

 

1.6 Designation 3: Deprivation and poor property conditions 
(phase 2) 

Which areas are included in this designation? 
There are four wards in this designation: North Walworth, Nunhead & Queens Road, 
Old Kent Road and Peckham. These wards are some of the most deprived and in 
Southwark and have poor property conditions.  
 

 
 

What is the evidence of deprivation and poor property conditions in this area? 
These four wards are all in the bottom 30% of deprived wards in the country. The 
government uses a range of measures to produce Indices of Multiple Deprivation. 
This allows areas to be ranked nationally between 0.1 as the most deprived and 10.0 
as the least deprived. The national average is 5.0. These four wards sit between 2.4 
and 2.7 and are some of the most deprived in the borough. The council knows that 
poor property conditions make deprivation worse. People living in deprived areas 
have fewer choices about where they can live and are often stuck in overcrowded, 
poorly maintained accommodation. 
 
From the study carried out, these wards also have levels of category 1 hazards that 
are higher than the national average. There 1,858 PRS properties in this designation 
that are expected to have category 1 hazards, such as overcrowding, damp & mould 

131



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 26  

 

and fire hazards. These are the most likely to affect the health and safety of the 
tenants who live in them. 
 

Ward % PRS IMD ranking  % Cat 1 
hazards 

North Walworth 38.4% 2.6 18.2% 

Nunhead & Queens Road 36.5% 2.4 22.9% 

Old Kent Road 30.8% 2.7 16.9% 

Peckham 30.1% 2.4 19.6% 

National average (England) 19.0% 5.0 13.0%  

 
 

 
 
In addition, these wards have a high proportion of properties in the private rented 
sector (above the national average of rented properties) and are occupied under 
assured shorthold tenancies, as this is the most common/default tenancy in 
Southwark.  
 

How will licensing deal with deprivation and poor property conditions in the 
designated area? 
The designation of these wards will help the council to deal with the poor property 
conditions and issues that make deprivation worse, including overcrowding, fuel and 
water poverty. The licence conditions clearly state the maximum occupancy of the 
property to prevent overcrowding; either a single family or two unrelated sharers.  
 
The licence holder must take steps to: 

• improve the energy efficiency of a property that is lower than an E rating 
(unless an exemption applies)  

• Install programmable and thermostatically controllable heating and hot water 
to help reduce fuel costs and fuel poverty 

• Fit water-saving devices in the kitchen and bathroom to help reduce water 
costs in properties with meters 

132



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 27  

 

These improvements will be enforced under different legislation. 
 
There will also be clear licence conditions relating to the standard and management 
of rented properties in the area. Higher risk properties will be prioritised for 
inspection by officers to check for hazards and compliance with licence conditions. 
The council will take enforcement action (under Part 1 of the Housing Act), where 
necessary, to improve poor property conditions.  
 
It is much easier to rectify property issues under the legal framework of the licensing 
scheme and when the landlord and other property management companies are 
known to the council. Landlords who fail to license their properties could receive a 
civil penalty for failure to license. 
 
The council will also continue to work with the Police, the London Fire Brigade and 
UKBA to identify properties that need improvement. It will work with local community 
groups, including food banks, to identify tenants living in poor conditions and 
properties that can be improved. Where possible, the council will work with landlords 
to address poor property conditions and the factors that make deprivation worse, to 
help them to comply with the licence conditions in these wards. 
 

The proposed selective licence conditions for designation 3 
As designation 3 is based on deprivation and poor property conditions there are 
specific, discretionary licence conditions relating to these. The licence conditions 
form part of the consultation and the council welcomes any views on them. 
 
The proposed licence conditions for designation 3 are on the council’s property 
licensing web page. 
 
  

133

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 28  

 

1.7 Designation 4: Poor property conditions (phase 2) 

Which areas are included in this designation? 
There are ten wards in this designation: Camberwell Green, Chaucer, Dulwich Hill, 
Dulwich Wood, London Bridge & West Bermondsey, Peckham Rye, Rotherhithe, 
Rye Lane, South Bermondsey and Surrey Docks. These wards all have poor 
property conditions demonstrated by high levels of category 1 hazards in the PRS. 
 

 
 

What is the evidence of poor property conditions in this area? 
A study was carried out to predict the number of privately rented properties in the 
borough, and whether they are likely to contain any housing hazards. It showed that 
the ten wards in this designation have PRS properties that have unacceptably high 
levels of category 1 hazards.  
 
The properties in this designation have levels of category 1 hazards that are higher 
than the national average for PRS of 13%6. There may be at least 3,754 PRS 
properties in this area that have a category 1 hazard, a large proportion of which will 
need to be inspected to ensure the safety of the tenants that live in them.  
 

 
6 English Housing Survey 2019-20, p4. 

134

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/945013/2019-20_EHS_Headline_Report.pdf


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 29  

 

 

 
  

How will licensing deal with poor property conditions in the designated area? 
Under the previous selective licensing scheme, the number of hazards found in 
licensed properties was much lower than those predicted in these wards7. In 476 
properties with selective licences inspected by officers, only 13% had category 1 
hazards (comparable with the national average). This compares to an average of 
19.6% in the unlicensed properties in these ten wards. This is almost certainly due to 
the fact that many of the licensed properties had been previously inspected by the 
council and landlords had made the necessary improvements to their properties as a 
result.  
 
The designation of these ten wards will allow the council to bring about an 
improvement to property conditions in the area during the life of the scheme. There 
are proposed licence conditions relating to the standard and management of the 
rented properties. Higher risk properties will be prioritised for inspection by officers to 
check for hazards and compliance with the licence conditions. This will allow the 
council to take enforcement action (under Part 1 of the Housing Act), where 
necessary, to improve properties.  
 
The council will expect property condition issues identified during an inspection to be 
resolved within a reasonable period, depending on the severity of the issue. 
Improvement Notices, Overcrowding Notices and Prohibition Orders are formal 
notices that may be issued to bring about improvements in properties. The council 
charges the landlord if a formal notice is issued. 
 
Landlords who fail to licence their properties could receive a civil penalty.  
 
The licence conditions will be used to ensure continued compliance with property 
conditions and standards to prevent a further deterioration in the rented properties. 

 
7 Housing Stock Condition and Stressors Report, Metastreet, 2019 

135

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92949/Appendix%201%20Proposals%20for%20the%20PRS%20Evidence%20report.pdf


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 30  

 

Landlords will be able to access information on the council’s web site and through 
forums (either in person or online) to help them improve their property management 
skills. 
The council will also continue to work with the local Police, the London Fire Brigade, 
UKBA and other council departments to identify properties that need improvement. 
The council will work with landlords to address poor property conditions and help 
them to comply with the licence conditions in these wards. 
 

The proposed selective licence conditions for designation 4 
As designation 4 is based on poor property conditions there are specific, 
discretionary licence conditions relating to these. The licence conditions form part of 
the consultation and the council welcomes any views on them. 
 
The proposed licence conditions for designation 4 are on the council’s property 
licensing web page. 
 
 

1.8 Why are some wards not included in the selective licensing 

scheme? 

There are four wards that are not included in any of the designations: Borough & 
Bankside, Dulwich Village, North Bermondsey and St. Georges. This is due to either 
a lack of evidence for the criteria or a low level of PRS in the ward. 
 
Borough & Bankside has a high level of rented properties, but these tend to be 
relatively new builds and therefore do not have the high levels of housing hazards 
that we see in other parts of the borough. Whilst there is some ASB connected to the 
PRS, it is at a lower level than Champion Hill and Newington, so it was not felt that a 
blanket licensing scheme was the best way to deal with it. 
 
Dulwich Village does not have the required high levels of PRS to introduce licensing 
to the area. The council can still take enforcement action under Part 1 of the Housing 
Act (2004) if there are severe issues with any rented properties. 
 
North Bermondsey has a high level of PRS, but the evidence does not show the high 
levels of housing hazards that we see in other parts of the borough. The evidence for 
ASB and deprivation is also lacking. 
 
St. Georges has high levels of PRS; however, the level of category 1 hazards needs 
to be higher than the national average. At the time the designations were defined, 
the national average was 14% and St. George’s did not meet the threshold. 
 

1.9 Proposed selective licensing scheme conditions 

There are two types of conditions that can be applied to a selective licensing 
scheme: mandatory and discretionary.  The mandatory conditions are required by 
Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004 and these do not form part of the consultation. 
 

136

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 31  

 

The discretionary conditions are part of the consultation and the council can decide 
on these in order to deal with the management, use and occupation of the licensed 
property.  
 
In some circumstances, for a particular property, where the council believes there 
are specific issues not being covered by the discretionary conditions, additional or 
more specific conditions can be added. 
 
As the four proposed selective licensing designations are based on different criteria, 
the discretionary conditions are tailored to tackle the conditions relating to the criteria 
in each area. For example, designation 1 is based on ASB and there are specific 
proposed licence conditions relating to ASB. 
 
The proposed selective licence conditions for each designation are on the council’s 
property licensing web page. 
 
 

Selective licence exemptions 
There are a number of exemptions to selective licensing scheme including: 
 

a) properties licensable as an HMOs under mandatory or the proposed 
additional HMO licensing;  

b) properties let by a local authority or a Registered Provider (RP), 
traditionally known as a not-for-profit Housing Association;  

c) properties already subject to a management order;  

d) properties subject to a temporary exemption notice. 

e) owners who reside in property they own as their main residence (owner-
occupiers). 

f) holiday lets; and tenancies under a long lease and business tenancies. 

g) Any building which is occupied principally for the purposes of a religious 
community whose principal occupation is prayer, contemplation, education 
or the relief of suffering. 

h) Student accommodation directly managed by educational institutions, e.g. 
halls of residence. 

i) properties managed by a charity registered under the Charities Act 2011 
and which—  

a. is a night shelter, or 

b. consists of temporary accommodation for persons suffering or 
recovering from drug or alcohol abuse or a mental disorder. 

  

137

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 32  

 

1.10 Proposed selective licensing fee 

The proposed selective licence fee is £900.  
 
The council is required to split the fee into two payments. The initial part of the fee is 
charged to cover the cost of processing of the application. If the application for a 
licence is successful, a further fee will be charged before the full licence is issued. 
This second fee is a contribution to the other costs incurred by the Council under the 
licensing scheme, for example the cost to the council for enforcement of licences.  

The actual split will be determined following the consultation.  

 

1.11 Proposed licence fee discounts 

Early bird discount 
A 30% early bird discount will be applied to the proposed selective and additional 
schemes, which will operate for a period of 3 months from the point the scheme 
starts.  

Discount for Gold Standard Charter members 
A discount of 50% will be offered on the second part of the fee (enforcement 
element) for all licensing schemes where the landlord and/or managing agent has 
signed up to the council’s Gold Standard Charter.  

a. A requirement of the Gold Standard Charter is that a landlord must be 
accredited with a recognised organisation. The discount for being an 
accredited landlord under the existing scheme has therefore been 
removed under the proposals for the new schemes. 

b. The Gold Standard Charter discount can be applied for a managing 
agent of a licensable property however, if the Licence Holder and/or 
landlord has not signed up to the Gold Standard Charter, landlords who 
change their managing agents during the period of the licence must 
ensure that any new agent is also signed up to the Gold Standard 
Charter or repay the discount, pro-rata, for the period of time the 
property is being managed by an agent not signed up to the Gold 
Standard Charter. 

c. Discounts will not apply to properties where the council has found it 
necessary to issue a warning letter requiring the landlord/agent to 
apply for a licence. This applies to previously unlicensed properties or 
properties where a previous licence has expired more than 3 months 
before the renewal application has been received.  

d. A Gold Standard Charter landlord/agent who has not applied for a 
licence on a licensable property without a warning letter from the 
council can have their Gold Charter status removed. 

e. If a licensing application is not successful, the fee for enforcement will 
not be charged. Any subsequent applications made for the same 
property will be charged the application fee (discount will apply where 
appropriate) and the further fee for enforcement if a licence is to be 
issued. 

138



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 33  

 

Further details of the gold standard charter can be found on the council’s property 
licensing web page. 
 

Discount for Platinum Standard Charter members 
A further discount of 50% on the second part of the fee (enforcement element) for all 
licensing schemes, is available where the landlord and/or managing agent, as well 
as being signed up to the Council’s Gold Standard Charter has also signed up to the 
Platinum Standard Criteria and their property has been accepted onto the Council’s 
Finder’s Fee scheme (or subsequent iterations).  This means that when combined 
with the Gold Standard Charter Discount the second part of the fee (enforcement 
element) will be free of charge. 

Further details of the platinum standard charter can be found on the council’s 
property licensing web page. 
 

Discount for joining the Council’s Social Lettings Agency 
There will be no charge for all licensing schemes, where the landlord and/or 
managing agent, as well as being signed up to the Council’s Gold Standard Charter, 
has also signed up to the Platinum Standard Criteria and their property has been 

accepted onto the Council’s Social Lettings Agency (or subsequent iterations).   

139

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 34  

 

 

  

Case study: Basement used as a flat with fire, 
electrical and human habitation problems  
(St. Giles ward)  
 
The Housing Enforcement Team became aware 
of this property after making a routine inspection 
of a large bedsit HMO in the same building. A 
mother and two children had been living in the  
basement for six years.   
 
There were numerous cables and leads 
overhanging the electric shower and kitchen 
area, loose lights in the shower. There were no 
openable windows anywhere within the 
basement and no fire detection system. The only 
exit was via the shop upstairs, which had a 
mechanical shutter which was brought down 
when the shop was closed. A rear door was also 
obstructed.  
 
A tiny shower area and toilet had been installed 
at the rear of a narrow kitchen with no 
separation between the areas. There was no 
door to the kitchen area to provide fire 
separation.  
 
Outcome:  
An Emergency Prohibition Order was issued for 
the premises stating that it must not be used for 
any type of accommodation. 
 

140



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 35  

 

8. Changes to the mandatory HMO licensing scheme 

The Council does not have to consult on mandatory licensing or the proposed changes 
to the scheme. However, these have been included in the consultation as they are 
linked to the fees and conditions proposed for the additional HMO licensing scheme 
and the Council would like to seek opinions on these changes.  

 

1.12 Proposed mandatory licence scheme conditions 

The current scheme has a number of discretionary conditions which are out of date as 
they were related to the issues with HMOs in 2015. The conditions have been revised 
to take account of the current issues within the PRS and can be found here: 

The proposed mandatory licence conditions can be found on the council’s property 
licensing web page. 
 

1.13 Proposed mandatory HMO licence fee 

The fee is proposed to be £1,500 + £100 per room above 5 bedrooms. The flat fee 
covers the first five bedrooms with a small additional charge per bedroom above 5. It 
is a change from the ‘per bedroom’ fee under the current scheme. 
 
The proposed change to the fees for the mandatory licensing scheme should help to 
ensure that larger HMOs are charged more fairly and that the fee is consistent with 
the proposed additional HMO licensing scheme.  
 
The Council is required to split the fees into two payments. The initial part of the fee 
is charged to cover the cost of processing of the application. If the application for a 
licence is successful a further fee will be charged before the full licence can be 
issued. This second fee is a contribution to the other costs incurred by the council 
under the licensing scheme, for example for enforcement of the licence. What the 
actual split will be is to be determined following the consultation.  
 

141

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 36  

 

  

Case study: Unlicensed and unsafe mandatory 
HMO (Faraday ward) 
 
The Housing Enforcement team became aware of 
the property when it was let as an HMO but was 
unlicensed.  
 
A prohibition order was served to prevent the 
property from being used. A follow up inspection by 
council officers found that the property continued to 
be let, in violation of the prohibition order.  
 
The property was also in very poor condition, with 
a risk of fire, making it a danger to the tenants living 
there.  
 
Outcome: The landlords were prosecuted for 
failing to license, violating the prohibition order and 
other HMO management offences, including 
serious fire issues. 

142



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 37  

 

9. Alternatives to licensing that have been considered 

Alternative Measure Strengths Weaknesses 

Use of Part 1 
Housing Act 2004 
enforcement 
powers [HHSRS] 
and Public Health 
powers  

Formal notices can be 
served that require 
improvements to be carried 
out.  
Councils can carry out work 
in default if a notice is not 
complied with.  
Landlords risk being 
prosecuted if they do not 
comply with the notice.  

The powers do not place any 
obligation on landlords to be 
proactive in improving 
conditions. Formal action is 
generally slow, with appeal 
provisions against most 
types of notices served, 
which can significantly delay 
the time period for 
compliance.  
Work in default can be 
effective but it is expensive 
and time consuming to the 
Council, with the risk that not 
all costs are recovered. 
 
Successful prosecutions do 
not in themselves secure 
improvements in property 
conditions and the Council’s 
prosecution costs are often 
not met in full. 

Voluntary 
Accreditation 
schemes facilitate 
improvement in 
management 
practices and 
standards  

For those landlords who take 
part, accreditation can 
improve the ability to 
effectively manage a 
property.  

This requires voluntary 
landlord engagement and 
rogue operators are unlikely 
to attend/engage.  
In Southwark, there had 
been a poor take up of the 
voluntary accreditation 
schemes, despite continued 
support of these 
organisations by the council. 
   

Rely on 
prosecutions and 
civil penalties for 
housing offences  

Provides a disincentive to 
keep properties in poor 
conditions.  

These powers do not place 
any obligation on landlords 
to be proactive in improving 
conditions. Successful 
prosecutions, or the 
imposition of civil penalties, 
do not in themselves secure 
improvements in property 
conditions. The absence of 
licensing significantly 
reduces the scope of the 
council to impose civil 
penalties in respect of 
identified housing breaches.  

143



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 38  

 

Improvement grants 
to improve sub-
standard properties  

Grants subsidise 
improvement 
works, improving standards 
and giving benefits for 
landlords and tenants.  

Generally, there are few 
grants available and the 
council has very limited 
scope to offer grants through 
successful external funding 
bids. In the most part, grant 
awards would fund 
improvements that the 
landlord should be carrying 
out to meet their legal 
obligations.  
Any grant scheme would be 
discretionary and would rely 
on voluntary landlord 
engagement.  

ASB powers  Formal notices can be 
served at addresses 
identified as having ASB 
issues. This can resolve ASB 
at the particular address. 

Action would generally be 
taken against the tenant in 
occupation. The powers do 
not place any obligations on 
landlords to be proactive in 
managing their properties to 
prevent or reduce the 
likelihood of ASB occurring.  

 

  

144



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 39  

 

10. Proposed scheme objectives 

Licensing is part of an overall approach to help improve privately rented properties in 
the London Borough of Southwark. As such, any outcomes will be as a result of a 
range of initiatives and methods that the council can use. However, licensing is an 
important element and will be assessed against the following scheme objectives: 
 

 
 
 

  Scheme Objectives 

Licensing Scheme 1 2 3 4 5 6 

Selective 

Designation 1 

Designation 2 

Designation 3 

Designation 4 

Additional HMO  

Mandatory HMO  

 

  

145



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 40  

 

11. Licensing and wider council strategies 

11.1 Housing Strategy 

Southwark Council recently released its Housing Strategy which outlines the 
council’s approach to housing over the next 30 years. The strategy is based on four 
key principles: 

1. Increasing the supply of genuinely affordable high-quality homes that meet 
our residents’ housing needs and aspirations 

2. Demanding safer, higher quality, energy efficient homes 
3. Promoting tenure security and social support in housing, and improving the 

health, wellbeing and economic resilience of residents. 
4. Empowering residents and communities to have pride and influence over their 

homes and neighbourhoods. 
 
The council has made a commitment, under its second housing strategy principle, to 
improving quality standards in the PRS. “Our ambition is to transform the private 
rental sector so that all homes provide good quality, secure accommodation. We will 
work with landlords to support and encourage them to drive up standards in the 
private rented sector, whilst also cracking down on rogue private landlords. We 
believe everyone should have a good quality home no matter who their landlord is. 
We want to work with landlords to increase security, certainty, affordability and 
stability for their tenants, especially families with children.”  
 
The introduction of additional HMO and selective licensing will support this by 
increasing the council’s knowledge of the sector and will provide a stronger 
legislative framework with which to deal with issues.  
 
Southwark Council has also made a commitment, under its fourth housing strategy 
principle, to protect and empower private tenants by providing advice and assistance 
on their respective rights and responsibilities. Introducing additional HMO and 
selective licensing will support this commitment by making tenants aware of the 
licence conditions, and by creating a public register of licensed landlords. 
 

11.2 Homelessness strategy 

Southwark Council has outlined its strategy for homelessness prevention in the 
Southwark Homelessness Strategy 2018-2022. As part of this, the council has 
recruited three private rented sector homeless prevention officers to assist with 
mediation, develop links with community agencies and deal with cases at earlier 
stages to help prevent homelessness.  
 
The council has made it a priority to respond to the challenging local housing market 
by working with households and landlords. One solution is the offer of a self-help 
finder’s fee scheme, which should encourage households to source their own 
suitable and affordable accommodation arrangements in the PRS. The council is 
also working on a number of London-wide initiatives including procurement of private 
sector rental accommodation and temporary accommodation for homeless families. 
 

146



EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 41  

 

11.3 Empty properties 

As part of the Housing Strategy, Southwark Council has made a commitment to 
tackle empty homes. The Empty Homes Service specifically targets long term or 
derelict properties, as these often generate wider community issues such as ASB. 
The council will provide grants, loans, free impartial advice, support and 
refurbishment options to bring long-term empty properties back into use. These will 
ideally be as long-term private rented homes for families.  
 

11.4 ASB 

As outlined in the Housing Strategy, the council is committed to working with tenants, 
resident associations, housing associations, the police and other agencies to tackle 
antisocial behaviour (ASB). An additional ASB officer will be part of the multi-agency 
ASB team to deal specifically with ASB in the PRS. 
 
The council aims to bring communities together to solve problems collectively 
through various schemes and funds, including Cleaner, Greener, Safer (CGS), 
Neighbourhood Watch and Police ward panels.  
 
The council intends to support tenants to be good neighbours by providing a pre-
tenancy course on how to abide by their tenancy agreement, including acceptable 
behaviour standards. 
 
Additional and Selective Licensing will enable the council to encourage landlords to 
work with their tenants to reduce ASB.  Information and support will be available both 
online and through forums.  
 

12. Further information and details of the consultation 

More information about the council’s proposals can be found in the reports for 
Cabinet: 
 
Cabinet Report: Consultation on Proposals for the Private Rented Sector 2021 – 
2026 
Appendices (1 - 5) 
 
The council welcomes views from all Southwark residents, especially private tenants. 
The views of landlords and managing agents with properties in the borough and 
anyone or any organisation with an interest in the private rented sector, are also 
welcomed.  
 
The consultation will run from 15 February 2021 until at least the 28 June 2021. The 
consultation questionnaire is available on the property licensing and consultation 
sections of the council web site.  
 
A number of forums and workshops will be held during the consultation. If you are 
interested in sharing your experiences and views, please email 
resi@southwark.gov.uk. Due to the pandemic, these will all be held online. 

147

http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92948/Report%20Consultation%20on%20Proposals%20for%20PRS.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92948/Report%20Consultation%20on%20Proposals%20for%20PRS.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
https://consultations.southwark.gov.uk/
mailto:resi@southwark.gov.uk


EVIDENCE FOR CONSULTATION 2021 l southwark.gov.uk/ l Page 42  

 

Anyone with a disability or who needs extra help completing the questionnaire can 
request support by calling 020 7525 5140. A paper copy of the consultation is also 
available on request by emailing propertylicensing@southwark.gov.uk or by calling 
020 7525 5140. 
 
Once the consultation has closed the council will review the replies. A full 
consultation report, including the council’s response to any alternatives suggested, 
will be published on the property licensing pages of the web site. 
 
The council has complied with its duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010A.  
An equality analysis was carried out as part of these proposals. The results can be 
found in Appendix 5 of the Cabinet Report. 

148

mailto:propertylicensing@southwark.gov.uk
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9


Appendix 12 
 

 
 

 

 

Driving Up Standards for 
the Private Rented Sector 
 

Consultation on Private Sector 

Licensing in Southwark – Final Report 
 

Appendix 12 

 

19 October 2021 

  

149



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 2  
 

Contents 

Executive Summary .............................................................................................................. 3 

Key Findings ...................................................................................................................... 4 

Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 6 

Background ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Proposals ........................................................................................................................... 6 

Public Consultation ............................................................................................................ 6 

Approach to promoting the consultation in a pandemic ...................................................... 6 

Consultation Methods ...................................................................................................... 12 

Consultation Survey Results ............................................................................................... 14 

Overall Consultation Response ........................................................................................ 14 

Views on the proposed licensing schemes ....................................................................... 15 

Alternatives to licensing schemes .................................................................................... 20 

Views on the proposed licensing scheme conditions ....................................................... 22 

Views on the proposed licensing scheme fees ................................................................. 28 

Views on the proposed changes to Mandatory HMO Licencing fees and conditions ........ 32 

Addressing the number of responses with ‘No opinion’ .................................................... 37 

Views on the proposed Gold Standard Charter ................................................................ 38 

Views on the issues within the borough ........................................................................... 39 

Demographic profile of respondents .................................................................................... 43 

Commonplace map results.................................................................................................. 47 

Public meeting and written responses ................................................................................. 48 

Appendices ......................................................................................................................... 48 

 

  

150



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 3  
 

Executive Summary  

Southwark Council carried out a public consultation into their proposals to introduce a 
borough-wide additional licensing scheme for homes in multiple occupation (HMOs), and a 
selective licensing scheme in 19 wards. The council proposed introducing selective licensing 
through four designations, designed to tackle the most pressing issues within the ward 

 Designation One – Very high and repeated antisocial behaviour (ASB): 
o Newington 
o Champion Hill 

 Designation Two: Poor Property conditions: 
o Faraday 
o Goose Green 
o St. Giles 

 Designation Three – Deprivation and poor property conditions  
o North Walworth 
o Nunhead & Queens Road 
o Old Kent Road 
o Peckham 

 Designation Four – Poor property conditions: 
o Camberwell Green 
o Chaucer 
o Dulwich Hill 
o Dulwich Wood 
o London Bridge & West Bermondsey 
o Peckham Rye 
o Rotherhithe 
o Rye Lane 
o South Bermondsey 
o Surrey Docks 

 

The council also consulted on changes to the existing Mandatory HMO Licensing scheme’s 
fees and licence conditions. 

To consult with landlords, tenants, residents, stakeholders and other interested parties, the 
council carried out an online survey and an interactive online map, where respondents could 
pinpoint issues in specific areas within the borough. The council also hosted several public 
meetings with landlords, tenants, residents, and landlord groups. The council used digital 
and print media to advertise the consultation, as well as in-person methods, following the 
easing of social distancing rules 

The consultation ran for 19 weeks from 15th February 2021 to 28th June 2021 

In total 1,916 responses were received from the online survey, 121 responses on the 
common place map. Qualitative feedback was received at 8 public meetings and 16 written 
responses from interested parties  

The consultation looked at the level of support for introducing additional and selective 
licensing. The consultation also looked at views on the proposed licence conditions, fees, 
and the respondents’ perceptions of the issues in the borough. 

  

151



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 4  
 

 

Key Findings 

Selective Licensing Scheme in 19 wards 

 Overall Landlords1 PRS Tenants Other 

Total consultation survey responses  1916 443 690 783 

Agree with Selective Licensing 
proposal 

42% 18% 55% 46% 

Disagree with Selective Licensing 
proposal 

20% 52% 8% 12% 

     

Responses to the question 1657 391 572 694 

Agree with proposed Selective 
Licensing conditions 

36% 15% 45% 39% 

Disagree with proposed Selective 
Licensing proposal 

18% 49% 7% 10% 

     

Responses to the question 1684 404 591 689 

Selective Licensing fee is 
reasonable 

34% 6% 47% 39% 

Selective Licensing fee is not 
reasonable 

32% 79% 14% 21% 

 

 There is overall agreement with Selective Licensing from the consultation 
respondents (42%) 

 PRS tenants are in favour of selective licensing (55%) whilst landlords are against 
(52% disagree) 

 The overall response (46%) to the proposed licence conditions was “not sure”  

 PRS tenants agree that the proposed licence conditions are reasonable (45%). 
Landlords disagree that the conditions are reasonable with 49% disagreeing. The 
large number of “Don’t Know” responses indicates that there is requirement for the 
council to engage with tenants on the licence conditions 

 A third of respondents (34%) think that the proposed fees are reasonable or a little 
too low, however a third (32%) think the proposed fees are too high or much too high, 
and the final third answered that they didn’t know if the fees were reasonable or not. 

 Nearly half (47%) of PRS tenants think that the fees are reasonable or a little too low. 
The majority of landlords (79%) think the proposed fees are much too high or a little 
too high  

  

                                                
1 For the purposes of this consultation, results have been grouped to show respondents as ‘landlords’, which 

includes managing agents, residential lettings agents and representatives of a Housing Association.  

152



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 5  
 

 

Additional Licensing Scheme across the borough 

 Overall Landlords PRS Tenants Other 

Total consultation survey responses  1916 443 690 783 

Agree with Additional Licensing 
proposal 

45% 23% 56% 47% 

Disagree with Additional 
Licensing proposal 

17% 43% 6% 13% 

     

Responses to the question 1707 395 599 713 

Agree with proposed Additional 
Licensing conditions 

38% 15% 47% 42% 

Disagree with proposed 
Additional Licensing proposal 

17% 42% 7% 12% 

     

Responses to the question 1681 398 591 692 

Additional Licensing fee is 
reasonable 

35% 9% 47% 40% 

Additional Licensing fee is not 
reasonable 

32% 72% 17% 24% 

 

 There is overall agreement with Additional Licensing from the consultation 
respondents (45%) 

 PRS tenants are in favour of Additional licensing (56%) whilst landlords are against 
(43% disagree) 

 The overall response (45%) to the proposed licence conditions was “not sure”  

 PRS tenants (47%) agree that the proposed licence conditions are reasonable. 
Landlords (41%) disagree that the proposed licence conditions are reasonable  

 A third of respondents (35%) think that the proposed fees are reasonable or a little 
too low, however a third (32%) think the proposed fees are too high or much too high, 
and the final third answered that they didn’t know if the fees were reasonable or not. 

 A third of PRS tenants (36%) think the proposed fees are reasonable. The majority of 
landlords (56%) think that the proposed fee is much too high. 

 

  

153



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 6  
 

 

Introduction 

Background 

The growth of the private rented sector (PRS) in Southwark has been accompanied by an 
increase in related housing problems. Rising rents have had a huge impact on affordability 
and this in turn has led to overcrowding, tenants being made homeless and a deterioration in 
property conditions. This situation has been made much worse by the pandemic, with 
overcrowding responsible for increases in the rate of virus transmission and a huge increase 
in homeless referrals due to financial issues.   

The council is committed to improving privately rented properties in the borough. The 
recently revised Housing Strategy lays out some of the plans the council has to support 
residents with their housing needs, including those in the PRS. Around 43,000 homes in the 
borough are privately rented. Whilst the majority of these are well maintained and safe, there 
is a growing minority that are sub-standard and dangerous. Even well-meaning landlords 
may not always be up to date with the latest legal and safety requirements. These properties 
not only endanger the health, safety and wellbeing of tenants, but cause issues with 
neighbours and end up requiring many interventions from already stretched council teams. 
The council needs to use all the tools it has to improve the situation for tenants renting 
properties in this sector. 

Proposals 

The consultation focused on the extent to which respondents agree or disagree with the 
council’s proposal to introduce: 

 Borough-wide Additional Licensing for HMOs 

 Selective Licensing in 19 wards through four designations 

The consultation also looked at views on the proposed licence conditions, fees, and the 
respondents’ perceptions of the issues of anti-social behaviour and poor property conditions 
in the borough 

The consultation also asked for respondents’ feedback on changes to the Mandatory HMO 
Licensing fees and licence conditions 

Public Consultation 

The consultation ran for 19 weeks from 15th February 2021 to 28th June 2021. To try and 
capture as much feedback from landlord, tenants, residents and other stakeholders the 
council used several approaches to promote the consultation across the borough, and 
outside the borough, whilst complying with the nationally imposed lockdown, social 
distancing and stay-at-home orders, which are detailed below. Activities for the consultation, 
including active communications and publicity, were paused during a period of purdah (23rd 
March 2021 to 7th May 2021), in the lead up to local and mayoral elections. 

Approach to promoting the consultation in a pandemic 

The consultation began during a national lockdown to combat the coronavirus pandemic. 
The public were asked to stay at home from January to April 2021, reduce non-essential 

154



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 7  
 

travel, work from home if possible and not to meet with people outside their household. In 
line with the Housing Act 2004, 80(9) and Housing Act 2004 Part 2, 56(3), the council carried 
out a stakeholder analysis to ensure all affected stakeholders had an opportunity to take part 
in the consultation. The table below shows the consultation activities carried out and the 
level of restrictions 

From Restriction Consultation activity 

6th Jan 
2021 

National lockdown, including a stay-at-
home order No non-essential travel, non-
essential shops were closed including 
bars, restaurants, other leisure activities 
and schools moved to remote learning 

Updates to the council website, 
London Property licensing website 
campaign, emails to stakeholders, 
press release, use of council’s 
social media, digital advertising 
campaign, contacting community 
and outreach groups to ask them to 
share information about the 
consultation, holding virtual landlord 
and tenant forums 

8th Mar 
2021 

Schools re-opened. People could meet 
one person from outside their household 
outdoors 

29th 
Mar 
2021 

Outdoor gatherings (including in private 
gardens) of either 6 people (the Rule of 
6) or 2 households allowed, and the stay-
at-home order was lifted. 

Adverts for the consultation in 
neighbouring borough newspapers. 
Purdah began (23rd March 2021 to 
7th May 2021) 

12th 
April 
2021 

Non-essential retail was allowed to re-
open, and hospitality venues could serve 
groups of up to six or two households 
outside.  Self-contained accommodation 
such as campsites and holiday lets, 
where indoor facilities are not shared 
with other households, can also reopen. 

Digital advertisement campaign 
restarts (7th May), landlord virtual 
forum 

17th 
May 
2021 

The end of most legal restrictions on 
meeting others outdoors - although 
gatherings of over 30 people remained 
illegal. Groups of six or two households 
could meet inside. Indoor entertainment 
and hotels/hostels/BnBs were allowed to 
open. These restrictions remained in 
place until after the end of the 
consultation 

Adverts for the consultation were 
placed on the backs of buses and 
on digital advertising boards 
throughout the borough. Southwark 
Young Advisors went to popular 
shopping area and foodbanks to 
speak to people and hand out 
leaflets, landlord and tenant virtual 
forums were held, and ads for the 
consultation were placed in 
community newsletters 

 

Landlord and other stakeholder events  

The council held a series of meetings and forums to gather feedback from landlords and to 
make them aware of the consultation. These events are summarised below:  

Event Type Date No. People contacted 
regarding event 

No. people 
attended  

Virtual Private Renters Forum 22nd Feb 2021 15 8 

Virtual Landlord focus group 23rd Feb 2021  3 

Meeting with NRLA representative 26th Feb 2021 NA 1 

Virtual Homelessness Forum 11th Mar 2021 120 29 

Virtual Landlord forum 18th Mar 2021 666 88 

Virtual Landlord forum 11th May 2021 666 23 

Virtual Landlord forum 16th Jun 2021 116 13 

155



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 8  
 

Virtual Staff Forum 21st Jun 2021 62 60 

 

Tenant and resident events 

The council also held forums to gather feedback and raise awareness of the consultation 
from residents and tenants in the borough. These events are summarised below: 

Event Type Date No. People contacted 
regarding event 

No. people 
attended  

Virtual Tenant and Resident Forum 16th Mar 2021 64 2 

Southwark Advice Forum 21st Mar 2021  25 

Virtual Renters’ Union 22nd Mar 2021 9 8 

Virtual Resident forum 21st Jun 2021 359 20 

 

Communication Channels 

The council used a wide range of communication channels to promote the consultation and 
make stakeholders aware of the proposals.  

Activities to engage all stakeholder groups, inside and outside the borough, and raise their 
awareness included: 

 Updating the council website corporate homepage to include the consultation 

 Posting a news article about the consultation on the council website 

 Banner adverts for the consultation were placed on related pages on the council 
website 

 Issuing press releases on 26th February 2021 and 15th June 2021 

 Using the council’s social media 
o 34 twitter posts with a total of 71,803 impressions, 1,042 engagements, 74 re-

tweets and 62 likes 
o 31 Facebook posts with a total of 8,394 people reached and 112 likes  

 Running a digital advertising campaign from 3rd to 8th March 2021 and from 6th May 
to 17th May which resulted in 633,500 impressions, 4,691 clicks to the consultation 
page with an average click-through-rate of 0.74% which is higher than the industry 
average for display ads of 0.35%. The digital campaign placed adverts on websites 
and social media pages related to Southwark and the private rented sector, including: 

o Gumtree.com 
o Southwarknews.co.uk 
o Zoopla.co.uk 
o Realhomes.com 
o Onthemarket.com 
o Propertytorenovate.co.uk 
o Globalpropertyguide.com 
o Propertywire.com 
o Apartmenttherapy.com 
o Homebuilding.co.uk 
o Loveproperty.com 
o Rightmove.co.uk  

 

Activities to reach out to Southwark tenants and residents included: 

 The consultation was included as an item in emails sent to resident mailing list on: 
o 19th February – sent to 173,630 residents 

156



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 9  
 

o 4th March – an email was sent to 65 residents to inform them about the 
consultation and invite them to the resident forum 

o 5th March 2021 – sent to 169,656 residents  
o 19th Mar 2021 – sent to 169,882 residents 
o 10th, 11th and 12th May 2021 – sent to a total of 165,000 residents. These 

emails were specifically about the consultation and asking residents to 
complete the survey 

o 17th May 2021 – sent to 173,630 residents from the leader of the council with 
link to the consultation at the bottom 

o Email to 359 residents and tenants who had expressed an interest in 
attending an online forum when completing the online consultation, for the 
forum on 21st May 2021 

o 24th May 2021 – sent to 873 residents who subscribe to the Residents Online 
Panel email distribution list. The email asked for residents to complete a poll 
on council homes and included a link to the consultation 

o 1st, 3rd, 8th ,10th and 15th June – the consultation was mentioned along with a 
link to the consultation shared with attendees of the Southwark Local Housing 
Forums with 18, 24, 26, 26 and 24 attendees respectively 

o 10th June 2021 – sent to 173,719 residents 

 Adverts for the consultation were placed in the spring and summer editions of the 
Southwark Life magazine  

 Southwark Young Advisors went out on behalf of the council to ask people about the 
consultation and hand out leaflets 

o 2nd June 2021 outside Aylesham Shopping Centre 
o 3rd June 2021 outside at Elephant and Castle shopping centre 
o 4th June 2021 East Street Market  
o 17th June 2021 at Spring Community Hub, a foodbank in Camberwell  

 Adverts were placed on the back of 60 buses across three depots, covering the 
routes through the borough from 24th May to 20th June 2021 

 Adverts were added to 43 outdoor digital boards across the borough. The campaign 
on the outdoor digital boards ran from 17th May to 26th June 2021 

 Text messages were sent to 193 residents 

 Including the consultation in Southwark Council’s business e-newsletter to 12,224 
recipients 

Activities to reach out to landlords included: 

 An email to 590 landlords on 4th March to inform them about the consultation and 
landlord forum 

 The consultation was included as an item in emails sent to 4,022 landlords on 17th 
May 2021 

 An email on 23rd June 2021 – sent to 3,987 non-resident leaseholders about the 
consultation 

 A digital campaign on the London Property Licensing website. London property 
Licensing is the leading website for informing private landlords in the UK. The 
campaign started on 5th March and ran until 28th June. The campaign included: 

o From 9th March to 28th June a pixel banner advert promoting the consultation 
was placed on the London Property Licensing (LPL) homepage 

o From 9th March to 28th June a banner headline attached to a rotating image at 
the top of the LPL home page with a link to the consultation listing. 

o On 5th March to 28th June the London Borough of Southwark’s page on the 
LPL website was updated with information about the licensing consultation 
and how to take part  

o From 9th March to 28th June, the licensing consultation was advertised on the 
LPL latest events webpage. It was also promoted in the events section on the 

157



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 10  
 

LPL home page and on all London borough pages and news & comment 
articles 

o A news article about the licensing consultation was posted in the LPL news 
section on 19th March and promoted on social media and in the LPL 
newsletter 

o The licensing consultation was promoted in posts on the LPL Facebook page 
and the LPL LinkedIn page on 12th March, 18th March, 24th March and 25th 
June  

o Tweets about the licensing consultation were published on the LPL Twitter 
Feed (@lplicensing) every 6 to 8 days, timed to cover a variety of morning, 
afternoon and evening posts, between 11th March and 28th June. During this 
period the @lplicensing twitter feed had between 2,244 and 2,270   followers, 
generating impressions, likes, retweets and comments from a variety of 
people including a landlord legal advice service, letting agent association, 
letting agent, property commentator, lecturer, property licensing business, 
accreditation scheme, the local authority and members of the public. 

o Promotion of the licensing consultation in the LPL newsletter on 26th March, 
30th April and 27th May which is sent to between 3,098 and 3,143 people who 
have requested updates on housing regulation and property licensing 
schemes 

 An email to 666 landlords to invite them to a virtual landlord forum on 18th March 

 An email to 115 landlords who had expressed an interest in attending an online 
forum when completing the online consultation, for the forum on 16th May  

 An email to 590 landlords to remind them about the consultation on 25th June  

 Running a digital advertising campaign from 3rd to 8th March 2021 and from 6th May 
to 17th May which resulted in 633,500 impressions, 4,691 clicks to the consultation 
page with an average click-through-rate of 0.74% which is higher than the industry 
average for display ads of 0.35%. The digital campaign placed adverts on websites 
and social media pages related to Southwark and the private rented sector, including: 

o Gumtree.com 
o Southwarknews.co.uk 
o Zoopla.co.uk 
o Realhomes.com 
o Onthemarket.com 
o Propertytorenovate.co.uk 
o Globalpropertyguide.com 
o Propertywire.com 
o Apartmenttherapy.com 
o Homebuilding.co.uk 
o Loveproperty.com 
o Rightmove.co.uk  

 

Activities to reach out to landlords outside the borough included: 

 Placing adverts in neighbouring borough local newspapers: 
o Tower Hamlets publication 
o East London Advertiser 
o South London Press 
o Hackney & Islington Gazette 

 A digital campaign on the London Property Licensing website. London property 
Licensing is the leading website for informing private landlords in the UK. The 
campaign started on 5th March and ran until 28th June. The campaign included: 

o From 9th March to 28th June a pixel banner advert promoting the consultation 
was placed on the London Property Licensing (LPL) homepage 

158



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 11  
 

o From 9th March to 28th June a banner headline attached to a rotating image at 
the top of the LPL home page with a link to the consultation listing. 

o On 5th March to 28th June the London Borough of Southwark’s page on the 
LPL website was updated with information about the licensing consultation 
and how to take part  

o From 9th March to 28th June, the licensing consultation was advertised on the 
LPL latest events webpage. It was also promoted in the events section on the 
LPL home page and on all London borough pages and news & comment 
articles 

o A news article about the licensing consultation was posted in the LPL news 
section on 19th March and promoted on social media and in the LPL 
newsletter 

o The licensing consultation was promoted in posts on the LPL Facebook page 
and the LPL LinkedIn page on 12th March, 18th March, 24th March and 25th 
June  

o Tweets about the licensing consultation were published on the LPL Twitter 
Feed (@lplicensing) every 6 to 8 days, timed to cover a variety of morning, 
afternoon and evening posts, between 11th March and 28th June. During this 
period the @lplicensing twitter feed had between 2,244 and 2,270   followers, 
generating impressions, likes, retweets and comments from a variety of 
people including a landlord legal advice service, letting agent association, 
letting agent, property commentator, lecturer, property licensing business, 
accreditation scheme, the local authority and members of the public. 

o Promotion of the licensing consultation in the LPL newsletter on 26th March, 
30th April and 27th May which is sent to between 3,098 and 3,143 people who 
have requested updates on housing regulation and property licensing 
schemes 

 Running a digital advertising campaign from 3rd to 8th March 2021 and from 6th May 
to 17th May which resulted in 633,500 impressions, 4,691 clicks to the consultation 
page with an average click-through-rate of 0.74% which is higher than the industry 
average for display ads of 0.35%. The digital campaign placed adverts on websites 
and social media pages related to Southwark and the private rented sector, including: 

o Gumtree.com 
o Southwarknews.co.uk 
o Zoopla.co.uk 
o Realhomes.com 
o Onthemarket.com 
o Propertytorenovate.co.uk 
o Globalpropertyguide.com 
o Propertywire.com 
o Apartmenttherapy.com 
o Homebuilding.co.uk 
o Loveproperty.com 
o Rightmove.co.uk  

 

Activities to make digitally excluded and vulnerable stakeholders aware of the consultation 
included: 

 Reaching out to local community and outreach groups to ask them to share the 
consultation with the groups they interact with: 

o AB Southwark 
o Central Southwark 
o Link Age Southwark 
o Community Southwark 
o Southwark Wellbeing Hub 

159



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 12  
 

o Southwark Pensioners Action Group 
o Southwark Disability Forum 

 Including the consultation in local community group newsletters: 
o Southwark news Leaderboard 
o Southwark R.E.A.C.H. Alliance newsletter 
o Southwark Latin American Network newsletter 
o Southwark LGBT Network newsletter 

 Adverts for the consultation were placed in the spring and summer editions of the 
Southwark Life magazine, which is posted through all letterboxes in the borough  

 Southwark Young Advisors went out on behalf of the council to ask people about the 
consultation and hand out leaflets 

o 2nd June 2021 outside Aylesham Shopping Centre 
o 3rd June 2021 outside at Elephant and Castle shopping centre 
o 4th June 2021 East Street Market  
o 17th June 2021 at Spring Community Hub, a foodbank in Camberwell  

 Adverts were placed on the back of 60 buses across three depots, covering key 
routes through the borough from 24th May to 20th June 2021 

 Adverts were added to 43 outdoor digital boards across the borough. The campaign 
on the outdoor digital boards ran from 17th May to 26th June 2021 

 Adverts placed on council estate notice boards and x3 council estate digital boards 
across the borough 

Activities to make stakeholders within the council aware of the consultation included: 

 Internal communications within the council including: 
o A notice on the staff intranet, Yammer and all staff emails 
o Holding a workshop with 60 staff from six teams on the consultation 

 Updating the council website corporate homepage to include the consultation 

 Posting a news article about the consultation on the council website 

 Banner adverts for the consultation were placed on related pages on the council 
website 

 Using the council’s social media 
o 34 twitter posts with a total of 71,803 impressions, 1,042 engagements, 74 re-

tweets and 62 likes 
o 31 Facebook posts with a total of 8,394 people reached and 112 likes  

Activities to make other stakeholders outside the borough aware of the consultation 
included: 

 Emails to neighbouring London borough councils (City of London, Lewisham, 
Lambeth, and Tower Hamlets) to inform them of the consultation  

Consultation Methods  

The council used several formats to gather feedback from stakeholders on the consultation 

Online Survey 

The online survey was open to the general public. In total there were 1,916 responses to the 
online survey. The consultation survey was the main method of gathering feedback during 
the consultation. Respondents were asked their views on Selective and Additional Licensing, 
the proposed fees and conditions, and their views on issues within the borough. Their 
responses are analysed and broken down by stakeholder type below. 

Commonplace Map 

160



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 13  
 

The council also ran an online Commonplace map that members of the public could use to 
express their views on licensing. The Commonplace Map showed a map of the borough, and 
respondents could drop a pin on a specific point on the map, or larger areas of the borough. 
Respondents could also give their sentiment towards licensing, and then share their 
experiences of private rented housing in the borough. There were 121 responses to the 
Commonplace. 

Public Forums 

The council ran online public forms to provide more information about the proposed scheme 
and to gather feedback from stakeholder who would be impacted by licensing. The public 
meetings were held over Zoom, and the council presented information about the proposed 
schemes, followed by a question-and-answer session. 

Other written feedback 

The council accepted feedback on the proposed licensing schemes by email or written 
response. The feedback in the fourteen emails received has been analysed below and the 
written responses received can be found in the appendices.  

  

161



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 14  
 

Consultation Survey Results  

This section of the report presents the results from the consultation survey2. There were 
1,916 responses to the consultation survey. 

In the following analysis, the percentages are based on the answers to the question and will 
state where less than the total 1,916 respondents answered the question. 

 

Overall Consultation Response 

Respondents to the consultation were categorised into the following stakeholder groups. 
Where respondents said they were both a landlord and another stakeholder group (for 
example and landlord and an owner occupier), they have been categorised as a landlord for 
the analysis of the consultation responses. 

 

The range of respondents to the consultation show a good representation of views from 
different stakeholder groups 

1,896 respondents answered the question asking if they live in the London Borough of 
Southwark.  

                                                
2 . In total there were 1,943 responses to the online consultation survey. Where there were duplicate responses (based on 

both the name and email address given by the respondent), the second, later response was included. Without the duplicate 

responses, there were 1,916 responses to the consultation. 

162



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 15  
 

 

 

These results clearly indicate that the consultation reached landlords outside the borough, 
whilst also gathering the views of a range of residents and tenants within the borough. 

Views on the proposed licensing schemes 

Proposal to introduce Selected Licensing in targeted areas. 

The Council is proposing to introduce a Selective Licensing scheme which would target 
privately rented homes in 19 wards let to single family households, two sharers or one 
person. These would be in four designations, as outlined in the Executive Summary. 

The overall majority, around 42% (813) of respondents, agree with the proposal for Selective 
Licensing. Around 20% (376) disagree. However, there is a sizeable minority stated that they 
are not sure, this probably reflects the fact that a large number of residents and tenants 
responded, who may not have been aware of selective licensing. Whilst this lack of 
knowledge is common and occurs in other London boroughs, it raises the requirement for 
the council to increase its education of tenants and residents about selective licensing.  

All respondents (1,916) to the online consultation answered this question. 

163



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 16  
 

 

Looking at the responses by group, owner occupiers, privately renting tenants and owners of 
a shared ownership property are in favour of the proposals with over 50% of each group 
agreeing. Landlords are opposed to the proposals with over 50% disagreeing  

 

Reasons for opposing Selective Licensing in targeted areas. 

Respondents who said they disagreed with the proposed Selective Licensing scheme were 
asked to give their reasons if they wished. For all the free text responses throughout the 
report, each response was looked at and categorised into a theme. Comments that were not 
relevant to the question were excluded from this analysis. In total there were 185 comments 
from respondents who disagreed with selective licensing, 129 from landlords, 25 from 

164



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 17  
 

tenants living in private rented accommodation and 31 from other respondent types. Themes 
which received fewer than 3 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for opposing selective licensing are that “it is a money-making scheme”, “good 
landlords should not be penalised” and that “rents will increase/the cost will be passed onto 
tenants”. All representations to the consultation will be considered in line with the Housing 
Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

 

Reasons for supporting Selective Licensing in 19 wards  

Respondents who said they agreed with the proposed Selective Licensing scheme were 
asked to give their reasons if they wished. In total there were 76 comments from 
respondents who agreed with selective licensing, 13 from landlords, 23 from tenants living in 
private rented accommodation and 40 from other respondent types. Themes which received 
fewer than 3 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for agreeing with selective licensing were that they “agree if properly enforced”, 
that licensing will “address rogue landlords and increase their responsibility” and they “agree 
if there are re-designations and other issues looked at”. All representations to the 
consultation will be considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex 
to this consultation. 

 

 

165



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 18  
 

 

Proposal to introduce Additional Licensing across the borough. 

The Council is proposing to introduce a borough-wide Additional Licensing scheme which 
would target privately rented homes of multiple occupation, let to 3 or 4 unrelated people, 
forming 2 or more households, who share amenities such as a kitchen or bathroom 

The overall majority, around 45% (855) of respondents agree with the proposal for Additional 
Licensing. Around 17% (331) disagree. However, there is a sizeable minority stated that they 
are not sure, this probably reflects the fact that a large number of residents who have not 
been affected by the previous borough-wide additional licensing scheme. Similar to selective 
licensing, while this lack of knowledge is common and occurs in other London boroughs, it 
raises the requirement for the council to increase its education of residents about additional 
licensing. 

All respondents (1,916) to the online consultation answered this question. 

 

Looking at the responses by group, owner occupiers, privately renting tenants and owners of 
a shared ownership property are in favour of the proposals with over 55% of each group 
agreeing. Landlords are opposed to the proposals with 43% disagreeing  

166



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 19  
 

 

Reasons for opposing Additional Licensing across the borough. 

Respondents who said they disagreed with the proposed Additional Licensing scheme were 
asked to give their reasons if they wished. For all the free text responses throughout the 
report, each response was looked at and categorised into a theme. Comments that were not 
relevant to the question were excluded from this analysis. In total there were 163 comments 
from respondents who disagreed with selective licensing, 105 from landlords, 21 from 
tenants living in private rented accommodation and 37 from other respondent types. Themes 
which received fewer than 3 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for opposing selective licensing are that “good landlords should not be 
penalised”, the “rents will increase/the cost will be passed onto tenants” and that the scheme 
“will make it harder to rent in the borough”. All representations to the consultation will be 
considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

 

Reasons for supporting Additional Licensing across the borough 

Respondents who said they agreed with the proposed Additional Licensing scheme were 
asked to give their reasons if they wished. In total there were 120 comments from 

167



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 20  
 

respondents who agreed with additional licensing, 21 from landlords, 39 from tenants living 
in private rented accommodation and 60 from other respondent types. Themes which 
received fewer than 3 comments were grouped under ‘other’. 

Key themes for agreeing with additional licensing were that licensing “addresses rogue 
landlords and increases their responsibility”, that licensing “addresses and improves the 
standard of living (housing issues, inequality, rent and conditions)” and that respondents 
“agree if properly enforced”. All representations to the consultation will be considered in line 
with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

 

Alternatives to licensing schemes  

Respondents were also asked what alternatives the council could consider to each of the 
proposed licensing schemes. 

Alternative options to Selective Licensing  

There were 221 comments in response to the question regarding alternatives to Selective 
Licensing. For all the free text responses throughout the report, each response was looked 
at and categorised into a theme. Comments that were not relevant to the question were 
excluded from this analysis. In total there were 221 comments from respondents who 
suggested alternatives to selective licensing, 146 from landlords, 30 from tenants living in 
private rented accommodation and 45 from other respondent types. Themes which received 
fewer than 3 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for alternative suggestion were that respondents “generally disagreed with the 
proposals”, that the “council should use their existing powers and enforce existing 
regulations” and that the selective licensing scheme “should cover the whole borough”. All 
representations to the consultation will be considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and 
published as an Annex to this consultation. 

 

168



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 21  
 

 

Alternative options to Additional Licensing  

There were 247 comments in response to the question regarding alternatives to Additional 
Licensing. For all the free text responses throughout the report, each response was looked 
at and categorised into a theme. Comments that were not relevant to the question were 
excluded from this analysis. In total there were 247 comments from respondents who 
suggested alternatives to selective licensing, 152 from landlords, 34 from tenants living in 
private rented accommodation and 61 from other respondent types. Themes which received 
fewer than 3 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for alternative suggestion were that respondents “generally disagreed with the 
proposals”, that the “council should use their existing powers and enforce existing 
regulations” and that the council should issue fines for “poor properties/landlords”. All 
representations to the consultation will be considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and 
published as an Annex to this consultation. 

 

169



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 22  
 

Views on the proposed licensing scheme conditions 

The consultation asked respondents for their views on the proposed set of licence 
conditions, for both selective and additional licensing schemes. Information about the licence 
conditions was provided within the consultation documents 

Selective Licence Conditions 

Respondents were asked if they agree or disagree with the selective licence conditions. 
1,657 respondents answered this question. 36% (592) respondents agreed that the selective 
licence conditions were reasonable, and 18% (299) disagreed. 

 

Looking at the responses by group, owner occupiers and privately renting tenants agree that 
the conditions are reasonable with over 45% of each group agreeing. Landlords disagree 
that the conditions are reasonable with 49% disagreeing. The large number of “Not sure” 
responses indicates that there is requirement for the council to engage with tenants on the 
licence conditions. 

 

 

170



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 23  
 

Comments on the proposed Selective Licence Conditions 

Respondents were asked to give their feedback on the proposed licence conditions for 
selective licensing. Information about the licence conditions was provided within the 
consultation documents 

Respondents were asked which conditions they thought should be removed.  For all the free 
text responses throughout the report, each response was looked at and categorised into a 
theme. Comments that were not relevant to the question were excluded from this analysis. In 
total there were 133 comments from respondents, 83 from landlords,15 from tenants living in 
private rented accommodation and 35 from other respondent types. Themes which received 
fewer than 2 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for which licence conditions should be removed were that “None” of the licence 
conditions should be removed, “All” of the licence conditions should be removed and the 
licence conditions relating to that are “fees” should be removed. All representations to the 
consultation will be considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex 
to this consultation. 

 

Respondents were asked which conditions they thought should be added to selective 
licences. In total there were 85 comments from respondents, 32 from landlords, 20 from 
tenants living in private rented accommodation and 33 from other respondent types. Themes 
which received fewer than 2 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for which licence conditions should be added were “None” and conditions 
around “Enforcement”. All representations to the consultation will be considered in line with 
the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

171



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 24  
 

 

Respondents were asked which conditions they thought were unclear. In total there were 84 
comments from respondents, 37 from landlords,17 from tenants living in private rented 
accommodation and 30 from other respondent types. Themes which received fewer than 2 
comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for which licence conditions were unclear were that “None” and that that 
conditions regarding “Fees” were unclear. All representations to the consultation will be 
considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

 

Respondents were asked if they thought other exemptions should apply for selective 
licensing. In total there were 62 comments from respondents, 32 from landlords,7 from 
tenants living in private rented accommodation and 23 from other respondent types. Themes 
which received fewer than 2 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for if there should be other exemptions from selective licensing were “No” there 
should not be further exemptions and “General disagreement with the proposals”. All 
representations to the consultation will be considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and 
published as an Annex to this consultation. 

172



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 25  
 

 

 

Additional Licence Conditions 

Respondents were asked if they agree or disagree with the additional licence conditions. 
1,707 respondents answered this question. 38% (641) respondents agreed that the selective 
licence conditions were reasonable, and 17% (292) disagreed. 

 

Looking at the responses by group, owner occupiers and owners of a shared ownership 
property agree that the conditions are reasonable with over 51% of each group agreeing. 
47% of tenants living in privately rented accommodation also agreed. Landlords (41%) 
disagree that the conditions are reasonable. 

173



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 26  
 

 

Comments on the proposed Additional Licence Conditions 

Respondents were asked to give their feedback on the proposed licence conditions for 
additional licensing. Information about the licence conditions was provided within the 
consultation documents 

Respondents were asked which conditions they thought should be removed.  For all the free 
text responses throughout the report, each response was looked at and categorised into a 
theme. Comments that were not relevant to the question were excluded from this analysis. In 
total there were 155 comments from respondents, 82 from landlords, 30 from tenants living 
in private rented accommodation and 43 from other respondent types. Themes which 
received fewer than 2 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for which licence conditions should be removed were that “No” licence 
conditions should be removed, “general disagreement with the proposals” and the licence 
conditions that are “fees related” should be removed. All representations to the consultation 
will be considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this 
consultation. 

174



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 27  
 

 

Respondents were asked which conditions they thought should be added to additional 
licences. In total there were 136 comments from respondents, 44 from landlords, 37 from 
tenants living in private rented accommodation and 55 from other respondent types. Themes 
which received fewer than 2 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for which licence conditions should be added were that “No” conditions should 
be added, that respondents “Don’t know” which conditions should be added and that “Room 
specification” conditions should be added. All representations to the consultation will be 
considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

 

Respondents were asked which conditions they thought were unclear. In total there were 
109 comments from respondents, 42 from landlords, 20 from tenants living in private rented 
accommodation and 47 from other respondent types. Themes which received fewer than 2 
comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for which licence conditions were unclear were that “None” of the conditions 
were unclear and that the “fire safety” conditions were unclear. All representations to the 
consultation will be considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex 
to this consultation. 

175



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 28  
 

 

 

Views on the proposed licensing scheme fees 

The consultation asked respondents for their views on the proposed licence fees for both 
selective and additional licensing schemes. Information about the licence fees was provided 
within the consultation documents 

Selective Licence Fees 

Respondents were asked how reasonable they feel the proposed licence fee for Selective 
Licensing scheme of £900 for a five-year licence. 

1,684 respondents answered this question. A third of respondents (34%, 573 respondents) 
said that they thought the fees were reasonable or a little too low, however a third (32%, 
541) felt the fees were too high or much too high, and the final third answered that they 
didn’t know if the fees were reasonable or not. 

.  

Looking at the responses by group, a third of owner occupiers and tenants in private rented 
accommodation think that the fees are reasonable. However, 40% of tenants in private 
rented accommodation and owners of shared properties say they “don’t know” if the fees are 

176



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 29  
 

reasonable, and as well as over 50% of council tenants. 64% of landlords think that the fee 
is much too high. 

 

Additional Licence Fees 

Respondents were asked how reasonable they feel the proposed licence fee for Selective 
Licensing scheme of £1,300 for a five-year licence. 

1,681 respondents answered this question. A third of respondents (35%, 586 respondents) 
said that they thought the fees were reasonable or a little too low, however a third (32%, 
549) felt the fees were too high or much too high, and the final third (33%, 546) answered 
that they didn’t know if the fees were reasonable or not. 

 

Looking at the responses by group, around a third of owner occupiers (32%), owners of a 
shared ownership property (36%) and tenants in private rented accommodation (36%) think 
that the fees are reasonable. 56% of landlords think that the fee is much too high. 

177



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 30  
 

 

Comments on the licence fee discounts 

The council proposed several possible discounts to the licence fees. 

The council proposed an early bird discount of 30% on application fees submitted for 
Selective or Additional licensing during the first three months of the scheme and further 
discounts which apply across all licensing schemes (including Mandatory). They are:  

 Gold Standard Charter members – 50% discount on the Part B fee  

 Platinum Standard Charter members are either: 
o landlords who have signed up to the finders fee scheme - 100% discount on 

the Part B fee for all properties in their portfolio that are in Southwark and/or 
o landlords who have signed up to the council’s social lettings agency - 100% 

discount for each property signed up   

Information about licence fees and discounts were provided within the consultation 
documents. 

Respondents were asked if they thought the proposed discounts to the licence fees were 
reasonable. 1,615 respondents answered this question. Over a third of respondents (39%, 
622 respondents) said that they thought the discounts were reasonable, however over two 
fifths (42%, 685) answered that they were “not sure” if the discounts were reasonable or not. 
A fifth of respondents (19%, 308) answered that the discounts were not reasonable. 

 

178



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 31  
 

 

Looking at the responses by group, almost half of tenants in private rented accommodation 
(48%) think that the fees are reasonable. 40% of landlords think that the discounts are not 
reasonable. 

 

Respondents were asked which of the proposed discounts they thought should be removed. 
For all the free text responses throughout the report, each response was looked at and 
categorised into a theme. Comments that were not relevant to the question were excluded 
from this analysis. In total there were 221 comments from respondents who suggested 
alternatives to selective licensing, 94 from landlords, 55 from tenants living in private rented 
accommodation and 72 from other respondent types. Themes which received fewer than 3 
comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for alternative suggestion were that “all of” the discounts be removed, that none 
of the discounts should be removed and that there “should be no fee”. All representations to 
the consultation will be considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an 
Annex to this consultation. 

179



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 32  
 

 

Respondents were also asked if there were any additional discounts the council should 
consider. In total there were 162 comments from respondents who suggested alternatives to 
selective licensing, 90 from landlords, 21 from tenants living in private rented 
accommodation and 51 from other respondent types. Themes which received fewer than 3 
comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for alternative suggestion were that “no” additional discounts should be 
considered, “general disagreement with the proposals” and there should be “discounts for 
good landlords”. All representations to the consultation will be considered in line with the 
Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

 

Views on the proposed changes to Mandatory HMO Licencing fees 

and conditions 

The consultation asked respondents for their views on the proposed changes to the licence 
fees and licence conditions for mandatory HMO licences. 

Mandatory HMO Licence Fees 

Respondents were asked how reasonable they feel the proposed change to the licence fee 
for mandatory HMO licensing of £1,500 + £100 per room above 5 bedrooms. It is a change 
from the ‘per bedroom’ fee under the current scheme. 

180



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 33  
 

1,710 respondents answered this question. A third of respondents (33%, 550 respondents) 
said that they thought the fees were reasonable or a little too low, however a third (35%, 
594) felt the fees were too high or much too high, and the final third answered that they 
didn’t know if the fees were reasonable or not. 

 

Looking at the responses by group, 43% of tenants in private rented accommodation and 
owner occupiers think that the fees are reasonable or a little too low. However, 37% of 
tenants in private rented accommodation say they “don’t know” if the fees are reasonable, 
and as well as over 40% of council tenants and housing association tenants. 56% of 
landlords think that the fee is much too high 

 

Mandatory HMO Licence Conditions 

Respondents were asked how reasonable they feel the proposed changes to the licence 
conditions for mandatory HMO licensing.  of £1,500 + £100 per room above 5 bedrooms. 
Information about the licence conditions was provided within the consultation documents 

1,677 respondents answered this question. Slightly more than a third of respondents (37%, 
626 respondents) said that they thought the licence conditions were reasonable. However, 
almost half of respondents (45%, 759) answered that they were “not sure” if the licence 

181



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 34  
 

conditions were reasonable or not. Less than a fifth (18%, 292 respondents) said that the 
licence conditions were not reasonable. 

 

Looking at the responses by group, 48% of tenants in private rented accommodation and 
54% of owner occupiers think that the licence conditions are reasonable. However, 44% of 
tenants in private rented accommodation say they are “not sure” if the licence conditions are 
reasonable, and as well as over 53% of council tenants and housing association tenants, 
47% of landlords. 37% of landlords think that the licence conditions are not reasonable. 

 

Respondents were asked which conditions they thought should be removed.  For all the free 
text responses throughout the report, each response was looked at and categorised into a 
theme. Comments that were not relevant to the question were excluded from this analysis. In 
total there were 176 comments from respondents, 66 from landlords, 42 from tenants living 
in private rented accommodation and 68 from other respondent types. Themes which 
received fewer than 2 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for which licence conditions should be removed were that “None” of the licence 
conditions should be removed, comments that “the cost will be passed onto tenants” and 
“general disagreement with the proposals”. All representations to the consultation will be 
considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

182



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 35  
 

 

Respondents were asked if there were any conditions they thought should be added to the 
Mandatory HMO licences. In total there were 190 comments from respondents, 33 from 
landlords, 68 from tenants living in private rented accommodation and 89 from other 
respondent types. Themes which received fewer than 2 comments were grouped under 
‘other’ 

Key themes for which licence conditions should be removed were that “No” conditions 
should be added, there should be “more frequent inspections” and conditions that “ensure 
the cost is not passed onto renters”. All representations to the consultation will be 
considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

183



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 36  
 

 

Respondents were asked if there were any conditions that are unclear for the mandatory 
HMO licences. In total there were 138 comments from respondents, 43 from landlords, 32 
from tenants living in private rented accommodation and 63 from other respondent types. 
Themes which received fewer than 2 comments were grouped under ‘other’ 

Key themes for which licence conditions should be removed were that “No” conditions were 
unclear, “the fee structure is unclear” and comments that “the costs will be passed onto 
tenants” All representations to the consultation will be considered in line with the Housing 
Act 2004 and published as an Annex to this consultation. 

184



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 37  
 

 

 

Addressing the number of responses with ‘No opinion’  

It was noted that there were a high number ‘don’t know’/’not sure’ responses, throughout the 
consultation.   

The table below shows the number of ‘don’t know/’not sure’ responses by respondent type  

  Landlords  PRS tenants  Council tenants/owner 
occupiers & other  

To proposals to introduce 
licensing schemes   

21%  38%  41%  

Licensing conditions  21%  37%  42%  

Fees   14%  42%  44%  

Discounts  19%  35%  46%  

  

Although the highest percentage of ‘don’t know/not sure’ responses were from owner 
occupiers, housing association tenants or council tenants, who may not have any previous 
experience of the private rented sector or licensing, a significant number were from landlords 
and tenants in the PRS. This is thought to be an indication of a lack of awareness of rights 
and responsibilities within the sector. This is something that the Council believed to be the 
case before the consultation and believe that the consultation results bear this out. The 
Council is committed to; empowering residents to take pride and influence over their homes 
and, support businesses and increase the professionalism of landlords operating in the 
borough. As part of this commitment, and in response to the consultation, the Council 

185



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 38  
 

intends to increase and improve promotion of its existing services and initiatives, highlighted 
below. Other new initiatives, i.e. Renters’ Support Organisation & Gold Standard Charter, will 
help to inform PRS tenants and landlords and will be implemented alongside the proposed 
licensing schemes. The Council will continue to work with landlords and tenants to ensure 
that services are meeting their needs.   

 

Views on the proposed Gold Standard Charter 

The council asked for feedback on their proposed Gold Standard Charter. To qualify for the 
Gold Standard Charter a landlord must be a member of a recognised landlord’s/managing 
agents association or be a member of an accreditation scheme and meet other criteria. 
Information about the charter was available as part of the consultation documents. A 
discount of 50% on the part B fee for both licences would be offered if a landlord was part of 
the Gold Standard Charter. 

438 respondents responded to the question asking if landlords would be interested in 
signing up to the Gold Standard Charter. Only 19% of respondents to the question said they 
would be interested. Comments given for disagreeing with the charter include that landlords 
feel they already meet or exceed the standards laid out in the charter and that it would be 
unnecessary bureaucracy. 

 

Landlords were then asked if a discount would be an incentive to join the gold standard 
charter. 436 respondents answered this question, and 30% agreed that it would be an 
incentive. 

186



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 39  
 

 

Respondents were asked if they would you be more likely to move into a property with a 
landlord or managing agent who has signed up to the Gold Standard Charter than one 
without? 690 respondents answered this question, with 67% answering that they would be 
more likely to. 

 

This response clearly indicates that tenants would like a landlord who is signed up to a good 
standard of behaviour, however landlords do not see this as necessary. 

Views on the issues within the borough 

Respondents to the survey were asked their opinion of issues relating to anti-social 
behaviour (ASB), deprivation and poor property conditions in the borough. 

Views on anti-social behaviour in the borough. 

187



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 40  
 

Respondents were asked about their views of where in the borough they thought that anti-
social behaviour was an issue. There were 3,320 responses to this question, (respondents 
could select multiple areas), with the highest proportion of responses (30%) saying that ASB 
is an issue across the whole borough.  

Respondents were asked where they had personally experienced ASB recently. There were 
2,487 responses to this question (respondents could select multiple locations). 26% (656) of 
responses stated they had experienced ASB in the home they live in now.  

 

Respondents were asked how they had dealt with the ASB they had experienced. There 
were 2,347 responses to this question (respondents could select multiple answers). 23% 
(541) of responses stated they had contacted the council about the ASB and 21% (502) 
stated that they had contacted the police. 

 

Respondents were asked to say how big a problem they thought there is in Southwark with 
different types of anti-social behaviour.  

69% of respondents to the question stated that “leaving rubbish in gardens and in the street” 
is a very big problem or fairly big problem in Southwark and 56% of respondents to the 
question stated that “contaminated or inappropriate recycling” is a very big or fairly big 
problem. 52% of respondents to the question stated that “noisy, rowdy or inconsiderate 

188



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 41  
 

neighbours” is a very big or fairly big problem in Southwark, and 57% stated that “drug or 
alcohol related activity” is also a very big or fairly big problem. 

Although there has been an additional licensing scheme in Southwark, the perception of the 
respondents is that there are still issues in Southwark to be addressed with regards to ASB 

 

Views on poor property conditions in the borough. 

Respondents were asked about their views of where in the borough they thought that poor 
property conditions were an issue. There were 3,575 responses to this question, 
(respondents could select multiple areas), with 22% (785) of responses saying that poor 
property conditions are an issue across the whole borough. 9% (324) of responses stated 
that poor property conditions are an issue in Peckham ward, 8% (295) stated that it is an 
issue in Old Kent Road ward. 

 

Respondents were also asked where in Southwark they had had experience with poor 
property conditions in Southwark. There were 2,3657 responses to this question 
(respondents could select multiple locations). 23% (542) of responses stated they had 
experienced poor property conditions in the home they live in now.  

189



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 42  
 

 

Respondents were asked to say how big a problem they thought there is in Southwark with 
different types of poor property conditions in rented properties.  

52% of respondents to the question stated that “poor response from landlords to tenant’s 
complaints” is a very big problem or fairly big problem in Southwark. 50% of respondents to 
the question stated that “poor state of repair of private rented properties” is a very big or 
fairly big problem in Southwark, and 50% stated that “poor management of the property” is 
also a very big or fairly big problem 

 

Views on indices of deprivation in the borough. 

Respondents were asked about their experiences and the experiences of those in their 
household living in Southwark.  

Indices of deprivation Respondents % of total 
respondents 

One or more of us owns a car 590 31% 

One or more of us is currently unemployed 333 17% 

190



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 43  
 

Indices of deprivation Respondents % of total 
respondents 

One or more of us has been on furlough because of 
Covid-19 

292 15% 

One or more of us has been made redundant as a result 
of Covid-19 

155 8% 

One or more of us is a single parent 167 9% 

One or more of us is in receipt of housing benefit or 
universal credit 

318 17% 

One or more of us struggles to pay gas and electricity 
bills 

218 11% 

One or more of us uses a food bank since the beginning 
of the Covid-19 pandemic 

50 3% 

One or more of us used a food bank before Covid-19 31 2% 

 

Respondents were asked to say how big a problem they thought there is in Southwark with 
different indicators of deprivation. 

Over 50% of respondents to each question stated they thought that “reliance on food banks”, 
“fuel poverty”, “unemployment” and “furlough or redundancy directly caused by Covid-19” 
were very big or fairly big issues in the borough. 

 

Demographic profile of respondents  

The respondents to the consultation survey were asked if they would give their age range, 
sex and their ethnic background. Their responses were compared with benchmarks for the 
borough from the JSNA (Joint Strategic Needs Assessment) Factsheets – November 2017. 
 

Age of respondents  

The question regarding the age of respondents was voluntary and there were 1,595 
responses to the question. This indicates that a broad range of ages responded to the 
consultation. The rate of responses by age was tracked during the consultation to ensure 
that responses were comparable to the benchmarking 

191

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/public-health/health-and-wellbeing-in-southwark-jsna/southwark-profile


Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 44  
 

 

Age Range  Number of 
respondents 

% of respondents in each 
age group 

Southwark Benchmark 
Comparison 

16 - 17 1 0.06% 
 

18 - 24 38 2.38% 7.82% 

25 - 34 376 23.57% 24.32% 

35 - 44 416 26.08% 16.21% 

45 - 54 323 20.25% 12.83% 

55 - 64 271 16.99% 8.33% 

65 - 74 137 8.59% 4.47% 

75 - 84 26 1.63% 2.52% 

85 - 94 5 0.31% 0.64% 

95+ 2 0.13% 0.38% 

Total 1595 
  

   

 
Sex of respondents  

The question regarding the sex of respondents was voluntary and there were 1,540 
responses to the question. The sex of respondents was also tracked during the consultation 
to ensure that the responses were comparable with benchmark figures 
Sex Number of 

respondents 
% of respondents Southwark benchmark 

comparison 

Female 819 51.80% 50.18% 

Male 670 42.38% 49.82% 

Not answered 41 2.59% 
 

Grand Total 1540 100.00% 
 

 
Ethnicity of respondents  

The question regarding the ethnic background of respondents was voluntary and 
there were 1,569 responses to the question. The responses to the question 
regarding ethnic backgrounds were also tracked during the consultation to ensure 
that the responses were comparable with benchmark figures. To try and increase 
awareness of the consultation in groups that were under represented in the 

192



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 45  
 

consultation responses, the council engaged with local community groups such as 
Southwark REACH & Latin American Newsletter. 
 

Ethnic background  % of respondents of 
each ethnic background 

Southwark Benchmark 
Comparison 

White British  40.34% 37.26% 

Other White  15.87% 14.58% 

White Irish  2.74% 2.16% 

Black African 2% 15.00% 

Black Caribbean 2.17% 5.50% 

Black other 7.52% 4.50% 

Other Asian 1.27% 3.41% 

Chinese 1.08% 3.19% 

Indian 1.91% 2.31% 

Bangladeshi 0.00% 1.10% 

Arab 0.00% 0.99% 

White & Black 0.83% 3.60% 

Other ethnic group 19.31% 2.80% 

Other mixed 1.40% 2.40% 

White & Asian 1.34% 1.20% 

 

193



Appendix 12 
 

 
 

 

  

194



Appendix 12 
 

 
 

 

Commonplace map results 

The council also gathered feedback on licensing via a Commonplace map. There were 121 
responses to the Commonplace map. 

Respondents were asked about their levels of support for licensing. 41% (49) respondents 
stated that had positive support. 

 

 

Respondents could also state which type of stakeholder they were. There were 57 
responses to this question 

 

 

Respondents were also asked about their experiences of poor property conditions in the 
borough. Respondents could select more than one category, and there were 242 responses 
to this question 

195



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark  southwark.gov.uk/  Page 48  
 

 

Public meeting and written responses 

Southwark Council held ten public forums and also gathered feedback through 14 written 
responses on the proposed schemes by email. Below is a summary of the key themes that 
came out of both the public meetings and the written feedback. Written responses can be 
found in appendix 13 of the main report. All representations to the consultation were 
considered in line with the Housing Act 2004 and published online here. 

 The council should address issues in Social housing as a priority before licensing 
private landlords 

 Licensing punishes good landlords/leaseholders 

 General criticism of the council 

 Landlords with existing licences will not be apply to apply for the early bird discount 

 Southwark should use existing powers and regulations 

 The fee is too much  

 It’s a money-making scheme for the council 

 The council should introduce a complaints procedure for tenants 

 New build properties should be exempt 

 Lack of evidence of the effectiveness of existing additional and selective schemes 

 Exemption for landlords who let through an agent 

 

Appendices  

Please see Consultation Materials document. This includes the materials used for the 
consultation including: 

 Maps of the proposed licensing schemes 

 The survey questions 

 Communication visuals 
 

196

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/home-owners-services/private-home-owners-and-landlords/private-rented-property-licensing


Appendix 12 – Consultation Evidence 
 

 

Driving Up Standards for 
the Private Rented Sector 
 

Consultation on Private Sector 

Licensing in Southwark – Consultation 

Evidence 
 

Appendix 12 

 

19 October 2021 

  

197



Appendix 12 – Consultation Evidence 
 

Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  
southwark.gov.uk/  Page 2  

Contents 

Map of proposed schemes .................................................................................................... 3 

Map of proposed borough-wide Additional Licensing Scheme ........................................... 3 

Map of proposed Selective Licensing Scheme in 19 wards ................................................ 4 

Survey Questions .................................................................................................................. 5 

Communications Visuals ..................................................................................................... 40 

Visuals on the Southwark Council website ....................................................................... 40 

London Property Licensing website ................................................................................. 42 

Other website visuals ....................................................................................................... 43 

Newspapers ..................................................................................................................... 44 

Bus advertisements ......................................................................................................... 45 

Southwark Life ................................................................................................................. 46 

Community Southwark ..................................................................................................... 47 

Roadside Digital Advertisements ..................................................................................... 48 

 

  

198



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 3  

 

Map of proposed schemes 

Map of proposed borough-wide Additional Licensing Scheme 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

199



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 4  

 

Map of proposed Selective Licensing Scheme in 19 wards 

 

Designation 1:  

Very high, repeat 

ASB 

Designation 2:  

Poor property 

conditions 

Designation 3:  

Deprivation & poor 

property conditions 

Designation 4:  

Poor property 

conditions 

Wards: 

Newington 

Champion Hill 

Wards: 

Faraday 

Goose Green 

St. Giles 

Wards: 

North Walworth 

Nunhead & Queens 

Road 

Old Kent Road 

Peckham 

Wards: 

Camberwell Green 

Chaucer 

Dulwich Hill 

Dulwich Wood 

London Bridge & West 

Bermondsey 

Peckham Rye 

Rotherhithe 

Rye Lane 

South Bermondsey 

Surrey Docks 

200



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 5  

 

Survey Questions 

 

201



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 6  

 

 

202



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 7  

 

 

203



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 8  

 

 

204



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 9  

 

 

205



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 10  

 

 

206



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 11  

 

 

207



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 12  

 

 

208



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 13  

 

 

209



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 14  

 

 

210



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 15  

 

 

211



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 16  

 

 

212



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 17  

 

 

213



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 18  

 

 

214



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 19  

 

 

215



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 20  

 

 

216



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 21  

 

 

217



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 22  

 

 

218



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 23  

 

 

219



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 24  

 

 

220



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 25  

 

 

221



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 26  

 

 

222



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 27  

 

 

223



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 28  

 

 

224



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 29  

 

 

225



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 30  

 

 

226



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 31  

 

 

227



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 32  

 

 

228



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 33  

 

 

229



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 34  

 

 

230



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 35  

 

 

231



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 36  

 

 

232



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 37  

 

 

233



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 38  

 

 

234



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 39  

 

 
 

235



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 40  

 

Communications Visuals 

Visuals on the Southwark Council website 

 

 

236



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 41  

 

 

  

237



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 42  

 

London Property Licensing website  

 

 

238



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 43  

 

 

Other website visuals 

Letting Agent Today 

  

239



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 44  

 

Newspapers 

Our East End 

 

South London Press 

 

240



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 45  

 

Bus advertisements 

 

241



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 46  

 

Southwark Life  

 

 

  

242



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 47  

 

Community Southwark 

 

 

 

 

243



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 48  

 

Roadside Digital Advertisements 

 

 

244



Consultation on Private Sector Licensing in Southwark - Appendices  southwark.gov.uk/ 
 Page 49  

 

 

245



Appendix 13 
 

1 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Driving Up Standards for 

the Private Rented Sector 
 

PRS Licensing - Council’s 

consideration of Consultees’ 

responses to the Public Consultation 

 

Appendix 13 

 

19 October 2021 

 
  

246



Appendix 13 
 

2 
 

 

Contents 

1.Changes made to the proposed schemes by the Council in consideration of the 

responses to the consultation ........................................................................................... 3 

2.Council’s consideration of feedback from stakeholder organisations

 ........................................................................................................................................... 10 

3.Council’s consideration of feedback from stakeholder letters and responses from the 

questionnaire to the introduction of licensing schemes ................................................ 18 

a)Responses specific to additional licensing

 ........................................................................................................................................... 22 

b)Responses specific to selective licensing

 ........................................................................................................................................... 24 

c)Positive comments about the introduction of licensing schemes

 ........................................................................................................................................... 28 

d)Suggestions for alternatives to licensing

 ........................................................................................................................................... 30 

e)Suggestions for alternatives to additional licensing

 ........................................................................................................................................... 33 

f)Suggestions for alternatives to selective licensing

 ........................................................................................................................................... 37 

g)Responses concerning fee discounts

 ........................................................................................................................................... 39 

i.Responses to “Are there any discounts that should be removed?”

 ........................................................................................................................................... 40 

ii.Responses to “Are there any additional discounts that should be considered?”

 ........................................................................................................................................... 43 

h)Responses concerning licence conditions

 ........................................................................................................................................... 45 

i)Responses regarding which licence conditions are unclear for Mandatory Licensing

 ........................................................................................................................................... 74 

j)Responses regarding which licence conditions are unclear for Additional Licensing

 ........................................................................................................................................... 77 

k)Responses regarding which licence conditions are unclear for Selective Licensing

 ........................................................................................................................................... 79 

l)Responses regarding what conditions should be added to the Mandatory HMO 

Licence .............................................................................................................................. 81 

m)Responses regarding what conditions should be added to the Additional Licence

 ........................................................................................................................................... 88 

n)Responses regarding what conditions should be added to the Selective Licence

 ........................................................................................................................................... 90 

o)Responses regarding what other exemptions should apply to Selective Licensing

 ........................................................................................................................................... 91 

247



Appendix 13 
 

3 
 

A range of responses were received during consultation relating to the proposed schemes and alternatives to licensing, licence conditions; 

licence fees; the designation area; landlord and tenant support, as well as more general responses.  The following is the Council’s formal 

response to these representations, which have been carefully considered and informed a number of changes to the proposed schemes, which 

are listed below. 

1. Changes made to the proposed schemes by the Council in consideration of the responses to the consultation 

The following 15 conditions have been removed following feedback 

from the consultation survey and stakeholders.  

10 from selective licensing, 6 from additional licensing and 4 from 

mandatory HMO licensing: 

 All selective licensing designations – Condition 1.1 

 All selective licensing designations – Condition 1.6 

 Additional and all selective licensing designations – 

Condition 3.3 

 Selective licensing designations 2, 3 and 4 – Condition 5.2 

 Selective licensing designation 3 - Condition 6.8 

 Mandatory and Additional licensing - Condition 8.8 

 All selective licensing designations - Condition 9.2 

 Mandatory and Additional licensing - Condition 14.1 

 All selective licensing designations - Condition 11 

 Selective licensing designation 1 – Condition 14.6 

 Mandatory and Additional licensing - Condition 15 

 All selective licensing designations - Condition 12 

 Additional licensing – Condition 16 

 All selective licensing designations - Condition 13 

 Mandatory and Additional licensing - Condition 16 

 

 

The following conditions have been amended following feedback 

from the consultation survey and stakeholders. 

10 for selective licensing, 10 for additional licensing and 5 for 

mandatory HMO licensing: 

 Mandatory and Additional licensing - Condition 1.6 

 All selective licensing designations - Condition 1.7 

 Additional licensing – Condition 2.1 

 Additional and all selective licensing designations – 

Condition 3.1 

 Mandatory and Additional licensing - Condition 3.2 

 All selective licensing designations - Condition 3.2 

 Mandatory and Additional licensing - Condition 5.1 

 Additional licensing – Condition 5.4 

 Additional and all selective licensing designations – 

Condition 6.3 

 Mandatory and Additional licensing - Condition 8.4 

 Additional licensing – Condition 11.5 

 Mandatory and Additional licensing - Condition 12.1 

 All selective licensing designations - Condition 11.1 

 Selective licensing designation 1 – Condition 14.2 

 Selective licensing designation 1 – Condition 14.3 

 Selective licensing designations 2, 3 and 4 – Condition 15.4 

 Selective licensing designation 3 – Condition 19 

 Selective licensing designation 3 – Condition 20 

248



Appendix 13 
 

4 
 

 

More information on the feedback received and the changes to the conditions and licensing schemes can be found in the table below. 

Topic  Feedback Change Scheme(s) affected 

Additional 
Licensing and 
Section 257 
HMOs 

Suggestion from Safeagent was that 
additional licensing scheme could be 
restricted to section 257 HMOs where the 
whole building and all the individual flats 
within it are in single ownership or 
considered to be effectively under the same 
control and licence where number of flats 
exceed the number of storeys) 

The additional licensing scheme will be restricted to section 257 HMOs 
where the whole building and all the individual flats within it are in single 
ownership or considered to be effectively under the same control, and 
licence where number of flats exceed the number of storeys. 

Additional Licensing 

Selective 
Licensing 
Designation 3 - 
Licence 
Conditions  

Suggestion from SafeAgent was that the 
installation of water saving devices/full 
central heating could be recommendations, 
not licence requirements  

The council will amend the licence conditions relating to the installation 
of water saving devices and central heating (19 and 20) to be 
recommendations, not licence conditions  

Selective Licensing 
Designation 3  

Selective 
Licensing – 
Licence condition 
1.1  

Feedback from the survey and from 
Safeagent was that displaying the licence 
creates an institutional feel and is 
unnecessary 

The condition to display the property licence within a communal area of 
the property will be removed  

All Selective Licensing 
designations 

Selective 
Licensing – 
Licence condition 
1.6 

Feedback from the survey was that this 
condition was too vague and wide reaching 

The condition that the “property must comply with and be maintained in 
accordance with and any Approved Codes of Practice which the Council 
or Central Government may from time to time require” has been 
removed 

All Selective Licensing 
designations 

Mandatory (1.6), 
Additional (1.6) 
and Selective (1.7) 
Licence conditions  

Feedback from the survey stated that this 
condition was unclear or not achievable.  

There was a typo in the condition which has been rectified. It has been 
changed to: “An area of glazing which is equivalent to at least 10% of 
the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided.  An 
area of openable glazing (for ventilation) which is equivalent to at least 
5% of the internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided.” 
The previous condition stated that “at least 20% of the internal space of 
each habitable room” must have an area of openable glazing for 
ventilation 

Mandatory, Additional 
and all selective 
licensing designations  

Additional Licence 
condition 2.1 

Feedback from SafeAgent was that the 
requirement to provide the gas safety 
certificate upon request be amended to 
within 14 days of a written request. 

This condition has been amended to “If gas is supplied to the property, a 
valid Gas Safe gas safety certificate must be available, within 7 days, on 
request, at any time” 

Additional Licensing  

249



Appendix 13 
 

5 
 

Topic  Feedback Change Scheme(s) affected 

Additional and 
Selective Licence 
conditions 3.1 

Feedback from SafeAgent was that the 
conditions for electrical installation and 
electrical appliances be broken down into 
two separate conditions 

This condition has been amended to remove references to electrical 
appliances  

Additional and all 
selective licensing 
designations 

Mandatory (3.2), 
Additional (3.2) 
and Selective (3.2) 
licence conditions  

Feedback from SafeAgent was that 
conditions 3.1 and 3.2 refer to electrical 
applications and they should be two 
separate conditions 
 

This condition has been amended to “A valid Portable Appliance Testing 
(PAT) record must be available, on request, at any time, for all electrical 
appliances provided in the property by the licence holder. PAT tests 
should be carried out by a competent person every twelve months, or as 
often as recommended for the type of appliance with records kept for at 
least five years. Any necessary maintenance or repair work must be 
undertaken by a competent electrical engineer in accordance with Part P 
of the Building Regulations. Copies of all maintenance records and PAT 
testing must be provided to the Council on request (discretionary 
condition).” 

Mandatory, Additional 
and all selective 
licensing designations 

Additional (3.3) 
and Selective (3.3) 
Licence conditions 

Feedback from the NRLA and SafeAgent 
was that the condition requiring low risk 
works to be completed by the expiry of the 
EICR or within two years of the licence date, 
and that the licence holder would have to 
inform the council when the works have 
been complete and provide an updated 
EICR, should be removed as it is contrary to 
2020 Government electrical safety 
regulations and goes beyond the scope of 
selective licensing  

The licence condition requiring low risk works to be completed by the 
expiry of the EICR or within two years of the licence date has been 
removed  

Additional and all 
selective licensing 
designations 

Mandatory (5.1), 
Additional (5.1) 
and Selective 
designations 2, 3 
and 4 (5.2) licence 
conditions  

The feedback was that the condition relating 
to fire safety and precautions was too vague 
and that it was more relevant to HMOs 

The condition was removed for the selective licensing designations.  

The condition was amended for Additional and Mandatory licences to “In 
compliance with the requirements of the Regulatory Reform (Fire 
Safety) Order 2005 
(http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made) the 
manager shall make a suitable and sufficient assessment of the risks to 
which tenants or visitors to the HMO are exposed for the purpose of 
identifying the general fire precautions required at the HMO. Reference 
should be made to a qualified fire safety engineer where necessary. The 
manager shall supply a copy of the risk assessment to London Borough 

Mandatory, Additional 
and Selective 
Licensing Designation 
2. 

250

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made


Appendix 13 
 

6 
 

Topic  Feedback Change Scheme(s) affected 

of Southwark within 14 days of a written request. (discretionary 
condition). 

Reference must be made to the LACoRs Fire Guidance to ensure that 
the correct fire precautions are installed at the property appropriate to 
the size and occupation of the property. Reference should be made to a 
qualified fire safety engineer for advice where necessary. 
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_gui
dance 

5.2 Fire precautions and equipment must be maintained in proper 
working order.  Appropriate records of such maintenance, such as 
current certificates, are to be kept and produced to the London Borough 
of Southwark on demand as evidence of such maintenance. Any defects 
noted on certification must be promptly rectified (discretionary condition 
that ensures we are meeting mandatory requirements)” 

 

Additional Licence 
condition 5.4 

Feedback from Safeagent was that the 
condition to provide a copy of the fire risk 
assessment to the council upon request be 
amended to within 14 days of written request 

This condition has been amended to “The manager shall supply a copy 
of the risk assessment to London Borough of Southwark within 14 days 
of a written request. (discretionary condition).” 

Additional Licensing 

Additional and 
Selective 
Licensing 
conditions 6.3 

Feedback from Safeagent and the NRLA 
was that licence holders could not know if 
someone had been subject to a banning 
order or is not a fit or proper person 

This condition has been amended to: 
The Licence Holder shall not knowingly cause or permit any person 
who has previously applied for a property licence in respect of the 
property and has either: 
a) been found not to be a Fit and Proper person, or  
(b) been made subject to a Banning Order under the Housing and 
Planning Act 2016  
to have control or management of the property, or to carry out or arrange 
any repair, improvement or other building works at the property 
(discretionary condition).  

Additional and all 
selective licensing 
designations 

Selective 
Designation 3 - 
Licensing 
Condition 6.8 

Feedback from SafeAgent and the NRLA 
was that the condition requiring the licence 
holder to contact the council’s homelessness 
team following a missing or late rent 
payment was excessive. 

This condition has been removed Selective Licensing 
Designation 3  

251

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guidance
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guidance


Appendix 13 
 

7 
 

Topic  Feedback Change Scheme(s) affected 

Mandatory and 
Additional Licence 
condition 8.4 

Feedback from Safeagent was that the 
conditions requiring the licence holder to 
carry out regular checks and ensure that 
common parts, gardens and yards are free 
from waste, should define the term regular 

This condition has been amended to define regular checks as 6-monthly 
checks 
 

Mandatory and 
Additional Licensing 

Mandatory and 
Additional Licence 
condition 8.8 

Feedback from Safeagent and survey 
respondents was that this condition was 
onerous and not feasible 

The licence condition requiring the licence holder to label any furniture, 
soft furnishing and kitchen appliances and white goods provided at the 
property has been removed  

Mandatory and 
Additional Licensing 

Selective 
Licensing 
condition 9.2 

Feedback from Safeagent was that the 
condition requiring licensed properties to 
comply with the occupancy levels stated in 
the licence was not needed. If the property is 
occupied as an HMO, then the property will 
require an HMO licence. 
  

The condition that “Licensed properties must comply with the occupancy 
levels stated in this licence within 18 months of the licence being 
granted and for the remaining duration of the licence has been 

removed   

All selective licensing 
designations 

Additional 
Licensing 
condition 11.5 

Feedback from Safeagent was that the 
condition stating that properties must comply 
with Southwark’s standards for HMOs 
should be changed to clearly state the works 
needed. 

This condition has been amended to “Licensed properties must comply 
with Southwark’s Standards for HMOs (insert links) within 18 months of 
the licence being granted and for the remaining duration of the licence 
(discretionary condition).  

A reference to a number of persons using a room in an HMO as 
sleeping accommodation does not include a person doing so as a 
visitor of an occupier of the HMO (discretionary condition).  

For the purposes of paragraph 11.5 a room is used as sleeping 
accommodation if it is normally used as a bedroom, whether or not it is 
also used for other purposes (discretionary condition).  

Any part of the floor area of a room in relation to which the height of 
the ceiling is less than 1.5 metres is not to be considered in 
determining the floor area of that room for the purposes of this 
paragraph (discretionary condition). 

Please note that room size standards within Southwark’s HMO 
standards are greater than the national prescribed minimum room size 
standard stated in 11.6 and 11.7 below.   The Council has, in 
accordance with (insert legislation) decided to impose higher standards 
in accordance with its locally adopted HMO Standards referenced in 
11.5 above 

Additional Licensing  

252



Appendix 13 
 

8 
 

Topic  Feedback Change Scheme(s) affected 

Mandatory (12.1), 
Additional (12.1) 
and selective 
(1.11) licence 
conditions  

Feedback from the consultation survey was 
that the condition to supply tenants with a 
written document describing the location of 
utility meters was unnecessary. 

This condition has been amended to remove the requirement to provide 
a written document describing the location of utility meters 
 

Mandatory, Additional 
and all selective 
licensing designations 

Mandatory (14.1), 
Additional (14.1) 
and Selective (11) 
licence conditions  

Feedback from the consultation survey and 
Safeagent was that would be unnecessary to 
require landlords to attend training courses 

The licence conditions regarding training courses have been removed Mandatory, Additional 
and all selective 
licensing designations 

Selective 
Designation 1 – 
licence condition 
14.2 

Feedback from Safeagent was that the 
condition regarding adding provisions to 
tenancy agreements about forfeiture of the 
property if the tenant or visiting the premises 
causes a nuisance to neighbours, or 
allowing the premises to be used for immoral 
or illegal purposes or has committed an 
arrestable offence in, or in the locality of the 
licensed premises should only apply to new 
tenancy agreements 

This condition has been amended to apply to all new tenancy 
agreements. 

Selective Designation 
1 

Selective 
Designation 1 – 
Licence condition 
14.3 

Feedback from Safeagent was that the 
licence condition stating that the licence 
holder should caution tenants in instances of 
repeated anti-social behaviour should be 
changed as landlords and agents cannot 
caution tenants. 

This condition has been amended to say that “Depending on the severity 
of the incident or where there are 2 or more corroborated incidents of 
ASB the license holder shall either send a written warning to the 
perpetrator or take formal action to evict the tenants in compliance with 
(whatever the legislation is). “ 

Selective Designation 
1 

Selective – 
designation 1 – 
Licence condition 
14.6 

Feedback from Safeagent and the 
consultation survey was that the condition to 
install CCTV covering the outside spaces of 
the dwelling should be removed. 

The licence condition regarding installing CCTV in instances of two or 
more corroborated reports of ASB to the relevant investigating agency, 
has been removed 

Selective Designation 
1 

Mandatory (15), 
Additional (15) 
and Selective (12) 
licence conditions 

Feedback from the consultation survey was 
that the interim measures required whilst 
works are being carried out in the property 
was unclear. 

The condition regarding interim measures has been removed Mandatory, Additional 
and all selective 
licensing designations 

Selective 
designations 2, 3 
and 4 – licence 
condition 15.4 

Feedback from Safeagent was that the 
condition to carry out regular checks to 
ensure the property is free from pest 

The condition to carry out regular checks to ensure that the house is free 
from pest infestation has been amended to include 6 monthly checks 
 

Selective Designation 
2, 3 and 4 

253



Appendix 13 
 

9 
 

Topic  Feedback Change Scheme(s) affected 

infestation should be changed to 6 monthly 
checks 

Additional (16) 
and Selective (13) 
licence conditions 

Feedback from the consultation survey was 
that the condition to provide missing 
documents, including asbestos reports, was 
excessive 

The licence condition to provide electronic copies of documents that 
were missing from licence applications within 3 months of the issue of 
the licence has been removed 

Additional and all 
selective licensing 
designations 

Mandatory (16), 
Additional (16) 
licence conditions  

Feedback from Safeagent and the 
consultation survey was that the condition 
regarding infectious diseases was not 
feasible 

The licence condition relating to infectious disease control has been 
removed  

Mandatory and 
Additional Licensing 

 

254



Appendix 13 
 

10 
 

2. Council’s consideration of feedback from stakeholder organisations 

The council received feedback from Safeagent, a not-for-profit accrediting organisation for lettings and management agents in the private 

rented sector. Their points and questions, and the council’s consideration of those comments are below. Their comments on specific conditions 

are in Section h – responses concerning the licence conditions. 

Topic No.  Issue/question Council’s consideration 

Previous 
Additional 
Licensing 
Scheme 

1.1  Noncompliance: Previous additional scheme-3,156 
applications but 9000 HMOs were predicted 
Cabinet report 2015 

For this scheme the council have used tenure intelligence data modelling 
which is a more accurate methodology to predict the number of PRS and 
HMO properties in the borough – new updated figure is 5,031 predicted 
HMOs in the borough  

1.2 
 

Noncompliance: Previous SL scheme-1,940 applications 
received but 6000 SL properties predicted 

Again, the council have used tenure intelligence data modelling to predict the 
number of selective licensing properties in the borough. The report “An 
Independent Review of the Use and Effectiveness of Selective Licensing” 
stated that “A data-based approach through examination of authority tax 
records, local rental websites, ASB reports, housing benefit data etc. is 
typically far more effective, especially in larger schemes” in determining 
licensable properties  

1.3 Low level of enforcement: 35 landlords prosecuted, and 5 
civil penalties imposed under the previous scheme  

These figures are not the only enforcement activities that were carried out 
under the previous scheme. There were 991 informal and formal notices, and 
168 housing offences prosecuted. The use of civil penalties was only agreed 
at the end of the previous licensing scheme, from April 2018, and only for 
offences committed after that date.  
The council also set up the Rogue landlord multi-disciplinary task force in 
2018. The shared intelligence from this group led to a 700% increase in 
prosecutions from 2018 to 2020, compared to the previous two-year period.  

1.4 
 

The report does not explain how new licensing schemes 
would overcome high levels of evasion and effectively 
regulate the private rented sector 

Evidence report does not outline as it shows the evidence for licensing and 
how it will impact the people that live in the properties, however, the 
measures that we have in place to monitor compliance will include: 

 Using the Tenure intelligence model (TIMs) to identify privately rented 
properties in the designated areas. Applications received can be monitored 
against this database to pinpoint areas which need improvement. A 
combination of targeted street by street communication will be 
implemented, followed by door-to-door visits in unlicensed hot spots to 
ensure tenants and landlords know their licensing obligations. 

 Intelligence-led ‘Compliance days’ involving concentrated enforcement 
activity in discrete areas to identify unlicensed addresses, to ensure that 

255



Appendix 13 
 

11 
 

Topic No.  Issue/question Council’s consideration 

licensed addresses have the correct licence in place and to ensure 
compliance with licence conditions. 

 Introduction of a new application and case management system which will 
flag properties that are a high priority for inspection, including multiple 
properties with the same ownership, large properties that have few tenants 
and older properties without gas.  

1.5 Council committed to inspect all HMOs-Can the council 
confirm how many of the additional and selective licensed 
properties were inspected during the five-year scheme 

The council inspected all properties prior to issuing a licence, until the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  

1.6 Council study found 34% of HMOs had serious hazards, if 
all HMOs inspected why have these not been addressed 
already 

The evidence shows that there are consistent and persistent issues with poor 
property conditions. This illustrates the need to continue with licensing, as for 
example management changes, tenant turnover, wear and tear can 
contribute to continued issues in this area. Some hazards would have been 
found during the inspections under the previous scheme 

Evidence 
report 

2.1 We could find no information about the proposed Renters’ 
Union within the consultation documents. 

The council is not consulting of the introduction of the Renters’ Union in this 
consultation. There will be a future consultation on the Renters’ Union 

Previous 
Selective 
Licensing 
Scheme 
 

3.1 Was there a reduction in anti-social behaviour within the 
designated selective licensing areas?  
 

A finding from the previous scheme was that the issues with housing 
including ASB were not just confined to the selective licensed area. This was 
one of the main reasons to look at an expanded area for licensing. 

3.2 To what extent were serious hazards resolved in all 
licensed HMOs? 
 

All properties identified as having a serious hazard would have been dealt 
with through the enforcement policy.  

3.3 Evidence report-No estimate of the number of licensable 
HMOs under the proposed additional licensing scheme. 
 

There are estimated to be around 5,000 HMOs in the London Borough of 
Southwark, These HMOs will be made up of a combination of additional and 
mandatory licensable properties 

3.4 Evidence report- geographical spread of HMOs across the 
borough? 
 

The council is proposing a borough-wide additional licensing scheme. As part 
of the consultation, the council had to show that a significant proportion of the 
HMOs in the proposed designation are being managed sufficiently 
ineffectively to give rise to one or more particular problems. Evidence for the 
geographical spread of HMOs is not required but, as with most London 
boroughs, HMOs are spread throughout each ward  

3.5 6 months is not long enough to assess phase 1-suggest 12-
month review 

The council believes that six months will be enough time to assess the 
scheme.  

Proposed 
Additional 

4.1 Report states 86.3% of all HMOs contain serious hazards- 
where does this figure come from? 

The source for this information can be found in Appendix 2 of the Cabinet 
Report, Private Rented Sector: Housing Stock Condition and Stressors 
Report December 2019 - 

256



Appendix 13 
 

12 
 

Topic No.  Issue/question Council’s consideration 

Licensing 
Scheme 

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20
-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9  

4.2 No estimate of Selective Licence properties This information is available in the cabinet report available here - Report 
Consultation on Proposals for PRS.pdf (southwark.gov.uk) 

4.3 Geographical spread of Selective Licence properties This information is available in the cabinet report available here -  Report 
Consultation on Proposals for PRS.pdf (southwark.gov.uk) 

Evidence 
report 

5.1 Table relating to ASB-what types of ASB this relates to, 
over what timescale and how they were related to private 
rented homes. 

As stated in the Information on Consultation for Licensing, page 3 ASB is 
defined as “Behaviour related to a rented property that causes annoyance 
and irritation to neighbours and the community. Most commonly noise, litter 
and waste.”. On page 19, it states that the ASB is from over a 5-year period, 
and from properties in the Private Rented Sector. 

5.2 No estimate for the number of private rented properties 
within the five Phase 1 wards - can council demonstrate this 
is below 20%? 

Please see the cabinet report which is linked from the evidence report - 
Report Consultation on Proposals for PRS.pdf (southwark.gov.uk) 

Staffing 
levels 

6.1 Request confirmation that council have adequate staffing 
levels to inspect adequate number of properties for all 
proposed schemes 

The council is currently developing a demand model which will inform the 
level of staffing to enable inspection and enforcement of the scheme, in line 
with scheme objectives  

Section 
257 HMOs 
 

7.1 Not reasonable for letting agents to assess when properties 
converted and whether conversion satisfies legal 
requirements 

We would expect letting agents to refer to building regulations, however, if 
the letting agent is not sure, they can contact the council for help.  

7.2 Less than 2/3 owner occupied then there is no need for a 
licence but if then let out without the agent’s knowledge 
agent is liable to licence the property but may not know 

If the council finds a property to be a licensable property/Section 257 HMO, 
the council will give the interested parties in the property (letting agents, 
landlords, freeholds etc) 28 days’ notice to license the property. 

7.3 Long leaseholder owner occupiers not consulted and the 
implications of licensing section 257 HMOs not explained in 
consultation, so scheme cannot be approved under general 
approval rule 

The council believes that the implications of licensing section 257 HMOs was 
explained in Appendix 2 of the Cabinet Report, which was linked to in the 
evidence report. 

7.4 Suggest: The additional licensing scheme could be 
restricted to section 257 HMOs where the whole building 
and all the individual flats within it are in single ownership or 
considered to be effectively under the same control. 
Licence where number of flats exceed the number of 
storeys (see Ealing’s scheme as example) 

The council agrees with this suggestion, and has added this condition 

Application 
system 

8.1 Licence processing system should be effective The council will be introducing a bespoke IT licensing system for processing 
licensing applications. 

257

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/b50012529/Appendices%20-%20Part%202%20Tuesday%2019-Jan-2021%2011.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92948/Report%20Consultation%20on%20Proposals%20for%20PRS.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92948/Report%20Consultation%20on%20Proposals%20for%20PRS.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92948/Report%20Consultation%20on%20Proposals%20for%20PRS.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92948/Report%20Consultation%20on%20Proposals%20for%20PRS.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92948/Report%20Consultation%20on%20Proposals%20for%20PRS.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

13 
 

Topic No.  Issue/question Council’s consideration 

Early bird 9.1 Many licences extended so not due for renewal until after 
the Early Bird-Suggest: 30% discount is offered to 
applicants who renew their additional and selective licences 
before their current licence expires. 

If you already have an additional HMO licence, this will remain valid until its 
expiry date. As and when the new scheme comes in, applicants will have a 
choice to:  

 Use any outstanding time on their old licence. This will be automatically 
brought over to the new scheme system. However, once that licence runs 
out, they will have missed the opportunity to get your early bird discount 
and will be required to buy a new licence at the full price.   

 Buy a new licence during the early bird and take advantage of the discount 
period.  

Depending on how long their licence has left and how long they will be 
renting their property, they will have to decide which option makes most 
sense for them.   

Licence 
Fees 

10.1 How will the part 1 and 2 fees be split? Not explained in the 
report 

Type of 
licence 

Part A – 
Processing 
and 
determining 
the application 

Part B – 
administration, 
management and 
enforcement of 
licensing schemes 

Total 

Mandatory 
Licence 

£1,050 (+£70 
per bedroom 
above 5) 

£450 (+£30 per 
bedroom above 5) 

£1,500 (+£100 
per bedroom 
above 5) 

Additional 
Licence up to 
4 bedrooms 

£923 £377 £1,300 

Selective 
Licensing 
Designations 
1& 2 

£630 £270 £900 

 

Licence 
conditions 
 

11.1 Selective licence conditions cannot relate to the condition of 
each property. (Refers to band E rating requirement)  

Where there is a lack of compliance, enforcement will be under The Energy 
Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) Regulations 2015 
and The Energy Efficiency (Private Rented Property) (England and Wales) 
(Amendment)Regulations 2019. 

11.2 Installation of water saving devices/full central heating 
cannot be licence conditions as not legal requirement. 
Could council just recommend that these are in place? 

The council agrees with this suggestion and will amend the licence conditions 
so that this is a recommendation 

258



Appendix 13 
 

14 
 

Topic No.  Issue/question Council’s consideration 

11.3 Urge the council to have one consistent set of selective 
licence conditions so that the requirements in your borough 
are clear 

The council is planning to introduce selective licensing based on different 
conditions in different wards, and therefore the licence conditions are 
targeted to address different issues in the different designations 

11.4 A number of conditions that breach the more restricted 
power to impose conditions under Part 3 of the Housing Act 
2004. For selective licensing, conditions can only relate to 
the management, use and occupation of the property. The 
Court of Appeal has confirmed that licence conditions 
cannot relate to property condition and contents (Brown v 
Hyndburn Borough Council [2018]). All such conditions 
contravening this requirement should be deleted. 

The council has reviewed the responses to the consultation and has made 
changes to the licence conditions. 

11.5 In some sets of selective licence conditions, we noticed 
there are conditions on fitness for human habitation, energy 
efficiency, noise, fuel poverty and water saving. These all 
relate to ‘conditions and contents’ which cannot be included 
on a selective licence. 

The council has reviewed the responses to the consultation and has made 
changes to the licence conditions. 

Gold & 
Platinum 
Charter 
 

12.1 Can Council confirm that landlords who employ a 
Safeagent member to manage their property would be 
eligible for the Gold Standard Charter status. In practice will 
this be a certificate, logo, or badge that names the licence 
holder or their managing agent? 
 

Gold standard conditions are that landlords / managing agents must agree to 
be a member of a recognised landlord’s/managing agents association and be 
a member of an accreditation scheme. The council consider Safeagent to be 
valid association and accreditation scheme. 
If a landlord/managing agent joins the gold charter they will be listed on the 
council website as having gold standard status and a logo they can use on 
their documentation 

12.2 Could only find a brief summary of what the Charter entails/ 
unsure what is meant by keeping tenants informed of 
available services and charging fair rents. How would the 
council decide whether a market rent is a ‘fair rent’. More 
detail is needed to explain this proposal. 

Information about the gold charter was provided on the consultation page, 
and at the various landlord forums the council held during the consultation. 
The charter descriptions say that a fair rent is a LHA rent.  
 

Platinum 
Charter 

13.1 Relating to the need to let through councils social letting 
scheme or Finder’s fee: We could find no information about 
either scheme within the consultation documents. 

The council is not consulting on the social letting scheme or the finder’s fee.  

COVID 
 

14.1 Suggest delay to scheme start due to COVID It is no longer government guidance that councils pause introducing licensing 
or carrying out inspections  

14.2 Tenants will be reluctant to allow access due to COVID- 
suggest delay to the scheme 

It is no longer government guidance to pause inspections and social 
distancing is no longer mandated. However, the council is aware that some 
tenants may not be comfortable, and therefore tenants will have the option to 

259



Appendix 13 
 

15 
 

Topic No.  Issue/question Council’s consideration 

have a digital inspection via a smart phone, carried out remotely. Council 
staff will also wear full PPE when carrying out in person inspections. 

Inspections 
 

15.1 Inspection methodology not clear The inspection methodology will be issued when any scheme is agreed 

15.2 We would ask the council to publish clear service standards 
setting out the timescale for processing and approving 
licence applications and to publish regular updates so that 
performance in this area can be monitored. 

The council will publish regular updates and are in the process of developing 
KPIs and performance measures for the schemes 

Engageme
nt with 
Letting 
Agents 

16.1 Suggest the council to explore mechanisms for effective 
liaison with letting agents and to acknowledge the benefits 
of encouraging landlords to use regulated letting agents 
such as Safeagent licensed firms. 

The council is planning to hold quarterly landlord forums. The council also 
believes that the gold standard encourages landlords to be part of accredited 
bodies by including the conditions of being a member of a recognised 
landlord’s/managing agents association and being a member of an 
accreditation scheme to qualify for the charters. 

 

The council also received feedback from NRLA. The NRLA is a newly formed association following the National Landlords Association's and 

the Residential Landlords Association completed merger. Their membership represents over 90,000 landlords and agents and their members 

own and manage around 10% of the PRS, equating to half a million properties.  

The NRLA stated that the “NRLA has a shared interest with Southwark Council in ensuring a high-quality private rented sector 

but strongly disagrees that the introduction of large scale selective and additional licensing is the most effective approach to achieve this aim.” 

Their main objections and the council’s consideration are below. Their comments on specific conditions are in Section h – responses 

concerning the licence conditions 

Topic Issue/question Council’s consideration 

Gold 
Standard 

The council’s proposed charter states that for a licence holder to qualify as a gold 
member, they must agree to “Protect their tenants from unnecessary eviction”. 
This is a wildly unrealistic criterion to place on a landlord, and most landlords will 
not sign up for this. The council does not define what is classed as an 
“unnecessary” eviction, which opens it to broad interpretation. In some cases, 
when all other remedial action has failed, a landlord must issue an eviction notice, 
especially to those tenants who break their tenancy agreement, build up rent 
arrears, to name a few examples. This can be unavoidable, and the council’s 
narrow approach to qualifying for the gold charter will not encourage high take-up 
of such a scheme. 

This information can be found in Appendix 2 of the Cabinet 
report, which was linked to in the evidence report.  
 
Protect tenants against harassment or illegal eviction and 
not evict tenants without an acceptable reason. For 
example: For portfolio landlords: Tenant’s poor conduct, 
tenant is not occupying the property, tenant has breached 
the tenancy agreement, rent is in arrears or often late, 
tenant has a relevant criminal conviction, tenant displays 
relevant anti-social behaviour, landlord needs to sell or 

260



Appendix 13 
 

16 
 

Topic Issue/question Council’s consideration 

completely refurbish the property, property is to be sold by 
the lender, where there has been a change in the tenant’s 
status e.g. tenant is no longer an employee of landlord or is 
no longer a student & property is purpose-built student 
accommodation, the tenancy cannot legally continue or the 
landlord has been issued with an over-crowding notice. For 
single property landlords (all of the above and the 
following): A landlord or family member needs the 
accommodation for their own use and there are no 
alternatives (i.e., for financial reasons) 

Platinum 
Charter 
Criteria  

As part of the qualifying criteria to achieve the platinum status, a landlord must: 
“Both incentive schemes expect landlords to accept the Local Housing 
Allowance (LHA) rate as rent for the properties. No shortfall of rent can be 
required from the tenant, and no Platinum Standard discount will be applied 
where landlords are found to be charging above the LHA rate”. 
The government's announcement of freezing the LHA rate will serve only to 
make it more difficult to sustain tenancies and requiring licence holders to 
abide by such criteria will not encourage a high level of taking up should the 
scheme come into force. 
No landlord will agree to such terms, as it has been strongly evidenced that the 
LHA rate is not sufficient to maintain the tenancy long term, and shortfalls in 
rent will occur. Despite the council proposing that only Part A of the licence fee 
would have to be paid to qualify for the platinum charter, it is not financially 
viable for a landlord to agree to such terms, and the council should not expect 
a high take-up of this charter. There are other options that the council instead 
should consider as an alternative which would be more effective.   

Landlords are not required to join up to the Gold Standard 
Charter, Finder’s Fee Scheme or the Social Lettings 
Agency. The council understands that this may not be a 
suitable option for some landlords.  

Alternatives 
to Charter 

Several key recommendations (especially to those tenants on Universal Credit):   

 £1000 cash upfront: a cash payment upon signing a tenancy agreement.   

 Rent guarantee: a written guarantee from the Local Authority that they will 
cover late or unpaid rent.  

 Deposit bond: a cash amount equivalent to one month's rent set aside to 
cover any costs a landlord may incur during the tenancy.  

 Support from a landlord liaison officer: a dedicated resource that acts as a 
single point of contact for private landlords who need help with a tenancy.  

As part of joining the council’s social lettings agency, the 
council offers a rent guarantee and support from landlord 
liaison officer. 

Criminal 
Activity 

Among the criminals' activities, rent to rent is a significant issue that the council 
should consider a barrier to selective and additional licensing effectiveness. 
Criminals will always play the system. For instance, there is no provision for 

Landlords or their appointed agents should be regularly 
inspecting properties and see if illegally sublet, the council 
suggests inspecting every 6 months 

261



Appendix 13 
 

17 
 

Topic Issue/question Council’s consideration 

within PRS 
properties   

landlords who have legally rented out a property that has later been illegally 
sublet.  
  
A landlord will tell a tenant how many people are permitted to live in the 
property and that the tenant is not to sublet it or allow additional people to 
reside there. Excessive monitoring and contact from the landlord could impede 
the tenant's right to quiet enjoyment.   
  
The licence holder can end the tenancy (of the superior tenant, the subtenants 
have no legal redress) and support the local authority in criminal prosecution. 
Often, landlords are victims, just as much as tenants. What support will the 
council provide for landlords to whom this has happened? Will the council 
support an accelerated possession order?  

 
Tenants will be in breach of tenancy agreement if they 
illegally sublet.  
 
The council’s legal actions against the person found to be 
managing the property might help to end the rent-to-rent 
situation in that property and penalise the offender.  Any 
penalties imposed, such as a criminal offence, will go 
towards preventing them from holding any licences and will 
make it harder for them to rent out properties in such a 
manner again. 
 

Further 
alternatives 
to licensing  

The NRLA advocates using council tax records to identify tenures used by the 
private rented sector and those landlords in charge of those properties. Unlike 
discretionary licensing, landlords do not require self-identification, making it 
harder for criminal landlords to operate under the radar and continuing to 
provide a low standard of housing.   
  
Furthermore, the council should consider if the scheme is approved, providing an 
annual summary of outcomes to demonstrate to both tenants and landlords' 
improvements of behaviour and the impact of licensing on the designated area 
over the scheme's lifetime. This would improve transparency overall.   
 

The council have used tenure intelligence data modelling to 
predict the number of selective licensing properties in the 
borough. The report “An Independent Review of the Use 
and Effectiveness of Selective Licensing” stated that “A 
data-based approach through examination of authority tax 
records, local rental websites, ASB reports, housing benefit 
data etc. is typically far more effective, especially in larger 
schemes” in determining licensable properties The council 
will publish regular updates and are in the process of 
developing KPIs and performance measures for the 
schemes 

 

The council also received a letter from Lewisham Council which voiced their support for the proposed schemes, and stated they were 

“particularly interested in your plan to introduce tailored licence conditions”. They also raised that “one of our concerns about licensing is that 

while the majority of licensees will raise standards in partnership with Local Authorities, there is a danger that landlords whose business model 

relies upon poor practice will remove themselves from areas in which Selective Licensing applies and relocate to a less well-regulated 

environment.  Similar approaches taken by adjoining boroughs is going to make following this business model significantly harder for this 

cohort.” 

  
 The full details of the letters received during the consultation can be found in Consultation Report Appendices  

262



Appendix 13 
 

18 
 

3. Council’s consideration of feedback from stakeholder letters and responses from the questionnaire to the introduction of 

licensing schemes 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: It is a money-making scheme for the Council  
Fees appear to be excessive and more aimed at generating income for the Council 
than aimed at protecting tenants. 

Under the law, the council is not allowed to make money from the 
licensing schemes. The proposed fees have been calculated based on the 
cost of setting up and operating the licensing schemes, so that the costs 
would be met by the expected income from the number of licence 
applications we anticipate, under the proposed designations. 
 
 

This is a money-making scheme 

This seems to be a money-making exercise for the Council, not really to do with 
tenant safety. 

I believe that licensing is just a revenue generating exercise for the Council. I am not 
convinced that there are significant numbers of bad landlords. I certainly have seen 
no evidence of it. I think the regulations are excessive and will drive down the supply 
of rental accommodation. 

Money grab.  As a landlord for a single property - it just adds to costs. 

The scheme seems to be a revenue raising scheme to pay for the council employing 
staff 

This seems more like a revenue generating scheme, a Landlord Tax. 

Theme: It is penalising good landlords  

I fail to see why upstanding landlords should have to be licenced due to those who 
are irresponsible. 

The council understands that many landlords who rent out properties in 
the private sector manage their properties responsibly. However, the 
evidence shows that the borough is experiencing large scale issues in the 
private rented sector with poor property conditions and management, as 
well as issues with deprivation and ASB in certain wards.  
The council will use the regulatory framework provided by additional and 
selective licensing schemes to focus on those that do not comply and 
impact negatively on the reputation of those responsible landlords as well 
as having a detrimental effect on tenants and neighbourhoods. We will 
develop guidance and work with landlords to bring about compliance 
where possible, but we will also use robust enforcement against wilfully 
non-compliant landlords.  

his is just a tax on landlords who already provide high quality, well managed 
properties. 

Penalises those landlords who are honest and law abiding. 

It appears to penalise all, rather than just rogue landlords. 

I object to the whole concept of licensing as it is a sledgehammer approach to 
managing the quality of housing stock. It penalises legitimate landlords who have to 
pay the fee, whilst rogue landlords who disregard the law and regulations would 
never pay the fee anyway. You add to the already substantial burden of legitimate 
landlords whilst providing no benefits to them whatsoever. 

most of landlords are good and they do not need to suffer and pay heavy fees 
because a small majority are not so good. 

I’m not sure it's necessary for responsible landlords 
it seems to unfairly penalise responsible landlords who have to bear the cost and 
administration for poor landlords 

It’s not necessary you should deal with landlords who are complained about or cause 
the issues, not the rest of us who are already tired of all this witch hunt 

Theme: It will result in an increase in rents  

263



Appendix 13 
 

19 
 

The rent will go up as simple as that A selective licence obtained at the start of the five-year scheme for a 
property will pay a one-off fee of £900 (which equates to around £3.50 per 
week) and for an additional licence will pay a one-off fee of £1,300 (which 
equates to around £5.00 per week). Whilst we recognise that the licence 
fee is a cost to the landlord, this is not considered unaffordable compared 
to the average rental income obtainable in Southwark at present.   
 
Evidence from authorities who have been operating licensing schemes 
have seen no evidence that landlords have increased rents to cover their 
licence fee costs or that landlords have moved elsewhere. Similarly, 
research carried out by an independent agency on behalf of the 
government (An Independent Review of the Use and Effectiveness of 
Selective Licensing) showed that selective licensing did not result in an 
increase in rents in areas with a scheme, that market forces dictated the 
rent levels.  
 
If landlords want to increase the rent, there are procedures which must be 
followed and any increase above market rents levels can be challenged 
via the Residential Property Tribunal. 

The large additional costs and work for landlords will drive up rents. It is also another 
pressure on landlords to exit the sector, again reducing supply and pushing up rents. 

Landlord licensing will not solve the problems listed previously in this survey. 
Landlords will just pass the costs along to tenants, which will raise the cost of living in 
Southwark even higher than it already is. 

Such licence fees will very obviously only serve to deter landlords from renting 
thereby reducing the amount of rental property which will cause rents to rise 
considerably and will therefore be detrimental to tenants in terms of choice, 
availability, and cost! 

Scrap the whole scheme. Landlords will pass the fees on to tenants and the biggest 
problem with housing in the area is already that they are too expensive. This not only 
fails to address the real problem with renting in your borough, it will make it worse. 

I do not need the license but if the council bring the scheme, then the owner of the 
letting property needs to pay extra fee then the tenants will have to pay more rent. 

This will add additional costs to the rental sector that will be passed on to tenants. It 
will also reduce the quality of life for lower income workers and make it more difficult 
for the unemployed to find rental property. 

Theme: It will make it harder to rent in the borough   

It's going in the wrong direction. It'll make it harder to rent out properties, many 
ordinary landlords will sell. We will be left with only the professional big companies 
like Lendlease or Uncle. I much prefer to deal with a real person like my landlord than 
with a huge organisation where every time you speak to a different person, they don't 
know the history of the flat, etc. 

There is no evidence that licensing leads to an increase in rent, or an 
increase in difficulty in finding rental properties in a licensable area. The 
private rented sector is a growing sector, and properties continue to be in 
high demand, including in areas where licensing has been introduced 
 
The council understands that many landlords who rent out properties in 
the private rented sector manage their properties responsibility.  However, 
as stated above, there is evidence of wide-spread issues with poor 
property conditions and deprivation. The council believes that all 
properties, regardless of the number of properties a landlord has, should 
be held to a good standard. The council believes that many landlords will 
meet the licence conditions, and do keep their properties in good 
condition, but licensing enables to council to take action against those 
landlords who place their tenants in unsafe or overcrowded properties. 

Many landlords rent out a property for investment, whilst away or before selling. So, 
they are keen to keep the property maintained and in good condition.   They already 
are required to carry out repairs under their rental agreement. This scheme would be 
discouraging these landlords who would find these costs and the red tape prohibitive. 
As a result, this would reduce the stock of good rental properties. 

It limits the ability of people to rent as most landlords just don’t sign up. I have seen 
so many flats that are empty or have empty rooms because it’s too troublesome for 
landlords to sign up, and then people will continue to illegally sublet 

I think landlords will just try and get around by not tenting to certain groups thus 
making it harder for people on low income to get decent shared housing. 

It deters landlords from renting to sharers and therefore reduces housing supply and 
raises rent. 

264



Appendix 13 
 

20 
 

I'm sure that an Additional Licensing Scheme would lead to a 3-4 occupant flat / 
house being reduced to a 2 (or with landlord living there) 3 occupant flat / house, 
which would put more pressure on the homeless people finding a place to live. 

It is right to ensure living conditions are good. The conditions you are proposing to 
add, however, will reduce the number of lower-income people who can live here, 
increase density and rents, and reduce choice for people on lower incomes. 

Theme: It will not help the overall situation in the borough or improve standards 

It's a distraction from dealing with the real problems. The recent Government research ‘An Independent Review of the Use and 
Effectiveness of Selective Licensing’ found that selective licensing can be 
an “effective policy tool” that can achieve demonstrable positive 
outcomes.  
The research also found that licensing “provides a clearly defined offence 
(licensed/unlicensed) which simplifies enforcement - and where a landlord 
is intentionally operating without a licence it is highly likely the inspection 
process will uncover further offences”. The council believes that licensing 
will enable them to work with landlords to raise standards of living in the 
borough and work to tackle the issues of poor property conditions, 
deprivation and ASB, by holding landlords to a high standard, and by 
carrying out inspections. 

The licensing does not make any noticeable difference to the standards. 

I object on principle to added and inefficient bureaucracy, especially at my expense. I 
see little evidence that this will change real life in rented properties and lots of 
evidence that it will increase the bureaucratic load for all concerned. 

It won't solve any issues with the rented properties 

I don't think you're addressing a real issue or need. 

complete waste of time 
makes the council appear as if they are doing something -- but won't change things. 
A desperate tenant who can only get into poor housing will select that no matter 
it is a penalty on good landlords 
better use of Southwark council is more enforcement officers 

The licensing is not going to make a noticeable difference. 

Licensing does not fix the problem; it just creates revenue for the Council. Where is 
the evidence to show any of these plans can/will work? 

Introducing a far reaching and expensive scheme for all landlords is unlikely to 
improve conditions for the minority of substandard accommodation. 

Theme: The council should use its existing powers 

You have existing laws and powers to enforce any issues and should use them The council have considered a range of alternatives to selective and 
additional licensing, but do not believe they are as effective in dealing with 
poor property conditions, deprivations and ASB in the borough. The 
current powers the council has, including the use of the Part 1 Housing 
Act 2004, do not require landlords to declare themselves. This means 
there is no obligation for landlords to make their properties known to the 
council or to be proactive in improving conditions, including minor issues 
(that may still pose a health and safety risk) but still need to be addressed, 
but which a tenant may not complain to the council about. Formal action 
under the Housing Act can be a slow process, and improvements to 
properties can take many months. 

The council has extensive powers to act where properties are not being maintained 
properly. There are no excuses for landlords running properties in a poor manner and 
the imposition of improvement orders and fines will adequately remedy this. All these 
schemes do is tax the tenants in well managed properties, any landlord who cares so 
little as to run their properties poorly will treat the scheme with exactly the same 
contempt. 
 
All you will achieve is to make the rubbish properties more affordable than the well-
run ones... bravo! 

I think you have sufficient powers already to enforce high standards of let property. I 
do not see that a universal system is required when you say that the issues relate to 
a minority of properties. 

265



Appendix 13 
 

21 
 

Again, the council already have powers to deal with ASB, overcrowding, illegal 
conversions and alike  
Adding license fees could mean a drop in properties available to rent. 

Council has enough powers as is fees only go to charge more to good landlords. this 
doesn't help tenants 

Theme: Bad/rogue landlords won’t register 

I don't agree, because the landlords who voluntarily come forward for registration are 
likely to be those who are already looking after their tenants well and complying with 
the rules re gas and electrical safety etc.  'Problem' landlords will not come forward 
under this scheme. 

The council will be actively inspecting for unlicensed properties and will 
take action against those who refuse to licence their properties. 
 
The recent Government research ‘An Independent Review of the Use and 
Effectiveness of Selective Licensing’ found that selective licensing 
“provides a clearly defined offence (licensed/unlicensed) which simplifies 
enforcement - and where a landlord is intentionally operating without a 
licence it is highly likely the inspection process will uncover further 
offences” and that it “encourages the development of effective intelligence 
gathering mechanisms – extremely valuable both in identifying unlicensed 
properties” 

I do not think there is any 'carrot' in the proposals for good landlords (e.g., ones 
where there are no hazards identified in their property). By the Council's own findings, 
the expected number of licenced properties is greatly exceeds those that actually 
applied. Therefore, there is an element of self-selection - those that are responsible 
and apply for a licence etc are the ones that are left with hefty costs whilst more 
unscrupulous landlords continue to fly under the radar. 

I am not convinced single housing landlords will be aware of and comply with the 
scheme. Likely the landlords who are “good” safe landlords will do so but the ones 
you actually want to keep an eye on will not do it at all, so it won’t achieve its aim. 
How will you ensure the “bad” landlords comply?? 

I don't approve of any licensing scheme, it will push "rogue" landlords underground 
and be a financial and administrative burden to good landlords. 

Theme: It is unnecessary  

Too much unnecessary meddling in something that isn't broken The evidence presented during the consultation shows that there are large 
scale issues with poor property conditions, deprivations and ASB in the 
borough’s private rented sector, that licensing can help to address. 

It is unnecessary. There is a mountain of housing legislation already in place. 

Regulation is not necessary; the failure is because tenants are not paying enough in 
rent - you get what you pay for. 

Tenants and landlords have a tenancy agreement that deals with this already. 

Theme: The council should address issues in social housing/social properties first 

Before you levy a hefty surcharge to private landlords sort out your own council 
properties. Old disrepaired kitchens, stairwells dirty with graffiti.  Lack of security as 
the doors are constantly broken by druggies and young vandals. 

Licensing is part of a wider effort by Southwark Council to improve living 
conditions in the borough for all tenure types. In Southwark’s Housing 
strategy, the council has made a commitment to deliver the Great Estates 
Programme to make council homes and estates fit for the twenty-first 
century. This includes: 

 Delivering the Housing Investment Programme and carrying out 
improvement works to our stock and the surrounding area. 

 Providing a quality kitchen and bathroom for all council homes (once 
this is safe to resume following the COVID-19 pandemic) 

This is a bold statement. The hazard comes from the council buildings and not the 
rental properties which are already under many legal obligations. 

Councils should be forced to ensure all their own properties match up to these criteria 
first. 

Southwark needs to lead the way as a social housing landlord it is failing, do not be 
distracted. 

266



Appendix 13 
 

22 
 

The worst properties here are probably properties owned by Southwark Council, as 
landlords are Southwark Council going to charge themselves the fee for every 
property they own? I highly doubt this, you've created this idea to charge private 
landlords so you can use the money to fix all the buildings you own that are in a 
terrible state. 

 Implementing a repairs improvement plan so more jobs are done right 
first time 

 Exploring whether to reprioritise parts of the housing investment 
programme to increase the installation of door entry systems on 
estates where there are high levels on anti-social behaviour 

 I find it ironic that the council is saying HMOs are risking people lives when there is 
so many council buildings which very much fit these criteria.  
 
Of course, I want tenants to be safe, and I do believe a lot of HMO landlords take 
advantage of their tenants. However, the council has a lot to answer to as well, and 
this feels like a poorly veiled attempt to blame others for problems which are their 
responsibility 

 

a) Responses specific to additional licensing 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: Licensing should not apply to sharers who are friends or family 
There should be some differentiation in those individuals renting rooms in a property 
and those individuals who are choosing to live as a group and therefore could be 
considered a household. 

The council believes that all rental properties should be held to the same 
standard, regardless of who they are let out to. The council believes that 
the licence conditions for an additional licence, such as room sizes and 
fire safety, are relevant to properties let to groups on a single AST or to 
properties that let rooms out on an individual basis. The fire safety 
standards do vary according to the size of the property and the type of 
occupation (for example if the property is an HMO or single-family 
dwelling) 
 
The council is reviewing the fees so there’s a smaller charge for 2 bed 
HMOs, however 3 friends renting a property is still an HMO and whilst the 
risk might be lower than 3 people who have never met before, the risks 
are still much higher than that of a family home. This is why they are 
included in the definition of an HMO and why the requirements for fire 
precautions are higher than in a family home 
As stated above, there is no evidence from existing schemes that 
licensing has resulted in an increase in rents – rent levels continue to be 
dedicated by market forces 
 

It means a relatively small flat (with 3 bedrooms) is caught by this scheme when 3 
flatmates want to share together. If it was a genuine HMO where each tenant is 
agreed individually so that tenants do not know each other when they move in it could 
be reasonable (i.e., where each room is private and locked and rented as 'bed-sits') 
but if it's a group of 3 friends it seems unreasonable. Especially given that the fees 
are the same for a small 3-bedroom flat compared to a proper 5-bedroom HMO 
where the total rental income is a lot higher. 

HMO licensing was setup to target large properties with many people who do not 
know each other and create hostile unsafe environments.  Your proposals will target 
properties where friends are looking to share a property.  This had a huge effect the 
last 5 years.  3 friends looking to share a 3-bed flat in Southwark were denied 
housing as landlords did not want to get these licenses and would only accept 
families.  Young professionals often rent together in groups of 3-5 people to make life 
in London affordable.  It also helps them to learn social skills and how to live on their 
own.  Your proposed licenses deny these young working professionals from 
affordable housing.  These are also usually excellent tenants, as they have jobs, pay 
their rent and bills, look after the property, and do not cause social issues. 

267



Appendix 13 
 

23 
 

It isn't workable, very few landlords have applied for the license. Partly as its difficult 
to know what the council are going to require you to do (the council are notoriously 
difficult to communicate with) and partly as the initial fee is so high. Properties that 
have 3 people living there ought not to be included if the tenants are on a single 
tenancy and have approached the landlord as a group of friends. 

Theme: It will not be enforced 

Without effective enforcement, tenants & landlord will turn to the unregulated sector The council’s enforcement capability will be increased in line with the 
number of licences, including pro-active compliance checks. The council 
will be actively inspecting for unlicensed properties and will take action 
against those who refuse to license their properties 
 
 

This scheme is neither proportional or reasonable. I'm quite shocked it's been 
proposed. There are some good ideas in here, but there are many that are grossly 
disproportionate. Furthermore, I don't imagine they can or will be enforced - so what's 
the point? 

The council needs to do more to identify the properties which were not licensed and 
there more likely to suffer with the issues above 

You pay the charges, and the council doesn’t monitor the individual properties or 
person renting them out. 

Theme: The licence period should be different 

I think it should be 2021-2024, three years.  Five years is a long time to have to 
endure mid-management if you’re a tenant. 

The proposed scheme will be starting in 2022. The five-year period for a 
licence is set by the Housing Act, however the council has the power to 
reduce a licence duration where deemed necessary. Tenants can still 
change properties and tenancies during the licence period.  

Period covered is too short many every 10years 

Make it less than 5 years. 

I believe it should start in 2022 

Theme: Other 

Smaller properties are not more difficult than mandatory licenced properties to 
maintain to a very good standard. Tenants view property licencing and its conditions 
as interfering with their lives by a third party when they choose to live in a smaller 
property and wish to use rooms as they see fit and not as prescribed by licensing 
conditions. They say licencing conditions interfere with a quiet enjoyment of their 
rented property which is their HOME. 

The council recognises that many landlords who rent out properties in the 
private rented sector manage their properties responsibility.  However, as 
stated above, there is evidence of wide-spread issues with poor property 
conditions and deprivation. The council believes that all properties, 
regardless of the number of properties a landlord has, should be held to a 
good standard. The licence conditions look to address issues with 
overcrowding and poor property conditions.  
 
Whilst the council understand that many landlords will already meet these 
conditions and have responsible lets, licensing enables to council to 
ensure this is the case, and focus taking action against those landlords 
who place their tenants in unsafe or overcrowded properties. 
 
The council also acknowledged that while there are many good managing 
agents operating in the borough, not all provide a good service, or know 
what the regulations are with respect to privately rented properties. 
 

I do not wish for LBS to have any involvement with my property. It is fully up to code, 
and I take my duty of care to my tenant very seriously. 

I already manage the property at a loss – I’m just waiting until I find a job so I know 
where I can settle, then I'll sell my current place and buy somewhere to move into. I'm 
a student at the moment after a career change. I can't afford even more charges on 
the property. Can't you apply it for people who are managing more than one 
property? 

I understand the need to improve standards.  However, I believe that landlords that 
use property management agents (and pay a fee for these services), provide good 
accommodation, maintain their properties and comply with the applicable laws are 
being unnecessary burdened with additional costs associated with the license fee.   

268



Appendix 13 
 

24 
 

Part of the job of the property management agents is to ensure that the landlord 
satisfies their legal requirements.   Flat share is a common phenomenon with renting 
in London and I feel that those landlords with 3-bedroom properties with 3 people 
sharing are being unfairly targeted. 
Additionally I believe poor properties are not restricted to properties that are rented to 
3+ unrelated people.  I fear the scheme fails to target poorly maintained properties 
with smaller numbers of people. 

Rooms that are too small should not be let as bedrooms and landlords 
can ask for support from the council to explain to tenants why they cannot 
use certain rooms if the problem persists. Undersized rooms can be used 
for purposes other than sleeping and council officers can help to suggest 
alternative uses for the space. 
 
The council is proposing to introduce a selective licensing scheme which 
would require licences for properties let to single families, and one or two 
sharers. 

I am in favour of your extending the existing scheme but ensuring that those 
landlords who already have a licence do not need to apply for a new one until their 
existing licence is 5 years old 

If you already have an additional HMO licence, this will remain valid until 
its expiry date. As and when the new scheme comes in, you will have a 
choice to:  

 Use any outstanding time on your old licence. This will be automatically 
brought over to the new scheme system. However, once that licence 
runs out, you will have missed the opportunity to get your early bird 
discount and will be required to buy a new licence at the full price.   

 Buy a new licence during the early bird and take advantage of the 
discount period.  

Depending on how long your licence has left and how long you will be 
renting your property, you will have to decide which option makes most 
sense for you.   

 

b) Responses specific to selective licensing 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: Selective Licensing should cover the whole borough 
I think implementation should be equal across the borough rather than different 
designations. 

The council can only introduce selective licensing in areas in the borough 
where there is evidence that the area meets the criteria as laid out in the 
Selective Licensing of Housing 2015 (Additional Conditions). The council 
carried out a detail analysis of the evidence available and has been 
selective in proposing designations for areas that meet the criteria of poor 
property conditions, deprivation and ASB. 
 
The council is proposing that they ensure the new approach works before 
applying to the Secretary of State for approval of the larger scheme 
 

All lettings need to be held to the same standard! 

If you are going to do this it should be for all straight away. 

Tenants across the borough should have the same rights to a safe and suitable 
home, dividing the borough and introducing selective licensing stigmatises 
communities. 

Entire London has issues, this should be for the entire borough. 

I'm not sure why some areas should be excluded - surely high standards should be 
expected of all areas 

269



Appendix 13 
 

25 
 

Probably would be fairer to make it the same regardless of where in the borough the 
rented home is 

The evidence shows the prevalence of housing issues is even higher in 
HMOs, which is why the council is proposing an additional licensing 
scheme covers the whole of the borough It should be the same across the entire council 

This is better than the previous option. But why not apply it uniformly to everyone? 

All areas should be included to be fair re fee charging 

Because you single out the ward, I happen to be part of first. It should be applied 
uniformly and fairly, all at the same time. Alternatively, you could use the powers you 
already have under Part 1 of Housing Act 2004 

It should apply everywhere equally 

Theme: Areas to be covered by the proposed scheme should not be 

Some of the above areas may well have housing issues.  However, the North 
Walworth area has a number of high-end properties which are new buildings that will 
not have these issues and the landlords of these buildings are being penalized.  I 
believe it would be better to concentrate on the 'buildings, in the area which need it.  
Not the area as a whole. 

The council has evidence of issues with poor property conditions, 
deprivation, and in some wards ASB, collected over several years, to 
support the introduction of licensing in the wards proposed.  
 
Properties let through Airbnb are short-term, commercial lets and do 
not legally fall under these licensing schemes. Airbnb properties need 
planning permission and any ASB issues will be dealt with by the ASB 
team 

This is a blunt instrument to present the Borough as some type of practically slum or 
no-go area, which is not near the reality. Apart from 2 pockets in Dulwich and near 
Tower Bridge, it unfairly stigmatises the residents of the Borough. 

Properties in Southwark designated selective licensing areas ARE NOT in poor 
conditions, also the Southwark council as a freeholder maintains its housing stocks 
very well including gardens on estates. 

I am in designation 4 and there are no issues with my properties. Most properties in 
this area are relatively new build and in good condition except the council properties. 

The approach should be limited to areas with very specific housing issues... by phase 
4 it looks like the approach is to cover all areas to raise as much additional council 
revenue as possible Vs deal with the very specific issue at hand... Phase4 covers 
one ward which is almost entirely new/recent builds... Which I find very difficult to 
believe are poor quality... And excuses Bermondsey North where housing stock is 
very poor quality... but council/ex council owned. 

I disagree that there are widespread issues with housing in Rotherhithe. The only 
issue is Airbnb, and I would support licensing for those types of rentals. However, it 
would appear that the licensing only impacts longer term rentals? If that is the case, it 
might become more desirable to let properties on an Airbnb basis. 

Your scheme tars Champion Hill, where I live, with far too broad a brush.  SE22 8DL / 
SE22 8DJ, the two sides of Abbotswood Road, are not ASBO-rich -- at least they 
haven't been in the 20 years that I've lived in this road.  (The house that I rent out is 
also in this road.)  You may be working ward-by-ward for reasons of administrative 
convenience.  That is, however, massively unfair to those who rent out housing in 

270



Appendix 13 
 

26 
 

"non-ASBO" zones within Champion Hill.  Be more selective -- apply the scheme 
postal code by postal code -- and be fair. 

Properties in Chandler Way and Kelly Avenue are, to my knowledge, well managed 
by good landlords, yet they seem to be included in the proposed scheme. The 
consequent burden and fees imposed on those landlords, seems to me unfair. 

The designations are too broad brush. Each probably contains well maintained 
properties which fulfil all the criteria required as well as a some that do not. 

Property in the Phelp St area is good condition 

Theme: It’s too expensive 

Far too expensive. To look around a 3-bed flat, 700 pounds... As stated above, the fees have been calculated based on the cost of 
setting up and operating the licensing schemes, so that the costs would 
be met by the expected income from the number of licence applications 
we anticipate, under the proposed designations. The council is also 
running several schemes by which landlords could get a discount:  

 An early bird discount for application during the first three months of the 
scheme – 30% discount  

 Gold standard Charter members – 50% discount on the Part B fee  

 Gold Standard Charter members who sign up to the Council’s Finder’s 
Fee scheme – 100% discount on the Part B fee  

 Joining the council’s social lettings agency – exempt from licensing.  
The public consultation found that more respondents thought the fee was 
reasonable or too low, than the number who found the fee to be much or a 
little too high 

This should cost maximum fifty pounds.  

Unless you detail out exactly why the cost is prohibitively high. 

The fee is excessive. It is the equivalent to almost 4 months’ rent. I would pay the 
same amount as someone who has a property with 4 bedrooms whereas mine is a 
small one bed flat. 

I can't afford additional charges on the property. 

Why would we agree with a proposal which costs a lot of money - not much less than 
our income from the one property we own - and increases our workload for no benefit 
to either our tenants, who are extremely happy in the property, or to us? 
It instantly makes our investment pointless in terms of the income (our pension as it 
happens) we derive. 

Theme: It’s additional bureaucracy   

It creates more bureaucracy. Please see above, Council’s consideration of feedback from stakeholder 
letters and responses from the questionnaire to the introduction of 
licensing schemes regarding the need to introduce the licensing schemes. 
The schemes will have an online application and payment process which 
will meet the statutory requirements whilst being as streamlined and 
efficient as possible. 

You're making it bureaucratic 

I object on principle to added and inefficient bureaucracy, especially at my expense. I 
see little evidence that this will change real life in rented properties and lots of 
evidence that it will increase the bureaucratic load for all concerned. 

Please stop the COUNTERPRODUCTIVE red tape al together. 

Theme: Licensing is not the right way to deal with ASB 

Re. Area 1 ASB: I think it would be great to have a specific person to support with 
ASB in the PRS.  However, I simply do not accept your choice to continue including 
the UK Border Agency on a multi-part team dealing with anti-social behaviour.  I saw 
no mention of social work involvement, mental health team involvement, 
organisations like Hestia or others.  Why do you largely have an ASB advisory group 
made of enforcement and punishment organisations when you recognise deprivation 
worsens/increases likelihood for ASB? 

Licensing is part of a wider effort by Southwark Council to improve living 
conditions in the borough. In Southwark’s Housing strategy, the council 
have committed to work in partnership with local residents to tackle crime 
and anti-social behaviour where it blights neighbourhoods and people’s 
lives. The council works with UK Border agency to address human 
trafficking and the part that criminal landlords play in that, not to address 
ASB. Where we uncover human trafficking we do involve social services 

271



Appendix 13 
 

27 
 

and other supporting agencies to help the people that have found 
themselves in that situation. 

Council needs to tackle the root causes of the high levels of ASB. The fact that these 
area as within its borders several homes for the mentality ill also high levels of people 
with alcohol and drugs dependence are house within these boundaries. Better use of 
the council resources and money would be to fund better facilities to help these 
groups. 

The council understands that is the responsibility of all residents in the 
borough not to cause anti-social behaviour. The council do not expect 
landlords to be responsible for the behaviour of their tenants, but the 
council would encourage landlords to include clauses in their tenancy 
agreements about ASB, and to manage their tenancies and ensure that 
ASB caused by their tenants is effectively addresses and if necessary 
appropriate action taken. 
 
The council will be introducing a series of measures to support landlords 
in introducing ASB, including employing an ASB officer to work with 
landlords and tenants.  

Not sure it is effective. Should not be used to manage ASB as that is not what it is 
designed for 

I'm so confused. How is anti-social behaviour the landlord's fault? ASB is caused by 
disrespectful, conceited, people of generally low intelligence. They did not get that 
way because of their landlord. I'm sure their landlords would be very happy to get rid 
of them but where do they go? To another poor landlord? 

As I said before, there is no need.  Poor condition properties can be fixed with 
environment enforcement by the council.  ASBO behaviour is the tenant, not the 
landlord.  No landlord wants a bad tenant but is helpless to control tenant behaviour. 

Theme: Other areas in the borough should be covered by licensing 

Rockingham estate is by far the worse The council can only introduce selective licensing in areas where there is 
evidence of issues that licensing can help to address, and therefore some 
areas are excluded from the proposed selective licensing designations. 
 
The proposed additional licensing scheme covers the whole of the 
borough 

Insufficient evidence in Borough & Bankside? This area has markedly deteriorated 
over the last 6 years 

There are good and bad pockets throughout the borough, not just in the selected 
areas 

Theme: The current scheme doesn’t work 

It’s pointless the current licensing scheme doesn’t work. My old landlord avoiding 
getting HMO for 5 years may still not have one but happily rented to over the required 
number of people. 

The council is looking to better ways to improve our intelligence to 
uncover unlicenced properties, including the use of data modelling. The 
recent Government research ‘An Independent Review of the Use and 
Effectiveness of Selective Licensing’ found stated that data-based 
approaches, using data available to the council to identify privately rented 
properties and therefore unlicensed properties is effective. The report also 
states that “research indicates there is a high correlation between failure 
to license and a failure to manage and maintain a property to a safe 
standard” 

It is poorly run. I have no issue if it was staffed by sensible people whose mandate is 
to make sure properties are safe, but council has demonstrated time and time again it 
is poorly staffed by people who place ridiculous and unreasonable requirements to 
honest landlords 

it clearly doesn't work, or we'd have seen results already 

Theme: Other 

It needs to go further and charge more to landlords The Council can only charge fees that cover the cost of the schemes 
themselves. Rogue and persistently irresponsible landlords will be subject 
to civil penalties and fines incurred following a successful prosecution and 
can even be subject to action under the Proceeds of Crime Act. 

272



Appendix 13 
 

28 
 

Why does it take so long? Private landlords are profiteering, and delays allow 
disreputable landlords to avoid or evade licensing. 

The council has a legal requirement to demonstrate the need for 
additional and selective licensing schemes, and to carry out a public 
consultation. Southwark Council’s cabinet then has to review the 
proposals and the responses to the consultation, before making a decision 
about approving the schemes. 

This seems to be a catch all solution, rather than addressing those properties where 
there are problems. In fact, the only areas not covered by the proposal are the super-
rich boroughs in the council. 

As stated above, the council has a legal requirement to demonstrate the 
need for selective licensing. The council does not have the evidence to 
support introducing selective licensing in all areas in the borough. The aim 
of selective licensing is to help tackle issues relating to poor property 
conditions, deprivation and ASB, and is therefore targeted at the areas 
where there is the evidence that these issues are a consistent and 
persistent problem. 

You are punishing poorer areas while rewarding those who rent properties in more 
affluent areas. 

 

c) Positive comments about the introduction of licensing schemes 

 

There were a number of positive comments from consultees. These were mainly in themes: 

• It addresses rogue landlords and increases their responsibility 

• It addresses and improves the standard of living (housing issues, inequality, rent and conditions) 

• Agree if it is properly enforced 

• It addresses and improves the lives of tenants (security, safety & health) 

There were also a number of specific comments about how the schemes will be able to improve conditions, stop overcrowding and deal with 

poor standards of properties. A sample of the comments supporting licensing are below: 

• We need to tackle unsafe conditions and overcrowding. Living space should also be reasonable and take into account the wellbeing of 

tenants. People forced to live in a bedroom with no access to communal areas such living rooms, don't [sic] rooms and conservatories (all 

turned into bedrooms for profit) won't be happy people. 

• I believe that these schemes will help lot of people living in the properties 

• I am a landlord; I would like to renew my license. I believe standards should be maintained. 

• I think the tenants need protecting should there be any problems, and this will help them. 

• I approve of and support the Council in any plans it has to toughen up the current licensing scheme. 

• Better standards of housing lead to improvements in mental and physical health and reduce costs for health services, social services, 

policing and education. 

• as you say, there is evidence there are many with poor conditions and tenants have no protection 

273



Appendix 13 
 

29 
 

• I believe it forces Landlords to ensure there is appropriate living space as opposed to cramming a bedroom into every small space in the 

house. 

• Some Landlords need to be held more accountable for the lack of repair and maintenance; this will hopefully have an impact on them to so. 

• Tenants often feel helpless in the face of negligent and exploitative landlords. An extension of the licensing scheme should give more 

tenants the security that they can report failings and unsafe conditions and expect action to be taken to resolve them. Extending the 

licensing scheme to currently unlicensed properties can also instil a sense of responsibility in landlords towards their rental properties and 

should increase oversight. 

• I think for tenants the added security of knowing that the council is issuing strict guidelines is very reassuring, and also it will act as a 

management and benchmark for landlords 

• Poor quality PRS homes should simply not be available for habitation. Licensing is a proven effective tool to ensure landlords offer basic 

amenity and service to tenants whose lives will benefit hugely. 

• Selective licensing would resolve the problems of social and economic inequality in the different areas. 

• Too many landlords get away with providing sub-standard housing 

• as it will help in everybody getting their house in order so their business will run more efficiently and less problems for the tenants 

• It can't come soon enough. 

• Rents are high and tenants deserve quality housing. There are too many sub-divided properties with slum landlords making a lot of money. 

• Landlord accountability and refusing to handle complaints until they really have to is a huge problem which I have experienced, and this 

seems like a reasonable solution. 

  

274



Appendix 13 
 

30 
 

d) Suggestions for alternatives to licensing 

Example comments from consultees Council’s consideration 

Theme: Use existing council power and enforce existing regulations 

Council to use existing powers available. And stop passing the buck and looking for one 
size that fits all. Use a targeted approach for where there is a problem. You are just 
increasing the rent 

As stated above, the council have considered a range of 
alternatives to selective and additional licensing, but do not believe 
they are as effective in dealing with poor property conditions, 
deprivations and ASB in the borough. The current powers the 
council has, including the use of the Part 1 Housing Act 2004, do 
not place any obligation on landlords to be proactive in improving 
conditions, and formal action can be a slow process. 

Proper enforcement of existing legislation to protect tenants - there is already plenty of laws, 
the unsafe properties are only unsafe as unscrupulous landlords ignore legislation. Why 
would they bother following the licensing either? 

Continue with current system - avoid unnecessary bureaucracy.  
Overall, you do a great job, thank you. 

There is no need for this extended scheme. More organised policing and reporting of 
existing schemes would be more effective. This feels like an attempt to introduce more tax. 

You have existing laws and powers to enforce any issues and should use them 

Enforcement of existing law!! Why are perpetrators of poor housing being allowed to 
continue in this way - charging a fee to get a licence isn’t going to help!! 

Again, the council already have powers to deal with ASB, overcrowding, illegal conversions 
and alike.  
Adding license fees could mean a drop in properties available to rent. 

Better enforcement of any breaches of current landlord obligations. 

Theme: Fines for poor properties/landlords 

Punishing harder the people that don’t behave well  The council believes that the use of licensing will give them the 
ability to look for and address properties with poor conditions and 
bad landlords.  
 
This is supported by the recent Government research ‘An 
Independent Review of the Use and Effectiveness of Selective 
Licensing’ found that selective licensing “provides a clearly defined 
offence (licensed/unlicensed) which simplifies enforcement - and 
where a landlord is intentionally operating without a licence it is 
highly likely the inspection process will uncover further offences” 

Tackle the actual slum landlords! Stop harming decent landlords by forever increasing their 
costs and regulation. The slum landlords will not pay attention to new licencing laws, as 
they already contravene existing laws/regulations. Increase enforcement and inspection of 
existing regulations and make penalties harsh to deter and decrease the minority of 
landlords who act in illegal ways and make life miserable for their tenants. 

Same scheme but fund by fining contravening landlords 

Council effort to identify and clamp down on bad landlords 

crack down on rogue landlords, not financially punish good, accredited landlords who 
already provide good accommodation 

Licence bad landlords who don’t obey laws and take enforcement action 

Licensing for landlords who have been complained about, not good landlords 

Fine poor landlords and make them apply for licences. 

Theme: Reduce the fee  

I think the license should be free or not over £100 per year. Making the fee affordable won't 
compromise the price of the rent itself.  

As stated above, the fees have been calculated based on the cost 
of setting up and operating the licensing schemes, so that the costs 

275



Appendix 13 
 

31 
 

Depends also on how the license would be issued, if it is just going to be an online 
application and no one from the council will visit the property physically to review and make 
sure that the property gathers the safety and conform needed to live on it, it will be waste of 
time and a way to collect money. 

would be met by the expected income from the number of licence 
applications we anticipate, under the proposed designations  
The council is also running several schemes by which landlords 
could get a discount:  

 An early bird discount for application during the first three months 
of the scheme – 30% discount  

 Gold standard Charter members – 50% discount on the Part B 
fee  

 Gold Standard Charter members who sign up to the Council’s 
Finder’s Fee scheme – 100% discount on the Part B fee  

 Joining the council’s social lettings agency – exempt from 
licensing.  

Just make it a bearable figure and I can live with it. And I am a relatively supportive 
landlord, I'd love to see the cowboy landlords kicked out, much as they do me a lot of good 
because my tenants tell me horror stories about other properties they lived in or viewed. 

Fee should be maximum fifty pounds. 

Run the scheme and don’t charge landlords - have a fine scheme that covers the costs, this 
will stop costs being passed on to the tenants 

I think it would be appropriate to have regulations on smaller HMOs, but I do not think 
licence fees are appropriate for smaller properties. 

Theme:  More housing and social housing 

Better social housing provision by the local authority Licensing is part of a wider effort by Southwark Council to improve 
living conditions in the borough, across all tenure types. In 
Southwark’s Housing Strategy 2020, the first principle is to increase 
the supply of genuinely affordable high-quality homes that meet out 
residents’ housing needs and aspirations. The council’s 
commitments under this principle include continuing to deliver 
11,000 new council homes at council rents and to maximise the 
supply of other forms of genuinely affordable housing association 
social rent and intermediate homes. 

focus on more social housing rather than letting the private sector get away with HMO 

No more HMO’s. Build more council homes. 

More social homes, only owner occupier properties, discourage private landlords from 
having properties in Southwark. People cannot afford the high rents demanded and then 
struggle to pay essential utility bills or put food on tables. 

The council building good quality social housing not private at all ideally 

Need social council homes. Not private rented ones in any form. 

Greater provision of council/housing association housing at social rent 

an alternative would be better and more affordable housing in the borough such as council 
housing - homes as a profit venture for BTL landlords has clearly failed as a general answer 
to providing housing, especially for vulnerable people.  Landlords don't have the 
experience/access to other services that councils do or any concern or responsibility for 
their tenants other than the rent coming in 

Theme: Mandatory (5 or more people) Licensing 

Let the national rules apply and no more As stated above, the council has evidence presented during the 
consultation, which shows there are issues to be addressed in the 
private rented sector. While the council is currently enforcing 
Mandatory HMO licensing to properties with 5 or more people, the 
council believes that additional HMO licensing (for 3 to 4 people) 
and selective licensing are required to effectively target the issues 
experienced by renters in the private rented sector. 

Continue with the current mandatory scheme … everything else seems like money making 
and squeezing more money out of private landlords. 

To rely on the mandatory licensing in the Housing Act 2004. There are great dangers 
creating local authorities police forces unanswerable o national legislation such as this. 

I think that there should only be licences for larger properties of 5 or more. There should be 
better provision for people to be able to complain about genuine issues in relation to their 
accommodation and to be able to get support in getting something done about it. But at the 
same time landlords need support if tenants aren’t paying rent or are causing problems. It 
has to be balanced. 

276



Appendix 13 
 

32 
 

A continuation of the existing mandatory scheme for HMOs. This entire exercise is tax 
raising to create a power base in the council to go into culture war against private landlords, 
in an issue to fix a problem of "bad landlords" that is so small will solutions covered by 
existing national legislation. 

Theme: Better tenant services 

make it easier for tenants to complain to the council and not punish with fees and works 
normal and good landlords for no reasons. 

Southwark Council has an existing reporting service on the council 
website. Tenants can also use the GLA website to make a 
complaint or raise an issue with the council. Southwark Council has 
a tenancy relations team, who receive referrals from across the 
council, and the tenants can also contact the call centre.  
The council has also outlined commitments in the Housing Strategy 
2020 to protect and empower private tenants by providing advice 
and assistance on their respective rights and responsibilities, which 
includes: 

 Providing high quality advice to private tenants (and landlords), 
including details of any grants and loans available via the 
council’s website. 

 Providing dedicated housing advice to private tenants 
threatened with illegal eviction.  

 Introducing a Southwark Private Renters Union to support the 
council’s work to improve the conditions of private renters 

 
If licensing is approved, the council will run a comms and marketing 
campaign to raise awareness of the schemes, and provide 
information about the licence conditions, acceptable behaviours 
from landlords, and the existence of a public register of licenced 
properties. 
 
Licensing will also enable tenants to make complaints to the council 
anonymously, as the council will be able to approach landlords 
regarding their licensing obligations, rather than stating that a 
tenant has made a complaint. 

Independent council body that tenants can come to if they consider their property is unsafe 
or their landlord is not fulfilling their duties.  
Monitoring of properties that have already been brought to the attention of the council for X 
amount of years, or mandatory property visits and assessments when new tenants move in 
Tenant surveys that are carried out yearly 

The minority of tenants who do experience problems with dodgy landlords should have 
access to a helpline or online service where they can report the problems to the council. 
The council could then investigate and legally compel the dodgy landlord to make the 
property safe and habitable. 

There should be a publicly accessible database where prospective tenants can rate/give 
feedback on the quality of accommodation or have access to information about a 
landlord/property before they enter into a lease. 
The council should properly vet the properties they let (Housing Benefit etc) as this is the 
population who are least able to vote with their feet if housing is inadequate.  Rotherhithe 
has a number of very well-maintained properties, but these are often not accessible to those 
on housing benefit. 

Offer more support to tenants of private landlords, whereby they can file complaints to the 
council, which the council can then explore. If the complaint was fraudulently made, the 
tenant may be fined. If it was a genuine complaint and the landlord is being unethical, the 
landlord should be fined. 

All tenants should be given an accessible channel to complain to the council about their 
living conditions. The council then has to treat all such complaints seriously and perform a 
thorough investigation to see if they really are living in poor conditions. Actions can then be 
taken directly against the specific landlord that has been reported by the tenants. This 
allows for a targeted response that penalises only landlords who fail to meet quality 
standards. 

Better reporting methods for tenants. 

Theme: Inform tenants of their rights 

Clear information available to tenants about the condition the property should be in and a 
way for them to contact the authorities and get an inspection/action taken if it is not up to 
standard. Also, random inspections, so landlords are not aware if the tenants have asked 
for an inspection or it’s a random one. 

As stated above, the council will run a campaign to make tenants 
aware of licence conditions and acceptable behaviour from 
landlords. Also, as outlined in Southwark Housing Strategy 2020, 
the council will support tenants to be a good neighbour by providing 

277



Appendix 13 
 

33 
 

Make tenants aware of the obligations of their landlord and make it easy for council to act 
on landlords not following. Do not punish good landlords even further. 

a pre-tenancy course on how to abide by their tenancy agreement, 
including acceptable behaviour standards, how to get involved and 
how to budget. Educate people to be more intelligent when looking for rental properties.  

Put pressure of legal system to provide a streamline process for addressing landlords that 
fail to meet their statutory requirements. 
Encourage tenants to communicate effectively with landlord managing agents and make 
use of the deposit schemes complaint procedures 

Theme: Free market 

A free-market system where property ownership, land-use, and letting and the terms thereof 
for each, is left for individuals to decide. Decades of regulation and restrictions have done 
nothing but make matters worse, and "just a little more" regulation or rules will not change 
this in any way shape or form. The evidence is clear. 

As stated above, the evidence shows that there are persistent 
issues with poor property conditions, deprivation and ASB in the 
borough. Whilst the council understands that many landlords keep 
their properties to a high standard, there are many who are either 
not aware of their responsibilities or are ignoring them. Licensing 
would enable the council to work proactively with landlords to bring 
up the standards in the properties 
Licensing is also an effective tool for addressing rogue or criminal 
landlords in the borough 

Nothing, let the free market decide. 

Nothing, let the free market solve the issue, some people are happy to accept lower rent for 
a lower standard property. 

Allow market force to dictate given housing is a demand & supply issue 

Free market.  With harsh penalties for landlords who don't maintain safe properties.  And 
equally harsh penalties (or means to quickly evict) tenants who abuse properties and don't 
pay rent. 

 

e) Suggestions for alternatives to additional licensing 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: More checks /inspections 
Yearly inspections 
Spot checks.  
Renewal fee is only passed on to the very people who cannot afford to pay 

As stated above, the council’s enforcement capability will be 
increased in line with the number of licences, including pro-active 
compliance checks. The council will be actively inspecting for 
unlicensed properties and will take action against those who refuse 
to licence their properties. 
 
Licensing is also a tool for ensuring that rented properties are 
‘declared’ to the council via licensing and will be subject to an 
inspection. Licensed properties must meet licensed conditions 
throughout duration of licence. Spot checks may be carried out for 
this, or tenants can notify the council of non-compliance. 
  
 

I think council should instead have register of rented properties and inspect them. Landlord 
not complying with regulations should be heavily fined. This would on incentivise landlord to 
maintain properties in good working order and also make transfer of cost to tenants less of 
a risk 

The council should do random visits to rented properties to see the conditions, etc... 

more regular checks. A licence means nothing once its granted 

More and intensive checks on properties with steep fines to private landlords whilst 
simultaneously banning them from increasing their rent for a period of time if transgressions 
are found. Checks on possible unlicensed properties. Sue to dispossess landlords for 
egregious infractions. Be a borough that is scary to slumlords. 

278



Appendix 13 
 

34 
 

 

Theme: Reduce the cost in light of the pandemic 

Too costly in the current Covid environment As stated above, the proposed fees have been calculated based on 
the cost of setting up and operating the licensing schemes, so that 
the costs would be met by the expected income from the number of 
licence applications we anticipate, under the proposed designations  
 

Further increment would aggravate the present economic hardship caused by the 
pandemic. 

Reduce the charges... we are living in a certain situation where thousands of people have 
lost their jobs, business and are on debts now... 

Theme: National standards and enforcement 

Maximum pressure on central government to change and enforce the law so that this isn't 
the burden of local authorities whose funding has been reduced to dangerous levels. 

Southwark Council cannot change the national law in this area. The 
council has a responsibility to those who live in the borough, and 
believes that using the powers made available to the council 
through additional and selective licensing can help address issues 
being experienced by those renting in Southwark  

As per previous question, some sort of nationwide structure where it was illegal for people 
to let property unless they could demonstrate that they were properly qualified to do so, and 
the qualification would be withdrawn if one of their tenants complained to the body issuing 
the qualification. 

National minimum statutory standards such as EPC, gas safety certificate, electrical 
certificate at start of tenancies. 

National license, makes total sense, with councils implementing it but not hundreds of 
different systems costing ridiculous amounts of money to implement the same thing multiple 
times across the country 

Theme: Exemption for Accredited landlords and landlords who use managing agents 

Accredited landlords should be totally exempt and not forced to pay for the small proportion 
of really criminal landlords. 

Accredited landlords and managing agents can apply to join the 
council’s Gold Standard Charter, which will give them a 50% 
discount on the Part B fee for their licence.   
 
 

I let my properties via a respected managing agent. They would not be happy to represent 
me if the properties were substandard. Surely there must be a way of encouraging other 
owners to use respected agents and taking the burden from the Council. Or is it, as I 
strongly suspect, another way of raising revenue?  Tenants aren't forced to accept 
substandard dwellings. 

An exemption to the HMO licence for those landlords that use a licenced / registered 
property management company to manage their properties.  Those landlords / property 
management agents need to maintain records to demonstrate that they comply with the 
various requirements outlined in the licence i.e., gas safety certificates, protected deposit 
scheme, inventory check-in / out etc, but are not required to additional apply and pay for an 
HMO licence 

Theme: Make it voluntary 

It punishes landlords who are letting properly. Alternatives could be voluntarily signing up to 
the scheme, so no fees, but a landlord is then proving to the council that they are fit to be a 
landlord and have a property fit for rental. E.g., the landlord could once a year show the 
council the property along with all certificates to prove all gas and electric is safe, and 

Whilst the council understands that there are many good landlords 
who operate in the borough, and whose properties are well 
maintained, the council’s experience of dealing with poor property 
conditions and deprivation in the borough shows that some 

279



Appendix 13 
 

35 
 

voluntarily handover the tenants contact details, and the council could contact the tenants to 
make sure they feel happy and safe. 

landlords do not know or actively ignore their responsibilities, and 
therefore the council does not believe that a voluntary scheme 
would be effective in dealing with the issues in the private rented 
sector in the borough.  

The ones outlined all seem better. Voluntary landlord standards setting high standards as 
outlined is a good idea and I would be interested in that 

A self-regulated scheme where landlords are given a checkbox of regulations, they need to 
follow in order to rent out to tenants, all conscientious landlords would be doing these 
anyway and it would greatly reduce the time and red tape for the very simple property types 
that have to also adhere to the very arduous process of additional licensing 

Theme: New build properties should be exempt 

Consider on a property-by-property basis - I.e., new builds should be excluded The council believes that all properties should be held to the same 
standards, regardless of the age of the property. Whilst the planning 
department is involved in the building approval, they are not aware 
of how the property is being let once it is completed (for example, a 
flat build and designed as a single-family dwelling could be let out 
as an HMO etc) 

see previous response. Don't have an issue with licensing, but make it prompt (1 year after 
the application is not prompt) and questioning a new build already signed off by another 
department in Southwark is pointless and makes a mockery of the whole process 

Theme: Rent controls  

Introduce a cap on rent that can be charged. Then unscrupulous landlords won’t be able to 
make enough money out of it for it to be worthwhile. 

The council does not have the authority to impose rent caps on 
private properties in the borough 

Higher standards for housing, regulating rents and having maximum rent, actually giving 
renters rights - including the right to stop paying rent in cases of overcharging or insufficient 
repairs 

Rent controls. 
Long term vacant properties should be bought under compulsory purchase order to make 
more social housing. 
If we had these things in place, then maybe HMO licences would work in addition to this. 

Theme: Other  

Ask past tenants what they think of their landlord.  My tenants are always happy that I deal 
with issues usually within 24 hours and have been described as 'great'! 
Perhaps just landlords who have 2 or more properties to rent should require a licence.  The 
more properties you have the greater the risk of mismanagement. 

The council believes that all properties, regardless of the number of 
properties a landlord has, should be held to a good standard. 
The council appreciates that good tenant feedback is important, but 
the council is aware that many tenants may not be aware of the 
safety standards that they should expect from rental properties. 

There are Plenty of alternatives, e.g., 
 
Southwark Council could engage constructively with Landlords and Landlord 
Representative Groups and try to understand both differing needs and realities. 
You seem to be very anti-landlord in any engagement with us for a long while now.  
Then build programmes and strategies in a cooperative manner that would allow Southwark 
to utilise its systems and resources to make it attractive to Landlords to expand their 
tenancy options, perhaps sensible long term lets at competitive prices. 

Southwark Council plans to create a quarterly landlord forum, to 
engage with landlords and gather their feedback and input. The 
council also intends to create a landlord e-newsletter. 
 
An Independent Review of the Use and Effectiveness of Selective 
Licensing (2019) found that “Licensing provides a clear driver for 
effective engagement between landlords and local authorities and 
drives up landlord awareness of their responsibilities” 

280



Appendix 13 
 

36 
 

 
Working with good or engaged Landlords would allow resource to be put towards identifying 
other Landlords who may not be fully up-to-speed on current ever evolving legislation and 
focus on educating and engaging them. The rump of Landlords who wish to operate poorly 
could then be identified and initially engaged with and if that isn't successful subsequently 
dealt with. 

In order to find the rogue Landlords, the council should be checking every advert for 
housing on Gumtree, Spare Room, Open Rent etc. where the letting is not going through a 
lettings agency. Lettings agents will check the properties anyway and refuse to let any that 
are substandard. 

The council do check these already and will continue to carry out 
these checks, and conduct further desktop research  

I am not entirely in disagreement, but Tenants should be part of the solution. They are also 
part of the problem: the uncaring behaviour related to the rented property is shocking! 

As stated above, as outlined in Southwark Housing Strategy 2020, 
the council will support tenants to be a good neighbour by providing 
a pre-tenancy course on how to abide by their tenancy agreement, 
including acceptable behaviour standards, how to get involved and 
how to budget. 

Properties should only be licensed where the number of people exceeds the number of 
bedrooms and the tenants have signed more than one leases.   
 
Properties could be inspected prior to a license being required to check for condition.  This 
could be done through real estate agents. 

Real estate agents often do not have the required HHSRS training 
and housing act hazard training to make a decision regarding the 
safety of a property.  
Even in properties where the number of people matches the 
number of bedrooms, the council wants to make sure that the 
rooms are of a good size and condition for tenants. 

Tax breaks should be given to landlords who upgrade properties and planning laws should 
be loosened to enable landlords to find alternatives to original wooden windows that are 
more energy efficient, cost effective and longer lasting. 

It has been a legal requirement to have an EPC of E and above for 
rented properties in the PRS since 2020 (unless you have an 
exemption). There are many ways to improve your EPC rating, 
more information is available here New digital service to improve 
home energy performance - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)  – including 
information about the government’s Green Homes Grant, through 
which you may be able to apply for a voucher towards the cost of 
installing energy efficient improvements to your property. 
Council properties are legally exempt from licensing under the 
Housing Act 2004. 

I think those properties that have no identifiable hazards should be rewarded with a longer 
licence (i.e., more than five years). There would then at least be an incentive to "get it right" 
the first time. 

The licence period of five years is set by the Housing Act of 2004, 
not by the council, so we cannot extend licences past the licence 
period 

Make it a civil offence - with fines - for landlords to not behave properly to their tenants. 
Introduce easy to access housing tribunals. 

Landlords who break the licence conditions or are found to be 
operating a licensable property in the designated area without a 
licence may be fined or prosecuted. However, the council aims, 
through licensing, to work with landlords to raise housing condition 

281

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-digital-service-to-improve-home-energy-performance
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-digital-service-to-improve-home-energy-performance


Appendix 13 
 

37 
 

standards in the borough, and reduce the instances in which 
landlords do behave poorly towards their tenants 

 

f) Suggestions for alternatives to selective licensing 

 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: Focus on the worst areas and offenders 

A focus in poor performing landlords. A much simpler quality control. As stated above, the council has evidence of persistent issues with 
poor property conditions, deprivation, and ASB in the wards outlined 
in the designations.  
 
Licensing will enable the council to focus on the worst offenders. An 
Independent Review of the Use and Effectiveness of Selective 
Licensing (2019) found that licensing “focuses resources on areas of 
concern” and also “provides a clearly defined offence 
(licensed/unlicensed) which simplifies enforcement - and where a 
landlord is intentionally operating without a licence it is highly likely 
the inspection process will uncover further offences”.  

Focus on these alleged private landlords who make their tenants' lives intolerable and also 
focus on those tenants who make their landlords' - and neighbours' - lives intolerable. Stop 
this inquisition against all landlords and make them all pay for any transgression of the few. 

As your report says it is a minority of landlords therefore, any scheme should be targeted at 
those causing the problems, not all landlords. This scheme will charge responsible 
landlords to fund dealing with unscrupulous landlords which is unfair. 
Local authorities and housing associations are also causing many housing problems by 
failing to deal with repairs. 

Focus on the top 3/4 deprived areas, run the scheme longer e.g., 5 years. Monitor Changes 
and if real positive change occurs then expand to the next 3/4 deprived areas and 
implement lessons learnt. 

To concentrate on the deprived areas only. 

Targeting individual cases and provide help with deposit to allow tenants to find better 
accommodation 

Focus on the areas which are of concern. 

Theme: Keep the existing scheme with selected streets 

Retain the street-by-street scheme. Do not penalise the whole ward for the actions of a few. As stated above, the council has evidence of persistent issues with 
poor property conditions, deprivation, and ASB in more areas than 
the streets covered by the previous scheme. Licensing will enable the 
council to address these issues. 

Renew the existing scheme only (after the pandemic - when we are back to normal) to 
cover the selected problem streets.  
Do not put undue pressure on existing Landlords who do not currently need a selective 
licence to take up a licence when all they want to do is free themselves of the current tenant 
and exit the market.  
This scheme should be deferred and possibly reviewed when we are back to 'normal' after 
the pandemic and both LL and tenant is fully aware of the licence scheme when a new AST 
is signed. 

Retain the street-by-street scheme. Do not penalise the whole ward for the actions of a few. 

Theme: Respond to tenant complaints 

282



Appendix 13 
 

38 
 

Run a scheme on a tenant complaint basis. Why do good landlords are punished with 
additional costs for issues bad landlords are creating? Managing this license scheme will be 
more effort for the council than a tenant complaint scheme. 

As stated above (Suggestions for alternatives to licensing) Southwark 
Council has an existing reporting service on the council website. 
Tenants can also use the GLA website to make a complaint or raise 
an issue with the council. Southwark Council has a tenancy relations 
team, who receive referrals from across the council, and the tenants 
can also contact the call centre.  
Whilst the council does already respond to tenant complaints and 
follow the enforcement protocols, licensing would enable the council 
to raise awareness with landlords of their responsibilities and work 
proactively with landlords to raise standards in their properties, so 
that the situation does not get to a point where a tenant has to 
complain. 

Yes, a proper scheme where tenants and residents can complain when there are issues, 
and you, THE COUNCIL, do something about it. 

Do tenant online surveys to get feedback about landlords - could be cheaper and more 
informative - rogue landlords can then be identified and managed appropriately 

Investigate investigate investigate when a tenant complains and prosecute THAT landlord 

The vast majority of private rentals in Southwark are fine. For the minority that are not, the 
council should run a complaint service. Then when alerted to unsuitable living conditions, 
the council should investigate and legally compel the landlord to make the property safe and 
habitable. 

Theme: Case by case approach 

Selective licensing, should be, as the name indicate, selective and be imposed on those 
properties with evidence of bad management and ASB. 

As stated above, the council has evidence of persistent issues of 
poor property conditions, deprivation and ASB in the wards outlined 
in the proposed designations. Through licensing, the council intends 
to raise awareness with landlords of their responsibilities and good 
practise and focus enforcement and resources on areas of concern. 
An Independent Review of the Use and Effectiveness of Selective 
Licensing (2019) found that licensing “focuses resources on areas of 
concern” and also “provides a clearly defined offence 
(licensed/unlicensed) which simplifies enforcement - and where a 
landlord is intentionally operating without a licence it is highly likely 
the inspection process will uncover further offences”. 

Deal with each property individually, be smart and check all the properties a landlord owns 
because if they are failing in one property then there's a likelihood, they are making the 
same mistakes in all their properties, 
 
Quit with the revenue generation and start tackling the problems, be led by the tenants and 
begin with support for landlords but back it up with sanctions. 

Buildings should be judged on individual basis rather than by street. Further, different rules 
should apply to buildings that are historic and costly to maintain. 

Theme: Other 

Select more selectively!  Apply your scheme not by ward, but by postal code -- restrict it to 
the codes in which ASBOs are required, in which housing has been shown to be badly 
maintained.  You have the data at your fingers' tips, I am sure.  Now please use those data 
on a postal-code basis. 

The council is proposing to introduce licensing at ward level rather 
than street or postcode level as the experience of officers during the 
street-by-street level was confusing. Most other London boroughs 
use ward-based data, and the evidence that the council has access 
to is often at ward level  

Don’t stagger the implementation of the scheme. Roll this out across the board as there are 
different issues being addressed. 

The council has the authority to introduce selective licensing for up to 
20% of the borough. For the second set of designations, it is required 
to apply to MHCLG, therefore the council wants to understand who 
well the schemes are working before applying to central government 

For those things addressed in the proposed licensing, it makes much more sense to have 
that managed via the letting agreement process as this put the onus on full-time property 
professionals, i.e., letting agents, to deal with it.  They have the relevant capability and 
competency.  If you insist on licensing, then make licensing a requirement of letting 

Unfortunately, there are also rogue letting agents and managing 
agents who operate in the borough. The council works with trading 
standard to address this issue, but it does mean just having an agent 
does not mean that a property is well maintained.  

283



Appendix 13 
 

39 
 

agreements so that agents have no choice but to take ownership of the process in order to 
expedite it. 

A managing agent or letting agent can be the licence holder for the 
property, but that would be a decision for the landlord and agent to 
take and is not mandated by the council.  

rent cap - bring in mandatory health and building quality requirements and actually enforce 
them - fine landlords - cut ties with property developers making substandard private housing 

The council does not have the authority to introduce a rent cap. The 
licence conditions specify health and safety requirements for 
properties (for example room sizes, smoke and carbon monoxide 
detectors etc) and will enforce licences against these conditions.  
Property developers apply to the planning department to build new 
properties and are required to meet their standards. 

The council should introduce a fee for all properties that are rented without licensing them. 
Make a non-payment a criminal record like for TV licensing fee. There are no conditions 
attached to TV licensing fee, and a non-payment may result in a criminal record. 

The council does not have the authority to introduce that style of 
licensing. Selective licensing was included in the Housing Act 2004, 
which gave local authorities the option to introduce licensing. 

 

g) Responses concerning fee discounts  

Southwark Council proposed four possible discounts to the licence fees for both selective and additional licensing:  
 An early bird discount for application during the first three months of the scheme – 30% discount  
 Gold standard Charter members – 50% discount on the Part B fee  
 Platinum Standard Charter members – 100% discount on the Part B fee  
 Joining the council’s social lettings agency – 100% discount.  

 

The consultation asked respondents which proposed discounts should be removed and if there are any additional discounts that should be 

considered 

Below is a sample representation of comments received that relate to the licence fee discounts and the Council’s response to the 

comments. 

284



Appendix 13 
 

40 
 

i. Responses to “Are there any discounts that should be removed?” 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s response 

Theme: All of them  

Discounts should not be provided!!  It is discriminatory and does not take into account ability-to-pay 
or status.  That is to say, who do you think is going to benefit from such discounts? The professional 
corporate landlord OR the non-professional part-time with 1 buy-to-let??  The answer is obvious.  
You are merely shifting resources from weaker parties to stronger parties.  If you are going to give 
discounts you are merely emphasising that this is more about revenue generation that property 
standards. 

The council wants to reward responsible landlords who 
apply promptly for a licence, and for those who meet the 
standards of the gold charters, by offering them a 
discount 
 

no discounts should be given, these people are in it for profits which always come before residents 
needs 

Discounts should not be offered as it is favouritism towards people who understand the complex 
new system the best. It is unfair for elderly landlords and foreigners. 

All of them.  You want to be a landlord; you can pay for it.  The fees are too low as it is. 

All discounts should be removed. It is not a question of incentives. These requirements are either 
mandatory or should be and hence discounts are not needed. 

All of them.  It's absurd to give landlords a discount for doing the bare minimum required by law. In 
addition, the 50% discount undermines your pricing scheme overall - landlords will just say 'the 
council clearly don't need the second 50%, why is it fair that I have to pay it?'. 

No discounts to landlords who are already extracting a pound of flesh and more 

No discounts - it makes a mockery of the system and will be taking advantage of by unscrupulous 
landlords and estate agents. 

All of them, the minimum standards should be high, and all private landlords should be expected to 
meet them without a discount to incentivise them. 

Theme: There should be no fee 

There shouldn’t be a license fee in the first place, just make it legislation that all landlords have to 
follow these rules. Just because you charge people doesn't mean people will follow the rules. 

The schemes are required to be self-funding therefore 
for the council to be able to implement and run the 
schemes and carry out inspections, there is a need for a 
fee. 

There should no licence fee 

No fees should be charged in the first place. 

Theme: The fees are too high 

early bird discounts? Are you running a restaurant? 
The fee is far far too high.  
It should be maximum 50 pounds. 900 pounds is wholly unjustifiable. 
It equates to 10% of some annual income on rental properties 

Under the law, the council is not allowed to make money 
from the licensing schemes. The proposed fees have 
been calculated based on the cost of setting up and 
operating the licensing schemes, so that the costs would 
be met by the expected income from the number of The fees are way too expensive 

Prices in the first place are too high 

285



Appendix 13 
 

41 
 

licence applications we anticipate, under the proposed 
designations. 

Theme: Discounts only if the property is well maintained/the council checks it is well maintained  

Discounts okay but should be removed if there are issues with their lettings Landlords or managing agents applying for the discounts 
have to provide the council with proof. The council will 
inspect the properties for compliance with gold standard 
when inspecting for licensing and tenants will be able to 
report non-compliance with the gold standard 

It's all well and good to offer the carrot of a discount, but where's the stick? What's to stop landlords 
signing up for the discount and then the Council fails to monitor whether they are adhering to the 
T&Cs laid down by the Council? 

Obviously any landlords who do not adhere to the charter after signing should have their discounts 
removed. 

Theme: The early bird discounts should be removed 

The early bird discount should be removed - it rewards landlords who happen to be fast. As stated above the council wants to reward landlords 
who apply for a licence promptly Early bird, not sure why this is needed. 

Theme: Just have a flat fee 

If you have to pay then there should be a set fee for all, the same fee. The flat fee doesn’t cover the difference in work the 
council has to undertake in different types of properties. 
HMOs for example are much more complex and are 
required to comply with a different standard. It would be 
unfair to charge landlords of single-family properties the 
same as a landlord of a large HMO for example. 

Just have a flat fee 

Theme: The gold standard discount should be removed 

I cannot meet the Gold Standard requirements even though I believe I am an excellent landlord 
because the type of tenant I serve is a short-term tenant. I don't see why the discount should apply 
only landlords who serve tenants who want long term rental arrangements. They should be applied 
to all landlord types or removed 

The council wants to reward good landlords who meet 
the criteria of the gold standard charter.  
 
Landlord or managing agents are not required to apply 
for the gold standard charter I honestly feel the Gold Standard is largely what is to be expected of a landlord.  Some of the 

factors are literally "comply with existing law" and most of the rest are "this will make your own life 
easier later if a tenant becomes a problem" standards.  So, I'm not sure I think there is much need 
for a discount incentive, or that the council should reduce its revenue stream in order to get 
landlords to declare what they should be doing anyway for their own self-interest.  I understand 
financial incentive for the Platinum standard. 

If it costs £199.90 to receive accreditation (e.g., via https://www.londonlandlords.org.uk/courses), 
why would a rational landlord that only owns one property do it to save £135 or £195 with Gold 
Standard Charter membership? 

Theme: The discounts are too small 

These are very small discounts for a £900 cost. The licensing scheme is required to be self-funded. The 
discounts are based on a financial model that would 
enable the council to implement and run the schemes Should be larger discounts 

Theme: The gold and platinum discounts should be removed 

286



Appendix 13 
 

42 
 

Gold and platinum charter discounts. There is no effective enforcement of obligations under these 
schemes. 

The council believes that many landlords in the borough 
will already meet the gold standards. 

I do not like the Gold/Platinum etc "standard" at all. It punishes those who can't afford to make the 
payments to become a member. 

The Gold and Platinum Schemes are unsubtle attempts at socialising private property. 
Southwark should get its own house in order before exploiting the private Rented Sector. 

Theme: The discount for accreditation or for joining a landlord association should be removed 

The charter requires landlords to belong to a professional landlord scheme but that is not 
reasonable for temporary landlords like ourselves. 

As stated above, the council wants to reward good 
landlords, and understands that accreditation involves a 
cost and also meeting a good standard.  Landlord or 
managing agents are not required to apply for the gold 
standard charter. It is a voluntary scheme 

Discount for chartered members 

Requirement to be a member of a recognised landlords association.  Landlords who only have 1 or 
2 properties would not be eligible for this. 

Theme:  Further discounts for landlords with no complaints 

There should be additional discounts for landlords who have not had any complaints against them. 
You should penalise the problematic landlords 

The council appreciates that good tenant feedback is 
important, but the council is aware that many tenants 
may not be aware of the safety standards that they 
should expect from rental properties. 

If you have a good record, you should not have to pay 

Theme:  Other 

Whatever the platinum standard thing is, it is not clear what benefit it is for the tenants/customers 
and just sounds like the landlord/supplier has ticked some meaningless boxes. 

Following the public consultation and the council’s 
consideration of the consultation responses, the 
platinum standard has been removed  

There should be no enforcement fee for applicants unless enforcement action is taken. 
These schemes require training at an extra cost when a responsible landlord can find out this 
information without additional costs. 
Landlords may be happy finding their own tenants. 

Landlords are not required to join the finders’ fee 
scheme or the social lettings scheme.  Following the 
public consultation and the council’s consideration of the 
consultation responses, the licence conditions to attend 
training has been removed. The council will be 
undertaking proactive enforcement of the scheme, and 
also will need to implement the scheme and process 
applications.  

Investors who own and rent more than 10 properties (anywhere in the UK) should either not be 
eligible for any discounts at all or should be receive a much smaller discount. They can easily afford 
the license fees. 

There are portfolio landlords who run many properties 
which are kept at a good standard, and the council 
believes that they should be entitled to the same 
discounts as other good landlords 

Properties with unaffordable / very high rents should not be allowed to join the council register. They 
are there for the richest. 
House value should play part in how much fee is chargeable. 
For example I live in a council flat and yet I pay the highest band of council tax; same should apply 
to license fee; it should be charged as %of monthly rent 

As stated above, the licence fee is set based on the cost 
of the schemes. The fee is not permitted to be set based 
on the number, size or rental value of the property 

287



Appendix 13 
 

43 
 

ii. Responses to “Are there any additional discounts that should be considered?” 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s response 

Theme: Discount for good landlords 

Perhaps rewarding consistent good practice by landlords with bonus discounts. The council considers that good landlords would apply promptly 
for a licence, and therefore be eligible for an early-bird discount, 
or would meet the requirements of the gold-standard charter, 
which would also give them a discount 

Discounts should be far higher to reward landlords who proactively maintain their 
properties. A clean inspection should be rewarded with very low licensing fees, otherwise 
you will have landlords only maintain to a minimal viable standard. 

Landlords with good track record of repair 

For good behaviour/management 

Properties that are inspected and found to be of high standard 

Discounts where no issues/tenants' complaints have arisen in relation to the landlord's 
properties - similar to an insurance "no claims discount" 

Theme: Discount for landlords with small (3 properties or less) portfolios  

Private landlords who only rent a single property (or a very low number of properties) 
should be entitled to a small discount. 

As stated above, the licence fee is set based on the cost of the 
schemes. The fee is not permitted to be set based on the number, 
size or rental value of the property For small time private landlords who only have 1-2 properties.  The proposals unfairly 

discriminate against them. 

Yes, for landlords who just rent out one property 

Theme: Discount for landlords who were licensed under the previous scheme 

The cost of renewing a licence at the end of five years should be discounted given that it 
is highly unlikely that there will be any material change in the condition of the property and 
so this should be relatively straightforward for Council officers. I just can't see how it can 
cost the full figure again to renew a licence. 
 
It also feels unfair that those of us who currently have licences running will not be eligible 
for any early bird discount. 

If you already have an additional HMO licence, this will remain 
valid until its expiry date. As and when the new scheme comes in, 
applicants will have a choice to:  

 Use any outstanding time on their old licence. This will be 
automatically brought over to the new scheme system. 
However, once that licence runs out, they will have missed the 
opportunity to get your early bird discount and will be required to 
buy a new licence at the full price.   

 Buy a new licence during the early bird and take advantage of 
the discount period.  

Depending on how long their licence has left and how long they 
will be renting their property, they will have to decide which 

option makes most sense for them.   

For landlords who have already been through 5 years of the previous licence scheme and 
who now are renewing for a new term. 
In addition, the Early Bird scheme should be for landlords who renew within 3 months of 
their present licence expiring NOT the start of the new scheme.   Many licenses have 
been changed to now expire in June or September 2021, so that should be the date for 
the Early Bird scheme.   Alternatively, if a present Additional License is expiring in June 
2021, the Early Bird would start April 2021 and expire at the same time the present licence 
expires. 

Theme: Discount for landlords who use a reputable agent  

288



Appendix 13 
 

44 
 

Discounts for landlords who employ a registered, professional agent to manage their 
property - which would ensure that many of the problems around inspections and 
provision of information to tenants were addressed. 

As stated above, unfortunately, there are also rogue letting agents 
and managing agents who operate in the borough. The council 
works with trading standard to address this issue, but it does 
mean just having an agent does not mean that a property is well 
maintained.  
 

For those landlords that use licensed registered property management companies 

Can a discount be considered for landlord who use agents that are members of registered 
industry bodies therefore ensuring best practice is maintained throughout the lettings 
process. 

Theme: Discounts for accredited landlords 

Membership of a National Landlord Association. 
Accreditation by a National Landlord Association. 

Accredited landlords can apply to the Gold Standard Charter 
which would entitle them to a discount 
 
 

Being a member of a landlord's association (such as the NRLA) and having done some 
relevant training 

NRLA and/or LLAS accredited landlords 

Theme: Discount for landlords who can provide tenant references 

Substantial discounts should be offered to properties that can provide tenant references 
proving they have been good landlords. 

As stated above, the council appreciates that good tenant 
feedback is important, but the council is aware that many tenants 
may not be aware of the safety standards that they should expect 
from rental properties. 

Discounts for those Landlords with records of good/excellent management and satisfied 
tenants. 
Discounts for Landlord with long standing tenants, where tenants had no complains. 

Perhaps the comments of long-standing tenants could be considered, and if favourable, 
weighted accordingly. 

Theme: Discounts for continued compliance 

The additional discount should be offered on the basis of performance not just signing up 
to something. Or should be revoked if there are problems despite them signing up to the 
charter 

Landlords who sign up to the Gold Standard Charter will be 
checked to ensure they are complying with the standard. 
 

Discounts for continued compliance with the Licensing Scheme. 

Theme: Other 

No - but a scheme that arranges discounts on products and services needed to rectify 
problems, e.g., electrical work, fire safety equipment and building works could save a lot of 
time and money for landlords and hence benefit tenants. 

Landlords have a responsibility to keep their properties safe for 
their tenants. Information about repairs to properties can be found 
via the council website here -  Repairs - Southwark Council 

Multiple property applications, as presumably you are running checks on the landlord as 
well, these would only have to be run once. 

There isn’t a discount for multiple applications because the 
majority of the work involved in licensing is property based rather 
than landlord checks 
 

New parents where one not working. The family income for these cases are much lower 
and should be supported. 

Licences are granted to the property and last for up to five years. 
The tenants may move and change during this time; therefore, the 
licence is not granted based on the tenants’ situation Unrelated Professional tenants (such as NHS Doctors) should not be licensed 

289

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/housing/repairs


Appendix 13 
 

45 
 

 

h) Responses concerning licence conditions 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

Mandatory (1.1), 
Additional (1.1) 
and Selective 
(1.1) 

The property licence must be displayed within a 
communal area of the property and a copy of the 
conditions should be made available to all the 
occupying tenants (discretionary condition).  

Displaying the licence in a communal area in the 
rental 

Under HMO regulations, landlords 
are required to show name, 
contact details and address, so 
they can also display this – the 
licence has to be clearly displayed 
in a prominent position, which will 
be available to all tenants in the 
property. This condition is 
designed to address the rent-to-
rent issue and ensuring there is 
transparency on who is the 
landlord and licence holder. It also 
protects the landlords from illegal 
subletting. This condition will be 
removed from the selective 
licence conditions 

Property license displayed in communal areas. 
Why not just provide it to each tenant? 

Displaying the licence in a communal area is 
ridiculous. What if the tenants take it down? A 
landlord can't be expected to check-in every day to 
make sure that a piece of paper is kept displayed in 
a common area. A copy should be e-mailed/given 
to each tenant at the beginning of the tenancy and 
that's it. 

No need for the licence to be "displayed", it can 
be kept in a file in the property. 

Safeagent - We disagree with a requirement to 
have a copy of the licence displayed in every HMO. 
This creates an institutional feel -Suggest: allow 
displaying a copy in the property or giving a copy to 

the tenants. 
Additional (1.2) 
and Selective 
(1.2) 

The address of the Licence Holder given on their 
application form shall be used as the address for 
the proper service of any letter, notice or other 
document between the London Borough of 
Southwark Property Licensing Team and the 
Licence Holder. It is the Licence Holder’s 

Should not 1.2 refer to any nominated managing 
agent? 

The council are required to be 
able to contact the licence holder, 
and a managing agent’s 
information, as an interested 
party, should also be provided, 
but the council is required to 

Maybe for landlords who rent to people not local authority but work and revive benefits, 
this is still an issue. I see this most commonly among my young colleagues who are not 
eligible for council help. 

Discounts should be given to private landlords who are complying to an agreement that 
they will not rent above cost, and who reimburse in the form of equity rent that goes 
towards mortgages or home improvement. 

Landlords who do not rent above cost may be interested in joining 
the council’s proposed gold standard charter, which would entitle 
them to a discount 

People who have owned their property in Southwark for 5 plus years. The length of time a property has been owned is not an indication 
of the standard it has been maintained at or its suitability to be 
rented out to tenants. 

290



Appendix 13 
 

46 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

responsibility to ensure that they take all 
reasonable steps to collect and act upon any 
letter, notice or other document sent to that 
address on a regular basis (discretionary 

condition).  

contact the licence holder with 
any notices or letters 

Selective (1.6) The property must comply with and be maintained 
in accordance with and any Approved Codes of 
Practice which the Council or Central Government 
may from time to time require (discretionary 

condition).  

Para 1.6 is too wide/vague. It gives the Council 
power to act arbitrarily. 

Following the public consultation 
and the council’s consideration of 
the consultation responses, this 
condition has been removed. 

Mandatory (1.6), 
Additional (1.6) 
and Selective 
(1.7)  

Every habitable room in the property must have 
acceptable natural daylight and ventilation. An 
area of glazing which is equivalent to at least 10% 
of the internal floor space of each habitable room 
must be provided.  An area of openable glazing 
(for ventilation) which is equivalent to at 
least 20% of the internal floor space of each 
habitable room must be provided (discretionary 
condition).  

An area of openable glazing (for ventilation) which 
is equivalent to at least 20% of the internal floor 
Space of each habitable room must be provided. 
This may not be permitted under planning rules. 

There was a typo in the condition 
which has been rectified. It has 
been changed to:  An area of 
glazing which is equivalent to at 
least 10% of the internal floor 
space of each habitable room 
must be provided.  An area of 
openable glazing (for ventilation) 
which is equivalent to at least 5% 
of the internal floor space of each 
habitable room must be provided. 
 
This condition is to prevent rooms 
without any natural light being 
rented out. The council believes 
that most properties meet this 
standard. Bathrooms and kitchens 
are not included as habitable 
rooms. 
Following the public consultation 
and the council’s consideration of 
the consultation responses, the 
water saving conditions have 
been changed to a 
recommendation rather than an 
enforceable condition 
 

1.7 - Condition relating to light to habitable rooms 
will be difficult to achieve in some cases for rooms 
such as bathrooms, unclear if these will be included 
or not. 

It will be too difficult for landlords to comply in 
certain properties. The glazing % rules in all 
habitable rooms is onerous and should only apply 
to bedrooms. 

The glazing/ ventilation- I have a modern property 
built in 2008, it passed planning permission, but 
doubt it would meet these requirements. I can’t 
modify the windows according to my lease- you are 
basically saying that renters deserve a higher 
standard of living than your planners think 
necessary. 
The EICR low risk works being completed in 5 
years, if they are low risk and this legislation does 
not apply to all domestic dwellings, why are they 
required? 
The water saving conditions. 

1.7 condition about glazing and openable areas of 
glazing just makes no sense in any dwelling other 
than fully glassed apartments. Yes, there should be 

291



Appendix 13 
 

47 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

adequate ventilation and glazing but those numbers 
do not make sense and cannot be applied in most 
conservation areas/ traditional properties or new 
build in those areas without creating substantial 
costs, potential issues and most likely refusal from 
planning office. 

 
 

Also, "glazed units at min 10% of floor area.... etc." 
how about relaxing your planning conditions a little 
bit? I wanted to build my flats super modern with 
large windows, but you wouldn't let me! 

para 1.7 simply does not make sense - if the 
glazing required equals 10% (where does this come 
from - as far as I can see Central Government do 
not specify this) why should the ventilation be 20%! 
Surely the tenancy is either compliant before the 
licence is granted or not and the first sentence is 
adequate? 

Safeagent - disagree. Suggest assessment on 
case-by-case basis 

NRLA- This discretionary condition is 
about standards and goes beyond the scope of 
selective licensing.   

Mandatory (1.7), 
Additional (1.7) 
and Selective 
(1.6 for 
designations 1, 
2 and 4, and 
condition 18 for 
designation 3) 

The Licence Holder is in control of property with 
an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) Rating 
of less than ‘E’.    
The Licence Holder shall within twelve months of 
the licence being issued carry out the works 
detailed on the EPC for the property to improve 
the energy efficiency of the HMO to achieve 
an EPC rating of ‘E’ or above  
 

Not all landlords can afford to improve their EPC 
rating. Will the council financially help out with this? 
Or will the landlord struggle to pay for 
improvements needed due to a building which was 
poorly built in the first place? 

It has been a legal requirement 
(The Domestic Minimum Energy 
Efficiency Standard (MEES) 
Regulations) to have an EPC of E 
and above for rented properties in 
the PRS since 2020 unless you 
have an exemption. If you cannot 
comply you have to register for an 
exemption on the PRS 
Exemptions Register 
 
 There are many ways to improve 
your EPC rating, more information 
is available here New digital 
service to improve home energy 

How can a leaseholder significantly influence an 
EPC if say, Southwark is the Freeholder? Will 
Southwark be obligated to carry out work? 

Strongly disagree with the EPC measures - having 
seen the whole range of reports for the block my 
property is in (all set up in very similar way), the 
grades given vary quite wildly (e.g., range from D to 
G for very similar properties) - but the 
recommendations given are largely the same! My 
property is particularly penalised for not having 

292

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-digital-service-to-improve-home-energy-performance
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-digital-service-to-improve-home-energy-performance


Appendix 13 
 

48 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

mains gas supply, but the cost of the whole building 
becoming connected to the supply (and installing 
central heating) is prohibitive.  Also, I know for a 
fact having lived in the property, that energy bills 
are in fact pretty low compared to the property I'm 
currently in (with a higher EPC rating) - I don't 
believe enough weight is given to individual 
thermostatic heaters improving heating efficiency by 
room, or to the insulating benefits of being a flat in a 
block rather than a detached property. 

performance - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)  – including 
information about the 
government’s Green Homes 
Grant, through which you may be 
able to apply for a voucher 
towards the cost of installing 
energy efficient improvements to 
your property. 
Council properties are legally 
exempt from licensing under the 
Housing Act 2004. 

Water saving and energy efficient features.  Neither 
LBS-managed or leasehold/freehold properties 
have this requirement, so this is not inclusive and is 
disproportionately biased. 

EPCs should be abolished. They serve no purpose 
whatsoever due to their complete inaccuracy in 
assessment methodology. The most energy 
intensive property I've ever been in had the highest 
EPC score of the lot! 

Also, how about reducing the amount of CIL you 
charge in exchange for improving the EPC of the 
newly converted flat units? There are clever ways to 
instigate change, but all you care about is charging 
people more fees. Guess who is ultimately paying 
for this? Yes, it's the tenant! 

Mandatory (1.4), 
Additional (1.4) 

No other persons other than the Licence Holder or 
the named agent (that the Licence Holder has 
notified to the Council) can collect and receive 
rental monies from the tenant(s) at this property. 
These monies can be passed onto any third 
parties if required (discretionary condition).  

1.4 - this means that if the licence holder dies, the 
tenants won't have to pay rent. This needs to be 
reworded. 
 
"1.4 and 6.2 - Allow a mechanism for the license 
holder to designate a single 'emergency next of kin' 
or similar to avoid a potential situation where the 
licensee is also the property owner and becomes 
unexpectedly deceased. If they've bequeathed their 
property to family or a close friend, who 
subsequently has to apply for a license in order to 

Temporary exemptions will be 
applied upon the licence holder’s 
death. This condition is designed 
to address illegal subletting and 
the rent-to-rent issue.  
 
6.2 is a condition to ensure that 
tenants are aware of how to 
address repairs and emergency 
issues. It is up to the landlord to 
decide how these issues will be 
dealt with, for example via direct 

Mandatory (6.2), 
Additional (6.2) 
and Selective 
(6.2) 

 The Licence holder shall supply the occupiers of 
the property with a written statement of the terms 
on which they occupy the property (mandatory 
condition), details of the arrangements in place to 
deal with repair issues and emergency issues and 
a copy of this licence and its conditions. Copies of 

293

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-digital-service-to-improve-home-energy-performance
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-digital-service-to-improve-home-energy-performance


Appendix 13 
 

49 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

the written statement of terms must be provided to 
the Council within 7 days upon 
demand (discretionary condition). 

collect rent payments, the short-term result will 
likely be that the tenants are evicted. 
 
Para 6.2 is excessive and does not address the 
issue of repair/hazards 

contact with the landlord or via a 
managing agent etc 

Additional (2.1) If gas is supplied to the property, a valid Gas Safe 
gas safety certificate must be available, on 
request, at any time. The gas safety certificate 
must relate to the whole gas installation and 
include all gas appliances. It must demonstrate 
that all appliances have been serviced and safety 
checked within the previous twelve months. Any 
defects noted on the certificate must be promptly 
rectified (mandatory condition). 

Safeagent - Suggest amend to require production 
with 14 days of a written request. 

This condition has been amended 
to “If gas is supplied to the 
property, a valid Gas Safe gas 
safety certificate must be 
available, within 7 days, on 
request, at any time” 

Additional (3.1) 
and Selective 
(3.1) 

The Licence Holder shall ensure that every 
electrical installation in the house is in proper 
working order and safe for continued use. The 
Licence Holder shall supply the London Borough 
of Southwark, within seven days of demand, 
a written declaration or appropriate certification as 
to the safety of the electrical installation(s) in the 
house. The Licence Holder shall ensure that any 
electrical appliances supplied by the licence 
holder, (e.g., fridges, kettles, lawn mowers, hedge 
trimmers, etc.) in the house are in proper working 
order and safe for continued use. The Licence 
Holder shall supply the London Borough of 
Southwark, within seven days of demand, a 
written declaration or appropriate certification as 
to the safety of any electrical appliances in the 
property (supplied by the licence holder). Only 
approved Electrical contractors are to be 
permitted to carry out inspections of electrical 
installations and appliances or remedial works. 
Any necessary remedial works identified by such 
contractors shall be undertaken within a 
reasonable time period. The Licence Holder must, 

The requirement to ensure that all electrical 
appliances are in working order would seem to 
require continuous inspection by the Landlord - not 
something the Tenant would want. There is no 
exclusion for those damaged by the Tenant. There 
is already a requirement for PAT testing annually 
which itself is onerous. 

To inspect that electrical 
installation, the council would 
expect this to be checked every 5 
years, unless there is reason to 
inspect more earlier. 
The council expects landlords to 
have a deposit scheme in place to 
deal with issues of tenant 
damage. 
This condition has been amended 
to “The Licence Holder shall 
ensure that every electrical 
installation in the house is in 
proper working order and safe for 
continued use. The Licence 
Holder shall supply the London 
Borough of Southwark, within 
seven days of demand, a written 
declaration or appropriate 
certification as to the safety of the 
electrical installation(s) in the 
house. Only approved Electrical 
contractors are to be permitted to 

Safeagent - suggest the conditions for (a) the 
electrical installation and (b) electrical appliances 
are broken down into two separate conditions. The 
term ‘approved Electrical contractors’ is undefined 
and does not correlate with the 2020 Electrical 
Safety Regulations.   
 
The requirement to undertake remedial works does 
not correlate with the 2020 Electrical Safety 
Regulations. There is no requirement to remedy C3 
recommendations. C1, C2, and FI issues on an 
unsatisfactory EICR must be resolved within 28 
days. 

294



Appendix 13 
 

50 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

within seven days of inspection, provide the 
London Borough of Southwark with a copy of 
such inspection reports. The Licence Holder shall 
inform the London Borough of Southwark upon 
completion of such works (mandatory condition).  

carry out inspections of electrical 
installations or remedial works. 
Any necessary remedial works 
identified by such contractors 
shall be undertaken within a 
reasonable time period. The 
Licence Holder must, within seven 
days of inspection, provide the 
London Borough of Southwark 
with a copy of such inspection 
reports. The Licence Holder shall 
inform the London Borough of 
Southwark upon completion of 
such works” 

Mandatory (3.2), 
Additional (3.2) 
and Selective 
(3.2) 

A valid Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) record 
must be available, on request, at any time, for all 
electrical appliances provided in the property by 
the licence holder. PAT tests should be carried 
out every twelve months with records kept for at 
least five years. Any necessary maintenance or 
repair work must be undertaken by a competent 
electrical engineer in accordance with Part P of 
the Building Regulations. Copies of all 
maintenance records and PAT testing must be 
provided to the Council on request (discretionary 
condition).  

Why is PAT testing not allowed to be carried out by 
a competent trained PAT Tester? 

PAT testing can be carried out by 
anyone who has carried out a 
PAT testing course. PAT testing is 
only required on devices provided 
by the licence holder, you do not 
have to test devices the tenants 
have brought to the property. The 
tests should be carried out 
annually, and the documentation 
should be kept for five years, the 
test does not last for 5 years.  
This condition has been amended 
to “A valid Portable Appliance 
Testing (PAT) record must be 
available, on request, at any time, 
for all electrical appliances 
provided in the property by the 
licence holder. PAT tests should 
be carried out by a competent 
person every twelve months, or 
as often as recommended for the 
type of appliance with records 
kept for at least five years. Any 

The PAT testing requirement is impossible to 
comply with as a landlord. If a tenant purchases a 
set of hair curlers and these were not PAT tested, 
then the landlord could be in default...! 

the annual PAT test - why annual if you say that the 
PAT test certificate should last 5 years? 

The significant requirement to test all appliances 
every 12 months for long term single household 
tenants will become an extra cost for tenants. 

Safeagent - Both 3.1 and 3.2 refer to portable 
electrical appliances, but in different ways. There 
should be just one condition for electrical 
appliances. Not practical to require a document on 
demand. It should be within 14 days of a written 
request 

295



Appendix 13 
 

51 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

necessary maintenance or repair 
work must be undertaken by a 
competent electrical engineer in 
accordance with Part P of the 
Building Regulations. Copies of all 
maintenance records and PAT 
testing must be provided to the 
Council on request (discretionary 
condition).” 

Additional (3.3) 
and Selective 
(3.3) 

Where low-risk (i.e., works that are only 
recommended and are not required to protect 
safety) works have been identified for remediation 
on the Electrical Installation Condition Report 
(EICR), the Licence Holder shall at the expiry of 
the ElCR (5 years from the date of issue) or within 
two years from the date of the licence, whichever 
comes sooner, have those works carried out. The 
licence holder must inform the Council when the 
works have been completed and provide an 
updated EICR (discretionary condition).   

I am not sure about 3.3 but suspect the reference to 
2 years in the case of low-risk issues is dubious. 

This condition has been removed 
 

Safeagent - Disagree: contrary to the 2020 

Government Electrical Safety Regulations. 

NRLA -   
This discretionary licence condition goes 
beyond the scope of selective licensing, as it is 
asking the licence holder to make improvements 
to the property and focused on standards. Case 
law Brown v Hyndburn sets out this precedent.   
 

Mandatory (4.1), 
Additional (4.1) 
and Selective 
(4.1) 

The Licence Holder is required to keep furniture 
made available by them in the house in a safe 
condition and must supply the authority, on 
demand, with a declaration by them as to the 
safety of such furniture (mandatory condition).  

In the case of 4.1 again there is no reference to 
tenant damage? 

There is a legal requirement for 
landlords to have a deposit 
scheme in place to deal with 
issues of tenant damage. 

4.1 How do you enforce such a condition? Don't 
you just end up with everything being rented 
unfurnished? That could be really wasteful. 

Mandatory (5.1), 
Additional (5.1) 
and Selective 
designations 2, 
3 and 4 (5.2) 

Provide fire precaution facilities and equipment at 
the property, as deemed necessary by the 
London Borough of Southwark.  Information on 
necessary fire precautions and equipment for the 
property will be provided to the licence holder.  
Fire precautions and equipment must be 
maintained in proper working order.  Appropriate 
records of such maintenance, such as current 
certificates, are to be kept and produced to the 
London Borough of Southwark on demand as 
evidence of such maintenance. Any defects noted 
on certification must be promptly rectified. Provide 

Para 5.2 is too wide and vague. it is more relevant 
to an HMO. 

This condition for additional and 
mandatory licences has been 
amended to ” 5.1 In compliance 
with the requirements of the 
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) 
Order 2005 
(http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi
/2005/1541/contents/made) the 
manager shall make a suitable 
and sufficient assessment of the 
risks to which tenants or visitors 
to the HMO are exposed for the 

Safeagent - Unclear how the licence holder will 
know what fire precautions needed unless the 
licence includes property specific conditions. 
Timescale also unclear 

LACORs is out of date.  You should allow 10year 
battery RF integrated alarms. 

296

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made


Appendix 13 
 

52 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

details of fire exit routes to tenants and, in respect 
of the fire alarm system, ensure that all tenants 
are aware of fire and fault indications, are 
adequately familiar with controls (e.g., resetting) 
and aware of measures to avoid false alarms.  
Tenants should be aware of what to do in the 
case of a fire. The LACoRs Fire Guide provides 
guidance on the levels of fire precautions 
expected in different types of HMO - 
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/downloa
d/4354/lacors_fire_guidance (discretionary 
condition specific to this designation that ensures 
we are meeting mandatory requirements) 

purpose of identifying the general 
fire precautions required at the 
HMO. Reference should be made 
to a qualified fire safety engineer 
where necessary. The manager 
shall supply a copy of the risk 
assessment to London Borough 
of Southwark within 14 days of a 
written request. (discretionary 
condition). 

Reference must be made to the 
LACoRs Fire Guidance to ensure 
that the correct fire precautions 
are installed at the property 
appropriate to the size and 
occupation of the property. 
Reference should be made to a 
qualified fire safety engineer for 
advice where necessary. 
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/dow
nloads/download/4354/lacors_fire
_guidance 

5.2 Fire precautions and 
equipment must be maintained in 
proper working order.  
Appropriate records of such 
maintenance, such as current 
certificates, are to be kept and 
produced to the London Borough 
of Southwark on demand as 
evidence of such maintenance. 
Any defects noted on certification 
must be promptly rectified 
(discretionary condition that 
ensures we are meeting 
mandatory requirements)” 

297

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guidance
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guidance
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/downloads/download/4354/lacors_fire_guidance


Appendix 13 
 

53 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

The condition has been removed 
for selective licensing designation 
2, 3 and 4 

 

Mandatory (5.3), 
Additional (5.3) 
and Selective 
(5.3) 

At the start of each tenancy, occupants must be 
given appropriate fire safety advice regarding the 
means of escape in case of fire and other fire 
precautions. In particular, the importance of 
keeping fire doors closed and keeping the escape 
route clear (discretionary condition). 

Providing details of a fire route is ridiculous. It is a 
house, and presumably the way out is through the 
front door.  Equally giving tenants fire safety advice 
seems completely ridiculous and placing an 
unreasonable burden on landlords. 

Fire safety advice can be a 
conversation with occupiers 
informing them of the fire safety 
measures in the property (such as 
location of fire blankets and 
smoke alarms, keeping escape 
routes clear).  

Additional (5.4) Consummate with the requirements of the 
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 
2005 (http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/
contents/made) the manager shall make a suitable 
and sufficient assessment of the risks to which 
tenants or visitors to the HMO are exposed for the 
purpose of identifying the general fire precautions 
required at the HMO. The manager shall supply 
a copy of the risk assessment to London Borough 
of Southwark on demand (discretionary condition). 

Safeagent - Suggest within 14 days of a written 
request 

This condition has been amended 
to “5.1 In compliance with the 
requirements of the Regulatory 
Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 
(http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi
/2005/1541/contents/made) the 
manager shall make a suitable 
and sufficient assessment of the 
risks to which tenants or visitors 
to the HMO are exposed for the 
purpose of identifying the general 
fire precautions required at the 
HMO. Reference should be made 
to a qualified fire safety engineer 
where necessary. The manager 
shall supply a copy of the risk 
assessment to London Borough 
of Southwark within 14 days of a 
written request. (discretionary 
condition).” 

Selective 
designations 2, 
3 and 4 (5.4) 

The Licence Holder shall ensure the tenants of 
Flats in a block are informed in writing of the fire 
safety arrangements in place within the block, 
being, but not restricted to:  

Presumably for 5.4 the Council will equally sign up 
to such obligations where they are the freeholder? 

This condition is to address flats 
in purpose-built blocks. The 
council, where it is a freeholder, is 
responsible for providing this 
information to their leaseholders. 

298

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/1541/contents/made


Appendix 13 
 

54 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

 Evacuation arrangements, e.g., an all-out or 
stay-put policy.  

 The safest route to safety from the FMO.  

 The designated fire assembly area.  

 Fire Drill arrangements (if any).   

 Fire Warden and/or waking watch 
arrangements (where provided).  

 The nearest manual call point (where 
provided).  

(Discretionary condition specific to this 
designation)  
 

Leaseholders are required to 
provide this information to their 
tenants 

Mandatory (5.5), 
Additional (5.5) 

Following testing, the Government have advised 
that several fire door manufacturers have failed the 
standard testing requirements, meaning that 
the fire doors sold will not hold back fire for a 
minimum of 30 minutes. This presents a significant 
safety risk to occupants.  
The Government have issued some guidance to 
the private sector in relation to fire doors. 
The licence holder shall carry out a full inspection 
of any fire doors installed in the 
HMO.  The licence holder shall ensure that:  

 The door is sound and in good repair.  

 Any glazing in the door is in good repair and at 
least 6mm minimum thick wired cast glass.  

 The door been fitted with 100mm butt hinges 
that are securely fixed.  

 The intumescent strips and cold smoke seals are 
in place and in good repair.  

 The self-closer fitted to the door operates 
correctly, closing the door without intervention.   

 The gap between the frame and the door is no 
more than 3mm.  
The licence holder shall submit to the Council 
within three (3) months of the date of the licence a 

How are landlords supposed to be able to assess 
the thickness and nature of glass in a fire door they 
have purchased? 

Under the regulatory reform order, 
managers of HMOs are required 
to carry out a regular fire risk 
assessment including determining 
if fire doors comply with the 
standards, and they can employ a 
qualified fire safety engineer to 
carry out the assessment.  
 
The council’s expectation that 
receipts on the purchase of fire 
doors would have the level of 
thickness and can be used as 
evidence of compliance. 
 
Fire doors are not required for 
every type of property and the 
guidance on the gov.uk website 
here Fire safety law and guidance 
documents for business - 
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
 
The requirement for glazing is for 
the glazing in doors, not windows 
 

I’m not sure if the glazing in my property would 
meet this requirement and would not want to drill 
out the windows. I am not happy about the 
excessive labelling required and the huge amount 
of additional work on landlords. Also, I have a fire 
door fitted (after the original license) but I don’t 
have any documentation. It’s too much. Also, these 
are small properties for 3-4 sharers and should not 
need this level of intervention. Time is money and 
all this extra work, and the additional fee will mean 
these sorts of properties are just not worth the 
hassle for landlords. Please give us a break. If it’s a 
3- or 4-bedroom ex-council house, surely, it’s 
already up to standard? Just apply these sorts of 
rules for property conversions. 

Yes, the fire door requirements are very difficult. A 
Lot of our Landlords - the properties are their family 
homes, but work have sent them abroad for 2-3 
years and after that time they plan to move back 
home. Fire doors are extremely expensive if you 
want to go for the ones that are not plain wood 
(which you need to if the property has been done to 

299

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/advice-for-building-owners-on-assurance-and-replacing-of-flat-entrance-fire-doors?utm_source=8f072d3d-8cb9-40d8-9d2f-edb0c7a50b03&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_content=weekly
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/fire-safety-law-and-guidance-documents-for-business
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/fire-safety-law-and-guidance-documents-for-business
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/fire-safety-law-and-guidance-documents-for-business


Appendix 13 
 

55 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

signed declaration stating that the above has 
been carried out.   
In addition, the licence holder shall submit to the 
Council within three (3) months 
the licence manufacturers certification that the 
door meets the relevant British Standard for fire 
resistance and smoke control. Where you cannot 
evidence that the fire door meets the relevant 
British Standard for fire resistance and smoke 
control from both sides, carry out the following:  

 Review your fire risk assessment.  

 Put in place interim measures to mitigate the risk 
of sub-standard doors. The level of interim 
measures will depend on the nature and size of 
the building but could include;  
o advising the occupants in writing of the 
evacuation procedures and the reason and need 
to keep fire doors closed,   
o carrying out fire drills,   
o decreasing the intervals between management 
inspections,   
o putting in a waking watch,   
o making sure the route of escape is free of 
obstacles and combustible materials,   
o where it is safe to do so providing escape 
windows.  
With the interim measures in place, either:  

i. either obtain third party certification that the in-situ 
doors meet the relevant British Standard, or  

ii. plan to replace the doors.   
Where you are uncertain that the doors to be 
purchased are from a manufacturer that can 
supply actual certified 30-minute fire resistant 
doors then we would recommend buying and 
installing doors labelled as 60-minute fire 
resistant. By doing so you are providing yourself 
with some assurance that the doors should at 

a high standard or it devalues the property). The 
last scheme was very random with regards to which 
properties had to have fire doors and which ones 
didn't and there didn't seem to be set rules around 
this. It made it very difficult to be able to advise 
Landlords. The biggest put off of renting a property 
out (back then which was under the additional 
licensing scheme) for Landlords was the fire door 
requirement due to its expense and how much it 
effects the value of the property.  
 
 
 

Council houses were designed as 
single-family dwellings so are not 
automatically compliant with HMO 
regulations, so if they are let out 
as an HMO, they may need to be 
brought up to HMO standards.  
 
There is a wide variety of fire 
doors in terms of look and prices. 
Licence holders are only required 
to provide fire doors that are 
compliant with British standards 
 
The condition states that “Where 
you are uncertain that the doors 
to be purchased are from a 
manufacturer that can supply 
actual certified 30-minute fire 
resistant doors then we would 
recommend buying and installing 
doors labelled as 60-minute fire 
resistant.” If you are confident that 
the doors to be purchased are 30-
minute fire resistant, then they 
can be purchased. 

Safeagent - This condition should be deleted as not 
applicable for most HMOs /out of context 

If a builder has fitted 30mins fireproof doors and 
provided an invoice or receipt for this work, is that 
sufficient 'proof' that they really are compliant? 

Section 5 on fire doors - will these be required or 
not? This section also states that if a supplier is 
certified as supplying 30-minute fire doors, 60-
minute doors should be installed instead. The whole 
section is very muddled 

300



Appendix 13 
 

56 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

least provide 30-minute fire resistant if not 
greater.  
The licence holder shall submit to the Council 
within twelve (12) months of the date of 
the licence third party certification that the in-situ 
doors meet the relevant British Standard or 
manufacturers certification relating to the 
resistance of the new fire doors installed at the 
HMO (discretionary condition).  

Additional (6.3) 
and Selective 
(6.3) 

The Licence Holder shall not cause or permit any 
person who has previously applied for a property 
licence in respect of the property and has either:  
(a) been found not to be a Fit and Proper person, 
or  
(b) been made subject to a Banning Order under 
the Housing and Planning Act 2016  
to have control or management of the property, or 
to carry out or arrange any repair, improvement or 
other building works at the property (discretionary 
condition).  
 

Safeagent - There is no way for a Safeagent 
member to know who is subject to a Banning Order 
as the information is contained on a confidential 
national register only accessible to local authorities. 
unsure how our members could find out if a landlord 
has previously failed the council’s fit and proper 
person assessment. Will that information be 
published somewhere for our members to check? 

This condition has been amended 
to: 
The Licence Holder shall not 
knowingly cause or permit any 
person who has previously 
applied for a property licence in 
respect of the property and has 
either 

NRLA -   
This an unreasonable as a licence holder or a 
potential licence holder has no way of knowing if 
someone is banned or is not fit and proper 
to take on such responsibilities.   

  
 

Selective (6.4) The Licence Holder shall obtain references from 
persons who wish to occupy the property, or a 
part of the property, before entering into any 
tenancy or licence or other agreement with them 
to occupy the property (mandatory condition).  
No new occupiers shall be allowed to occupy the 
property if they are unable to provide suitable 
references (discretionary condition).   
(References should be as a minimum, checks to 
ensure the tenants identity, whether they have the 
right to rent a property 
[see https://www.gov.uk/check-tenant-right-to-
rent-documents/who-to-check], their ability to pay 

Para 6.4 is an example of complete over regulation. 
It does not address the issue of repair/hazards and 
is far too prescriptive - so if tenant wants to invite 
granny to stay, they cannot without references - 
likewise for children. Also, data protection issues 
arise. Right to rent is already covered by statute 
(with criminal sanctions) and is a clear example of 
the Council wanting to micromanage tenancies in 
its area and create a huge bureaucracy. 

This condition is to help address 
human tracking, and it a 
mandatory condition of licensing. 
The reference to references as a 
minimum and right to rent is 
advice to licence holders. 
Visitors can stay in the property 
without providing references, 
however if someone wishes to 
stay in the property, they will need 
to provide references. 

301

https://www.gov.uk/check-tenant-right-to-rent-documents/who-to-check
https://www.gov.uk/check-tenant-right-to-rent-documents/who-to-check


Appendix 13 
 

57 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

rent and their past tenant history.) The Licence 
Holder must retain all references obtained for 
occupiers for the duration of this licence and 
provide copies to the Council within 28 days on 
demand.  

Selective (6.5) The Licence Holder shall carry out adequate 
checks and obtain satisfactory proof that 
occupiers belong to a single household. Evidence 
of this must be retained for the duration of licence. 
This evidence must be provided to the Council 
within 28 days on demand (discretionary 
condition).  

Para 6.5 is too vague - what 'adequate checks and 
satisfactory proof are suggested in this day and 
age? 

Passport or birth certificates or 
drivers’ licence or other form of 
photo ID. This information will 
also be gathered during the right 
to rent checks. This condition is to 
prevent properties being used as 
an HMO which is not suitable. 

Safeagent - Council to please clarify what standard 
of proof is required to confirm the occupants are all 
related to each other. 

Selective (6.7) The Licence Holder must ensure that any deposit 
taken under an assured shorthold tenancy is 
protected by placing it in an authorised tenancy 
deposit scheme. The tenant must be given the 
prescribed information about the scheme. The 
Licence Holder must ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the scheme and the operation of 
Part 6 in Chapter 4, Housing Act 2004 within the 
statutory time limit (currently 30 days). A copy of 
the prescribed information given must be provided 
to the Authority within 28 days on 
demand (discretionary condition).  

Para 6.7 is adequately covered by national 
legislation and does not address the repair/hazards 
issues 

This condition reiterates the 
legislative requirement to have a 
deposit and that evidence of this 
must be provided to the council if 
requested 

Selective 
Designation 3 
(6.8) 

If an occupant misses a rent payment, the 
Licence Holder must ensure that the occupant is 
contacted to ascertain whether they still occupies 
the house; and must ensure that a record of any 
such contact is kept. If no such contact is or can 
be made, the Licence Holder must ensure that the 
house is visited, no later than one month after the 
date on which the payment became due, to 
ensure that the house is secure and has not been 
abandoned.  
Where a tenant misses a rental payment, the 
Licence Holder shall notify the Council’s 
Homelessness Team [add contact details] of 

Safeagent - Excessive to require the licence holder 
to contact the council’s Homelessness Team every 
time a rent payment is late 

This condition has been removed 

NRLA - This condition is also unreasonable as part 
of a proposed discretionary licensing scheme. A 
council cannot force landlords to notify the 
homelessness team because it is highly 
likely to violate GDPR.   

302



Appendix 13 
 

58 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

this so that the Council can work with the Licence 
Holder and tenant to prevent homelessness.   
(discretionary condition specific to this 
designation)  

Mandatory (7), 
Additional (7) 
and Selective 
Designation 1 
(14) 

Anti-Social Behaviour  
7.1 The Licence Holder shall take all reasonable 

and practical steps for preventing and 
dealing with anti-social behaviour and 
undertaking a thorough process of 
reasonable and effective steps to deal with 
any complaints that have been made 
directly to them or via Southwark Council or 
the Metropolitan Police, regarding their 
occupiers. For the purpose of these 
conditions, anti-social behaviour is taken to 
comprise behaviour by the occupants of the 
house and/or their visitors, which causes a 
nuisance or annoyance to other occupants 
of the house, to lawful visitors to the house 
or to persons residing in or lawfully visiting 
the neighbouring area of the house 
(discretionary condition).  

  
 

Anti-social behaviour conditions. How can a 
landlord be responsible for the behaviour of tenants 
they never or rarely see and are not under their 
care? 
 
It is crucial that properties are safe, decent, and 
comfortable for tenants and that is something the 
landlord can and must control. They can't control 
the behaviour of others however. 

The council will be introducing a 
series of measures to support 
landlords in introducing ASB, 
including employing an ASB 
officer to work with landlords and 
tenants. The council would 
encourage landlords to include 
clauses in their tenancy 
agreements about ASB.  
 
Whether a property is let by a full-
time or part-time landlord, the 
council believes that all rental 
properties should be held to the 
same standard 

Anti-social behaviour is not really something a 
landlord can tackle effectively. 

I didn't read the full document, but I scanned it.  
From what I see, I think my answer to question 34 
is relevant here, i.e. "Yes, there are conditions that 
should be removed for two reasons: (i) some are 
already covered in existing ASTs so why duplicate?  
(ii) some are just too onerous for a part-time 
landlord who might have a buy-to-let but is not a 
property professional and hasn't such competency.  
Put these requirements onto a property professional 
such as a letting agent OR provide practical support 
to landlords on these requirements.  This, though, 
due to resources and culture is something I think 
the council won't be able to provide.  
I note "7.1 The Licence Holder shall take all 
reasonable and practical steps for preventing and 
dealing with anti-social behaviour and 
undertaking....to deal with any complaints that have 
been made directly to them or via Southwark 
Council or the Metropolitan Police...."  The first 
point here is that there is no point reporting to 
Southwark Council because the Council will not act.  
Second, what if the conflict is between a couple in 

303



Appendix 13 
 

59 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

the property and one acts vindictively to the other 
and seeks to involve the landlord in this?  What can 
a landlord reasonably report to police given that the 
landlord is not there and witnessing things first-
hand but going on the word of someone else.  And 
what of the risk this could expose the landlord to if 
they call the police and there are negative 
repercussions for the relevant tenant? 
Separately, some of the additional requirements 
seem fair. 
 
Probably.  I would have to think it through.  I think 
existing ASTs cover most relevant requirements. 

The landlord cannot be responsible or held 
accountable for tenants’' antisocial behaviour!  
In the past I have contacted the council regarding 
anti-social behaviour on the estate where I live and 
have received no help whatsoever. In this instance, 
the council is the landlord of the properties in 
question, so it would be very hypocritical to expect 
private landlords to be held accountable for their 
tenants' behaviour, if the council isn't managing the 
antisocial behaviour of its own tenants. 

Additional (10) 
and Selective 
(8) 

No changes must be made to the use, layout or 
maximum occupancy level of the property 
without the Council’s prior written consent 
(discretionary condition). 

Para 8.1 is too wide. It goes further than statutory 
/contractual powers and is excessive. 

This condition is to ensure that 
single family dwellings are not 
used as an HMO, or that HMOs 
with approval for a certain number 
of people is not let to more people 
without approval from the council 
to ensure the change will not 
breach the conditions of their 
licence (e.g., minimum room sizes 
etc) 

Mandatory (8.2 
– 8.7), 
Additional (8.2 – 
8.7) 

8.2The Licence Holder must provide the tenants 
with adequate facilities for the disposal of 
refuse and recycling. The Licence Holder 
must ensure that there are suitable and 

8.2 through to 8.7 - Some of this is unreasonable 
and should be amended (not removed). It would be 
far more practical and reasonable to frame it around 
tenants potentially obstructing (fire) access routes 

This condition is designed to stop 
fly tipping and refuse being left 
outside by ensuring that landlords 
provide suitable receptacles (such 

304



Appendix 13 
 

60 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

appropriate receptacles for the storage of 
household refuse and recycling between 
collections, so that bags or loose refuse 
and recycling are not stored outside the 
property.   

8.3 Where the standard local authority waste 
collection schemes do not suffice, the 
Licence Holder must arrange for private 
collections of waste from the property.  

8.4 The Licence Holder shall carry out regular 
checks and ensure that the common parts, 
gardens and yards are free from waste, 
which could provide harbourage for pests 
and/or is a nuisance and/or is detrimental to 
the local amenities, other than waste stored 
in appropriate receptacles for the storage of 
household refuse and recycling; and that 
waste such as old furniture, bedding, 
rubbish or refuse from the property is not 
left outside the property or in its vicinity.   

8.5 The Licence Holder must not leave old 
furniture, bedding, rubbish or refuse from 
the property on the immediately outside the 
property or private land.   

8.6 The Licence Holder must ensure that any type 
of waste which the Council does not 
routinely collect such as hazardous waste is 
disposed of in a safe and lawful manner.   

8.7 If the Licence Holder becomes aware that the 
occupiers of the property or their visitors are 
not using the waste disposal facilities 
provided and/or leaving waste outside the 
property or in its vicinity (for example old 
furniture, mattresses), they must write a 
warning letter to the occupiers within 7 days 
advising them to remove the items 
immediately. A copy must be kept and must 

with waste/recycling. There are plenty of very 
reasonable contexts in which a sealed bag of waste 
or recycling, or small objects, are temporarily left 
outside of a property in a way that causes no 
obstruction or health & safety risk to anyone. 

as wheely bins) for the tenant’s 
household refuse and recycling. 
The council would encourage 
landlord to include clauses in their 
tenancy agreement regarding fly-
tipping and the proper disposal of 
household refuse. 
 
Condition 8.4 has been amended 
to define regular checks as 6-
monthly checks 
 
Condition 8.3 refers to 
circumstances where the property 
is not covered by the local 
authority waste collection 
schemes 

onus on licence holder with respect to waste - 
particularly if it is not generated by them, but the 
tenants. 

The Licence Holder must ensure that any type of 
waste which the Council does not routinely collect 
such as hazardous waste is disposed of in a safe 
and lawful manner.  Comment:   How would the 
landlord know what the tenant is doing on the 
property? 

Similar with waste collection. The landlord / 
property owner cannot be held responsible for lazy 
tenants who do not dispose of their waste properly. 
This is an issue of the tenants themselves. The 
council also needs to better address fly tipping 
issues in Southwark - you should not push this 
issue onto private landlords and shirk your own 
responsibility. 
  

Safeagent – 8. 3 Should not charge for HMO waste 
refuse collections 

8.4 - Define the term Regular - Suggest 6 
monthly 

305



Appendix 13 
 

61 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

be provided to the Council within 28 days 
on demand.   

 

Mandatory (8.8), 
Additional (8.8) 

The licence holder shall label any furniture, soft 
furnishing and kitchen appliances and white 
goods provided at the property, using a suitable 
indelible marker pen (removable labels are not 
acceptable) with the address and, where relevant, 
the room number the articles relate 
too, e.g., Room 1, 38, postcode. The labelling 
should be readable and clear. The licence holder 
will regularly check the labelling and re-label 
should the existing labelling have faded to the 
point it can no longer be read. This doesn’t apply 
to articles provided by the tenants. Note. This 
condition will be applied in defined hotspot areas 
where there have been significant issues with 
dumping of articles of furniture, etc. as a way of 
easily identifying the properties the articles come 
from. (Discretionary condition).  

8.8 sounds like a great excuse for your landlord 
or agent to come into your home whenever to look 
at white goods. 

Upon reflection and review of the 
feedback on this clause, the 
council will remove this condition 

Condition re labelling furniture is un-practical and 
will cause damage to items. Personally, I would 
view this as very deeming on the tenants living in 
the properties i.e., you live in a bad area where we 
don't trust you or your landlord, so your furniture 
needs to be labelled. I reality in the vast majority of 
cases any labelled would be removed if furniture is 
dumped. 

 

The indelible labelling of white goods, (or any 
furniture provided,) could damage the appearance 
of the item and detract from the general 
appearance of the property as a whole, making it 
feel like an institution rather than a home. 

 

Section 8.8 - very onerous 

Safeagent - Disagree-creates negative feel in 
property and not feasible 

Selective (9.1) The maximum occupancy for this property is one 
household OR two people in two 
households (mandatory condition).  

That only two households may share a house. The 
size of the house, number and relationship of 
occupants, and the living conditions should be 
taken into account, or you risk inadvertently 
lowering housing standards and reducing choices 
especially for people on lower incomes. 
 
I am an owner-occupier with two lodgers (I realise 
these licencing conditions won't affect me) so there 
are three adults living in an ex-council house with 
two doubles and a single, plus kitchen, living room, 
garden. There is high demand for my rooms - 
especially the single - precisely because of the 

This condition is to ensure that 
single family household (or two 
sharers) is not let as an HMO, 
which have different standards. 
 
If the property is let as three 
unrelated people forming three 
households, the property can still 
be let out, but the property would 
require an additional licence. 

306



Appendix 13 
 

62 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

high-quality, spacious, low-density living conditions 
(particularly attractive for lower-income people who 
don't have many options like this, which is why the 
single is so popular). You risk taking that choice 
away from people by unilaterally basing conditions 
upon numbers of household, bedroom size, etc. 

Why only allowing two people or households as a 
maximum? 

Selective (9.2) Licensed properties must comply with the 
occupancy levels stated in this licence within 18 
months of the licence being granted and for the 
remaining duration of the licence (discretionary 
condition) 

SAFEAGENT - If the property is occupied as an 
HMO, the council should instead grant an HMO 
licence. 

This condition has been removed  

Mandatory 
(11.2) and 
Additional (11.2) 

Table to be inserted stating room, room size, 
maximum people and maximum households. 

Table 11.2 is not yet provided so I cannot comment 
but is obviously critical. 

Licence conditions are issued to 
each specific licenced property. 
This condition, specifying the 
room size and maximum 
occupancy, will depend on how 
the property is laid out and the 
facilities available in the property, 
which are noted during the 
inspection. The condition is then 
completed for that specific 
property 

Additional (11.3) Licence Holder must ensure that no room is used 
by more than the number of persons specified in 
the licence (mandatory condition).   

The Licence Holder must ensure that no room is 
used by more than the number of persons specified 
in the licence (mandatory condition) Comment: The 
landlord is not able to monitor this.  They are only 
able to specify in the tenancy agreement what is 
allowed.  Tenants need to be held liable for non-
compliance. 

Guests are not included in this 
condition. 
 
The availability of the licence in 
the property will empower tenants 
to address issues with other 
tenants frequently and repeatedly 
having more people staying in the 
rooms, which will impact the 
availability of common resources 
(such as shower, kitchen).  
 

307



Appendix 13 
 

63 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

This condition is also aimed at 
addressing issues of 
overcrowding in HMOs 

Additional (11.5) Licensed properties must comply with 
Southwark’s Standards for HMOs within 18 
months of the licence being granted and for the 
remaining duration of the licence (discretionary 
condition).   

Safeagent - If the council believe that work is 
needed to make the property reasonably suitable 
for the proposed number of occupants, these works 
need to be clearly set out in a table with a timescale 
for completing each item. 

This condition has been amended 
to “Licensed properties must 
comply with Southwark’s 
Standards for HMOs (insert links) 
within 18 months of the licence 
being granted and for the 
remaining duration of the licence 
(discretionary condition).  

A reference to a number of 
persons using a room in an HMO 
as sleeping accommodation 
does not include a person doing 
so as a visitor of an occupier of 
the HMO (discretionary 
condition).  

For the purposes of paragraph 
11.5 a room is used as sleeping 
accommodation if it is normally 
used as a bedroom, whether or 
not it is also used for other 
purposes (discretionary 
condition).  

Any part of the floor area of a 
room in relation to which the 
height of the ceiling is less than 
1.5 metres is not to be 
considered in determining the 
floor area of that room for the 
purposes of this paragraph 
(discretionary condition). 

Please note that room size 
standards within Southwark’s 
HMO standards are greater than 

308



Appendix 13 
 

64 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

the national prescribed minimum 
room size standard stated in 11.6 
and 11.7 below.   The Council 
has, in accordance with (insert 
legislation) decided to impose 
higher standards in accordance 
with its locally adopted HMO 
Standards referenced in 11.5 
above 

 

Mandatory 
(11.6), 
Additional (11.6 
and 11.7) 

11.6 The Licence Holder is required:   
a. to ensure that the floor area of any room in 
the HMO used as sleeping accommodation by 
one person aged over 10 years is not less than 
6.51 square metres (mandatory condition).   
b. to ensure that the floor area of any room in the 
HMO used as sleeping accommodation by two 
persons aged over 10 years is not less than 10.22 
square metres (mandatory condition).   
c. to ensure that the floor area of any room in the 
HMO used as sleeping accommodation by one 
person aged under 10 years is not less than 4.64 
square metres (mandatory condition).   
d. to ensure that any room in the HMO with a 
floor area of less than 4.64 square metres is not 
used as sleeping accommodation (mandatory 
condition).   

11.7 The Licence Holder shall ensure that:  
a. where any room in the HMO is used as 
sleeping accommodation by persons aged over 
10 years only, it is not used as such by more than 
the maximum number of persons aged over 10 
years specified in the licence (mandatory 
condition).   
b. where any room in the HMO is used as 
sleeping accommodation by persons aged under 
10 years only, it is not used as such by more than 

The mandatory conditions re size of bedrooms, 
kitchen and living room as it’s not something a 
landlord can change. 

The room sizes are reviewed and 
looked at in the context of how 
many other occupants there are 
and what other space is available. 
However, the council is obliged to 
introduce minimum room sizes to 
ensure that the room let out are 
not overcrowded. 
 
 

The minimum sizes for rooms should be reviewed 
and looked at in the context of how many other 
occupants there are, what other space is available 
to occupants, and the overall quality of the 
accommodation. People on lower incomes should 
have the right to live in low-density, high-quality, 
central homes if they want to and are happy to 
choose to rent a single or small double. 

The size ones are way too restrictive. You will take 
too much capacity out of housing, which is exactly 
what we do not need at the moment. Or you will 
drive landlords underground and more likely to 
ignore council guidelines. And don't forget that this 
is PRIVATE rental sector. The tenants are not 
forced to live anywhere if they don't want. They can 
go somewhere of their choosing based on the 
size/price they want. 

 

 I don't see why there is a ban on a small single 
room being used by a person over 10 years old, if 
that's how they want to use the room. 

309



Appendix 13 
 

65 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

the maximum number of persons aged under 10 
years specified in the licence (mandatory 
condition).   
c. where any room in the HMO is used as 
sleeping accommodation by persons aged over 
10 years and persons aged under 10 years, it is 
not used as such by more than the maximum 
number of persons aged over 10 years specified 
in the licence and the maximum number of 
persons aged under 10 years so 
specified (mandatory condition).   

Mandatory 
(12.1), 
Additional (12.1) 
and selective 
(1.11) 

The licence holder shall ensure that their tenants 
can access and obtain readings of the utility 
meters (gas, electricity and water, as applicable) 
for the house at reasonable times (no less than 
the delivery frequency of the utility bills) during the 
course of the tenancy and a final reading at the 
termination of the tenancy. Furthermore, the 
licence holder shall supply to the tenant a written 
document describing the location of the utility 
meters (gas, electricity and water, as applicable) 
and the access arrangements for the meters 
(discretionary condition). 

Section 12.1 - access may be restricted by 
freeholders e.g., London Borough of Southwark 

If there was an issue with the 
freeholder restricting access, we 
would work to resolve the 
situation and would not penalise 
the leaseholder. 
 
This condition has been amended 
to “The licence holder shall 
ensure that their tenants can 
access and obtain readings of the 
utility meters (gas, electricity and 
water, as applicable) for the 
house at reasonable times (no 
less than the delivery frequency of 
the utility bills) during the course 
of the tenancy and a final reading 
at the termination of the tenancy. 
(discretionary condition).” 

1.11 seems more relevant to an HMO. Requiring an 
extra piece of paper to say the meter is on the wall 
by the front door as an example of over regulation! 

Safeagent- We do not think this condition is 
appropriate in situations where the landlord charges 
rent inclusive of all utility bills. The condition could 
be adjusted accordingly 

Additional (13.1) The licence holder shall ensure the tenants of the 
Flat in Multiple Occupation (FMO) are informed in 
writing of the fire safety arrangements in place 
within the block, being, but not restricted to:  

 Evacuation arrangements, e.g., an all-out or 
stay-put policy.  

 The safest route to safety from the FMO.  

 The designated fire assembly area.  

Section 13.1 - how can this be complied with if the 
freeholder e.g., London Borough of Southwark does 
not provide this information 

If this information is not available 
to the licence holder from the 
freeholder, the council will contact 
the freeholder to provide this 

310



Appendix 13 
 

66 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

 Fire Drill arrangements (if any).   

 Fire Warden and/or waking watch 
arrangements (where provided).  

 The nearest manual call point (where 
provided).  
 

Mandatory 
(14.1), 
Additional (14.1) 
and Selective 
(11) 

The Licence Holder and manager of the house 
shall attend training courses or otherwise 
demonstrate competence in relation to any 
applicable codes of practice as specified by the 
London Borough of Southwark.  

 Details of Training Courses:  

 London Landlord Accreditation Scheme 
(LLAS) and:  

 Accreditation and Training for Landlords & 
Agents Service (ATLAS)  

 Website: www.londonlandlords.org.uk  
The licence holder shall submit to the Council 
within twelve (12) months of the date of 
the licence copies of certification demonstrating 
competence and/attendance at the relevant 
training courses (discretionary condition).  
 

The suggestion of training courses is beyond 
ridiculous: if a landlord has instructed a managing 
agent to take care of everything that should be 
enough, as the whole point of having a managing 
agent is that they take over the responsibilities. 

This condition has been removed 

Training is good and should be included as part of 
the license fee, rather than forcing people to take 
costly measures in addition to all the other costs. 

The reliance on accreditation schemes should not 
be included.  They prove nothing.  It is action that 
works, not signing up to some scheme. 

In 11.1 why should the Licence Holder AND 
manager attend the courses. Surely the whole point 
of employing a managing agent (with the conditions 
specified for competence) is that the Landlord does 
not require that level of expertise? In any event the 
requirement is too wide as the Council could specify 
anything and it says nothing as to cost? 

Safeagent - Given Safe Agent experience and 
number of training courses offered by us it is 
unreasonable to insist that accredited Safeagent 
members attend the LLAS one day training course. 

Selective 
Designation 1 
(14) 

The Licence Holder shall take reasonable and 
practicable steps to prevent or reduce anti-social 
behaviour by persons occupying or visiting the 
flat/ house and to this end shall:   
Report all incidences of anti-social behaviour to 
the appropriate authority, for example the police 
or the Council.   

Should not be used for ASB no evidence this 
would work as it doesn’t address the drivers for this. 
It should be targeted on concentrations of sun 
standard property 
 

The council will be introducing a 
series of measures to support 
landlords in introducing ASB, 
including employing an ASB 
officer to work with landlords and 
tenants. The council would 
encourage landlords to include 
clauses in their tenancy 
agreements about ASB.  

The issue I have is that it is difficult to enforce 
ASB issues and remove tenants who cause them.  
Therefore, Landlord's do not want them in the first 
place. 

311

http://www.londonlandlords.org.uk/


Appendix 13 
 

67 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

 

Selective 
Designation 1 
(14.2) 

The Licence Holder shall enter into an assured 
shorthold tenancy agreement (unless an 
alternative arrangement is more 
appropriate, e.g. a licence to occupy) with each 
new tenant of the dwelling for which he/ she is the 
person having control.  The tenancy agreement 
will include provisions relating to forfeiture of the 
property in the event of a breach of the tenancy 
agreement terms in the following circumstances:   
"That the tenant or someone living in or visiting 
the premises has been guilty of conduct which is 
or is likely to cause a nuisance or annoyance to 
neighbours; or, that a person residing or visiting 
the premises has been convicted of using the 
premises or allowing it to be used for immoral or 
illegal purposes or has committed an arrestable 
offence in, or in the locality of the licensed 
premises."   
For the avoidance of doubt conduct causing a 
nuisance includes noise nuisance.   
A further condition shall be added to the tenancy 
agreement that requires the tenant to obtain 
written permission to sub-let the property.   
The Government have produced a model 
template for an Assured Shorthold Tenancy which 
can be found here 
- https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mo
del-agreement-for-a-shorthold-assured-tenancy   
 

Safeagent - The proposed clause to be inserted in 
all tenancy agreements should be deleted. Section 
90(7) of the Housing Act 2004 prevents the council 
from requiring the wording of tenancy agreements 

to be altered. 

This clause has been amended to 
apply to all new tenancy 
agreements. 
 

Selective 
Designation 1 
(14.3) 

The Licence Holder shall investigate complaints of 
anti-social behaviour (as defined in Housing Act 
2004, Section 57(5)) arising from their property 
and being caused by their tenants or tenants’ 
visitors.  Where appropriate they shall take legal 

"The landlord shall seek legal advice to evict a 
person exhibiting ASB"! How about calling the 
police and getting the guy arrested? Who will 
protect me and my family if I put myself forward in 
such a way? And who will cover my legal fees to 
seek advice? 

This condition has been amended 
to “Following any complaints or 
incidents of anti-social behaviour 
(as defined in Housing Act 2004, 
Section 57(5)) arising from their 
property and being caused by 

312

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/model-agreement-for-a-shorthold-assured-tenancy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/model-agreement-for-a-shorthold-assured-tenancy


Appendix 13 
 

68 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

advice and act to either caution or evict the 

tenants.  
Safeagent - Neither the landlord nor agent has the 
power to caution a tenant. Only a statutory 
enforcement agency can issue a caution is there is 
evidence that a criminal offence has been 
committed. 

their tenants or tenants’ visitors 
the Licence Holder shall 
investigate and take legal advice 
where necessary. Depending on 
the severity of the incident or 
where there are 2 or more 
corroborated incidents of ASB the 
license holder shall either send a 
written warning to the perpetrator 
or take formal action to evict the 
tenants in compliance with 
(whatever the legislation is). “  

Selective – 
designation 1 
(14.6) 

Where there have been two or more corroborated 
reports of ASB to the relevant investigating 
agency, the Licence Holder shall install 
monitorable and recordable CCTV cameras 
covering the outside spaces of the dwelling, which 
can operate in both daylight and nighttime (where 
there are outside spaces). This is to include 
cameras covering the access points to the 

dwellings.  

Why are you insisting CCTV is put up?  Presumably 
as evidence for the police.  Surveilling and 
punishing people is not helpful. 

This condition has been removed 

Installing CCTV is a step too far. 

Safeagent - Disagree- Part 3 of the Housing Act 
2004 does not have power to require CCTV 
monitoring of the external curtilage of the property 
and all points of access. Suggest deleting the 
condition 

Selective 
designation 3 
(14.2) 

The Licence Holder must ensure that the carbon 
monoxide alarms are kept in proper working order 
(this can be a check of the battery and operation 
of the alarm).  A declaration as to the proper 
working order of such alarms must be supplied to 
the London Borough of Southwark on demand 
(discretionary condition). 

Unfair on the Landlord to be held as solely 
responsible when he/she is not living in the 
property. Any issue can only be noted upon periodic 
inspections or reported b 

Mandatory (15), 
Additional (15) 
and Selective 
(12) 

15 The London Borough of Southwark have 
agreed interim safety and welfare measures with 
the licence holder to minimise the risk to tenants 
whilst works are carried out in relation to [fire 
safety] [space standards] [amenity standards]. 
These interim measures are:  
[List measures – examples given below]  

 Battery operated smoke detectors located in 
[add locations].  

Emergency lighting in a 3-bedroom flat? This condition has been removed 
 
 

Emergency lighting  
These are not usual or required in a normal family 
home 

Why do all bedrooms need a microwave and kettle? 

The fire safety - microwaves in sleeping areas part 
[is unclear] 

Yes - why mention microwaves in bedrooms? 
Surely this should not be allowed 

313



Appendix 13 
 

69 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

 Battery operated heat detectors located in [add 
locations].  

 Battery operated hand-held emergency lighting 
located in [add locations].  

 A ‘waking fire watch’ comprising:  
o 24 hour continuously staffed fire patrols of 
the building.  
o Trained and competent staff.  
o Staff given appropriate equipment and 
PPE.  
o An ‘all out’ evacuation plan managed by 
the watch staff.  

 Undersized shower cubicles located in [add 
locations].  

 Undersized baths located in [add locations].  

 Microwaves located [in all rooms used for 
sleeping] [in the following rooms used for sleeping 
[add locations]].  

 Kettles located [in all rooms used for sleeping] 
[in the following rooms used for sleeping [add 
locations]].  

 Electrically operated space heaters [in all rooms 
used for sleeping] [in the following rooms used for 
sleeping [add locations]] [and] [the communal 
living rooms].  
These interim measures shall be maintained in 
good repair, condition and where applicable, 
remain fully operational whilst in place. This 
includes, where applicable, adherence to 
standards and manufacturers guidance.   
The licence holder must inform the Council by 
email [add address] within 72 hours of becoming 
aware of the failure of any of the interim measures 
(discretionary condition).  
 

 

314



Appendix 13 
 

70 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

Selective 
designations 2, 
3 and 4 (15.1) 

The Licence Holder must ensure that prompt 
action is taken to investigate and effectively 
address complaints about disrepair or pest 
infestation at the house. The Licence Holder must 
ensure, in particular, that a written response is 
made to any such complaint within 21 days of 
receipt, stating the action that has been or will be 
taken.   
Copies of any such written complaint (including by 
email) and the response referred to in condition 17 
must be provided to the Authority within 21 days 
on demand.  
 

Pest infestation is likely caused by the lack of 
tenant cleanliness. This is NOT a landlord issue but 
a tenant issue. In a block of flats this is clearly a 
shared problem and therefore in the remit of the 
landlord, but the tenants must be responsible for 
cleanliness themselves. 

The landlord or licence holder is 
ultimately responsible for the 
property. If a tenant has made a 
complaint about pest infestation, 
the landlord or licence older 
should work with the tenant to 
address the issue/ if the tenant 
continually keeps the property in a 
poor and unclean condition which 
would attract pests, the landlord 
or licence holder may wish to 
have a condition in their tenancy 
agreement to address this or 
allow the landlord or licence 
holder to evict the tenants if they 
do not address this  

Selective 
designations 2, 
3 and 4 (15.4) 

The Licence Holder must ensure that regular 
checks are carried out to ensure that the house is 
free from pest infestation. Where the Licence 
Holder becomes aware of a pest problem or 
infestation at the house they shall, within 7 days, 
take steps to ensure that a treatment program is 
carried out to eradicate the pest infestation. 
Records shall be kept of such treatment programs 
and copies of these must be provided to the 
Authority within 28 days on demand (discretionary 
condition). 

Safeagent - Suggest 6 monthly inspections This condition has been amended 
to include 6 monthly checks 
 

Selective 
designations 2, 
3 and 4 (15.6) 

The Licence Holder must ensure that the exterior 
of the house is kept clean and tidy and that issues 
of routine maintenance affecting the exterior, such 
as broken windows, are addressed promptly 
(discretionary condition). 

Safeagent - Once the tenants have been given the 
keys, the responsibility for security will pass to the 
tenant. 

It’s the landlord and agents’ 
responsibility to ensure tenants 
are meeting their obligations and 
responsibilities under their 
tenancy contract. It is also the 
landlord’s or managing agents’ 
responsibility to manage the 
property to ensure that problems 
do not arise or are resolved 
quickly. This relates to the 

315



Appendix 13 
 

71 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

management of the property, 
security of the property and 
dealing with anti-social behaviour. 

Selective 
designations 2, 
3 and 4 (15.7) 

The Licence Holder shall ensure that inspections 
of the house are carried out at least every six (6) 
months to identify any problems relating to the 
condition and management of the house. The 
Authority may increase the frequency of such 
inspections if it has good reason to be concerned 
about the condition or management of the house. 
The records of such inspections shall be kept 
for the duration of this licence. As a minimum 
requirement the records must contain a log of who 
carried out the inspection, date and time of 
inspection and issues found, and action(s) taken. 
Copies of these must be provided to the Authority 
within 28 days on demand (discretionary 
condition). 

Safeagent - Recommend 6 monthly inspections This condition already stated 
inspections every 6 months 

Additional (16) 
and Selective 
(13) 

Provide electronic copies of the following 
documents that were missing from your licence 
application within 3 months of the issue of the 
licence:  

[delete/add as appropriate]  
i.Energy Performance Certificate (EPC)(s)  
ii.Written tenancy agreement(s) with the 

occupying tenants.  
iii.Lease Agreements/Commercial Agreement 

with owner (if any)  
iv.Building insurance certificate  
v.Inventory of furniture and fittings(s)  
vi.Terms if contract (or a copy of your contract) 

with the Managing Agent (if any)   
vii.Gas Safety Certificate(s)  
viii.Portable Appliance Test (PAT) report(s)  
ix.Test certificates for fire alarm system  
x.Test certificates emergency lighting system  
xi.Asbestos report(s)  

Why provide the council with an inventory of 
furniture? 

These conditions have been 
removed. 

Request for asbestos report for every license 
application seems overkill nowadays. For the first 
application, it makes sense, as long as it's not been 
demonstrated in the property survey at time of 
purchase that asbestos was not found. 

Portable Appliance Test (PAT) report(s) 
ix. Test certificates for fire alarm system 
x. Test certificates emergency lighting system 
xi. Asbestos report(s) 
xii. Fire Risk Assessment 
 
I rent a flat in small block... do you realize the 
amount of paperwork and additional costs you are 
proposing? I used to rent from the council, and I 
NEVER received a fire risk assessment, an 
asbestos report, emergency lighting certificate, etc. 
etc. why do you now expect it from me?? I don't 

316



Appendix 13 
 

72 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

xii.Fire Risk Assessment   
Email the copies to [email address]  
(Discretionary condition)  

 

have any of those documents for my own home... 
Who is going to do the fire risk assessment? do you 
also expect landlords to pay for a professional to 
carry this out?? 

Mandatory (16), 
Additional (16) 

In the event or either a national or local outbreak 
of an infectious disease (that poses a significant 
risk to health) that is spread by air, water or touch 
(or a combination of these), the licence holder 
shall as a minimum put in place the following 
measures:  

 Inform  
Notify all occupants in writing or the nature of the 
infectious disease, how it is spread, and the 
measures put in place at the HMO to limit its 
spread.   
Provide a Notice, clearly displayed, in an 
accessible common area, setting out the nature of 
the infectious disease, how it is spread, and the 
measures put in place at the HMO to limit its 
spread.  

 Clean  
Increase the frequency of the cleaning schedule 
for all the common areas in the HMO, including 
(but limited to) living and dining areas, shared 
bathrooms, toilets and kitchens. The minimum 
frequency should be three times a week.    
The cleaning regime should include (but is not 
limited to) the sanitisation/disinfection of:  
o Door and window handle and locks,   
o Doors, handles and controls of all white 
goods communally provided,  
o Taps and plugs,  
o Showers,  
o Baths,  
o Wash hand basins,  
o Toilets,  

This is simply not practical and is the responsibility 
of the tenants in a small HMO where tenants are 
known to each other, and the entire property is let 
and not on a room-by-room basis 

This condition has been removed 

the reference of a cleaning schedule in 16.1 
should not be mandatory if cleaning is the job of the 
tenants: this is too much to expect a house share to 
do this three times a week 

I would agree and welcome a lot of this but the 
sections on waste disposal and infectious diseases 
are totally unreasonable and unworkable. These 
are mostly tenant responsibilities over which the 
landlord will have little control once out of the 
building. 

Section 16 is over the top for my property, a flat 
occupied by three unrelated sharers. They are 
perfectly capable of looking after themselves. 

Section 16 Cleaning - this is not relevant to a typical 
flat share where the tenants are responsible for the 
cleaning 

Infectious disease cleaning - this is tenants’ 
responsibility, not the landlords 

Safeagent - Worded too broadly: A letting agent 
cannot be expected to monitor any local, regional or 
national outbreaks of infectious disease. The most 
our members could do is pass on information 
provided by the council’s Director of Public Health. 
 
If a property is let to sharers on a single tenancy, or 
is a building converted into flats, the landlord or 
agent has no power to go into each letting to carry 
out cleaning, and there is no explanation about how 
those extra costs would be met. We would request 

317



Appendix 13 
 

73 
 

Licence type 
 

Licence condition Comment from consultation survey and 
stakeholder organisation 

Council’s consideration 

o Shared surfaces, e.g., dining tables, 
chairs, coffee tables, etc.   
o All shared surfaces and cupboards used 
in the storage, preparation and cooking of food 
and making drinks,  
o The doors, handles and controls of 
cooking appliances and kettles.  
  

 Sanitise  

Provide hand sanitiser stations in each common 
room including (but limited to) living and dining 
areas, shared bathrooms, toilets and kitchens and 
at the main entrance to the HMO. The sanitiser 
should not be diluted in any way and supplied in 
pump action containers for ease of use.    
Examples of an infectious disease that would 
require these measures to be put in place are, 
COVID-19, Tuberculosis, SARS-CoV, etc.   
The licence holder must inform the Council by 
email [add email] within 72 hours of becoming 
aware of the occurrence of an outbreak.  
(Discretionary condition)  
 

a meeting with the council to discuss this proposal 
in detail as we have serious concerns. 

Additional - 
Exemptions 

Exemptions to the proposed additional licensing 
scheme include:  

b. properties let by a local authority or a 
Registered Provider (RP), traditionally known as 
a not-for-profit Housing Association;  

 This is a legal requirement of the 
housing act 2004 

Additional - 
Exemptions 

Exemptions to the proposed additional licensing 
scheme include:  
i) Student accommodation directly managed 
by educational institutions, e.g., halls of 
residence.  

The exemption for student housing, young people 
are not disposable and should not be made to put 
up with bad housing just because they're students, 
properties should be made available at an 
affordable rate rather than being at the whim of the 
market. 

This is a legal exemption in the 
housing act 2004 

 
 
 

318



Appendix 13 
 

74 
 

i) Responses regarding which licence conditions are unclear for Mandatory Licensing  

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: The fee structure is not clear  
Are fees one-of or recurring please and at what frequency? The fee is proposed to be £1,500 + £100 per room above 5 bedrooms. The flat 

fee covers the first five bedrooms with a small additional charge per bedroom 
above 5. The licence will last for 5 years. The Council is required to split the 
fees into two payments. The initial part of the fee is charged to cover the cost 
of processing of the application. If the application for a licence is successful a 
further fee will be charged before the full licence can be issued. This second 
fee is a contribution to the other costs incurred by the council under the 
licensing scheme, for example for enforcement of the licence. What the actual 
split will be is to be determined following the consultation. 
Mandatory HMO Licensing applies to properties let to 5 or more unrelated 
people, forming 2 or more households, who share amenities such as a kitchen 
or bathroom. 

It is unclear what the fee is for residents living in a 2-bedroom flat 

The charging seems odd, as someone with one property pays almost the same 
amount as some with lots of rooms. That doesn’t seem proportionate. 

yes - how long this licence lasts. Is this an annual fee or a one-off fee? If annual, 
it may be too high, if one off, it is too low. 

Theme: The fire safety regulations are unclear  

A lot of points in your HMO license guide are unclear to landlords. For instance, 
all it concerns fire regulations. Many landlords are not too sure which kind of 
smoke detector to install in their HMO. I think you should visit every single HMO 
and then advice landlords on the work they would need to carry out instead to 
ask them to comply with regulations that are not clear in your guidelines. 

Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations 2015 are the 
minimum standards that we require landlords to comply with in regard to fire 
safety for selective licensing. The BS5839 pt 6, 2019, is a recognised standard 
for private rented properties and includes a heat alarm in the kitchen and a 
smoke alarm in each principal habitable room. Ideally, the council recommends 
an interlinked main wired smoke detector with integral battery back-up located 
at each floor or alternatively a non-mains wired standalone smoke detectors, 
fitted with a ten-year sealed lithium battery. Non-mains wired standalone 
smoke detectors fitted with a standard battery are acceptable as a final 
alternative but are not recommended as batteries can be easily removed from 
the units. 
Information about fire blankets, extinguishers and fire risk assessments can be 
found on the council website and the LACORS fire guidance 

The language used in 5.4 is legal language that many would not understand. 

Theme: Condition 1.6 relating to ventilation and natural daylight is unclear  

The one about glazing.  I’m assuming this doesn’t pertain to rooms such as 
bathrooms! 

There was a typo in the condition which has been rectified. It has been 
changed to:  An area of glazing which is equivalent to at least 10% of the 
internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided.  An area of 
openable glazing (for ventilation) which is equivalent to at least 5% of the 
internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided 
Bathrooms and kitchens are not included as habitable rooms. 
 

I think there are conditions which can create difficulties in interpretation, I also 
think the condition relating to the area of glass and the area of ventilation is 
unclear. 

1.6 requires 10% of floor space of glazing, and then 20% of floor space of 
openable glazing. The second requirement exceeds the first. 

319

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/2940/LACORS-Fire-Safety-guide-April-2009-.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

75 
 

1.6 please see above in conditions that should be removed. A provision for 
windows which must be openable makes sense, but then there are already fire 
regulations and means of escape to take into account, therefore if a human can 
squeeze through a window, surely that should be enough to air a room 
regularly.... 

Theme: The number of rooms and households covered by the licence is unclear   

Are you proposing that only HMO house landlords/owners with more than 5 
occupants will have to pay the fee? 

Mandatory HMO licensing applies to an HMO let to 5 or more unrelated 
people, forming 2 or more households, who share amenities such as a kitchen 
or bathroom. 
 
The Housing Act 2004 defines persons forming a single household as 
members of the same family or a specified exemption made the appropriate 
national authority. The act states that “person is a member of the same family 
as another person if— 
(a)those persons are married to [ or civil partners of, each other or live together 
as if they were a married couple or civil partners]; 
(b)one of them is a relative of the other; or 
(c)one of them is, or is a relative of, one member of a couple and the other is a 
relative of the other member of the couple.” 
A relative “means parent, grandparent, child, grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, 
aunt, nephew, niece or cousin”. The act also states that “a relationship of the 
half-blood shall be treated as a relationship of the whole blood; and the 
stepchild of a person shall be treated as his child.” 

my 3-bed flat lets to three sharers, who are friends - does that constitute a 
household? 

Would the 5 bedrooms be included 

Theme: The licence conditions appear to be in draft 

Lots of documents and details left blank or to be added [in brackets like this] Licence conditions are issued to each specific licenced property and the 
sections left in draft or in brackets are completed for each individual licence. 
The sections specifying the room size and maximum occupancy, will depend 
on how the property is laid out and the facilities available in the property, which 
are noted during the inspection.  

Many parts of the licence conditions document seem to be in draft 

Theme: It is unclear how the scheme will be enforced 

How are these conditions going to be enforced?  It's good having regulations but 
generally the ones who want to get away with not complying, generally do. 
For example Airbnb - that has been in practice where I live, though seemingly 
not during lockdown. Are the hours checked or is it just left for people to be 
honest and work within the guidelines? Again, many will comply, but the cheats 
are the ones that won't and who monitors that? 

Properties let through Airbnb are short-term, commercial lets and do 
not legally fall under these licensing schemes. Airbnb properties need planning 
permission and any ASB issues will be dealt with by the ASB team 
The council’s enforcement capability will be increased in line with the number 
of licences, including pro-active compliance checks such as:  

 Using the Tenure intelligence model (TIMs) to identify privately rented 
properties in the designated areas. Applications received can be monitored 
against this database to pinpoint areas which need improvement. A 
combination of targeted street by street communication will be implemented, 

How will these regulations be monitored or inspected? 

320



Appendix 13 
 

76 
 

followed by door-to-door visits in unlicensed hot spots to ensure tenants and 
landlords know their licensing obligations. 

 Intelligence-led ‘Compliance days’ involving concentrated enforcement 
activity in discrete areas to identify unlicensed addresses, to ensure that 
licensed addresses have the correct licence in place and to ensure 
compliance with licence conditions. 

The council will be actively inspecting for unlicensed properties and will take 
action against those who refuse to license their properties 

Theme: Other 

7.1 is a discretionary condition? This should be mandatory. The mandatory conditions are the licence conditions required by the Housing 
Act 2004. Discretionary conditions are conditions that Southwark Council have 
decided to add to the scheme. The discretionary conditions are applied to all 
properties which require a licence. 

I'm a bit unclear after reading the above information and the Proposed 
mandatory HMO licence conditions whether conditions marked as "discretionary" 
are intended to be mandatory or not. 

I think there needs to be an ability to complain about landlords who fail to 
address complaints adequately themselves. 

Southwark Council has an existing reporting service on the council website. 
Tenants can also use the GLA website to make a complaint or raise an issue 
with the council. Southwark Council has a tenancy relations team, who receive 
referrals from across the council, and the tenants can also contact the call 
centre.  
The council has also outlined commitments in the Housing Strategy 2020 to 
protect and empower private tenants by providing advice and assistance on 
their respective rights and responsibilities, which includes: 

 Providing high quality advice to private tenants (and landlords), including 
details of any grants and loans available via the council’s website. 

 Providing dedicated housing advice to private tenants threatened with 
illegal eviction.  

 Introducing a Southwark Private Renters Union to support the council’s 
work to improve the conditions of private renters 

 
If licensing is approved, the council will run a comms and marketing campaign 
to raise awareness of the schemes, and provide information about the licence 
conditions, acceptable behaviours from landlords, and the existence of a public 
register of licenced properties. 
 
Licensing will also enable tenants to make complaints to the council 
anonymously, as the council will be able to approach landlords regarding their 
licensing obligations, rather than stating that a tenant has made a complaint. 

It isn't clear whether the licence is for a landlord, i.e., an individual who might 
have several properties, or whether it is for a dwelling. 

Licences are issues per property let out, not per landlord 

It's not clear what makes a tenant "fit". 

321



Appendix 13 
 

77 
 

Seems to only apply to the landlord and not the tenant.  where are the tenants' 
obligations and who benefits should (which I doubt) if the tenant is fined? 

The council recommends that landlords ask their tenants for references prior to 
letting out their properties and carry out Right to Rent checks. Landlords can 
also draft their tenancy agreements and are also expected to take deposits 

What's the minimum charge for landlords not complying with the license 
agreements? A breakdown of estimated costs for certain offences would be 
useful to get an idea. 

The fines for non-compliance are scored on a matrix which factors in the 
severity of the offence, the harm to tenants and the history of offending, as well 
as other factors, and the penalties to be issued vary depending on the score. 
More information about enforcement and penalties can be found on the council 
website here - https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-
and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf  

 

j) Responses regarding which licence conditions are unclear for Additional Licensing 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: Fire safety conditions are unclear 

I am unclear of the specification of the smoke alarms. Should they be hard 
wired, or are working battery alarms sufficient for the license? 

Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations 2015 are the 
minimum standards that we require landlords to comply with in regard to fire 
safety for selective licensing. The BS5839 pt 6, 2019, is a recognised standard 
for private rented properties and includes a heat alarm in the kitchen and a 
smoke alarm in each principal habitable room. Ideally, the council recommends 
an interlinked main wired smoke detector with integral battery back-up located 
at each floor or alternatively a non-mains wired standalone smoke detectors, 
fitted with a ten-year sealed lithium battery. Non-mains wired standalone 
smoke detectors fitted with a standard battery are acceptable as a final 
alternative but are not recommended as batteries can be easily removed from 
the units. 
Information about fire blankets, extinguishers and fire risk assessments can be 
found on the council website and the LACORS fire guidance 

Is the implication that fire systems - heat, smoke alarms can or cannot be battery 
This seems completely over the top for a 3-bedroom flat. 

Theme: How will the scheme be enforced? 

It’s unclear whether there will be any inspection or regulation to ensure that 
landlords comply with the licensing conditions. 

The council’s enforcement capability will be increased in line with the number 
of licences, including pro-active compliance checks such as:  

 Using the Tenure intelligence model (TIMs) to identify privately rented 
properties in the designated areas. Applications received can be monitored 
against this database to pinpoint areas which need improvement. A 
combination of targeted street by street communication will be implemented, 
followed by door-to-door visits in unlicensed hot spots to ensure tenants and 
landlords know their licensing obligations. 

How is this going to be enforced with the unscrupulous landlords, who will be the 
ones making money and not complying with regulations voluntarily? How will you 
track these properties and landlords down to enforce rules - they manage to stay 
anonymous!! 

Again, how is the enforcement of these new regs going to be financed? 

322

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/2940/LACORS-Fire-Safety-guide-April-2009-.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

78 
 

 Intelligence-led ‘Compliance days’ involving concentrated enforcement 
activity in discrete areas to identify unlicensed addresses, to ensure that 
licensed addresses have the correct licence in place and to ensure 
compliance with licence conditions. 

 The council will be actively inspecting for unlicensed properties and will take 
action against those who refuse to license their properties. 

Theme: Room specification conditions are unclear 

1.6: which rooms are defined as "habitable"? how can the opening area of 
glazing be required at 20% of the room's floor space when the area of glazing of 
the room is required to be 10%? 10% would require an extremely large numbers 
of properties to have their windows not only changed to larger ones but also for 
the walls around those windows to be diminished accordingly, which in the case 
of conservation areas, is unlikely to be accepted by the council. Being retrofitted, 
they could also endanger the fabric of the building if not fitted in properly. They 
also pose an issue in terms of privacy due to close proximity of neighbours, and 
potentially issues in terms of keeping heat in in winter and noise out through 
being badly fitted, having more surface that could leak, and just because there is 
a big window, it doesn't mean that tenants will open them. And if they did, the 
windows will need to be sufficiently small in size not to make it easy for children 
to fall out or require sufficient protection against this, which in a way, also 
defeats the purpose of putting in larger windows at a great expense.  For new 
builds, this is more doable, but then again, the amount of openable glazing is 
usually a fraction of the glazing available. Something must be wrong in that 
wording as it is... 

There was a typo in the condition which has been rectified. It has been 
changed to:  An area of glazing which is equivalent to at least 10% of the 
internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided.  An area of 
openable glazing (for ventilation) which is equivalent to at least 5% of the 
internal floor space of each habitable room must be provided 
Bathrooms and kitchens are not included as habitable rooms. 
 
The additional licence conditions do specify the room sizes for bedrooms for a 
property covered by additional licensing. 
 
Southwark’s HMO Standards outline the rooms sizes for kitchens and 
bathrooms on HMOs. For more information, please see the HMO standards on 
the council website  
 

Room sizes for Bedrooms, Kitchens, Bathrooms and Toilets 

Theme: The conditions regarding occupancy are unclear  

What constitutes composition of those sharing, unclear as to numbers relative to 
families and single individuals 

Additional licensing applies to smaller houses in multiple occupation to let to 3 
or 4 unrelated people forming 2 or more households who share amenities such 
as a kitchen or bathroom. 
 
The Housing Act 2004 defines persons forming a single household as 
members of the same family or a specified exemption made the appropriate 
national authority. The act states that “person is a member of the same family 
as another person if— 
(a)those persons are married to [ or civil partners of, each other or live together 
as if they were a married couple or civil partners]; 
(b)one of them is a relative of the other; or 
(c)one of them is, or is a relative of, one member of a couple and the other is a 
relative of the other member of the couple.” 

What is the status regarding occupancy when its purpose-built flats within one 
building and the owner is subletting rooms which are not bedrooms to occupants 
over 10. 
What is the maximum occupancy for unrelated occupants in a flat? 

323

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

79 
 

A relative “means parent, grandparent, child, grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, 
aunt, nephew, niece or cousin”. The act also states that “a relationship of the 
half-blood shall be treated as a relationship of the whole blood; and the 
stepchild of a person shall be treated as his child.” 
 
Where the landlord is subletting rooms which are not bedrooms, the council 
looks at applications on a case-by-case basis. More information is available in 
the council’s HMO standards and for further information, please contact the 
council 

Theme: Other  

Why the exemptions at the end? Does it mean that the persons/landlords 
mentioned could let their properties be in a less liveable condition than others? 
Could safety of tenants be affected? 

These exemptions are a legal requirement of the housing act 2004 

No, but most of them seem discretionary - it is unclear whether that means 
they're regarded as best practice, in which case it would be simpler, perhaps to 
have a 'best practice for landlords' guide and a far clearer, simpler, lest wordy 
mandatory list. 

The mandatory conditions are the licence conditions required by the Housing 
Act 2004. Discretionary conditions are conditions that Southwark Council have 
decided to add to the scheme. The discretionary conditions are applied to all 
properties which require a licence. 

As above, simply referring residents to LACoRs guidance is very unhelpful as it 
is impenetrable. I could not easily find a scenario that applied to my flat, namely 
a 3-bed room flat on one floor where the tenants were all friends. I do find it 
bizarre that in a block of flats, a tenanted property seems to require the gold 
standard in terms of protection but the same flat next door, if owner-occupied, 
does not. 

Owner-occupied flats are not covered by the legislation. The council has to 
work within the existing legislation to protect people as much as possible. The 
LACORS fire guidance contains guidance for a 3-bedroom flat on one floor on 
page 49 of the guidance, under subheading “38. Flats in multiple occupation” 
  

 

k) Responses regarding which licence conditions are unclear for Selective Licensing 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: The fee is unclear 

How often is the fee levied? If once off it is ok, if every year, or even every tenant 
change it is too much 

 The licence fee is taken in two parts, part a on application, and part b when they 
licence is approved. Once paid, the licence lasts for up to 5 years. If a tenant 
changes, you will be able to update your licence with the new information free of 
charge. 

How often is the licence fee renewed / payable? 

Theme: How is the scheme going to be enforced? 

Same concern:  as to how all these conditions are going to be enforced and 
monitored? 

 Using the Tenure intelligence model (TIMs) to identify privately rented 
properties in the designated areas. Applications received can be monitored 

Enforcement isn't clear. Cost isn't clear. 

324

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/2940/LACORS-Fire-Safety-guide-April-2009-.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/2940/LACORS-Fire-Safety-guide-April-2009-.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

80 
 

How long licence lasts, what measures can be brought in to ensure compliance, 
what steps council will take to ensure compliance 

against this database to pinpoint areas which need improvement. A 
combination of targeted street by street communication will be implemented, 
followed by door-to-door visits in unlicensed hot spots to ensure tenants and 
landlords know their licensing obligations. 

 Intelligence-led ‘Compliance days’ involving concentrated enforcement activity 
in discrete areas to identify unlicensed addresses, to ensure that licensed 
addresses have the correct licence in place and to ensure compliance with 
licence conditions. 

Enforcement isn't clear. Cost isn't clear. 

Theme: Discretionary conditions 

As previously, it is unclear why discretionary conditions are included.  Why not 
mark some as mandatory and use the word 'best practice' rather than 
'discretionary’? 

The mandatory conditions are the licence conditions required by the Housing Act 
2004. Discretionary conditions are conditions that Southwark Council have 
decided to add to the scheme. The discretionary conditions are applied to all 
properties which require a licence. I am not sure whether these discretionary conditions are to be applied to all 

properties in the given area even if there are no issues with a given property. 
This could result in additional costs for a landlord who is already maintaining 
their property to a good standard. 

Theme: Other 

It is not clear how the tenants own electrical devices will be managed. This is as 
much a problem as a 'landlord owned' device. Are the tenants exempt from 
having safe electrical devices that could endanger the property safety? 

Landlords are only required to check their own electrical products. Tenants have 
a responsibility not to damage the properties, which should be covered in the 
tenancy agreement. 

There are conditions about installing CCTV where there have been several 
reports of antisocial behaviour, but what happens with the recordings? Is 
someone watching the videos and sending out security? Are they just a 
deterrent? Does anyone even maintain them when they stop working? 

The condition to install CCTV has been removed 

It is unclear if the water saving devices and thermostatically controllable heating 
must be installed in properties that already have an EPC rating higher than E. 
 
1.7 - it appears you are saying the windows must be a size at least 10% of the 
floor space, and yet the openable windows must be 20% of the floor space. How 
can the openable windows be twice as big as the total window space?  
 
3.1 - who approves the electrical contractors? The council should not be 
determining this. 

The condition to install water saving devices and thermostatically controllable 
heating has been reviewed, and these steps are now recommendations. The 
council would recommend adding these devices as good practise. 
 
There was a typo in the licence condition which has been rectified. It has been 
changed to:  An area of glazing which is equivalent to at least 10% of the internal 
floor space of each habitable room must be provided.  An area of openable 
glazing (for ventilation) which is equivalent to at least 5% of the internal floor 
space of each habitable room must be provided 
 
The licence conditions which refer to approved electrical contractors means 
contractors approved by a national registering body such as NICEIC, not the 
council 

325



Appendix 13 
 

81 
 

l) Responses regarding what conditions should be added to the Mandatory HMO Licence 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: More frequent inspections  
Compliance and regulatory checks should be carried out with little or very short 
notice and should be undertaken more frequently, say every quarter or six 
months. 

The council will inspect property on application and carry out risk assessment to 
determine the regularity of checks after that. The council will also respond to 
tenant complaints. Licensing will also enable tenants to make complaints to the 
council anonymously, as the council will be able to approach landlords regarding 
their licensing obligations, rather than stating that a tenant has made a complaint 
 
If licensing is approved, the council will also run a comms and marketing 
campaign to raise awareness of the schemes, and provide information about the 
licence conditions, acceptable behaviours from landlords, and the existence of a 
public register of licenced properties. 

regular checks by people who don't take back handers from the landlords 

Spot checks 

the rented place should be visited by the council. 

Theme: Ensure the cost is not passed onto the tenants 

Is it possible to levy it in a way that doesn't mean the landlord increases the level 
of rent to pass on the cost to the renter? 

Evidence from authorities who have been operating licensing schemes have 
seen no evidence that landlords have increased rents to cover their licence fee 
costs or that landlords have moved elsewhere. Similarly, research carried out by 
an independent agency on behalf of the government (An Independent Review of 
the Use and Effectiveness of Selective Licensing) showed that selective 
licensing did not result in an increase in rents in areas with a scheme, that 
market forces dictated the rent levels.  
 
If landlords want to increase the rent, there are procedures which must be 
followed and any increase above market rents levels can be challenged via the 
Residential Property Tribunal. 

Tenant’s rent should not be increased to cover these costs for a landlord. 

That the costs should not be added to the tenant’s rental payments but should 
be paid for by the landlord directly. 

Theme: Ensure the scheme is enforced  

Enforcement should be stepped up given rented housing is a demand & supply 
issue. 

The council’s enforcement capability will be increased in line with the number of 
licences, including pro-active compliance checks such as:  

 Using the Tenure intelligence model (TIMs) to identify privately rented 
properties in the designated areas. Applications received can be monitored 
against this database to pinpoint areas which need improvement. A 
combination of targeted street by street communication will be implemented, 
followed by door-to-door visits in unlicensed hot spots to ensure tenants and 
landlords know their licensing obligations. 

 Intelligence-led ‘Compliance days’ involving concentrated enforcement activity 
in discrete areas to identify unlicensed addresses, to ensure that licensed 
addresses have the correct licence in place and to ensure compliance with 
licence conditions. 

It's very well putting hefty fines, but are these actually being enforced? If not, it's 
wasted. 

Make sure the fees are used properly to oversee HMOs that are unfit for 
purpose 

Much stricter conditions and much more aggressively enforced 

326



Appendix 13 
 

82 
 

The council will be actively inspecting for unlicensed properties and will take 
action against those who refuse to license their properties. 

Theme: More protection for tenants   

Ban on section 21 / no fault evictions. Ban on revenge evictions. Ban on 
increasing rent by more than e.g., 5% a year. Mandatory option to offer long 
term rents 

Southwark council is actively lobbying the government to remove Section 21 
evictions. The proposed Gold Standard for landlords also includes a condition 
not to evict under section 21, other than under the listed acceptable exemptions. 
 
Revenge evictions can be referred to the Housing Solutions team in the council 
for support.  
 
As stated above, Southwark Council has an existing reporting service on the 
council website. Tenants can also use the GLA website to make a complaint or 
raise an issue with the council. Southwark Council has a tenancy relations team, 
who receive referrals from across the council, and the tenants can also contact 
the call centre.  
The council has also outlined commitments in the Housing Strategy 2020 to 
protect and empower private tenants by providing advice and assistance on their 
respective rights and responsibilities, which includes: 

 Providing high quality advice to private tenants (and landlords), including 
details of any grants and loans available via the council’s website. 

 Providing dedicated housing advice to private tenants threatened with illegal 
eviction.  

 Introducing a Southwark Private Renters Union to support the council’s work 
to improve the conditions of private renters 

 
If licensing is approved, the council will run a comms and marketing campaign to 
raise awareness of the schemes, and provide information about the licence 
conditions, acceptable behaviours from landlords, and the existence of a public 
register of licenced properties. 
 
Licensing will also enable tenants to make complaints to the council 
anonymously, as the council will be able to approach landlords regarding their 
licensing obligations, rather than stating that a tenant has made a complaint. 
 
Rent increases should also be included in the tenancy agreements. The council 
is also proposing a gold standard for landlord which includes conditions to 
protect their tenants from illegal or unnecessary eviction and charge fair rents 
and avoid additional charges 

Perhaps more emphasis on protecting tenants from other antisocial behaviour 
from tenants. 

Social support for EVERY tenant. 

Theme: More measures to tackle anti-social behaviour 

327



Appendix 13 
 

83 
 

Antisocial behaviour should be penalised with removal of the licence. Landlord to 
be responsible. 

There is a licence condition which addresses anti-social behaviour. The council 
will also employ an ASB officer who will work with landlords and tenants to 
reduce ASB. If ASB continues to persist, the council can intervene and may 
remove the licence 

Be stronger on noise, drug use and antisocial behaviour. Much stronger! 

Robust measures to curb antisocial behaviour especially late-night parties 

Theme: Increased fines for non-compliance 

All Landlords should be liable to repay the full rent collected on any properties 
deemed not fit for habitation by virtue of a landlord’s malfeasance, additionally 
Landlords should be liable to pay compensation to the Tenants by way of 
recompense for letting substandard property. The idea that a landlord may be 
liable to penalties benefitting the Local Authority, yet the real victims get nothing 
is abhorrent! 

The fines for non-compliance are scored on a matrix which factors in the severity 
of the offence, the harm to tenants and the history of offending, as well as other 
factors, and the penalties to be issued vary depending on the score. More 
information about enforcement and penalties can be found on the council 
website here - https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-
and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf 

Greater fines for failure to adhere to the standards and conditions - to act as a 
greater deterrent.  
Greater responsibility for management agents - too often they are slow to 
respond and slow to escalate 

It should be strict and involve a deterrent punitive fine for non-compliance 

Theme: Changes to the fee based on landlord income/property size /number of properties 

I think the cost should increase dramatically for landlords who own multiple 
properties as a deterrent to this practice. For example, an increase of 200% per 
additional property, increasing with each one (e.g., £3,000 first property, £9,000 
second property, £27,000 third property, etc.) 

The fee is proposed to be £1,500 + £100 per room above 5 bedrooms. The flat 
fee covers the first five bedrooms with a small additional charge per bedroom 
above 5. 
 
The council does not intend to charge more for landlords who own or manage 
multiple properties as the number of properties is not an indication of how well 
properties are managed or maintained. 
 
The fees are not means tested due to the administrative burden  
 

Much higher charge per bedroom over five bedrooms and also an annual fee 
should be payable 

Reductions to the fee and the penalty charge should be considered, based on 
the Landlords income. 

Theme: Effective pest control 

Something about vermin The licence conditions include a requirement to regularly inspect the property, as 
the licence conditions address the management of properties under the scheme. 
If vermin or other pests are found in the property, the council will take action 
under different legislation to address the issue.  

To ensure properties are properly maintained so as not to adversely affect 
neighbouring properties including outside areas regarding effective pest control 
& hygiene. 

Theme: Landlord/licence holder should respond to neighbour complaints 

Landlords should be legally obliged to respond in writing to neighbour complaints 
to them about problems with their tenants and not just ignored. 

The licence condition regarding antisocial behaviour includes “undertaking a 
thorough process of reasonable and effective steps to deal with any complaints 
that have been made directly to them or via Southwark Council or the 
Metropolitan Police, regarding their occupiers” 

Make sure private landlords take notice when a neighbour complains about 
noisy private tenants 

328

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

84 
 

The licence holder should be responsible for avoiding damage to neighbouring 
properties, and repairing damage to neighbouring properties, if this is through 
negligence. 

Theme: Minimum space standards 

Additional conditions should be added to provide for minimum size standards for 
kitchens and other shared spaces and requiring that such spaces are provided. 
Rooms with included kitchen facilities should be subject to higher space and 
ventilation standards. 

Licence conditions are issued to each specific licenced property and the sections 
left in draft or in brackets are completed for each individual licence. The sections 
specifying the room size and maximum occupancy, will depend on how the 
property is laid out and the facilities available in the property, which are noted 
during the inspection. 
Information about the size and availability of living spaces in HMOs, relative to 
the number and size of bedrooms, can be found in the council’s HMO standards. 
This guidance also covers the size and number of facilities in kitchens. 
Bathrooms sizes and regulations are covered the HHSRS guidance under part 1 
of the housing act  

Conditions about the size of the space you are able to rent to one person (similar 
to the ones they have in Germany) where a room cannot be below a certain size. 

Minimum floor plan and washing facilities 

Theme: Properties should have a living space 

Any Shared house should have a living room as a minimum. Information about the size and availability of living spaces in HMOs, relative to 
the number and size of bedrooms, can be found in the council’s HMO standards.  Many houses are becoming "dorms" that do not have a living room and an 

empty space becomes a new bedroom. I guess this is legal, but it should be 
discouraged, they are making houses less of a place people want to live and do 
activities in the neighbourhood and more just a place to sleep and leave the next 
day. Not sure how it could be discouraged through this new licence condition, 
but it should be taken into account. 

Shared Housing should have shared living accommodation, like a living room. 
Currently live in a property owned by Ultimate Housing that has 6 Bedrooms with 
no Share Living Room and a Small Kitchen. 

Theme: The scheme should apply to more properties 

I think landlords even if renting to lodger should have more accountability for 
safety and fairness /rights to person paying large sum each month 

The council is proposing to introduce additional HMO and selective licensing 
schemes. The additional HMO licensing applies to smaller houses in multiple 
occupation to let to 3 or 4 unrelated people forming 2 or more households who 
share amenities such as a kitchen or bathroom. The selective licensing scheme 
covers properties let to single family households or two sharers. 
 
Properties where the owner occupier is renting out a room to a lodger are 
exempt from licensing under the Housing Act 2004. 

Should apply to smaller houses 

This new mandatory licensing scheme for HMO properties should include 
4bedroom as well 5 Bedrooms 

Theme: More checks on landlords and agents 

"Fit and proper" person test is far too lax. The council will risk assess based on the fit and proper person test. If managing 
agents and agencies are interested parties in a property, they will also be 
subject to a fit & proper person test. Managing agents are also subject to 
regulation under trading standards. 

More checks on landlords 
More check on agencies who get in most occasions get paid to do nothing and 
postpone jobs that are only in the interest of the tenants to be addressed. 

329

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

85 
 

Previous background check on the landlord or agency history. 

Theme: Noise controls 

excessive noise music and antisocial behaviour The council has included a condition relating to anti-social behaviour, which 
include noise, in the mandatory HMO licence conditions Noise controls 

Theme: Tenants should also be charged 

If you are making landlord pay a fee... should the tenant also be paying a fee 
and sign conditions that they will be respectful of the property and its 
surroundings and maintain and upkeep the property to a high standard too. 

The council does not have the authority to charge tenants.  

Should only be applicable to rogue landlords.  The council should impose fines 
on tenants also! 

Theme: The fees are too high 

Stop over charging Under the law, the council is not allowed to make money from the licensing 
schemes. The proposed fees have been calculated based on the cost of 
operating the licensing scheme. 
 
 

Way too expensive! 

Theme: The licence should be free 

I think the license should be free As above, under the law, the council is not allowed to make money from the 
licensing schemes. The proposed fees have been calculated based on the cost 
of operating the licensing scheme. 

take out the costs 

Theme: Licences should not be given to illegal or unapproved conversions 

HMO licences should not be granted to properties in Article 4 areas where 
consent is required to convert C3 (family home) to C4 (HMO) UNTIL the property 
has received consent for HMO 

Licences will not be issued to illegal or unapproved conversions. Properties will 
be inspected prior to the licence being issues. In instances of illegal or 
unapproved conversions, the properties will be referred to the council’s planning 
team.  That you cannot change the integral structure of the building to create additional 

rooms. A 5-bed house is a big house. Where people carve them up into even 
smaller rooms is frankly criminal. 

Theme: Licences and conditions should be based on occupancy 

Based on occupancy The licence conditions are based on the occupancy of the property. Mandatory 
licences are applicable to properties let to 5 or more unrelated people. The 
licence conditions regarding occupancy are specific to the property in question 
and specify the maximum occupancy, depending on how the property is laid out 
and the facilities available in the property, which are noted during the inspection.  

I would make it about the number of people staying in the house rather than the 
number of bedrooms, because landlords could get around this by letting out 
lounges as bedrooms, unofficially. 

Theme: Landlords should address tenants’ anti-social behaviour 

if there are regular ASB reports from a property the licence should be suspended Licence condition 7 states that “The Licence Holder shall take all reasonable and 
practical steps for preventing and dealing with anti-social behaviour and 
undertaking a thorough process of reasonable and effective steps to deal with 
any complaints that have been made directly to them or via Southwark Council 
or the Metropolitan Police, regarding their occupiers. For the purpose of these 

Yes, the landlord should be required to address anti-social behaviour of their 
tenants. 

330



Appendix 13 
 

86 
 

conditions, anti-social behaviour is taken to comprise behaviour by the 
occupants of the house and/or their visitors, which causes a nuisance or 
annoyance to other occupants of the house, to lawful visitors to the house or to 
persons residing in or lawfully visiting the neighbouring area of the house 
(discretionary condition).” 

Theme: Minimum number of shared facilities 

Minimum number of shared facilities. Information about the number of bathrooms and the amount of shared facilities 
there should in HMO properties of different sizes can be found in the council’s 
HMO standards 

minimum of on bathroom per 3 people. 
Everyone have access to a functioning kitchen. 

Theme: Fire safety conditions 

Fire safety inspections should be mandatory. Information about fire blankets, extinguishers and fire risk assessments can be 
found on the council website and the LACORS fire guidance  There should be a requirement to provide a fire blanket and/or extinguisher 

Theme: Existing schemes and agreements are sufficient 

Probably.  I would have to think it through.  I think existing ASTs cover most 
relevant requirements. 

The current scheme has a number of discretionary conditions which are out of 
date as they were related to the issues with HMOs in 2015. The conditions have 
been revised to take account of the current issues within the PRS  The existing mandatory HMO licencing scheme is sufficient. 

Theme: Each room should have a sink or bathroom 

Each HMO should have separate bathrooms this is due to the COVID pandemic 
sharing of personal hygiene. 

Information about the number of bathrooms and sinks there should in HMO 
properties of different sizes can be found in the council’s HMO standards 

It should be added that each room in an HMO should have a bathroom. 
Bathroom means a bathtub or shower, wc and a hand wash sink. 
In the 21st century it is unacceptable to have one bathroom in a 3-bedroom 
house where there may be a couple in each room. Meaning that 6 people must 
use one bathroom. 
Personal hygiene and sufficient amount of bathrooms in an HMO should not 
even be a question in the 21st century U.K. 
 
This may mean there will be much less HMOs in Southwark or landlords will 
make some rooms into a bathroom to accommodate this requirement. 

Theme: Deposit regulation 

Regulation regarding deposit. So, tenants actually can afford the flat and so their 
money is not at risk. 

The law requires landlords and letting agents to put tenants’ deposits in a 
government-approved tenancy deposit protection scheme. 

Taking a bond/deposit from Council tenants to be forfeited if they engage in anti-
social or threatening behaviour, leaving rubbish, defacing or damaging property. 

Theme: Clarity/more time on notice for lease endings 

Clarity about notice for lease endings would be helpful - there are different 
versions of "clear month notice" or "calendar month notice" and so forth. A 
consistency in how much notice to end a lease on either side would give a lot of 
clarity and peace of mind as a tenant. 

The council cannot dictate notice periods for privately rented properties, but they 
would recommend a notice period of two months.  

331

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/2940/LACORS-Fire-Safety-guide-April-2009-.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

87 
 

longer notice for renter to move 

Theme: Allowing pets 

Landlords should allow pets, and allow for personalisation of the property (e.g., 
painting walls, hanging pictures). Landlords should not be allowed to expel 
tenants, unless in certain extreme circumstances. 

Allowing pets and personalisation of properties are at the discretion of the 
landlord and should be part of tenancy agreements. 
 
  Something about allowing pets. The government were supposed to have 

introduced something to make it easier for people to have pets, but I don't think 
a lot of estate agents and landlords have taken much notice - 
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-standard-tenancy-agreement-to-help-
renters-with-well-behaved-pets. 

Theme: Other 

Appropriate use of garden space.  Erecting structures/planting trees which 
encroach/ obstruct neighbours’ properties. 

Erecting structure – wouldn’t; expect this from tenants- check tenancy 
agreement as a material change to the property. Check with Emma – trees not in 
council remit under existing legislation 

Good locks must be fitted that conform to the standard typically required by 
insurers. 
Must ensure that all window locks are working and supplied with keys. 

Requirements for the security of let properties can be found under part 1 of the 
housing act 

Landlords should have to disclose whether the tenants are related or knew each 
other previous to taking out the tenancy. Where tenants are not legitimately 'joint 
tenants' i.e., it is a "flat share" situation, the tenants should be allowed to take 
separate contracts without impacting the rent. This would mean that the tenants 
are not financially tied to each other. 

The council cannot mandate the type of tenancy agreement that landlords give 
to tenants. It is at the landlord’s discretion to issue one tenancy agreement for 
the property, or individual agreements for each tenant. 

Landlords/agents have to meaningfully respond to and resolve tenants request 
for repairs within a set time frame.  
 
Generally something about requirements for timely and professional 
communication. 

Southwark Council has an existing reporting service on the council website. 
Tenants can also use the GLA website to make a complaint or raise an issue 
with the council. Southwark Council has a tenancy relations team, who receive 
referrals from across the council, and the tenants can also contact the call 
centre.  
 
If licensing is approved, the council will run a comms and marketing campaign to 
raise awareness of the schemes, and provide information about the licence 
conditions, acceptable behaviours from landlords, and the existence of a public 
register of licenced properties. 
 
Licensing will also enable tenants to make complaints to the council 
anonymously, as the council will be able to approach landlords regarding their 
licensing obligations, rather than stating that a tenant has made a complaint. 

Registered on a portal online where everyone can see that it is an HMO There is an online register of licensed properties, it is a legal requirement. 

 

332



Appendix 13 
 

88 
 

m) Responses regarding what conditions should be added to the Additional Licence 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: Room specifications 
Conditions should be added specifying the size and provision of kitchen and 
other shared spaces. Rooms with kitchens should be subject to higher space 
and ventilation standards. 

 
Southwark’s HMO Standards outline the rooms sizes for kitchens and bathrooms 
on HMOs. For more information, please see the HMO standards on the council 
website  
 

Shared Houses should have a Shared Living Room 

Specify that numbers include specifically that children count as counting towards 
total numbers 

Theme: Anti-social behaviour should be included 

Anti-social behaviour should be added. Licence condition 7 states that “The Licence Holder shall take all reasonable and 
practical steps for preventing and dealing with anti-social behaviour and 
undertaking a thorough process of reasonable and effective steps to deal with 
any complaints that have been made directly to them or via Southwark Council 
or the Metropolitan Police, regarding their occupiers. For the purpose of these 
conditions, anti-social behaviour is taken to comprise behaviour by the 
occupants of the house and/or their visitors, which causes a nuisance or 
annoyance to other occupants of the house, to lawful visitors to the house or to 
persons residing in or lawfully visiting the neighbouring area of the house 
(discretionary condition).” 

Antisocial behaviour should be included as this is a significant problem even with 
small HMOs. 

Re-instate the anti-social behaviour order, with clear guidelines for what noise is 
permitted/when 

Theme: More fines / penalties 

It should be strict and involve a deterrent punitive fine for non-compliance The fines for non-compliance are scored on a matrix which factors in the severity 
of the offence, the harm to tenants and the history of offending, as well as other 
factors, and the penalties to be issued vary depending on the score. More 
information about enforcement and penalties can be found on the council 
website here - https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-
and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf 

The penalty for failing to comply with the licence conditions should be increased. 

Again, the maximum fine for non-compliance is very low and does not provide a 
lot of disincentives compared to the lucrative amounts that HMO properties can 
make. 

Theme: Tenant Protection  

More emphasis on protecting tenants for unsociable behaviour. Southwark Council has an existing reporting service on the council website. 
Tenants can also use the GLA website to make a complaint or raise an issue 
with the council. Southwark Council has a tenancy relations team, who receive 
referrals from across the council, and the tenants can also contact the call 
centre.  
The council has also outlined commitments in the Housing Strategy 2020 to 
protect and empower private tenants by providing advice and assistance on their 
respective rights and responsibilities, which includes: 

 Providing high quality advice to private tenants (and landlords), including 
details of any grants and loans available via the council’s website. 

More enforcement; protection of tenants against eviction for whistleblowing 

333

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s55580/Appendix%201%20-%20New%20draft%20HMO%20Standards%20-%20LBS%20format.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

89 
 

 Providing dedicated housing advice to private tenants threatened with illegal 
eviction.  

 Introducing a Southwark Private Renters Union to support the council’s work 
to improve the conditions of private renters 

 
If licensing is approved, the council will run a comms and marketing campaign to 
raise awareness of the schemes, and provide information about the licence 
conditions, acceptable behaviours from landlords, and the existence of a public 
register of licenced properties. 
 
Licensing will also enable tenants to make complaints to the council 
anonymously, as the council will be able to approach landlords regarding their 
licensing obligations, rather than stating that a tenant has made a complaint. 

Theme: Waste disposal  

Conditions about fly-tipping/dumping rubbish in public areas when they leave 
instead of taking what they don’t want to a legal refuse tip. 

The additional licence has conditions relating to waste disposal, including 
addressing fly-tipping and informing tenants about the council’s recycling 
services I think the onus should be on the tenants to recycle properly. Council leaflets 

already explain procedures clearly. 

Theme: Occupant details 

Exemptions should include 3 or more unrelated people 
3+ bedroom properties should not be considered HMOs with 3 unrelated people 
on the same tenancy agreement. 

Additional licensing applies to properties let to 3 or 4 unrelated people forming 2 
or more households. The council has evidence of issues in these HMO 
properties that can be addressed by licensing. For more information please see 
the council’s consultation evidence base - 2021 Private Rented Property 
Licensing Proposals - London Borough of Southwark - Citizen Space 
 
The council cannot mandate the type of tenancy agreement that landlords give 
to tenants. It is at the landlord’s discretion to issue one tenancy agreement for 
the property, or individual agreements for each tenant. 

Landlords should have to disclose whether the tenants are related or knew each 
other previous to taking out the tenancy. Where tenants are not legitimately 'joint 
tenants' i.e., it is a "flat share" situation, the tenants should be allowed to take 
separate contracts without impacting the rent. This would mean that the tenants 
are not financially tied to each other. 

Theme: Maintenance SLAs 

Landlords need to be held responsible for their properties and the tenant should 
not be chasing up repairs with a management agency. 
Contract is with the landlord. 

The council will respond to tenant complaints and support tenants if the landlord 
or managing agent does not address issues with the property. With regards to 
who should respond to requests for repairs, that would depend on the contract or 
lease agreement for each individual property. 
 

That any requests from tenants regarding broken gas or electrical appliances be 
resolved within an SLA - things like Gas central heating, gas boilers, electrical 
boilers, fridges, freezers and cooking facilities are treated as urgent requests 
and should not drag on indefinitely.  
 
that the costs for the landlord HMO license / any fines should not be taken out 
on a rent increase from tenants. 

334

https://consultations.southwark.gov.uk/environment-leisure/2021-private-rented-sector-property-licensing-prop/
https://consultations.southwark.gov.uk/environment-leisure/2021-private-rented-sector-property-licensing-prop/


Appendix 13 
 

90 
 

Theme: Inspections 

Inspections should be made of premises and surrounding areas and charges for 
litter removal and graffiti removal could be imposed 

The council will inspect property on application and carry out risk assessment to 
determine the regularity of checks after that 

Regular Inspection 

Theme: EPC 

Energy certificates should be higher than E, apartments or homes should not be 
allowed for rent if they are not checked for fire safety so there's no other 
Grenfell, 

There is a legal requirement for properties that are let out to have an E rating. 
There are many ways to improve your EPC rating, more information is available 
here New digital service to improve home energy performance - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)  – including information about the government’s Green Homes 
Grant, through which you may be able to apply for a voucher towards the cost of 
installing energy efficient improvements to your property 

More on energy efficiency / insulation / reduced carbon emissions etc 

Theme: Other 

More guidance for leasehold properties and what the freeholders’ responsibilities 
are and how the council will ensure freeholders take appropriate action (this 
should already be the case but is not)  
Make it clearer that tenants whose actions prevent the managing agent or 
landlord 

If the schemes are approved, the council will provide promote the scheme and to 
raise awareness of the obligations of interested parties 

The property should be forfeited if any condition is broken and handed to the 
council or the tenants.  
Landlords should be jailed for any breach, no matter how minor. 

The fines for non-compliance are scored on a matrix which factors in the severity 
of the offence, the harm to tenants and the history of offending, as well as other 
factors, and the penalties to be issued vary depending on the score. More 
information about enforcement and penalties can be found on the council 
website here - https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-
and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf 

There needs to be something stating that pest control is the landlord’s 
responsibility. This could be within reason (i.e., tenant must keep the property 
clean). However, for example, if there is structural damage to the property (i.e., 
holes in walls/floor) where pests can enter the property, these must be dealt with 
by the landlord. 

The licence conditions include a requirement to regularly inspect the property, as 
the licence conditions address the management of properties under the scheme. 
If vermin or other pests are found in the property, the council will take action 
under different legislation to address the issue.  

 

n) Responses regarding what conditions should be added to the Selective Licence 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: Enforcement 

Again, the maximum penalty for non-compliance is too low.  The fines for non-compliance are scored on a matrix which factors in the 
severity of the offence, the harm to tenants and the history of offending, as well 
as other factors, and the penalties to be issued vary depending on the score. 
More information about enforcement and penalties can be found on the council 

Fines for noncompliance, suspension of rent, doubling of council tax for 
noncompliance. Lightning visits if complaint received 

Higher penalties, more aggressively enforced. 

335

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-digital-service-to-improve-home-energy-performance
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-digital-service-to-improve-home-energy-performance
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

91 
 

website here - https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-
and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf 

Theme: Anti-social behaviour 

Antisocial behaviour should be added to all zones (and extended to Wards not 
currently proposed to be covered). 

Anti-social behaviour conditions are only in the designations in which the council 
has evidence that ASB is a persistent issue. In Southwark’s Housing strategy, 
the council have committed to work in partnership with local residents to tackle 
crime and anti-social behaviour where it blights neighbourhoods and people’s 
lives. 

There has to be a clause where you can remove a tenant swiftly and without 
repercussions or costs if ASB issues continue. 

Wider involvement of multi-sector agencies in supporting anti-social behaviour 
situations.  Greater mediation involvement. 

Theme: Consistency of licensing 

The council rented homes must also be part of this scheme. The majority of ABS 
issues come from houses rented by the council! 

Council properties are legally exempt from licensing under the Housing Act 
2004. The licence conditions have been drafted to address issues in that 
designated area that the council has evidence are persistent problems Why would licensing conditions change by area? should there not be a standard 

met throughout all of them? 

Theme: Room specification 

There should be special care to ensure that overcrowding doesn't occur by the 
landlord converting a living space into an extra bedroom, but not disclosing this 
to the council. 

 Licence conditions are issued to each specific licenced property. This condition, 
specifying the room size and maximum occupancy, will depend on how the 
property is laid out and the facilities available in the property, which are noted 
during the inspection. The condition is then completed for that specific property While condition specify the maximum occupancy of units, these are not based 

on size, which may result in some people still living in substandard 
accommodation. 

Theme: Other 

Something about allowing pets, like in the previous ones. 
Allowing pets is at the discretion of the landlord and should form part of the 
tenancy agreement. 

The repair requirements in section 15 are too lenient. Requiring "that a written 
response is made to any such complaint within 21 days of receipt" isn't enough - 
three weeks is a long time to have no heating or washing machine etc. 
"Competent person" doesn't seem strict enough: tenants should be entitled to a 
skilled and qualified tradesperson, not just the landlord's cousin. 

Tenants can apply to the council if their complaint is urgent and not being 
addressed. The council cannot dictate the tradespersons used by landlords but 
would recommend the use of tradespersons or companies which are regulated 
by a national recognised body, where applicable. 

 

o) Responses regarding what other exemptions should apply to Selective Licensing 

Example comments from consultees 
 

Council’s consideration 

Theme: Exemption for well-run properties/properties without complaints or evidence of issues 

Properties let by landlords who comply with all legal obligations, and for 
properties where there is no evidence of ASBs, deprivation, or other issues this 
scheme is designed to reduce. 

The council understands that many landlords who rent out properties in the 
private sector manage their properties responsibly. However, the evidence 
shows that the borough is experiencing large scale issues in the private rented 

336

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/8753/Prosecutions-and-Civil-Penalties-Enforcement-Policy-22-01-19.pdf


Appendix 13 
 

92 
 

Properties that have been well run for 20 years, never get complaints, are well 
maintained and are under an AST where the Landlord is both flexible and 
helpful. Why are you targeting the law-abiding landlords, licensing will not stop 
the bad landlords? How will this ever work. 

sector with poor property conditions and management, as well as issues with 
deprivation and ASB in certain wards.  
The council will use the regulatory framework provided by additional and 
selective licensing schemes to focus on those that do not comply and impact 
negatively on the reputation of those responsible landlords as well as having a 
detrimental effect on tenants and neighbourhoods. We will develop guidance 
and work with landlords to bring about compliance where possible, but we will 
also use robust enforcement against wilfully non-compliant landlords.  

Theme: Smaller landlords with one or two properties should be exempt 

Landlords with fewer than 2 properties, as long as they are not HMOs Whether a property is let by a full-time or part-time landlord, the council believes 
that all rental properties should be held to the same standard Non-professional private landlords i.e., those just letting one property to one 

household by private agreement and not as a business 

Theme: Holiday Lets should not be exempt 

holiday lets should not be exempted and should be subject to the same safety 
measures as HMOs and single lets. 

Properties let through Airbnb or used as holiday lets are short-term, 
commercial lets and do not legally fall under these licensing schemes 

Holiday lets - again, is there a reason why these do not need to be safe? This 
will result in more Airbnb accommodation and less rental availability.  
 
I believe tenancies of 12months plus should be included in these exemptions. 
Properties managed by managing agents should also be exempt, as managing 
agents will actively make sure properties comply with current regulations. 

Theme: Other 

Add homes for any people in crisis, or refugee families. Licences are issues to properties and are not based on the situation of the 
tenants. Tenants can still change properties and tenancies during the licence 
period. The council is proposing to introduce these schemes to protect tenants 
from poor accommodation and landlords who do not fulfil their obligations, and 
the council believes that tenants, regardless of their situation, should have the 
same protection and live in properties held to the same standard  

Anyone fostering or adopting. 

Households renting a room Properties where the person to whom the licence would be granted occupies the 
house or dwelling as their only or main residence are exempt from selective 
licensing. Therefore, if the owner of a property rents out one room, for example 
to a lodger, this would be exempt from selective licensing. 

Students and religious buildings shouldn't be exempt, they both have people 
living there who should expect the same level of safety as anyone else. 

These buildings are exempt from selective licensing under schedule 14 of the 
Housing Act 2004 

Yes, for temporary accommodation (TA), use the Ealing Council Setting the 
Standard (StS) scheme being run on behalf of Southwark and other Councils (so 
if I continue with only TA, maybe selective licensing may not be applicable to 
me). 

Properties used for temporary accommodation are exempt from selective 
licensing 

 

337



 1 

 
 
         

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Driving Up Standards for 
the Private Rented Sector: 
 
Equality analysis  
 
7 October 2021 
 
Appendix 14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

338



 2 

 
 
 
 
 

Section 1: Equality analysis details 

 
 

Proposed 
policy/decision/business plan to 
which this equality analysis 
relates 

A public consultation to renew and extend 
property licensing in the private rented 
sector and to introduce a Gold Standard 
Charter for the Private Rented Sector 

 

Equality analysis author 
Emma Trott, Private Sector Housing Enforcement & 
Licensing Unit Manager 

Strategic Director: Caroline Bruce 

Department 
Environment & 
Leisure 

Division 
Regulatory 
Services 

Period analysis 
undertaken  

29 June 2021 – 30 July 2021  

 

339



 3 

Section 2: Brief description of policy/decision/business plan 

  
 

1.1 Brief description of policy/decision/business plan 

Following the collection of evidence and a public consultation, the Council is 
proposing the introduction of; a new additional licensing scheme to include all 
houses let in multiple occupation that are not included in the mandatory licensing 
scheme and, a selective licensing scheme covering all privately rented 
properties, not included in the mandatory or additional licensing schemes in the 
following wards: 

 Faraday, 

 Goose Green, 

 St. Giles, 

 Champion Hill and, 

 Newington.  
 
The above additional and selective licensing schemes are proposed to run for a 
period of five years, from 2022. 
 
Licensable properties are required to meet conditions that are aimed at ensuring 
fit and proper management and tenancy, providing a fair environment for all 
landlords, better choice and standard of rented accommodation, and be adverse 
to rogue and non-compliant landlords and tenants.  
 
The Council has powers to deal with poor living conditions within the private 
rented sector (PRS). However, the legal standard that is enforceable is relatively 
basic and does not reflect the council’s aspirations for the Borough. With this in 
mind the Council also plans to consult on the introduction of a Gold Standard 
Charter for the private rented sector. The standard encompasses a higher 
standard than that included in the licensing schemes, to reflect good practice 
and improve the quality of accommodation and conditions for tenants.  
 
The Council wants to make sure that private rented properties in the Borough 
offer residents a choice of safe, good quality and well managed accommodation. 
Decent housing is the bedrock of people’s lives and a strong and cohesive local 
community. A more stable and high quality private rented sector will lead to 
better community relations and less of the anti-social behaviour that can hurt our 
neighbourhoods. 
 
The Borough Plan sets out these commitments across eight themes. The 

designation of discretionary Licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter 

supports a number of the themes that form Southwark’s Fairer Future 

Commitments. They support 'homes for all' and 'tackling health inequalities’ by 

improving living standards in the borough. Licensing specifically will help to 

address poor housing, as well as dealing with and deterring rogue landlords.  

These proposals will help give a secure home environment to tenants in the 

340



 4 

private rented sector and give them the platform to make the most of the 

opportunities on their doorstep supporting a number of the themes including; 

'thriving neighbourhoods' and 'a great start in life'.    

 
The decision maker is Cabinet  
 

 
 
Section 3: Overview of service users and key stakeholders to be consulted 

 
 

2. Service users and stakeholders 

Key users of the 
department or 
service 

The PRS provides accommodation for roughly one third of 
the residents of Southwark. Over 40,000 residents live in 
privately rented dwellings.  
 
The types of tenants who occupy properties in the private 
rented sector can range from the poorest and most 
vulnerable in our society to students, young professionals 
and families.  
 
It is estimated that there are over 5,000 private sector 
landlords operating in Southwark. These are important 
recipients of our services. There is a willingness on the parts 
of most landlords to comply with basic health and safety 
requirements. However, lack of incentive, knowledge and so 
many resources to refer to often means that they are 
unaware of their responsibilities and do not know what 
constitutes decent accommodation, good practice or how to 
achieve a higher standard of accommodation.   
 
Private sector tenants are key users of our services as they 
are able to report to us any problems they are experiencing 
in their homes that may need intervention by the Council. 
 
The general public are also able to report to us any 
problems that may be experiencing that are arising from 
private rented dwellings. 
 
Monitoring data collated indicates there are a number of key 
characteristics of clients using the services. 
 
Approximately 72 per cent are from black and minority 
ethnic (BME) communities.  This is significantly higher than 
the proportion of Southwark residents from these 
communities, which is closer to 50 per cent according to 
2011 Census data. This level of take-up by BME 

341



 5 

communities is clearly a key factor when considering how 
best to commission services able to meet their needs.   
 
In terms of service users 3,569 out of a total of 27,696 within 
a one year period reported having a disability.  This 
indicates a significant level of need relating to ill-health and 
disability.   
 
 
 

Key 
stakeholders  
were/are 
involved in this 
policy/decision/
business plan 

A consultation on the Council’s proposals was conducted   
between 15 February 2021 and 28 June 2021.   
 
The purpose of this consultation was to gather opinions from 
a broad range of stakeholders before finalising the licensing 
proposals, including the areas in which selective licensing 
will operate and the content and process for the Gold 
Standard Charter.  
 
The Council received responses and representations to the 
consultation from 1,916 stakeholders from the following 
groups: 
 

 Landlords groups 

 Managing agents 

 Tenants groups 

 Internally with other council teams that work with the 
PRS (e.g. Tenancy Relations, Trading Standards) 

 Relevant charities and other third party groups 
providing support to the private rented sector. 

 The general public 

 Neighbouring Local Authorities 
 
The consultation results have been used to establish that 
the final proposals for additional and selective property 
licensing and the Gold Standard Charter is inclusive, 
appropriate, accessible and beneficial. 
 
The final proposals will need to be publicised to ensure that 
all stakeholders are aware of the schemes and any legal 
obligations they have to comply with the schemes or any 
rights or benefits they may have from the schemes are 
communicated with all stakeholders.  
 

 
 
Section 4: Pre-implementation equality analysis 

 

342



 6 

 
Age - Where this is referred to, it refers to a person belonging to a particular age 
(e.g. 32 year olds) or range of ages (e.g. 18 - 30 year olds). 
 

Potential impacts (positive and negative) of proposed 
policy/decision/business plan 

 
The private sector houses the full range of age groups. Families with small children 
and older people who reside in private rented accommodation can have very low 
incomes and other disadvantages, for example education and language barriers so 
their ability to mitigate problems is more limited. The conditions in this market in 
Southwark stretch from the exclusive accommodation provided in the north of the 
borough to the very lowest end of the rental market. 
 
Generally the effect of property licensing is to formalise the lightly regulated private 
rented housing market by imposing an increased regulatory framework to impose 
obligations on landlords / licence holders. It should lead to better quality 
accommodation and greater community stability for groups who are unable to 
access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist with community 
cohesion and tackle exclusion. 
 
Better managed PRS properties also improves the quality of life of many other 
Southwark residents not living in the PRS as they are indirectly impacted by low 
level neighbourhood anti-social behaviour such as noise. 
 
Licensing schemes should affect all equally and the Council’s proposals 
should provide a fairer private rented sector for all. It has the potential to 
improve the situation for all areas of the community as increases knowledge of 
legal requirements and affects landlords and tenants regardless of age, race, 
disability etc.  

  

 
 

 
Equality information on which above analysis is based 
 

Census data, DCLG Reports, British Housing Condition Survey Data, 
Housing Act 2004 HHSRS data, MetaStreet Housing Stock Condition and 
Stressors Report December 2019 (appendix 1), https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus 
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/older-
adults.html 
 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

 
Promotional materials and results from the schemes themselves will be monitored 
to ensure that members of the older generation who may not have access to online 
materials or younger generations (i.e. 16-24 year olds) will be aware of the 
licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter: 

343

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/older-adults.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/older-adults.html


 7 

 Publicity on social media around the start of the schemes and at regular 
intervals throughout the life of the schemes to target this group. 

 Direct mailing in areas where specific age groups are likely to reside. 

 Contacting charities and third party advice groups that represent such 
stakeholders, such as Age Concern, Help the Aged, Action for Children, the 
Children’s Society  and groups representing ethnic minorities.  
 

 

 

 
Disability - A person has a disability if s/he has a physical or mental impairment 
which has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on that person's ability to 
carry out normal day-to-day activities. 
 

Possible impacts (positive and negative) of proposed 
policy/decision/business plan 

Licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter should affect all equally. It 
has the potential to improve the situation for all areas of the community as 
increases knowledge of legal requirements and affects landlords and tenants 
regardless of age, race, disability etc. It should lead to better quality 
accommodation and greater community stability for groups who are unable to 
access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist with community 
cohesion and tackle exclusion.  
 
Tenants with disabilities or medical conditions are usually more vulnerable to 
certain hazards, even those that present at a low enough level to not be a 
hazard under the HHSRS. Licensing will help the council to improve the 
management of the PRS and reduce the chances of hazards occurring. 
 
 

 
Equality information on which above analysis is based 
 

Census data, DCLG Reports, British Housing Condition Survey Data, 
Housing Act 2004 HHSRS data (vulnerable groups), Decent Homes Standard 
2006, https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus 
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/people-with-
disabilities.html 
  

Mitigating actions to be taken 

 
Promotional materials and results from the schemes themselves will be 
monitored to ensure that anyone with a disability will be aware of the licensing 
schemes and the Gold Standard Charter: 

 Publicity on social media around the start of the schemes and at regular 
intervals throughout the life of the schemes to target this group. 

 Direct mailing in areas where specific age groups are likely to reside. 

344

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/people-with-disabilities.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/people-with-disabilities.html


 8 

 Contacting charities and third party groups that represent such 
stakeholders directly as part of the consultation, such as Mind, Southwark 
Disablement Association and Together for Mental Wellbeing. 

 

 
 

 
Gender reassignment - The process of transitioning from one gender to 
another. 
 

Possible impacts (positive and negative) of proposed 
policy/decision/business plan 

 
No specific impacts have been identified or raised in relation to this.   
 
Licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter should affect all equally. It 
has the potential to improve the situation for all areas of the community as 
increases knowledge of legal requirements and affects landlords and tenants 
regardless of age, race, disability etc. It should lead to better quality 
accommodation and greater community stability for groups who are unable to 
access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist with community 
cohesion and tackle exclusion. 
 

 
Equality information on which above analysis is based.   
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus  

Mitigating actions to be taken 

There is no evidence that the consultation will negatively affect anyone in this 
group or that access to the schemes will be restricted. 
 

 
 

 
Marriage and Civil Partnership - In England and Wales marriage is no longer 
restricted to a union between a man and a woman but now includes a marriage 
between a same-sex couple. Same-sex couples can also have their 
relationships legally recognised as 'civil partnerships'. Civil partners must not be 
treated less favorably than married couples and must be treated the same as 
married couples on a wide range of legal matters. (Only to be considered in 
respect to the need to eliminate discrimination). 
 

345



 9 

Possible impacts (positive and negative) of proposed 
policy/decision/business plan 

 
Licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter should affect all equally. It 
has the potential to improve the situation for all areas of the community as 
increases knowledge of legal requirements and affects landlords and tenants 
regardless of age, race, disability etc. It should lead to better quality 
accommodation and greater community stability for groups who are unable to 
access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist with community 
cohesion and tackle exclusion. 
 
 

Equality information on which above analysis is based 
 
 

Census Data, DCLG data, Anecdotal evidence, https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

There is no evidence that the consultation will negatively affect anyone in this 
group or that access to the schemes will be restricted. 
 

 
 

Pregnancy and maternity - Pregnancy is the condition of being pregnant or 
expecting a baby. Maternity refers to the period after the birth, and is linked to 
maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, protection 
against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, and this 
includes treating a woman unfavorably because she is breastfeeding. 

Possible impacts (positive and negative) of proposed 
policy/decision/business plan 

In general more people are raising their families in the PRS as the supply of 
social housing is restricted and property ownership becomes less affordable. 
Therefore more children are being affected by PRS issues. Pregnant women, 
new mothers and their babies are more vulnerable to certain hazards and 
require a higher level of self-care and cleanliness in the home. Facilities such as 
adequate hot water and heating are essential and can cause serious issues if 
not available for just a short period of time.  
Whilst legislation allows us to require a landlord to repair boilers and heating 
systems if they are not working, we cannot legally require the landlord to put 
measures in place to prevent the issues occurring. Encouraging landlords to 
have boiler service and repair contracts, for example, will mean that a tenant can 
arrange for repairs quickly and conveniently reducing the likelihood of a 
malfunction and reducing the potential impact should their boiler fail in some 
way. Similarly, as long as a bathroom or kitchen functions legislation does not 

346



 10 

allow for its replacement.  
 
There will probably be a significant number of expectant mothers living in the 
PRS and the effect of licensing for these households is positive.  
 
Licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter should affect all equally. It 
has the potential to improve the situation for all areas of the community as 
increases knowledge of legal requirements and affects landlords and tenants 
regardless of age, race, disability etc. It should lead to better quality 
accommodation and greater community stability for groups who are unable to 
access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist with community 
cohesion and tackle exclusion. 
 

 
Equality information on which above analysis is based 
 

Census Data, DCLG data, Anecdotal evidence, https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

There is no evidence that the consultation will negatively affect anyone in this 
group or that access to the schemes will be restricted. 
 

 
 

 
Race - Refers to the protected characteristic of Race. It refers to a group of 
people defined by their race, colour, and nationality (including citizenship) ethnic 
or national origins. 
 

Possible impacts (positive and negative) of proposed 
policy/decision/business plan 

There are reported problems with ethnicity and access to PRS lettings. It is also 
the case that new communities form in Southwark over time. These communities 
are often exposed to the poorest accommodation as they seek to gain a foothold 
in the wider community. 
 
As the PRS is likely to be the only accessible housing tenure for new 
communities to Southwark, different faith groups will be well represented and 
licensing as well as the Gold Standard Charter will have a positive effect for 
these households.  
 
Licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter should affect all equally. It 
has the potential to improve the situation for all areas of the community as 
increases knowledge of legal requirements and affects landlords and tenants 
regardless of age, race, disability etc. It should lead to better quality 

347



 11 

accommodation and greater community stability for groups who are unable to 
access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist with community 
cohesion and tackle exclusion. 
 
Consulting with tenants and the public should not have any negative effects 
other than that some groups may not have their opinions represented due to 
language barriers and their ability to understand the consultation. 
 
There is clear evidence that black and minority ethnic groups are at higher risk of 
dying from COVID-19 than the rest of the population though that risk may not be 
the same for all ethnic groups. Data from the ONS published on 7 May show 
that, after adjusting for age, men and women of black ethnicity were at highest 
risk. They were more than four times as likely to die from COVID-19 compared to 
people of white ethnicity. 
 
 

 
Equality information on which above analysis is based 
 

Census Data, DCLG data, Anecdotal evidence, https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus 
https://www.health.org.uk/news-and-comment/charts-and-infographics/emerging-
findings-on-the-impact-of-covid-19-on-black-and-
min?gclid=EAIaIQobChMI8rqkiaLc7QIVGoBQBh0IOgt-
EAAYASAAEgLSZfD_BwE 
 
 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

 
Promotional materials and results from the schemes themselves will be 
monitored to ensure that anyone from black, asian or ethnic minority 
communities are made aware of the licensing schemes and the Gold Standard 
Charter: 
• Publicity on social media around the start of the schemes and at regular 
intervals throughout the life of the schemes to target this group. 
• Direct mailing in areas where specific age groups are likely to reside. 
• Contacting charities and third party groups that represent such 
stakeholders as part of the consultation, such as Citizens Advice Bureaus, AaIna 
Women’s Group. 
 
 
 

 

 
Religion and belief - Religion has the meaning usually given to it but belief 
includes religious and philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (e.g. Atheism). 
Generally, a belief should affect your life choices or the way you live for it to be 
included in the definition. 
 

348

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus
https://www.health.org.uk/news-and-comment/charts-and-infographics/emerging-findings-on-the-impact-of-covid-19-on-black-and-min?gclid=EAIaIQobChMI8rqkiaLc7QIVGoBQBh0IOgt-EAAYASAAEgLSZfD_BwE
https://www.health.org.uk/news-and-comment/charts-and-infographics/emerging-findings-on-the-impact-of-covid-19-on-black-and-min?gclid=EAIaIQobChMI8rqkiaLc7QIVGoBQBh0IOgt-EAAYASAAEgLSZfD_BwE
https://www.health.org.uk/news-and-comment/charts-and-infographics/emerging-findings-on-the-impact-of-covid-19-on-black-and-min?gclid=EAIaIQobChMI8rqkiaLc7QIVGoBQBh0IOgt-EAAYASAAEgLSZfD_BwE
https://www.health.org.uk/news-and-comment/charts-and-infographics/emerging-findings-on-the-impact-of-covid-19-on-black-and-min?gclid=EAIaIQobChMI8rqkiaLc7QIVGoBQBh0IOgt-EAAYASAAEgLSZfD_BwE


 12 

Possible impacts (positive and negative) of proposed 
policy/decision/business plan 

As the PRS is the likely to be the only accessible housing tenure for new 
communities to Southwark, various ethnic groups will be disproportionately 
represented and licensing as well as the Gold Standard Charter will have a 
positive effect for these households.  
 
Licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter should affect all equally. It 
has the potential to improve the situation for all areas of the community as 
increases knowledge of legal requirements and affects landlords and tenants 
regardless of age, race, disability etc. It should lead to better quality 
accommodation and greater community stability for groups who are unable to 
access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist with community 
cohesion and tackle exclusion. 
 
 

 
Equality information on which above analysis is based 
 

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus  

Mitigating actions to be taken 

There is no evidence that the consultation will negatively affect anyone in this 
group or that access to the schemes will be restricted. However, publicity will 
also be aimed at local churches to ensure all communities are aware of the 
schemes. 
 
 
 

 

 
Sex - A man or a woman. 
 

Possible impacts (positive and negative) of proposed 
policy/decision/business plan 

 
No specific impacts have been identified or raised in relation to this.   
 
Licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter should affect all equally. It 
has the potential to improve the situation for all areas of the community as 
increases knowledge of legal requirements and affects landlords and tenants 
regardless of age, race, disability etc. It should lead to better quality 
accommodation and greater community stability for groups who are unable to 
access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist with community 
cohesion and tackle exclusion. 

349



 13 

 
 

 
Equality information on which above analysis is based 
 

Organisations’ equality & diversity policies 
Monitoring data collected  
Monitoring information from other programmes e.g. Community Capacity 
programme 
Feedback from stakeholders 
Analysis of impacts of Welfare Reform (Southwark Council, Corporate Strategy 
unit) 
https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

 
There is no evidence that the consultation will negatively affect anyone in this 
group or that access to the schemes will be restricted. 
 

 

 
Sexual orientation - Whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own 
sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes  
 

Possible impacts (positive and negative) of proposed 
policy/decision/business plan 

No specific impacts have been identified or raised in relation to this.   
 
Licensing schemes and the Gold Standard Charter should affect all equally. It 
has the potential to improve the situation for all areas of the community as 
increases knowledge of legal requirements and affects landlords and tenants 
regardless of age, race, disability etc. It should lead to better quality 
accommodation and greater community stability for groups who are unable to 
access social housing or homeownership therefore is can assist with community 
cohesion and tackle exclusion. 
 

 
Equality information on which above analysis is based 
 

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

There is no evidence that the consultation will negatively affect anyone in this 
group or that access to the schemes will be restricted. 

350



 14 

 

 

Human Rights  
There are 16 rights in the Human Rights Act. Each one is called an Article. They are all 
taken from the European Convention on Human Rights. The Articles are The right to life, 
Freedom from torture, inhuman and degrading treatment, Freedom from forced labour , 
Right to Liberty, Fair trial, Retrospective penalties, Privacy, Freedom of conscience, 
Freedom of expression, Freedom of assembly, Marriage and family, Freedom from 
discrimination and the First Protocol  
 

Possible impacts (positive and negative) of proposed policy/decision/business 
plan 

Property licensing and the proposed Gold Standard Charter will support the 
Human Rights of members of the community of Southwark at a number of levels. 
Improved property conditions support improved public health, reduction in fear, 
harassment and uncertainty in the domestic environment. 
 
Our focus on improved facilities, safety, security, privacy and improving 
management and maintenance all contribute to the resident of a PRS property 
realising the intended benefits of an improved private rented sector and in 
particular the right to life. 

 
Information on which above analysis is based 
 

The Human Rights Act, Housing Act 2004 HHSRS, 
https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus 
 

Mitigating actions to be taken 

There is no evidence that the schemes will affect the human rights of any 
stakeholder or member of the public. 
 
 

 

351



 15 

Section 5: Further actions and objectives 

 
 

5. Further actions 

Based on the initial analysis above, please detail the key mitigating actions or the areas identified 
as requiring more detailed analysis.  

 Number Description of issue Action  Timeframe 

1 

Ensuring that all 
communities are aware of 
the schemes and their 
rights and responsibilities 

Comprehensive 
communication plan 
Monitoring results of the 
schemes to ensure they 
are effective in all areas 
and communities  

To be implemented 
following approval of the 
schemes and throughout 
the life of the schemes. 

2    

3    

4    

 
 
 

5. Equality objectives (for business plans) 

Based on the initial analysis above, please detail any equality objectives that you will set for your 
division/department/service. Under the objective and measure column please state whether this 
objective is an existing objective or a suggested addition to the Council Plan.   

Objective and 
measure 

Lead officer 
Current 
performance 
(baseline) 

Targets 

2022/23 2024/25 

Monitoring 
equality 
outcomes from 
the schemes  

Emma Trott None March 2023 March 2025 

 

 

352



Item No. 6 
 
 

Date: 5 Nov 2021  MEETING NAME 
Housing and Community 
Engagement Scrutiny 
Commission 

Report title: Policy and practice - Mutual exchanges Housing 
option 

Wards All 

From: 
 

Ricky Bellot – Head of Housing Supply 

 

Recommendation (s) 
 
The Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission note the 
following: 

 
1. Policy and practice applied  by Southwark council when completing mutual 

exchanges 
2. The performance surrounding mutual exchanges 
3. Housing Mobility and Rightsizing action plan 

 
Background  
 

4. Following a request from the chair of the Housing and Community 
Engagement Scrutiny Commission, this report has been produced to 
provide an overview of the mutual exchange housing option available 
within Southwark.  
 

5. Southwark council complete mutual exchanges in line with the legislative 
framework under the Housing Act 1985 section 92. This is defined when a 
tenant who has a secure or assured tenancy agrees to exchange with 
another secure or assured tenant.  
 

6. A mutual exchange is a totally voluntary arrangement and historically a 
process in which residents can find it difficult to find a suitable partner who 
they wish to swap with.   
 

7. Tenants’ rights relating to a mutual exchange is listed within the Tenants 
Handbook, given to all tenants and available online via the councils 
website.  

 
Mutual exchanges - policy and practice 

 
8. Southwark council have drawn up a full procedure which sets out the 

processes to be followed by the relevant officers. This is summarised in 
the process map – Appendix 1.  
 

353
Agenda Item 6



9. The procedure sets out the application forms that are required for a tenant 
to apply for a mutual exchange by tenants. Template letters council 
officers will use update tenants and the landlords at each stage of the 
process. Checklists to oversee the overall process and ensure all required 
actions from both the council and the tenant have taken place. 
 

10. An Inspection of the council property will be completed by a Technical 
Quality Officer who would completed a property inspection form to identify 
any defects and determine if they will fall under the Tenant or the Councils 
responsibility. The tenant will be advised the mutual exchange will not go 
ahead if the repairs they are responsible for are not completed.  
 

11. The procedure further sets out the legal grounds in which Southwark will 
refuse an exchange. The grounds are displayed in appendix 2. The 
template refusal letters are also listed within the full procedure.  
 

12. In line with the council’s policy, tenants with rent arrears will not be 
permitted to carry out a mutual exchange until their rent arrears are paid in 
full. Once the arrears are cleared and all other conditions are met, the 
exchange can be approved.  Discretion can be applied in exceptional 
circumstances to permit a mutual exchange with arrears.  
 

13. These procedures are followed by council officers to ensure full 
compliance with the relevant legislation and to ensure residents have 
made an informed decision on agreeing a mutual exchange. The 
procedure is reviewed every year to ensure it is up to date and was last 
updated in August 2021.  
 

14. All requests for mutual exchanges must be issued with a written decision 
within 42 days from application received from the tenant in line with 
legislation. If it timeframe is exceeded, it is deemed consent has been 
given.  
 

15. Once agreed, the exchange partners will both need to be present when 
completing a deed of assignment.  The council will ensure the tenancy, 
rent account and housing file is updated. We will also ensure equalities 
data is captured.  
 

Promotion and incentives  
 

16. For many tenants wishing to move from their home, a mutual exchange is 
not always the first option that is explored, with the usual method of a 
transfer via the councils bidding system being the preferred option. 
Therefore the council aims to promote mutual exchanges at any given 
opportunity. Exploring how the mutual exchange process is sold to tenants 
as well as keeping them engaged to continue to search.   
 

354



17.  Southwark council have signed up to the House Exchange platform. This 
is an online website which allows Southwark tenants see potential mutual 
exchanges with social housing tenants nationwide. This platform is free to 
Southwark council tenants however the council pay a yearly subscription 
fee. Once a council tenant has seen a potential property, these 
households will be referred to the local authority and the relevant process 
will be completed in line with the councils mutual exchange procedure. 
Currently Southwark have 1,291 council tenants listed on this platform.  
 

18. Prior to the pandemic, the council would host estate action days which 
would enable the council to engage with residents to promote housing 
options such as mutual exchanges. The council will aim to re-introduce 
actions days in the future. However in the interim, the council is now 
planning online virtual workshops which will promote mutual exchanges. 
 

19.  Tenants who downsize as part of a mutual exchange will receive the 
downsizing incentive of £1,000 for each bedroom the give up.   
 

 
Performance 
 

20. As a result of the pandemic, the council limited the number of mutual 
exchanges that could be completed in order to ensure the safety of both 
staff and residents. This resulted in a reduction in mutual exchanges for 
the within the last financial year.  
 

21. Mutual exchanges fully re commenced in May 2021. 
 

22. Over the last 6 financial years, there has been 415 mutual exchanges 
which is displayed in the graph below: 
 
Graph 1 – Mutual exchanges 
 

  

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Mutual Exchange

Mutual Exchange - From inside Southwark

Mutual Exchange - from outside Southwark

355



Please note this represents individual households that have moved because of a mutual exchange 
not the number of exchanges.  

 
23. The total number of mutual exchanges is further broken up below: 

 
Row 
Labels Bedsit 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4 bed 5 bed Total 

Bungalow  1     1 

Flat 17 126 81 29 4  257 

House   13 22 13 3 51 

Maisonette 1 4 55 42 4  106 

Total 18 131 149 93 21 3 415 
 

 
Housing mobility schemes and Rightsizing 
 

24. In order to address housing need in the borough as well as offer additional 
options for residents who wish to move, the cabinet member for Council 
Homes and Homelessness has highlighted increasing housing mobility 
and rightsizing as a priority.  A report has been produced by the councils 
Resident Services division, setting out the future actions that will be taken. 
This is summarised in the action plan (appendix 3).  This is reviewed and 
updated on a monthly basis. Scheduled updates will be provided to the 
lead member for Council Homes and Homelessness in order to confirm 
progress on each of the actions listed.  
 

25. As part of the action plan, the council has a number of actions to increase 
moves via a mutual exchange. This includes developing a pilot process to 
explore mutual exchanges limited to schemes where a dedicated council 
officer who will actively target households in a local area who have been 
listed on the housing register for a move. The officer will gather specific 
data to help facilitate a move with a suitable tenant.  
 

26. As well as proving a suitable option for tenants to achieve a suitable move, 
mutual exchanges eliminate void periods and delivers financial efficiencies 
for the council. Therefore, this is favourable for both the tenants and the 
council to promote mutual exchanges.  
 

Community impact statement 

27. With a growing population and increasing overcrowding within households, 
this is causing higher density within communities and related issues such 
as anti-social behaviour. The work on mutual exchanges will help provide 
additional housing solutions for households in a housing need.  

Climate change implications 
 

28. Under-occupancy of dwellings presents an inefficient carbon usage, 
including disproportionate heating and building fabric maintenance i.e. where 

356



a single person is heating a larger volume of space and requiring a greater 
extent of maintenance than she/he requires.  Increasing mutual exchanges 
to allow under occupiers the ability to move into a suitable home will bring 
back these larger units into use for the appropriate housing need positively 
contribute to the climate change agenda.      
 

Next Steps  
29. The council does not keep records of the number of mutual exchanges 

that have been refused. Therefore, the Council will be exploring additional 
data fields to record all mutual exchange requests.  
 

30. The data around mutual exchanges do not capture information on housing 
needs of households in line with the councils Allocations scheme.  This will 
be useful to identify any other housing groups that are benefiting from 
mutual exchanges this will include overcrowded households, households 
who need to move due to welfare needs and households who need to 
move to a particular area for medical reasons. 
 

31. The council will be exploring alternative methods to promote mutual 
exchanges. This will include smarter targeting through an upgrade of the 
choice based lettings system, re introducing Estate action days as well as 
virtual open evenings.  
 

32. More work needs to be completed with housing association partners to 
help identify tenants who can complete a mutual exchange. This will 
include joined up action days and virtual evenings.  
 

33. Continue to monitor and update rightsizing action plan, specifically 
identifying requirements of individual households to achieve more moves 
via a mutual exchange.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

357



Cabinet Member 

 

Councillor Stephanie Cryan Cabinet Member for Council 
Homes and Homelessness  
 

Lead Officer 
Michael Scorer Strategic Director of Housing & Modernisation, 
Housing and Modernisation and  
 

Report Author 

Ricky Bellot Head of Housing Supply and Cheryl Russell, 
Director of Resident Services and  

 

Version V2 

Dated 5 Nov 2021 

Key Decision? 
No 

 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER 

Officer Title 
Comments 
Sought 

Comments included 

Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance  

No No 

Director of Law and Governance  No n/a 

Cabinet Member for Council 
Homes and Homelessness 

Yes No 

Cabinet Member for a Safer, 
Cleaner Borough 

No No 

Date final report sent to Constitutional/Community 
Council/Scrutiny Team  

12 Nov 2021 

 
 

APPENDICES 

 

No Title  

Appendix A Mutual exchange process map 

Appendix B Grounds for refusal. 

Appendix C Housing Mobility action plan 

 
 
 
 

358



Appendix A – Mutual exchange process map 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

359



Appendix B – Grounds for refusal.  

GROUNDS FOR 

REFUSAL UNDER 

HOUSING ACT 1985 

SCHEDULE 3

NO GROUNDS FOR 

REFUSAL

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

No

Is there a possession 

order outstanding?

Have possession 

proceedings started, or is 

there an NSP in force?

Will there be under 

occupation upon 

assignment?

Is the property 

reasonable suitably to the 

assignee and his/her 

family (is it too small)?

Is the property let for non-

housing or employment 

reasons?

Is there a conflict with 

charitable aims?

Is the property designed 

for the disabled?

Is the property Housing 

Association/Trust 

designated for special 

circumstances?

Is the property designated 

for special needs groups?

Is the property subject to 

Management 

Agreement?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

 

360



 
Appendix C – Housing Mobility action plan 
 

 

 

 

Action  Prospective outcome  Timeframe/ 
Milestone  

Housing Solutions to advertise 2 properties 
per quarter on the Housing Moves website. 
 
 

To prevent our tenants from 
being blocked from bidding for 
Housing Moves properties  

 
August 2021  

Analyse the effectiveness of the current 
incentives to downsize such as Smart Moves. 
 
Explore offering a personalised service 

To encourage more under-
occupiers to give up large 
properties   

Dec 2021 

Promotional campaigns – work with the 
Communications Team to publicise the 
incentives to downsize: council website, 
estates through T&RAs, posters, leaflets, 
noticeboards, Estate Action Days, Etc.  
 

Raise more awareness  Feb 2022 

Consultations/surveys with under occupying 
tenants 
 
Benchmarking with other local authorities  

Get more informed about why 
some tenants don’t want to 
downsize  
 

March 2022 

 
Upgrade the Homesearch website.  
 
A section on mutual exchanges to be added  

 Utilize a central mutual 
exchange portal 

 Raise more awareness 

 Reduce the requests for 
temporary accommodation 
and save the council some 
money since there are no void 
costs involved. 

Dec 2021 

Regular verification/approval of Housing 
Moves and Seaside & Country applications. 
  
Organise training for RSOs  

 

 More applications being 
verified 

 Increased housing mobility 
opportunities  

Ongoing 
  
 

 
Explore external mutual exchange platforms.  
 
HomeSwapper 
 
 

 More opportunities for our 
tenants to exchange properties 
within or out of Southwark  

 Our tenants can join and 
search for over 500,000 other 
social tenants 

Nov 2021 

Promote and encourage our tenants to 
register with ‘House Exchange’ for mutual 
exchanges  
 

More opportunities for our 
tenants to exchange properties 
within or out of Southwark  

Ongoing  

Update the council website to promote the 
above.  
 

 Raise more awareness Feb 2022 

361



  1  

  

  

    

  

Item No.   

7.  

  

Classification:  

Open  

Date:  

15 November 2021  

  

Meeting Name:  

Housing and Community  

Engagement Scrutiny  

Commission  

  

Report title:  

  

Work Programme 2021-22 

  

Ward(s) or groups 

affected:  

  

N/a  

From:  

  

Scrutiny Officer 

  

  

RECOMMENDATIONS  

  

1. That the housing and community engagement scrutiny commission note 

the work programme as at 15 November 2021 attached as Appendix 15.  

  

2. That the housing and community engagement scrutiny commission 

consider the addition of new items or allocation of previously identified items 

to specific meeting dates of the commission.  

  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION   

  

3. The general terms of reference of the scrutiny commissions are set out in 

the council’s constitution (overview and scrutiny procedure rules - 

paragraph 5).  The constitution states that:  

  

Within their terms of reference, all scrutiny committees/commissions will:  

  

a) review and scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with 

the discharge of any of the council’s functions  

  

b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the 

cabinet and council officers both in relation to individual decisions and 

over time in areas covered by its terms of reference  

  

c) review and scrutinise the performance of the council in relation to its 

policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas  

  

d) question members of the cabinet and officers about their decisions and 

performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and 

targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, 

362
Agenda Item 7



  2  

  

  

    

initiatives or projects and about their views on issues and proposals 

affecting the area  

  

e) assist council assembly and the cabinet in the development of its budget 

and policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues  

  

f) make reports and recommendations to the cabinet and or council 

assembly arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process  

  

g) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants  

  

h) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether 

national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are 

enhanced by collaborative working  

  

i) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area 

and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the scrutiny 

committee and local people about their activities and performance  

  

j) conduct research and consultation on the analysis of policy issues and 

possible options  

  

k) question and gather evidence from any other person (with their consent)  

  

l) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance 

community participation in the scrutiny process and in the development 

of policy options  

  

m) conclude inquiries promptly and normally within six months  

  

4. The work programme document lists those items which have been or are 

to be considered in line with the committee’s terms of reference.  

  

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION   

  

5. The Housing service areas that fall within the scope of the Housing and 

Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission are:  

  

• Resident Services (which includes area management, strategy and 

business support, strategic business and support housing services).  

  

• Customer Experience Division (which includes the Contact Centre; 

Customer Resolution and Specialist Services, My Southwark Home 

Owners and the Housing Solutions Services).  

  

• Asset Management Division (which includes New Homes; Investment, 

Repairs & Maintenance and Engineering).  

363



  3  

  

  

    

  

6. As of 16 September the commission also now has within in its remit the 

area of community engagement.  

  

7. The cabinet portfolio elements relating to this commission are listed below:  

  

Housing (Councillor Stephanie Cryan)  

  

• Housing Strategy  

• New council homes  

• Housing allocations and lettings  

• Council housing asset management strategy and investment 

programmes  

• Housing repairs and major works  

• Homeowners services  

• Private rented housing  

• Empty homes and under occupation  

• Short term-lets  

• Relationship with housing associations  

  

  

Leisure, Environment and Roads - Councillor Catherine Rose (Housing 

related portfolio areas)  

  

• Estate cleaning  

  

Communities, Equalities and Neighbourhoods – Councillor Alice 

Macdonald (Community related portfolio areas)  

  

• Community engagement, participation and development  

• Community and tenants and residents halls and centres  

• Faith communities  

  

Social Support and Homelessness – Councillor Helen Dennis  

  

• Establishing a Southwark Community Support Alliance (building on the 

success of the community hub)  

• Homelessness services  

  

8. Set out in Appendix 15 (Work Programme) are the issues the housing 

scrutiny commission is due to consider in the 2021-22 municipal year.    

  

9. The work programme is a standing item on the housing scrutiny 

commission agenda and enables the commission to consider, monitor and 

plan issues for consideration at each meeting.  

  

  

364



  4  

  

  

    

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  

  

Background Papers  Held At  Contact  

Housing and Community  

Engagement Scrutiny 

Commission   

  

Southwark Council 

Website   

Everton Roberts 

020 7525 7221  

Link: 

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=551   

  

  

  

APPENDICES  

  

No.  Title  

Appendix 15 Work Programme 2021/22 

  

  

AUDIT TRAIL  

  

Lead Officer  Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer 

Report Author  Amit Alva,  

Version  Final  

Dated  15 November 2021  

Key Decision?  No  

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /   

CABINET MEMBER  

Officer Title  Comments 

Sought  

Comments 

Included  

Director of Law and Governance  No  No  

Strategic Director of Finance 

and Governance  

No  No  

Cabinet Member   No  No  

Date final report sent to Scrutiny Team  15 November 2021  

  

365

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=551
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=551
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=551


 Appendix 15 
 

 

Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission Work Programme – 2021/22 

 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
12 July 2021 

 
 
Building New Council Homes (Interview with Cabinet 
Member) 

 
 
Commission interviewed Cabinet Member for 
Homes and Homelessness and received an 
overview report on building new Council homes. 
 
 
 
 

 
Work Programme 
 

 
Considered at each meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
5 October 2021 

 
New council homes on existing estates – Case Study 
1- Brenchley Gardens 
  

 Chronology of events/ progress of this project. 

 Issues faced.  

 Proposal changes and the reasoning behind it. 

 Effects of changes on residents and the 
consultation process for these changes. 
 
 
 

 
To receive a comprehensive report from officers in 
the form of a case study with detailed site specific 
information. The scrutiny review will focus on 
learnings from the issues faced which would help 
improve other projects and their respective public 
consultation processes. 
 
 
 

366



 Appendix 15 
 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 Council Plan on Building Zero Carbon Houses To receive a report from Officers/ Cabinet member 
on the council’s plan on building zero carbon 
homes. The report to present details on the 
approach to building Zero/Low carbon homes, 
enforcement of environmental standards with 
regards to building council houses, carbon offset 
fund levels set, Southwark’s compliance with the 
Mayor’s ‘Zero Carbon Homes’ policy and 
spending of funds secured from offsetting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
23 November 2021 
 

 Interview with Councillor Darren Merrill, and 
report on private rented housing, including 
licencing and the renter’s union 
 

 Discussion on results from the survey of 
residents of the private rented sector 

 
 

 Policy & Practice on mutual exchange housing 
options 

 

To attend Councillor Darren Merrill, Cabinet 
Member for a Safer, Cleaner Borough. 
 
Officers to attend Emma Trott, Private Sector 
Housing Enforcement Manager and Matt Clubb, 
Director of environment and Leisure and report on 
private rented housing. 
 
In addition, officers Ricky Belott, Head of Housing 
Supply, Cheryl Russell, Director of Resident 
Services and Equeye Robertson, Area Manager 
(South), Housing and Modernisation to report on 
policy and practice on mutual exchange housing 
options.  
 

367



 Appendix 15 
 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
15 December 2021 

 Impact of Fire Safety Act on the HRA and 
leaseholders 

 
 
 
New council homes on existing estates – Case Study 
2- Kingston Estate 
  

 Chronology of events/ progress of this project. 

 Issues faced.  

 Proposal changes and the reasoning behind it. 

 Effects of changes on residents and the 
consultation process for these changes. 

 
 
 

To receive a report from David Hodgson, Director 
of Asset Management and Ian Young, 
Departmental Finance Manager, Housing and 
Modernisation. 
 
To receive a comprehensive report from officers in 
the form of a case study with detailed site specific 
information. The scrutiny review will focus on 
learnings from the issues faced which would help 
improve other projects and their respective public 
consultation processes. 
 
Officers - Tim Bostridge, Head of Development 
and Stuart Davies, Director of New Homes, 
Housing and Modernisation.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
7 February 2022 
 

 Impact of the pandemic on the repairs service 
 

 Recommendations to cabinet on new council 
homes on existing estates 
 

 Impact of the pandemic on Southwark Housing 
and measures needed 
 

 Empty homes in Southwark 
 

 New Tenancy Management Organisations 
 

Further details of reports/presentations and 
officers/cabinet member addresses to be 
confirmed 

368



 Appendix 15 
 

Meeting Agenda items Comment 
 

 Recommendations to Cabinet on the private 
rented sector 

 
 
16 March 2022 

 New tenant/resident community engagement 
structures  
 

 Temporary accommodation 
 

 Recommendations to Cabinet 
 

Further details of reports/presentations and 
officers/cabinet member addresses to be 
confirmed 

 

 

369



 

370



 

Housing and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission   
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021-22 
 

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) 
 

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Fitzroy Williams Tel: 020 7525 7102 

 

 

Name No of 
copies 

Name No of 
copies 

 
Electronic Copy 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Gavin Edwards 
Councillor Damian O’ Brien 
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Sunny Lambe 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor John Hartley 
Councillor Jane Salmon 
 

Reserves Members 
 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Nick Dolezal  
Councillor Karl Eastham 
Councillor Hamish McCallum 
Councillor Victoria Olisa 
Councillor Andy Simmons 
Councillor Bill Williams 
 
Co-Opted Members 
 
Bassey Bassey (Southwark TMO) 
Cris Claridge (Tenants Forum) 
Ina Negoita ( Southwark Homeowners Forum)  
 
 

 
 
 

 
Aine Gallagher – Cabinet and Public 
Affairs Manager 
 
Joseph Brown – Senior Cabinet Officer 
 
Paul Wendt, Liberal Democrat Group 
Office 
 
Pavle Popovic – Liberal Democrat Group 
Office 
 
 
External 

 
Caroline Vicent 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Total: 14 
 
Dated: November 2021 

 

 
 
 

 

371


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Private rented housing, including licencing and the renter's union
	Appendix 1 Mandatory Licensing - Final Proposal 27 9 21
	Appendix 2 Additional Licensing Final Proposal 27 9 21
	Appendix 3 Additional Licensing Draft Designation Declaration 7 10 21
	Appendix 4 Selective Licensing Designation 1 Final Proposal 27 9 21
	Appendix 5 Selective Licensing Designation 2 Final Proposal 27 9 21
	Appendix 6 Selective Licensing Draft Designation Declaration 7 10 21
	Appendix 7  Statement of fees charges and discounts for licensing - Final Proposal 27 09 21
	Appendix 8 Licensing Schemes - Objectives Targets and Measures - Final Proposal 27 9 21
	Appendix 9 Gold Standard Charter Criteria  Final Proposal 27 9 21
	Appendix 10 Gold Standard Charter Process Final Proposal 27 9 21
	Appendix 11 PRS Licensing Evidence report 27 9 21
	1. Glossary
	2. Executive Summary
	3. The private rented sector in Southwark
	4. Property licensing schemes
	5. Licensing schemes in Southwark
	1.1 Results of the previous licensing schemes
	Compliance study


	6. Proposed additional HMO licensing scheme
	Map of the proposed additional licensing scheme
	1.2 Proposed conditions
	1.3 Proposed licence fee

	7. Proposed selective licensing scheme
	Map of the selective licence scheme designations
	Data summary for the borough
	1.4 Designation 1: Antisocial behaviour (ASB) (phase 1)
	Which areas are included in this designation?
	What is the evidence of ASB in the private rented sector in this area?
	How will selective licensing deal with ASB in the designated area?
	The proposed selective licence conditions for designation 1

	1.5 Designation 2: Poor property conditions (phase 1)
	Which areas are included in this designation?
	What is the evidence of poor property conditions in this area?
	How will licensing deal with poor property conditions in the designated area?
	The proposed selective licence conditions for designation 2

	1.6 Designation 3: Deprivation and poor property conditions (phase 2)
	Which areas are included in this designation?
	What is the evidence of deprivation and poor property conditions in this area?
	How will licensing deal with deprivation and poor property conditions in the designated area?
	The proposed selective licence conditions for designation 3

	1.7 Designation 4: Poor property conditions (phase 2)
	Which areas are included in this designation?
	What is the evidence of poor property conditions in this area?
	How will licensing deal with poor property conditions in the designated area?
	The proposed selective licence conditions for designation 4

	1.8 Why are some wards not included in the selective licensing scheme?
	1.9 Proposed selective licensing scheme conditions
	Selective licence exemptions

	1.10 Proposed selective licensing fee
	1.11 Proposed licence fee discounts
	Early bird discount
	Discount for Gold Standard Charter members
	Discount for Platinum Standard Charter members
	Discount for joining the Council’s Social Lettings Agency


	8. Changes to the mandatory HMO licensing scheme
	1.12 Proposed mandatory licence scheme conditions
	1.13 Proposed mandatory HMO licence fee

	9. Alternatives to licensing that have been considered
	10. Proposed scheme objectives
	11. Licensing and wider council strategies
	11.1 Housing Strategy
	11.2 Homelessness strategy
	11.3 Empty properties
	11.4 ASB

	12. Further information and details of the consultation

	Appendix 12 1 of 2 Consultation Final Report 27 9 21
	Appendix 12 2 of 2 Consultation Evidence 27 9 21
	Appendix 13 Council's Consideration of Consultee's Responses 27 9 21
	Appendix 14 Driving up Standards for the PRS Equalities Impact Assessment 27 9 21

	6 Policy and Practice on mutual exchange housing options
	7 Work Programme 2021/22
	Housing and Community Engagment Work Programme 2021-22 - (16 November 2021)

	 Distribution List 2021/22
	DistributionListHousing&CommEn_2021-22


